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LETTER FROM THE PRESIDENT AND CEO

Dear Fellow Shareholders:

As we look ahead to 2006 and how Enesco

is transforming itself, it is important to note
where we started. Overall, fiscal 2005 was a
year of transition for Enesco. After a challeng-
ing 2004, the Company developed a strategy
that leverages Enesco’s core strengths and
directs each decision that we make. We
focused on stabilizing the business and transi-
tioning to a more sustainable and profitable
business model. While our financial per-
formance in 2005 is not where we want it to
be, Enesco is a different company today than
it was a year ago, and now has a stronger
platform for long-term growth.

STRATEGY FOR SUCCESS

One of our key objectives for 2005 was to
establish operational improvement and cost
reductions. Most notable was our decision to
terminate the Precious Moments license
agreement in May 2005. Precious Moments

MISSION STATEMENT

We will be a preduct-based
company, focusing on gift produgt
segments in which we can cevelop
and maintein & market leadership

positien, and leverage our core
distribution base. Retailers will buy
from us because of our innovative -

and proprietary product ideas,
plans and clesigns. Finelly, we will -

leverage our global assets while
recognizing unigue market needs

sales levels had been declining precipitously over the years, and the high minimum annual guarantee in the long-term
royalty agreement was pressuring our operating margins. Exiting the Precious Moments business had a positive impact
on our cash position in 2005, and we expect it will have a positive impact on gross margins and earnings in 2006 and
beyond. This strategic decision also allows Enesco to focus on our leadership in the gift merchandise categories where

we can to grow market share.

After a full evaluation of our business and our industry, in September 2005, we announced a comprehensive plan
that will improve our operating performance and increase our share in the gift market. Our goal is to implement an
operating model that is in line with other leading companies in the gift industry. This operating model will target gross
margins between 40-45%, and an operating profit margin range of 3-5%. We anticipate achieving pre-tax cost savings
on an annualized basis in the range of $34-$38 million. The plan will be executed throughout 2006, with results being

fully realized in 2007.

Our plan not only focuses on reducing operating expenses, but also on maximizing our revenue potential. We
have identified four merchandise categories around which we will structure our business moving forward. Our strategy
aligns the Company and manages our resources to gain market share in decorative gifts, inspirational gifts, brand

enthusiast gifts and occasion-based gifts.

Our plan, which focuses on the U.S. operations, centers around three key initiatives:

» Product Portfolio: Our goal was to rationalize the product portfolio to improve inventory quality and turns.
While our product lines have proliferated, unproductive SKUs have remained. By reducing 75% fewer SKUs and
$12 million less in inventory, we will reduce our inventory investment and improve our supply chain efficiency.
We will retain those SKUs that meet certain sales and margin thresholds, and in total, represent 90% of U.S. sales.

« Corporate Overhead: The analysis of our operating expenses revealed that our global operations are not propor-
tionate with our current sales level. As such, we intend to reduce corporate and general and administrative costs,
as well as professional and consulting fees, by $30-$32 million pre-tax on an annualized basis.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This report and other written reports and oral statements made from time to time by Enesco Group,

Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Enesco”, “we” or “our”) and its management may contain cautionary or
“forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1993.

LIrY LI

These statements can be identified by the use of such words as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe” and other words of similar meaning, but these words are not the
exclusive means of identifying such statements. In particular, these include statements relating to
intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, future performance, results of
operations, and the outcome of contingencies, such as legal proceedings and financial condition. Forward-
looking statements give current expectations or forecasts of future events. They do not relate strictly to

historical or current facts.

Any or all of the forward-looking statements made in this report and in any other public statements
may turn out to be incorrect. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties
because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. We
caution you that actual future results of operations may vary materially from forward-looking statements.
Accordingly, you should not rely on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual future results.
Any forward-looking statement made in this report speaks only as of the date of such statement. We
operate in a continually changing business environment and undertake no obligation to update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be
required under applicable securities laws. However, you should consult any further disclosures we make on
related subjects in Forms 10-Q, 8-K, 10-K or other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

It is not possible to predict or identify all factors that potentially could cause actual results to differ
materially and adversely from expected and historical results. Such factors include, but are not limited to:

Operating Improvement Plan

* Ability to implement Enesco’s comprehensive plan for operating improvement and to achieve its .
goals for cost savings and market share increases.

+ Ability to comply with the covenants in the existing U.S. credit facility and to enter into and
comply with the covenants in new credit facilities to finance operational requirements at
competitive costs and interest rates.

Business Environment

 Day-to-day effects of current economic conditions and market fluctuations. This includes
contributing factors, such as inflation, interest and foreign currency rate changes, which may create
a positive or negative impact on operations.

» Consumer interest in products is seasonal and may vary based on current market demand
fluctuations and time of year.

» Effects of terrorist activity, armed conflict and epidemics, possibly causing a business disruption in
global economic activity, and changes in logistics and security arrangements. This is particularly
significant with respect to our heavy reliance on external manufacturing facilities located in China.

« Competitive activities, particularly those of our main competitors, which can significantly influence
giftware prices and product demand.

» The level of success of our new product introductions and those of our competitors will impact our
competitive position.



Ability to maintain strategic alliance agreements, particularly with Jim Shore Designs, Inc., in the
event Enesco experiences a change in control, including, but not limited to, a change in the
President/CEO of Enesco.

Sales Environment

Ability to secure, maintain and renew licenses and contracts, particularly Jim Shore Designs, Inc.,
Disney and Priscilla Hillman (Cherished Teddies®), which are our top performers and make up
approximately 30% of associated product line revenues.

Changes in the geographical mix of revenue for the U.S. and international, which will impact gross
margin.

Ability to grow revenue in mass and niche market channels.

Mass retailers’ attempts at direct sourcing and determining the right product designs.

‘Sales and profitability, which can be affected by changes over time in consumer preferences from

one type of product to another. This may create a shift in demand from products with higher
margins to those with lower margins or to products we do not sell.

Success in implementing new credit standards and a new credit scoring system, and continuing to
improve days sales outstanding.

Production, Procurement and Distribution

Ability to implement and execute supply chain distribution improvements and cost savings with a
third-party logistics company using a new computer system.

Timing of customer orders, shipments to the U.S. from suppliers in China and other developing .
countries, and the ability to forecast and meet customer demands for products in a timely and cost-
effective manner.

Ability to understand metrics to track and effectively manage manufacturing and supply chain lead
times, which cause fluctuations in inventory levels and order fulfillment timeliness.

Changes in customs regulations, tariffs, freight and political climate, which can adversely affect
results of operations.

Availability to source products due to changes in conditions that impact suppliers inciuding
environmental conditions, laws and regulations, litigation involving suppliers, transportation
disruptions, force majeure events and/or business decisions made by suppliers, which could have an
adverse impact on operating results.

Legal and Other

*

*

Risk of trademark and license infringements, and our ability to effectively enforce our rights.
Abilify to comply with the continued listing standards of the NYSE.

The actual events, circumstances, outcomes and amounts differing from judgments, assumptions -
and estimates used in determining the value of certain assets (including the amounts of related
allowances), liabilities, claims and tax assessments of undetermined merit and amount asserted
against us for various legal matters and other items reflected in our Consolidated Financial

_ Statements.




PART 1

Item 1. Business.
General

(213

~ Enesco Group, Inc. (“Enesco,” “we” or “our”) was organized in 1937 and is incorporated in [llinois.
Our principal executive offices are located at 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois 60143.

We operate in a single industry segment, which designs, manufactures and markets a variety of
licensed and proprietary branded giftware and home and garden décor products to retailers in the U.S.,
Canada and Europe.

Enesco conducts business through its subsidiaries and affiliated corporations. Qur subsidiaries are
wholly owned (including their jurisdiction of incorporation) and, as of December 31, 2005, include: Enesco
Limited (England), Enesco France S.A. (France), Enesco International Ltd. (Delaware), Enesco
International (H.K.) Limited (Hong Kong), N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited (Canada), Enesco Holdings
Limited (England), Stanley Home Produtos De Limpeza Ltda. (Brazil), and Gregg Manufacturing, Inc.
(California). All subsidiaries currently are active, except for Stanley Home Produtos De Limpeza Ltda.

Business Developments

In January 2006, Enesco entered into a new strategic alliance agreement with Jim Shore Designs, Inc.
Under this agreement, Jim Shore Designs reaffirms and strengthens its commitment to Enesco, which,
among other things, continues the relationship between Enesco and Jim Shore Designs three years from
the effective date, November 23, 2005, through November 22, 2008, and through November 22, 2011
unless either party chooses not to renew. The strategic alliance agreement focuses on key gift and seasonal
categories that have been very successful for Enesco and Jim Shore Designs.

Near the end of the fourth quarter of 2005, Enesco began transitioning distribution and warehousing
operations from our Elk Grove Village, Illinois (EGV) facility to a third-party logistics company which it
believes will be a more cost-efficient approach in our supply chain. In November 2005, we signed a new
five-year commitment with National Distribution Centers (NDC), an affiliate of NFI Industries, to
provide warehousing and distribution services for our primary U.S. operations. NDC 1s operating a leased
facility in the Indianapolis metropolitan area, of which Enesco occupies approximately 150,000 square feet.
To account for the costs associated with this transition, we recorded a restructuring charge for severance
costs of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter 2005. As the transition continues into 2006, we expect additional
transition costs of approximately $0.5 million to be incurred in the first half of 2006. The EGV facility is
scheduled to close in 2006. Employment levels at this facility were reduced by 87 positions in January
2006 and an additional 87 positions will be terminated in 2006 as business needs dictate.

In September 2005, Enesco announced a comprehensive plan to improve our operating performance
and establish a platform for gaining an increased share of the wholesale gift market in the U.S., Canada
and Europe (the “Operating Improvement Plan™). This operating model will target gross margins in the
range of 40% to 45% and an operating profit margin of 3% to 5% to be achieved in 2007. The Operating
Improvement Plan centers around three key initiatives: rationalizing the product portfolio; reducing
corporate overhead, general and administrative and marketing costs; and creating a more efficient and cost-
effective distribution and warchousing model. As a result of the Operating Improvement Plan, which began
in the fourth quarter of 2005 and will continue throughout 2006, we anticipate achieving pre-tax cost
savings on an annualized basis in the range of $34 million to $38 million, anticipated to be fully realized in
2007. These cost savings include approximately $13 million in expenses that have been incurred for the
termination of the PMI license agreement, bank penalty fees and accelerated depreciation related to the
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system.

Enesco received notification from the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in September 2005 that it
was not in compliance with the continued listing standards of the exchange. The NYSE considers Enesco
“below criteria” because our market capitalization was less than $75 million over a consecutive 30-trading-
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day period and shareholders’ equity was less than $75 million. On October 14, 2005, Enesco submitted a
plan to the NYSE, demonstrating how it intends to comply with the NYSE’s continued listing standards
within 18 months of receipt of their notice. On December 3, 2003, the NYSE accepted Enesco’s plan.
Enesco common stock continues to be listed on the NYSE, subject to quarterly reviews by the NYSE
Listings and ‘Compliance Committee to ensure progress against our plan.

During the second quarter of 2005, we terminated our license agreement, effective July 1, 2005 with
Precious Moments, Inc. (PMI) to sell Precious Moments® licensed products. On July 1, 2005, we began
operating under an agreement to provide PMI with transitional services related to its licensed inventory
through December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2005, however, PMI exercised its option to bring these
services in-house. The termination of the PMI license agreement had a negative impact on sales and
operating profit in 2005, but is expected to have a positive impact on earnings and cash flows in 2006 and
2007, due to the elimination of the $15.0 million annual minimum royalty payment. The net savings in
2005 on royalty costs is $11.0 million due to the reduction of the $15.0 million annual minimum royalty to
$4.0 million. The total net inventory transferred to PMI under this agreement was $7.7 million, which did
not include inventory owned by our wholly owned subsidiary, N.C. Cameron & Sons. Under a separate
agreement, N.C. Cameron & Sons agreed to continue to distribute Precious Moments® product in Canada.
N.C. Cameron & Sons’ revenues from the sale of Precious Moments® products totaled $3.0 million and
$2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In April 2005, the Lilliput Lane™ manufacturing facility in Workington, U.K. was closed, and its
operations were consolidated into the Penrith, England manufacturing plant. The closure resulted in a
headcount reduction of 55 employees, with a one-time cost of $0.9 million and expected annualized
savings of $1.5 million. The Workington plant was sold in September 2005 for $0.8 million, an amount
approximating its net book value less ordinary disposal costs.

In July 2004, Enesco Limited acquired certain assets of Dartington Crystal Limited (Dartington) for
$7.0 million. Total goodwill recorded on this acquisition was $1.2 million. Based in the U.K., Dartington is
a designer and manufacturer of a full range of uncut crystal products, such as glassware, bowls, vases,
candleholders and giftware. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we performed our first annual impairment
analysis on the Dartington goodwill, and concluded that impairment existed at December 31, 2005. A
complete write-off of the Dartington goodwill balance as of November 30, 2005 of $1.1 million was
recorded in the fourth quarter ending December 31, 2005. In the fourth quarter of 2005, following a review
of our product strategy, a decision was made that glassware is not a strategic fit for Enesco. We therefore
began to actively market the sale of the Dartington operation at that time.

In February 2004, we acquired Gregg Gift Manufacturing, Inc. (Gregg Gift) for $7.3 million. The
total goodwill recorded for this acquisition was $5.3 million. Based in the U.S., Gregg Gift is a supplier
and distributor of inspirational giftware, including book covers, organizers, tote bags, and garden and home
décor accessories. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we began to integrate Gregg Gift’s marketing and
brand management into Enesco’s inspirational merchandise category.

Bilston & Battersea Enamels, plc (B&B), a manufacturer and distributor of giftware, home
accessories and related products, including high quality, hand-decorated enamels and sculptural boxes sold
under certain Halcyon Days® brands, was acquired by Enesco in April 2003. Enesco paid approximately
$4.4 million in cash ($3.7 million net of acquired cash), which resulted in $2.9 million of recorded
goodwill related to the purchase. In 2004 and in early 2005, certain administrative functions of B&B were
integrated into Enesco Limited, resulting in annualized savings of approximately $0.7 million in 2005.

Additional information on the above general business development matters is set forth in the sections
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” of this Form 10-K.




Description of Business

Enesco is a world leader in the design, manufacturing and marketing of licensed and proprietary
branded giftware, and home and garden décor products to a variety of specialty gift, home décor, mass-
market and direct mail retailers. We primarily serve markets in the U.S., Canada and Europe.

Enesco’s product lines include some of the world’s most recognizable brands, including Bratz™,
Border Fine Arts™, Cherished Teddies®, Halcyon Days®, Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore, Lilliput
Lane™, Nickelodeon®, Pooh & Friends®, Walt Disney Classics Collections® and Disney®, among others.

Products include diverse lines of accent furniture, wall décor, garden accessories, frames, desk
accessories, figurines, cottages, musicals, music boxes, ornaments, waterballs, candles, tableware, general
home accessories and resin figures. '

Products

. Enesco’s giftware, and home and garden décor products fall under three main categories:

» Proprietary Designs

Enesco offers a line of proprietary branded products that are designed by Enesco’s in-house creative
group and certain contracted third-party artists. Our proprietary designs product lines in 2005

included:

* Blooming Wild™ o « Dartington Crystal® » Growing Up Birthday Girls®
 Border Fine Arts™ » Foundations®  Lilliput Lane™

» Circle of Love™ » Gregg Gift™

» Licensed Brands

Enesco obtains brand name licenses to develop product formats that primarily are sold to mass-market
and specialty gift retailers in the U.S. Our licensed product lines in 2005 included:

 Braiz™ » Halcyon Days® * Pooh & Friends®

o Cherished Teddies® « Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore « Precious Moments®

o Children of the Inner Light® + My Little Kitchen Fairies™ * Rudolph the Red-Nosed Reindeer®
o John Deere® o Marvel® o Walt Disney Classics Collection®

* Disney® + NASCAR®

» Mary Engelbreit™ + Nickelodeon®

« Third-Party Distribution

Enesco has third-party distribution agreements that allow us to sell other manufacturers’ product lines

in our core channels of distribution. These strategic alliances expand the breadth of our product
- offerings, while minimizing product development costs. In 2005, we had third-party distribution
agreements with the following:

+ About Face Designs » Demdaco + Lenox
» Artline » Franz Porcelain » Publications International

Our product lines consist of approximately 23,000 stock-keeping units (SKUs) worldwide, including

approximately 4,000 sold in the U.S. Each year, Enesco undertakes a comprehensive review of all products

being sold and developed. Using an analysis based on profitability and management judgment, Enesco
discontinues certain SKUs from its product lines where the potential for consumer demand is low.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, as part of our Operating Improvement Plan, we initiated a
rationalization of our U.S. product portfolio and found that as our product lines have proliferated, certain
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unproductive product lines remained. By the end of 2005, we reduced the number of overall product lines
in the U.S. by more than 70%, from 170 to approximately 50, retaining only those lines that met our
minimum sales threshold and margin criteria. As a result, we plan to close out the discontinued products
throughout 2006 and reduce our inventory levels by approximately $11 million in 2006.

Our continuing product lines are giftable items within four merchandise categories; decorative gift,
inspirational, brand enthusiast and occasion-based. We believe that these merchandise categories elicit
strong and sustainable market demand and profitability, and leverage our core distribution base. The top
10 product lines in 2005 by merchandise category include: Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and My Little
Kitchen Fairies™ in the decorative gift merchandise category; Foundations® and Gregg Gifi™ in the
inspirational category; Disney, Cherished Teddies® and Rudolph the Red-Nosed Reindeer® in the brand
enthusiast category; and Circle of Love™, Growing Up Birthday Girils® and Children of the Inner Light® in
the occasion-based merchandise category. These continuing product lines, in total, represent approximately
80% of our U.S. net sales in 2005, excluding Precious Moments® product sales.

Significant Products

Our most popular product line is Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore. This line accounted for
approximately $39.6 million, or 16% of our consolidated net revenues in 2005, compared to $35.6 million,
or 13% in 2004. This is the fourth consecutive year of increased revenues from this product line. Precious
Moments® product revenues accounted for approximatély $32.5 million, or 13% of 2005 consolidated net
revenues compared to $55.7 million, or 21% in 2004. Of the $23.2 million decrease in Precious Moments®
product revenues in 2005, $6.3 million occurred in the six months ended June 30, 2005, as compared to
revenues for the first six months of 2004. The remaining decrease of $16.9 million, which occurred over
the last six months in 2005, resulted from our termination of the PMI license agreement effective June 30,
2005. (See Note 11 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” of this Form 10-K.)

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and Precious Moments® product lines accounted for 10% or more of
our consolidated net revenue in 2005, 2004 and 2003, as shown below:

2005 2004 2003

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore. .. ... .. ... i, 16% 13% 5%
Precious Moments®. . ... ... 13% 21% 32%

No other product lines or brands accounted for more than 10% of consolidated net revenue in the last
three years.

Principal Markets

Enesco has a presence and competes in three major geographical markets that include the U.S.,
Canada and Europe (primarily the U.K., France and Germany). The U.S. market accounted for
approximately 55% of our consolidated net revenues in 2005 while Europe accounted for 32%, Canada for
11% and various other countries for 2%. Management expects this geographic mix to remain at these
approximate proportions in 2006.

Product Sourcing

Enesco’s product lines are manufactured by independent vendors in the Far East and in the
Philippines, Indonesia, Thailand and Europe. Enesco International (H.K.) Limited in Hong Kong provides
the overall management of the sourcing and production from our manufacturers in the Far East. Enesco
Limited’s U.K. manufacturing plants supply in part the Lilliput Lane™, Border Fine Arts™, Halcyon
Days® and Dartington product lines. During 2005, we closed our Lilliput Lane™ Workington facility in the
U.K. and consolidated its operations into our Penrith plant. The Workington plant was then.sold in
September 2005.




The majority of Enesco products are manufactured through third-party vendors in Asia and have
suggested retail prices ranging between $5 and $500. During 2005, Enesco’s purchases from its three
Jargest contract manufacturers accounted for approximately 15%, 11% and 9%, respectively, of its total
purchases. During 2005, approximately 70% of Enesco’s total product purchases came from manufacturing
sources located in the People’s Republic of China, which enjoys most-favored nation trade status with the
U.S. Other U.S. products primarily are purchased from Taiwan, Thailand, Germany and Japan, none of
which provide more than 10% of our purchase requirements.

Our ability to import products and thereby satisfy customer orders is affected by the availability of,
and demand for, quality production capacity abroad. Enesco competes with other importers of specialty
giftware products for the limited number of foreign manufacturing sources that can produce detailed, high-
quality products at affordable prices. Foreign manufacturing and procurement of imports is subject to the
following inherent risks: labor, economic and political instability; cost and capacity fluctuations and delays
in transportation, dockage and materials handling; restrictive actions by governments; nationalizations; the
laws and policies of the U.S. affecting importation of goods (including duties, quotas and taxes); foreign
currency fluctuations, and tax laws. Moreover, we cannot predict what relevant political, legal or regulatory
changes may occur, or the type or amount of any financial impact on Enesco such changes may have in
the future.

Enesco is dependent upon its ability to continue to conduct business with vendors located in China,
which is subject to political uncertainties, the financial impact of which we arc unable to estimate. To the
extent China may have its exports or transaction of business with U.S. persons subject to political
retaliation, the cost of imports from China could increase significantly and/or the ability to import goods
may be impaired materially. In such an event, there could be a material adverse effect on Enesco until
alternative arrangements for the manufacture of our products are obtained on economic, production and
operational terms at least as favorable as those currently in effect. :

Our Vendor Certification Program requires all manufacturing sources, whether affiliates or contract
manufacturers, to agree to, and comply with, quality compliance and labor standards established and
enforced by Enesco and certain of its licensors.

Enesco is certified by the Office of U.S. Customs and Border Protection as a member of the Customs
Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (CTPAT). The Department of Homeland Security instituted
CTPAT as a means to identify low risk importers and allow the free flow of goods even under heightened
security conditions. Enesco’s certification is strategically important since it may reduce the risk of
significant delays in the importation of our products. Also, our certification will permit us to become, or
continue to be, a vendor for certain U.S. customers who require CTPAT certification as a condition to
conducting business.

Marketing and Sales

Enesco markets its product lines primarily through retail promotions, tradeshows, and private shows
held in major U.S. and foreign cities, as well as through catalogs, collector clubs, trade advertising and the
Enesco website. In 20035, our primary marketing focus was brand building for Enesco’s proprietary product
lines, such as Foundations® and Gregg Gift™, and for Enesco’s licensed brands, such as Heartwood
Creek™ by Jim Shore and Disney related licenses. Each of these product lines experienced revenue growth
in 2005 compared to 2004 as shown in the chart below:

($ in millions) 2005 2004 % Increase
Foundations® . ... ... ... . . . . . . $ 56 $§ 48 17%
Gregg Gift . 7.6 7.2 6%
Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore .. ......................... . 39.6 35.6 11%
Disney related licenses ............ . i 20.6 19.4 - 6%




Our preduct lines are displayed in our leased showrooms located in the U.S., Canada, England,
France and Hong Kong. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we implemented a consolidation strategy for all
of our non-essential U.S. showroom locations. This strategy focuses on growing the major market
showrooms in Atlanta, Dallas and Los Angeles on a year-round basis. As a result of this consolidation, we
negotiated lease buyouts with the landlords of the remaining showrooms that we do not want to occupy on
a year round basis. The impact of terminating these showroom leases resulted in a restructuring charge of
approximately $0.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. The showroom consolidation strategy is expected
to result in annual savings of approximately $2.0 million.

Our collectible brand enthusiast product lines are primarily marketed through collector club programs
where, for a non-refundable annual fee, consumers may subscribe for exclusive product offerings and
newsletters as a member of one of our collector clubs. New items and limited edition pieces are introduced
annually to consumers. Every year, a number of existing pieces are retired from these collectible lines to
allow for new introductions and to keep each line balanced based on consumer demand. As of
December 31, 2005, Enesco had approximately 108,000 active members in its clubs, an 18% decrease from
2004 membership levels, excluding the impact of the July 1, 2005 transfer of Precious Moments® collector
club memberships to PMI as part of our license termination agreement. We believe that the overall
reduction in collector club memberships is due to the declining market interest in, and demand for,
collectible products. : g

During the first quarter of 2005, Enesco restructured its U.S. marketing and sales organization areas
to enhance the effectiveness of these critical functions and to organize its sales personnel based on whether
their customers utilize centralized buying (headquarters-based buying) versus buying on an individual
retail outlet basis. As a result, we consolidated our former multiple channel marketing structure into one
simplified and focused marketing organization. We organized our sales function under two umbrellas: field
sales and headquarters sales. Our field sales group focuses on independent store buying and is comprised of
approximately 100 field account executives based throughout the U.S and approximately 15 inside sales
account executives who work with their field counterparts. Qur headquarters sales group utilizes a team of
national account executives and customer service specialists to manage the larger, national and mass-
market accounts.

Our operations in the UK., Canada and France each have their own employee sales organizations.
Enesco also sells its products through distributors in approximately 25 countries around the world.

Methods of Distribution

In order to serve customers throughout the U.S., product is shipped from our overseas vendors to
Enesco’s warehouse and distribution facility, which is located in Elk Grove Village. In November 2005, we
announced the transition of our primary U.S. distribution and warehousing operations to National
Distribution Centers (NDC), a third-party logistics company. NDC is operating a leased facility in the
Indianapolis metropolitan area, of which our products occupy approximately 150,000 square feet. As part
of Enesco’s Operating Improvement Plan, we believe that outsourcing our distribution and warehousing
operations to a third-party logistics provider will enable us to improve supply chain efficiencies, improve
customer service, consolidate our U.S. distribution operations, improve financial performance and build on
our core strengths of new product development and sales.

We began moving all inventory related to our continuing product lines to the NDC facility during late
December 2005 in conjunction with the timing of our normal annual physical inventory count. NDC began
shipping product to our customers from its facility in January 2006. Our discontinued product lines will
continue to be distributed to customers from the EGV distribution facility through 2006.

Enesco also uses third-party warchouse and distribution facilities in Fort Mills, South Carolina, to
handle the distribution of certain products to mass merchants, China, to handle large seasonal orders, and
Fenton, Missouri, to handle warehouse and distribution of the Walt Disney Classics Collection® in the
U.S. Shipments from Enesco to its customers are handled by United Parcel Service and other commercial
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carriers. As a result, we are not dependent on a single carrier and we have several alternatives if one
carrier is unable to handle our shipments.

Our subsidiaries in Canada and the U.K. have distribution facilities to service their operations. Enesco
Limited’s main distribution facility is located in Carlisle, England. Enesco Limited also utilizes small
distribution facilities in Bilston, England for the Halcyon Days® product line and in Torrington, England
for the Dartington line.

Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

Enesco continuously enters into and renews license agreements relating to trademarks, copyrights,

- designs and products, which enable us to market new items compatible with our existing product lines, to

refresh our product offerings for changing consumer preferences, and to reduce the risk of dependency on
one line. Enesco’s licenses are either non-exclusive or exclusive for specific products in specified channels
and territories. Royalties are paid on licensed items and, in some cases, advance royalties or minimum
guarantees are required by agreements.

Protection of all of Enesco’s intellectual property, whether owned or licensed, is important to our
business. Enesco maintains an aggressive and visible program to identify and challenge companies and
individuals worldwide who infringe upon its registered trademarks and copyrighted designs.

Enesco owns approximately 300 trademark registrations. The registrations for Enesco’s trademarks are
maintained and renewed provided that the trademarks are still in use for the goods covered by such
registration. Enesco historically has renewed its registered trademarks and expects to continue to renew
them as business needs require.

| Seasonality

Consumer interest in our home and garden décor and everyday gift products is seasonal and may vary
based on current market demand fluctuations and time of the year. Enesco also produces specially
designed product for holiday seasons and gift-giving occasions, including Christmas, Valentine’s Day,
Easter, Mother’s Day, Father’s Day, Halloween and Thanksgiving. Quarterly revenues are influenced by
the shipment of seasonal merchandise. Historically, revenues peak in the third quarter of each year as
merchandise is typically shipped during that time in preparation for the Christmas shopping season.

Working Capital

Enesco attempts to minimize its inventory levels by shortening the period of time from when a
product is conceptualized to when it is delivered to our customers. Generally, a product is designed,
sculpted, manufactured and marketed to our current or perspective retailers before Enesco begins shipping
the product to customers. Since the majority of our products are manufactured through third-party vendors
in China and Thailand, with an inherent delayed fulfillment time, it is necessary for us to maintain
minimum daily inventory levels to satisfy the needs of our customers.

In 2005, we adjusted our ordering and shipping policies for our seasonal and Christmas products.
Rather than shipping seasonal products in April, May and June, we now make products to order, and
spread the shipment to our retail customers and payments to our vendors from June through October. Also
in 2005, we began shipping products directly to our customers from a third-party logistics provider in
China in order to reduce our distribution costs and inventory levels.

In 2005, we implemented a change in our customer everyday payment terms, from 90 days down to
45 days. These initiatives have helped to reduce our days sales outstanding in accounts receivable, from
92 days at December 31, 2004 to 69 days at December 31, 2005. Depending on sales volume and
distribution requirements, Enesco offers its retail customers various extended payment terms and special
programs. These programs provide retailers the opportunity to sell products prior to paying Enesco. We
believe our general terms of sale are competitive in the giftware industry.
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Customers

Enesco has over 44,000 customers worldwide. Our core customer base includes independent gift
retailers, national gift chains, mass merchants, military post exchanges, club warehouses, home television
shopping networks, florists, hospital gift shops, home décor chains and independents, garden stores, jewelry
and department stores, and catalog retailers. Some of our major customers during 2005 included: Avon
Products, Inc., Carlton Cards Retail, Inc., Hallmark Specialty Retail Group, John Lewis Plc., Kirlin’s,
Kohl’s Department Stores, Robinson May, QVC Network, Target, Signet Group, Walgreens Company and
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. No single account represented more than 3% of 2005 consolidated net revenues.

We compete with other designers, manufacturers and distributors of giftware, and home and garden
décor to generally target consumers with discretionary income, the amount of which is sensitive to
economic shifts.

Open Orders

At December 31, 2005, Enesco had net open orders of approximately $10.4 million, a 62% decrease
over the December 31, 2004 level of approximately $26.2 million. The December 31, 2004 amount was
unusually large due to distribution disruptions in 2004 as a result of the difficulties we encountered with
our Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. The December 31, 2005 net open orders do not include
orders for Precious Moments® products due to the termination of our license agreement with PMI. It is
standard practice in the giftware industry, however, that orders are subject to amendment or cancellation
prior to shipment for various reasons, including credit considerations and product availability. Due to the
many external factors that can impact the status of unshipped orders at any particular time, the
comparison of backlog in any given year with those at the same date in a prior year is not necessarily
indicative of prospective sales results in future years.

Competition

Competition in the giftware and home and garden décor industry is highly fragmented among a
number of companies and product categories. The principal factors affecting success in the marketplace
include originality of product design, quality, price, sales coverage, marketing ability, logistics and sourcing.
The ability to obtain and renew license agreements for products also is significant.

Enesco competes with domestic and international companies in the industry, such as Hallmark Cards,
Inc., Lenox Group, Inc., Roman, Inc., Lladro Commercial S.A., The Boyds Collection, Ltd. and Russ
Berrie and Company, Inc., among others. No one competitor is dominant in the industry.

We believe that Enesco’s competitive strengths include our core and well-established distribution base,
our extensive knowledge of the marketplace and its demands, our domestic and international employee-
based sales force, our ability to secure licenses with popular and established brands, our ability to bring
innovative and trend-driven products to the market quickly, our focus on giftable product categories, and
the market demand for our proprietary designs, as well as the strength of our supplier relationships. Many
of our competitors, however, may have greater financial, marketing, distribution and other resources than
Enesco.

Design and Development

Enesco’s in-house creative group provides continuous product design and development of certain of
our products. This group’s responsibilities include all creative aspects from concept to prototype, design
and enhancement of products. Design and development costs expensed are approximately 1% of sales.

Environmental

Enesco is subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the use, discharge
and disposal of hazardous material. Compliance with current laws and regulations has not had and is not
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expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition. It is possible, however, that
environmental issues may arise in the future that Enesco currently cannot predict.

Employees and Related Matters

As of December 31, 2005, Enesco employed 1,182 employees worldwide, 454 of whom work in our
U.S. facilities and 728 in our international facilities.

In the first three quarters of 2005, we implemented several corporate downsizings, which resulted in
the termination of 178 employees in our U.S facilities and 83 in our international facilities. In the fourth
quarter of 2005, as part of our Operating Improvement Plan initiative to reduce corporate overhead,
general and administrative and marketing costs, we eliminated an additional 19 positions in the U.S. and
18 internationally. As announced in the fourth quarter of 2005, the EGV warchouse and distribution
facility will close in 2006 as a result of our transition of domestic warehousing and distribution functions to
a third-party logistics provider. Employment levels at the EGV facility were reduced by 87 positions in
January 2006 and an additional 87 positions will be terminated in 2006 as business needs dictate. Enesco
continues to monitor employee-related expenses to identify opportunities based on business operating plans.

Enesco’s EGV warehouse personnel are represented by Local Union No. 781 of the International
Brotherhood of Teamsters under a contract that expires on June 30, 2007, and includes 144 union member
employees. Employees at our Dartington factory are represented by the General Municipal and
Boilermakers Union in the U.K. under a contract that expires on December 31, 2006. During 2005,
Enesco did not incur any work stoppages. We believe that our labor relations are good.

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

Information required by this item is set forth in Note S of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” of this Form 10-K.

Available Information

Enesco makes available, without charge, copies of its Proxy Statement, Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, any amendments to those reports and
any other of its reports filed with or furnished to the SEC on or through the Investor Relations section of
our website, www.enesco.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed. You may request a
paper copy of materials Enesco files with the SEC by writing to Investor Relations, 225 Windsor Drive,
Itasca, Illinois 60143 or calling Enesco at (630) 875-5300.

In addition, the following policies and corporate governance documents are available at the Investor
Relations section of our website: Enesco Corporate Governance Guidelines, Standards of Business Conduct
and Ethics, applicable to all directors and employees, Audit Committee Charter, Human Resource and
Compensation Committee Charter, and Nominating and Governance Committee Charter. Paper copies of
these documents also are available, free of charge, by calling (630) 875-5300 or by sending a request in
writing 1o Investor Relations, 225 Windsor Drive, 1tasca, Illinois 60143,

You may read and copy materials Enesco files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the operatioh of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our filings with the SEC also are available to
you on the SEC’s Internet web site at www.sec.gov.

Information on our website is not incorporated into this Form 10-K or Enesco’s other securities filings
and is not a part of them.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The ownership of our common stock involves a number of risks and uncertainties. Potenttal investors
should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below and the other information in this
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Form 10-K before deciding whether to invest in our securities. Our business, financial condition or results
of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. The risks described below are
not the only ones facing us. Additional risks that are currently unknown to us or that we currently consider
to be immaterial may also impair our business or adversely affect our financial condition or results of
operations.

We have had a history of losses and may not be profitable in the future.

We have had a history of losses. We had a net loss of $54.0 million in 2005 and a net loss of
$45.2 million in 2004, We are in the process of restructuring our operations, including the recently
completed upgrading of our information systems, exiting the Precious Moments® business, reducing SG&A
costs, and improving our cash flow management. However, we cannot assure that these efforts will result
in our return to profitability. Even if we are able to generate a profit in the future, we may not be able to
increase our profits from quarter to quarter. If we are unable to achieve and maintain profitability, the
price of our common stock may decline. '

Our failure to successfully refinance or amend our current credit facility could cause us to incur
significant additional bank fees and would impair our ability to conduct our normal business operations.

On December 21, 2005, we entered into the tenth amendment to our credit facility. This amendment
provides for penalty fees if we are unable to pay the outstanding loans and letters of credit under our credit
facility prior to certain dates in 2006. In addition, the credit facility requires us to maintain specified
financial ratios, and our failure to maintain these ratios would constitute an event of default under the
credit facility.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into the eleventh amendment to our existing credit facility, This
amendment reset each of Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective
January 30, 2006 based on our reforecast. This amendment also reduces the credit facility commitments
from $75 million to $70 million and accelerates by one month, the tenth amendment fees. While we have
been able to renegotiate these ratios and obtain waivers of specific covenant violations in the past, we
cannot assure that we would be able to continue to do so in the future.

We have entered into a commitment letter with LaSalle Business Credit, LLC, an affiliate of one of
the lenders under our existing credit facility, to enter into a new $75 million credit facility. This
commitment letter initially expired on January 31, 2006 but has been extended monthly through April 30,
2006. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in doing so on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all. Our failure to refinance our existing credit facility or enter into a new credit
facility could severely restrict our ability to carry out our normal business operations, and as a result we
may be forced to sell assets, reorganize under an appropriate bankruptcy provision, or liquidate certain
strategically selected assets.

Our failure to generate sufficient cash to meet our liquidity needs may affect our ability to service our
indebtedness and grow our business.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, amounts borrowed under our
senior credit facility, and to fund any capital expenditures we may make in the future, if any, will depend
on our ability to generate cash in the future. This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic,
financial, competitive and other factors that are beyond our control.

Subject to our ability to either extend our existing credit facility and/or secure replacement financing
by January 1, 2007, we believe our cash flow from operations, together with available cash and available
borrowings under our credit facility, will be adequate to meet future liquidity needs. However, we cannot
assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future that our
currently anticipated long-term growth in revenues and cash flow will be realized on schedule or in an
amount sufficient to enable us to service indebtedness, or that future borrowings will be available to us
under the senior credit facility. We may need to refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness, including
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our credit facility, on or before maturity. There can be no assurance that we will be able to do so on
commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Our existing credit facility contains, and any new credit facility will most likely contain, various
covenants which limit our management’s discretion in the operation of our business and the failure to
comply with such covenants could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. -

Our credit facility contains various provisions that limit our management’s discretion by restricting our
ability to, among other things:

» incur additional indebtedness;

+ pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, our common stock;
» make investments;

« incur liens;

» transfer or sell assets; and

. éonsolidétc, merge, or transfer all or substantially all of our assets.

We anticipate that we will be required by lenders to agree to a change in control default covenant in
our replacement credit facility if our CEO and President were to resign. Any failure to comply with the
restrictions of our credit facility or any other subsequent financing agreements may result in an event of
default. An event of default may allow the creditors, if the agreements so provide, to accelerate the related.
debt as well as any other debt to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies.

Our indebtedness imposes constraints and requirements on our business and financial performance and
our compliance and performance in relationship to these could materially adversely affect our financial
condition and operations.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. Our significant indebiedness could:

+» require us to dedicate a significant portion of our cash flows from operations to payments on our
indebtedness, including penalties, which would reduce the availability of this cash to fund working
capital, expansion of our business, and other general corporate purposes;

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the markets in which
we operate;

« place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

+ limit our ability to obtain additional funds.

We have received a delisting notice from the New York Stock Exchange, and if we are unable to comply
with the conditions of our plan to meet the continued listing standards, we will be delisted, which would
result in decreased liquidity and increased volatility for our common stock.

We received notification from the New York Stock Exchange on September 1, 2005 that we are not
in compliance with the NYSE’s continued listing standards. As a result, we submitted a plan to the
NYSE demonstrating how we intend to comply with these standards over the next 18 months and are
subject to quarterly monitoring for compliance with these standards. If we are unable to meet the criteria
and are delisted, we may be unable to have our common stock listed on Nasdaq because of minimum
stock price and other listing requirements and, as a result, we would likely have our common stock quoted
on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, or the OTC BB, which would also require us to delist our
common stock from the Pacific Stock Exchange. Securities that trade on the OTC BB generally have less
liquidity and greater volatility than securities that trade on the NYSE and Nasdaq. In addition, because
issuers whose securities trade on the OTC BB are not subject to the corporate governance and other
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standards imposed by the NYSE and Nasdaq, our reputation may suffer, which could result in a decrease
in the trading price of our shares.

The market price of our common stock has historically fluctuated and is likely to fluctuate in the future.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated widely. For example, in 2005, the lowest price for our
common stock was $1.12 and the highest price for our common stock was $8.70. The market price of our
common stock can fluctuate significantly for many reasons, including, but not limited to:

+ our ability to successfully obtain replacement financing;

» the success of our efforts to reorganize our operations;

» our financial performance;

» our ability to maintain our listing on the NYSE;

» our ability to successfully introduce new products and the popularity of our existing products;
» acquisitions, strategic alliances or joint ventures involving us or our competitors;

+ decisions by investors to de-emphasize investment categories, groups or strategies that include our
company or industry; and

« market conditions in the industry, the financial markets, and the economy as a whole.

It is likely that our operating results in one or more future quarters may be below the expectations of
security analysts and investors. In that event, the trading price of our common stock would likely decline.
In addition to fluctuations in the market price of our common stock, the stock market has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations. These market fluctuations can be unrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock, or the
perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common
stock. Additionally, future stock price volatility for our common stock could provoke the initiation of
securities litigation, which may divert substantial management resources and have an adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.

If we undergo a change in control, including the resignation or termination of our CEO and President,
we may be unable to maintain our strategic alliance with Jim Shore Designs, Inc.

Our strategic alliance agreement with Jim Shore Designs, Inc. focuses on key gift and seasonal
categories that have been very successful for us. This agreement continues through November 22, 2008,
and will be extended an additional three years, unless either party decides not to renew. However, if we
undergo a “change in control,” which is defined in the agreement as including a change in the CEO and
President positions, both of which are held by Cynthia Passmore, Jim Shore Designs, Inc. would be able
to terminate ‘the agreement. If the agreement were terminated, we would lose one of our mest successful
and growing product lines, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We are highly dependent upon the ability of our senior management and Keystone Consulting Group: to
effectively run our operations.

We have been experiencing changes in our senior management team. For instance, we appointed a
Chief Financial Officer in January 2005 who resigned in July 2005. We then appointed a Chief
Accounting Officer to handle these functions. In addition, we have eliminated the position of Chief
Operating Officer as part of our downsizing efforts. In connection with the development and
implementation of our Operating Improvement Plan, we have engaged Keystone Consulting Group
(Keystone), a restructuring advisor. Our engagement letter with Keystone is cancelable by either party
upon written notice to the other. We are highly dependent on Keystone to assist us in implementing the
Operating Improvement Plan.
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Our ability to implement our business strategy is dependent upon our senior management’s ability to
run our business effectively. We currently have an employment agreement with our CEO and President,
but not with our other executive officers. We currently have a consulting agreement with Keystone, which
expires March 31, 2006, which we are in the process of extending at least through June 30, 2006. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to retain any of our executives or that we will be successful in
extending Keystone’s engagement following its expiration on March 31, 2006 on terms favorable to us, or
that Keystone will have the resources necessary to assist us in the continued implementation of our
Operating Improvement Plan. Our business, results of operations and financial condition could be
materially adversely affected by the loss of any of these persons or Keystone and the inability to attract
and retain appropriately qualified replacements. In addition, as noted above, if our CEO and President
resigns or is terminated, our licensing agreement with Jim Shore Designs, Inc. would be at risk of being
terminated.

If we cannot develop products that will appeal to customers and enter into favorable licensing
agreements, we may not be able to compete effectively.

We believe that our future success will depend, in part, upon our ability to continue to develop new
products that will appeal to consumers. Historically, we have received a substantial portion of our revenues
through a small number of very successful licensing agreements. Our success is dependent upon our ability
to retain these critical licenses on favorable terms and to enter into new licensing agreements that will
result in the introduction of successful product lines. We face significant competition for licenses, which
may cause us to pay higher royalty rates and to guarantee minimum annual payments. As our most
successful licenses expire, the competition for renewing these licenses could intensify significantly. We
cannot assure you that we will be successful in the introduction, manufacturing and marketing of any new |
products or product innovations, or develop and introduce, in a timely manner, innovations to our existing
products that satisfy customer needs or achieve market acceptance. Our failure to develop new products
and introduce them successfully and in a timely manner, and at favorable margins, would harm our ability
to successfully grow our business and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, competitors may manufacture and market
products similar to ours, which could adversely affect our market share and results of operations.

Our success with our proprietary products depends, in part, on our ability to defend our intellectual
property rights. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, competitors may
manufacture and market products similar to ours. In addition to our proprietary designs, we obtain brand
name licenses to develop product formats. Occasionally, we become involved in litigation with our
licensors, such as our recently settled litigation involving Jim Shore Designs, Inc. Enforcing our rights
under our licensing agreements in this manner is expensive to us, distracting to management and may
strain relationships with our licensors. In addition, our ability to successfully market these products would
be adversely affected if competitors were able to develop, use or sell products that are similar to our
products.

We have, in the past, experienced problems managing our supply chain and business processes, and our
future success is dependent upon our ability to improve these functions.

In 2004, we unsuccessfully attempted to implement a new Enterprise Resource Planning system
intended to integrate our supply chain and business processes. As a result, we were unable to ship
products, we incurred expenses related to excess inventory, and we experienced record-keeping problems
involving freight billing, customer invoicing and inventory management accuracy. To remedy the situation,
we were forced to incur costs related to additional personnel and consultants in 2004, which increased our
labor and IT costs significantly. Our future success is dependent upon our ability to successfully manage
these functions. If we are unable to do so, we would incur increased operating costs and would encounter
delays in shipping our products, which would result in a potential loss of revenues and customers and
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would therefore have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are dependent upon the ability of NDC, a third-party logistics company, to managevour
U.S. distribution and warehouse operations.

As part of our Operating Improvement Plan, we have hired NDC, a third-party logistics company, to
provide storage, handling, inventory management, shipping, receiving, repackaging, order processing and
related clerical support for our business. These functions are critical to the success of our business, and we
are entirely dependent upon NDC to perform these functions efficiently. In addition, we may incur
significant costs under the agreement with NDC. Any problems that we experience in our arrangement
with NDC could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Competition in our markets may hinder our ability to execute our business strategy, achieve profitability,
or maintain relationships with existing customers.

The markets for giftware and home and garden décor products are highly competitive. In these
industries, we compete against numerous other domestic and foreign companies. Competition in the
markets in which we operate is based primarily on originality of product design, quality, price, sales
coverage, marketing ability, logistics and sourcing.

Many of our competitors have substantially greater revenue and resources than we do. Our
competitors may take actions to match our new product introductions and other initiatives. Because many
of our competitors source their products from third parties, our ability to obtain a cost advantage through
sourcing is reduced. Certain of our competitors may be willing to reduce prices and accept lower profit
margins to compete with us, Further, retailers often demand that suppliers reduce their prices on existing
products. Competition could cause price reductions, reduced profits or losses, or loss of market share, -any
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

To compete effectively in the future in our markets, among other things, we must:
 maintain strict quality standards;

+ develop new products that appeal to customers; and

« deliver products on a reliable basis at competitive prices.

Our inability to do any of these things well could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition. '

If the trend toward retail store consolidation in the independent gift channel in the U.S. continues, our
revenues may decline unless we can grow share in our core gift channel or grow revenues in alternate
channels.

In recent years, retail shopping patterns in the U.S. for our products have changed to include stronger
sales in the mass, chain drug and grocery channels and over the Internet, while there has been
consolidation of retail specialty stores in the card and gift channel. Our business strategy involves aligning
our resources and leveraging our core distribution base, to gain share in four merchandise categories:
decorative gifts, inspirational gifts, brand enthusiast gifts and occasion-based gifts. If we are unable to grow
market share in these merchandise categories or expand in alternative channels at levels that offset the
decline in sales due to the consolidation of retail stores in the specialty gift channel in the U.S., our
revenues will continue to decline.
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Because we do not have long-term commitments from many of our customers, we must estimate customer
demand, and errors in our estimates could have negative effects on our inventory levels and revenues.

We have more than 40,000 customers worldwide, and no single customer accounted for more than 3%
of our consolidated sales in 2005. Non-seasonal purchase commitments may be made in advance of our
receipt of customer orders and are often non-cancelable. It is standard practice in our industry that
customer orders are subject to amendment or cancellation prior to shipment for various reasons. Our
purchase commitments are made in advance of our receipt of customer orders and are often non-
cancelable. As a result, we are required to estimate the inventory levels and enter into purchase
commitments necessary to fulfill our orders and maximize sales. On occasion, we have been unable to
adequately respond to customer cancellations or unexpected increases in customer orders. Accordingly, we
may be faced with excess inventory or the inability to adequately respond to unexpected increases in
customer purchase orders, in which case we may incur higher expenses related to éxcess inventory or,
alternatively, we may lose the revenue associated with the additional purchase orders and our customer
relationships may suffer.

We are dependent upon third-party suppliers whose failure to perform adequately could disrupt our
business operations.

We currently source a significant portion of our products from third parties. Our ability to select and
retain reliable vendors who provide timely deliveries of quality products will impact our success in meeting
customer demand for timely delivery of quality products. We typically do not enter into long-term contacts
with our primary vendors and suppliers. Instead, most of our products are supplied on a “purchase order”
basis. As a result, we may be subject to unexpected changes in pricing or supply of products. Any. inability
of our suppliers to timely deliver quality products or any unanticipated change in supply, quality or pricing
of products could be disruptive and costly to us.

Qur reliance on mahufacturing facilities and suppliers in China could make us vulnerable to supply
interruptions related to the political, legal and cultural environment in China.

We do not own any of our manufacturing facilities, except on a limited basis in the United Kingdom.
A significant portion of our products are manufactured by third-party suppliers in Asia, primarily the
People’s Republic of China. During 2005, approximately 70% of our total product purchases were from
manufacturing sources in China. Qur ability to continue to select reliable vendors who provide timely
deliveries of quality products will impact our success in meeting customer demand for timely delivery of
quality products. Furthermore, the ability of these suppliers to timely deliver finished goods and/or raw
materials may be affected by events beyond their control, such as inability of shippers to timely deliver
merchandise due to work stoppages or slowdowns, or significant weather and health conditions (such as
SARS or the avian flu) affecting manufacturers and/or shippers.

There is no assurance that we could quickly or effectively replace any of our suppliers if the need
arises. Our dependence on these suppliers could also adversely affect our ability to react quickly and
effectively to changes in the market for our products. In addition, international manufacturing is subject to
significant risks, including, among other things: ' '

 labor unrest;

+ political and economic instability;

» cost and capacity fluctuations;

+ delays in transportation, dockage and materials handling;

* restrictive actions by governments, including nationalization of assets;
+ United States laws and policies affecting the importation of goods;

» international political, military and terrorist developments; and
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» international tax and trade laws.

Labor in China has historically been readily available at relatively low cost as compared to labor costs
in North America and Europe. China has experienced rapid social, political and economic change in
recent years. A substantial increase in labor costs in China could affect the price that our suppliers charge,
which would lower our gross margins and therefore have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Changes in the cost or availability of raw materials could adversely affect our results of operations.

Pricing and availability of raw materials used in our products can be volatile due to numerous factors .
beyond our control, including labor costs, production levels, competition, consumer demand, commodity
costs (such as oil based resins and pigments), and general economic conditions. This volatility can
significantly affect the availability and cost of raw materials to us, and may, therefore, have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

If the price of raw materials used in manufacturing our products increases, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to pass any portion of such increases on to our customers. Conversely, when raw
material prices decline, customer demands for lower prices could result in lower sale prices and, to the
extent we have existing inventory, lower margins. As a result, fluctuations in raw material prices could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to sell our non-strategic business assets at favorable prices.

As part of our Operating Improvement Plan, we are attempting to reduce our overall number of
product lines and concentrate on products that we believe will have strong and sustainable market demand.
As a result, we are currently in the process of attempting to sell some of our assets that we believe are not
consistent with our strategy. There is no assurance that we will be able to sell these assets on favorable
terms, or at all. If we are unable to do so, we may be forced to wind down these operations, which would
impose additional costs and management distraction on us.

Qur business is seasonal, which may cause our operating results to vary from quarter to quarter.

Sales of certain of our products are seasonal. For instance, we produce specially designed products for
holiday season and gift-giving occasions. Our revenues will typically peak in the third calendar quarter of
cach year. As a result, comparisons of our results from quarter to quarter may not be meaningful and
cannot necessarily be relied on as indicators of future performance. In addition, we may also experience
quarterly fluctuations in our sales and income depending on various factors, including, among other things,
changes in the ordering patterns of our customers during a particular quarter, and the mix of products sold.

Currency fluctuations may significantly increase our expenses and affect our results of operations.

While we transact business predominantly in U.S. dollars and most of our revenues are collected in
U.S. dollars, a portion of our costs, such as for our products, payroll, rent, and indirect operational costs,
are denominated in other currencies. Changes in the relation of these and other currencies to the
U.S. dollar will affect our sales and profitability and could result in unfavorable foreign currency
translations or exchange losses. For instance, if the government of China allowed the Chinese yuan to rise
substantially versus the U.S. dollar, the cost of our products produced in China would rise. The impact of
future exchange rate fluctuations on our results of operations cannot be accurately predicted. There can be
no assurance that the U.S. dollar foreign exchange rates will be stable in the future or that fluctuations in
financial markets will not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not épplicable.
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Item 2. Properties

The following chart summarizes the material owned and leased real estate of Enesco worldwide:

Location Description Owned/Leased  Sg. Ft. Lease Term
Elk Grove Village, Illinois ... Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 485,500 Dec. 2006
USA Main Showroom
Itasca, Ilinois.............. Corporate Headquarters Owned 101,580 N/A
USA ‘
Irvine, California ........... Warehouse, Offices Leased 24,165 Dec. 2006
USA
Mississauga, Ontario ........ Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 101,000 . Dec. 2007
Canada Showroom, Offices
Carlisle, Cumbria........... Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 48,500 Dec. 2013
England Showroom
" Carlisle, Cumbria........... Warehouse Leased 35000 Dec. 2013
England
Carlisle, Cumbria........... Offices Leased 11,500  Oct. 2006
England
Skirsgill, Penrith ........... Manufacturing Leased 20,000 Dec. 2008
England
Langholm, Dunfrieshire ..... Manufacturing, Offices Owned 25,000 N/A
England
Torrington, Devon .......... Manufacturing, Retail Space  Owned 90,000* N/A
England
Mount Pleasant, Bilston .. ... Manufacturing, Offices Leased 16,260  April 2009
" England
Villeneuve Loubet .......... Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 55,972 Dec. 2006
France Showroom, Offices
Canton Road .............. Offices Leased 4,950  Oct. 2006
Hong Kong

* Total property is 6.2 acres

‘Management is exploring alternatives for its headquarters office in Itasca, Illinois, including the

possible sale of the building and/or a sale and leaseback, in pursuit of a lower facility cost and an infusion
of cash. We believe that the facilities of Enesco are adequate, suitable and of sufficient capacity to support

Enesco’s current operations.

Item 3. -Legal Proceedings

In July 2005, Enesco filed suit against Department 56, Inc., Sunshine Productions, Inc., Kevin
Knowles and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division. The complaint, as against Jim Shore Designs, alleged breach of contract related to Enesco’s
license agreement with Jim Shore Designs, which license agreement was filed with the SEC on a

Form 8-K, dated October 5, 2004. Enesco specifically alleged that Jim Shore Designs breached provisions
relating to Enesco’s exclusivity under the license agreement. With regard to Department 56, the complaint
alleged a violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act. As against Sunshine Productions, Enesco alleged
that Sunshine Productions interfered with Enesco’s contract with Jim Shore Designs. Finally, in the
complaint, Enesco alleged that Sunshine Productions and Kevin Knowles engaged in a civil conspiracy and
induced an employee to breach her duty of loyalty to Enesco. Enesco sought monetary and equitable relief
in connection with the suit. Defendants filed counterclaims against Enesco.
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On August 15, 2005, Enesco filed a motion for preliminary injunction against Department 56, Inc.
based on our amended complaint in the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division.
Enesco sought preliminary injunctive relief relating to Enesco’s claim that Department 56 had unfairly
competed through allegedly false and misleading statements and conduct. The amended complaint alleged
that the actions of Department 56 violated federal unfair competition laws, as well as the Illinois Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practices Act and the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act.
The motion for preliminary injunction sought an order preliminarily prohibiting Department 56 from
engaging in conduct that constitutes unfair competition.

In January 2006, Enesco announced that it had resolved its complaint and counterclaim with Jim
Shore Designs, Inc. As part of the settlement, we terminated our license agreement with Jim Shore
Designs effective November 23, 2005, and entered into a new strategic alliance agreement. Under this
agreement, Jim Shore Designs reaffirms and strengthens its commitment to Enesco, which, among other
things, continues the relationship between Enesco and Jim Shore Designs three years from the effective
date, November 23, 2005, through November 22, 2008, and through November 22, 2011 unless either
party chooses not to renew. The Strategic Alliance Agreement focuses on key gift and seasonal categories
that have been very successful for Enesco and Jim Shore Designs.

On February 28, 2006, Enesco announced that it had resolved its complaint and counterclaim with
Department 56, Inc. relating to Jim Shore Designs, Inc. As part of the settlement agreement, Enesco and
Department 56 agreed to a full waiver of any claims against each other and released each other from any
losses, claims, damages and expenses relating to this lawsuit. The settlement agreements between Enesco
and Department 56 and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. do not resolve Enesco’s ongoing litigation with Kevin
Knowles and/or Sunshine Productions.

In the ordinary course of Enesco’s business, there are various legal proceedings pending against
Enesco and its subsidiaries. In addition, while we cannot predict the eventual outcome of these
proceedings, we believe that none of these proceedings will have a material adverse 1mpact upon our
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Enesco’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange (symbol:
ENC). On September 1, 2005, Enesco received notification from the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) that we were not in compliance with the continued listing standards of the exchange. Enesco is
considered “below criteria” by the NYSE because our total market capitalization was less than $75 million
over a consecutive 30-trading-day period and our shareholder’s equity was less than $75 million. On
October 14, 2005, we submitted a plan to the NYSE, demonstrating how we intend to comply with the
continued listing standards within 18 months of our receipt of the notice. On December 5, 2005, the
NYSE accepted our plan for continued listing on the NYSE. Enesco’s common stock continues to be
listed on the NYSE, subject to quarterly reviews by the NYSE listings and compliance committee to
ensure progress against our plan.
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The following table sets forth, for the indicated periods, the high and low sales price for Enesco’s
common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

2005 2004
Market Price Market Price
Quarter ‘ ' High Low High  Low
Farst o e e $8.70 $6.20 $11.98  §9.40
Second. ... e 6.75 1.85 14.94 8.50
Third ... e 3.19 1.11 8.94 6.36
Fourth .. ... 2.38 1.12 8.15 6.05

Enesco did not declare dividends in 2005 or 2004. Enesco’s revolving credit agreement contains
financial and operating covenants, including restrictions on repurchasing Enesco shares and paying
dividends. Enesco does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future.

As of March 15, 2006, there were approximately 2,150 record holders of Enesco’s common stock and -
approximately 4,600 beneficial owners.

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2005 with respect to equity
compensation plans under which shares of Enesco common stock may be issued.

Numtber of Number of
Securities or Weighted-Average Securities
Securities to be Issued  Exercise Price of Remaining Available
Upon Exercise of QOutstanding for Future Issuance
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Under Equity
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans approved
by shareholders:
1999 Non-Employee Director
Stock Plan.................. 178,755 $ 6.37 121,245
Amended and Restated 1996 ‘
Long-Term Incentive Plan . ... 1,803,331 6.02 1,101,089
1991 Stock Option Plan......... - 295,536 11.60 —

Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders:
1998 Chairman Stock Option
Plan .................... ... 14,000 $25.81 —

Shares issued as partial
compensation to chair of

executive search committee. . .. 17,292 —_ —
Options to purchase common

stock(1)........ooivi. 151,397 6.02 —

Total........ ... ... i 2,460,311 $ 9.53 1,222,334

(1) Options granted at time of employment to D. DaleMolle, P. Perez and J. Smith as part of their
employment agreements.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the selected
consolidated statements of operations data for 2005, 2004 and 2003 have been derived from the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K. The selected consolidated balance sheet
data as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the selected consolidated statements of operations data
for 2002 and 2001 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this
Form 10-K. The selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the sections
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included in this Form 10-K.

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA
Net revenues(1)(6) ..o, $244,434  $268,967  $256,426  $262,330  $275,294
Operating profit (loss) (2)(3) (A (7) ........ (47,170)  (17,014) 14,901 12,697 (10,470)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle(5) ........ (54,025)  (45,188) 17,282 20,673 1,111
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting ,
principle, net of income taxes(4) ......... — — — (29,031) —
Net income (10sS) ...t (54,025)  (45,188) 17,282 (8,358) 1,111

Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a

change in accounting principle ......... $ (367) $§ (3.16) $§ 123 § 149 §$ 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting : :

principle, net of income taxes .......... $ — — 3 — § 09 $ —
Net income (loss) .............covunnn. $ (367) $ (316) $§ 123 $ (0.60) $ 0.08

Diluted ecarnings (loss) per common share:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle, net of

income taxes .................... ... 8 (367) $ (316) $ 120 $ 147 $ 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle net of tax ................... $ — % — 3 — $ (209 $ —
Net income (108S) .........coovvvnn.... $ (367) $§ (3.16) $§ 120 § (0.60) § 008
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Cash and cash equivalents . ................ $ 12918 $ 14646 §$ 10645 $ 17418 § 7,932
Property, plant and equipment, net.......... $ 15504 $ 22,509 $ 28,341 $ 26229 § 26,582
Total assets ...........c.oviiiiinnn.. $130,191  $193,883  $202,468 $179,785 $219,551
Current notes and loans payable ............ $ 30,823 $ 26354 $§ 2858 $ — $ 6,749
Total long-term liabilities. . ................ $ 1281 $ 9838 $ 3551 $ 3,795 $ 8,938
Shareholders” equity ...................... $ 52,826 $109,267 $147,239  $121,913  $126,377

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(1) Revenue figures include shipping and handling cost billed to customers and are reduced by co-op
advertising allowances.

(2) Cost of sales includes non-cash charges of $1.5 million and. $8.7 million in 2005 and 2001,
respectively, related to the write-down of inventory values as part of product rationalization programs
initiated by Enesco.

(3) In conjunction with the PMI termination agreement, Enesco incurred a loss of $7.7 million equal to
the cost of inventory transferred to PMI.
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(5)

(6)

(7)

Amortization of goodwill ended January 1, 2002 with the adoption of FAS 142 resulted in Enesco
writing off $29.0 million of goodwill in 2002 recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle.

The 2004 provision for income taxes includes an $18.6 million expense to establish a valuation
allowance with respect to deferred tax assets. The 2004 tax provision also includes a $17.4 million
expense o create a deferred tax liability for unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries deemed to
have been distributed due to the guarantee by those subsidiaries of the Company’s debt. The tax
expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 included benefits of $6.8 million, $12.9 million and $9.4 million,
respectively, related primarily to prior year accruals that were no longer necessary as a result of
completed tax audits and closed tax years.

Enesco reclassified revenue and expenses associated with collector club sales from SG&A to revenues
and cost of sales. As a result, revenues increased $6.6 million, $7.4 million, $8.5 million and

$8.2 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Cost of sales increased by $3.5 million,

$3.9 million, $4.6 million, and $6.5 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. SG&A
increased by $3.1 million, $3.5 million, $3.9 million, and $1.7 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Enesco reclassified bank fees and credit card fees from other expense to SG&A. As a result, SG&A
increased and other expense decreased by $1.3 million, $1.0 million, $1.1 million and $0.9 million in
2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Enesco Group, Inc.

The following discussion provides more depth into the financial condition and results of operations of
Enesco and its subsidiaries. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes and risk factors included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K include the accounts of Enesco and all of
its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. All subsidiaries are wholly owned. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires the use of our management’s
estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. We operate in a single industry segment, which
designs, manufactures (primarily through third parties located in Asia) and markets a wide variety of
licensed and proprietary branded giftware and home and garden décor items to retailers primarily
throughout the U.S., Canada and Europe.

Overview

We began 2005 faced with the results of many changes from previous years; most of the results
presented challenges, while a few positioned Enesco for a more positive future. As we look back, many
significant events occurred specifically in 2004 which negatively impacted our business. Three general
factors particularly affected Enesco:

In January 2004, we moved to a new ERP system designed to integrate our supply chain and business
processes, such as order entry, order management, inventory, shipping and billing software programs. This
transition unfortunately was plagued with many problems. The transition, particularly in our
U.S. warehouse and distribution center, caused the failure of several critical operational functions. Enesco
experienced a severe slow-down in product shipments, incurred expenses related to excess inventory and
experienced recordkeeping problems, such as freight billing, customer invoice and inventory management
accuracy. To remedy the situation, we were forced to incur additional costs for labor and consultants in
2004, which increased our overall labor and IT costs significantly. Following a thorough evaluation, we
announced in December 2004 that we would stabilize the ERP system by using the core components of
our legacy information system. The plan was to update certain modules of the legacy software to provide
advanced features and capabilities required by our business. We incurred accelerated depreciation charges
related to the ERP system of $0.8 million in December 2004,

The second major issue was our level of operating expenses, which were deemed to be too high for
our revenue base. Simply stated, we were spending as though we were a much larger company. A year of
interim leadership at Enesco resulted in a lack of focus on curbing expenditures and increased spending for
outside services and consultants. Unplanned costs related to the ERP system implementation also triggered
increased spending for outside technology services and consultants. Operating expenses also were impacted
by the acquisitions of the Walt Disney Classics Collection® license and the Dartington Crystal and Gregg
Gift businesses earlier in the year.

The third factor that negatively impacted business in 2004 was the declining Precious Moments®
business. Customer trends changed and the demand for collectible figurines as a category declined
significantly from 2003 to 2004. The Precious Moments® business represented 32% of consolidated net
revenues in 2003, but decreased to 21% in 2004. Our license agreement for Precious Moments® included a
$15 million minimum royalty guarantee annually, which reduced our operating margin as product sales
declined. Therefore, our gross margins on Precious Moments® products declined rapidly, reflecting the
continued decline in sales while we were obligated to pay a fixed $15 million royalty.
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2005 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We began to address these business challenges in 2005, which was a year of transition to what we
believe will be a more sustainable and profitable business model.

Successful Implementation of our ERP System

In the second quarter of 2005, we successfully migrated from the ERP system at our Elk Grove
Village distribution center to an upgraded version of our legacy information system. Additionally we
stabilized the order management and financial modules of the PeopleSoft system. This combined enhanced
system enabled us to return to normal order fulfillment levels and ended the delays and the loss of revenue
we previously experienced. Since we began re-use of the order management and financial modules, and
intend to continue to do so, we revised our estimate of the remaining useful life of the portion of the asset
value that relates to these two modules. The remaining net book value of our PeopleSoft system was
$1.1 million as of December 31, 2005. All costs associated with the distribution center ERP system were
depreciated fully as of the end of the second quarter of 2005. Total accelerated depreciation in 2005
amounted to $3.7 million, all of which was recorded in the first half of 2005.

Exiting the Precious Moments® Business

During the second quarter of 2005 we exited the Precious Moments® business, terminating our license
agreement with Precious Moments, Inc. (PMI). As a result of the termination of our license agreement,
on July 1, 2005 we transferred the U.S. Precious Moments® product inventory and certain other assets, as
well as certain liabilities, related to the Precious Moments® business to PMI. Additionally, we agreed to
provide certain transitional services to PMI on an as-needed basis through December 31, 2006. As of
December 31, 2005, PMI exercised its option to bring these services in-house. The termination of our
license agreement with PMI had a positive impact on our cash position this year and will improve gross
margins in the future. In 2003, our annual gross margin percentage would have been 4.2 percentage points
higher if we did not sell the Precious Moments® product line in the U.S. during any portion of 2005.

Improved Cash Management

To improve cash management, we accelerated liquidation of excess and slow-moving inventory. As a
result of the rationalization of our product portfolio which we discuss below, we improved our working
capital position by lowering inventories from $65.4 million to $40.7 million at December 31, 2005
compared to December 31, 2004. We adjusted the ordering and shipping of our seasonal and Christmas
products. Rather than shipping seasonal products in April, May and June, we now make products to order
and spread the shipments to our retail customers and payment to our vendors from June through October.
We will continue to experience a higher level of cash collection in December due to our seasonal retail
payment terms. We also began to more strictly enforce our payment terms, putting customers that were
over 30 days past due on accounts receivable hold and stopping shipments to those customers.

In addition, we implemented a change in our customer everyday payment terms, from 90 days down
to 45 days. These initiatives have helped to reduce our days sales outstanding in accounts receivable, from
92 days at December 31, 2004 to 69 days at December 31, 2005 and continue to do so in 2006.

We also stabilized our cash used in operations. For the year ended December 31, 2005, net cash used
in operations fell to $4.4 million versus a use of $21.6 million in 2004. This improvement in cash
management was due primarily to reduction in inventory and receivables. Changes in operating assets and
liabilities provided $34.0 million in 2005, which compares favorably to 2004, during which $5.3 million of
cash was used. We were able to reduce our pre-tax salary expense on an annualized basis in 2005 by
$7.8 million in the U.S. and $3.1 million internationally. Reduction of expenses remained a priority for us
throughout 2005.
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The Operating Improvement Plan

In the third quarter of 2005, we announced the new comprehensive Operating Improvement Plan
which is designed to build on the positive changes we made in the first half of the year. Our goal is to
implement an operating model commensurate with other leading companies in the giftware and related
markets. This operating model targets gross margins in the range of 40% to 45% and a pre-tax operating
profit margin of 3% to 5%. However, Enesco’s ability to achieve these targets is dependent on a variety of
factors, many of which are beyond Enesco’s control, including those discussed in the “Risk Factors”
section.

In June 2005, the Board of Directors approved hiring Keystone Consulting Group (Keystone), a
Chicago-based management and turnaround consulting firm to assist Enesco in identifying opportunities
for cost reduction and organizational and operational improvements. In August 2005, we extended the
agreement through March 31, 2006 to enter into a phase two engagement with Keystone for continued
implementation of our Operating Improvement Plan. Enesco has the option to extend this project in two
more phases through September 30, 2006. Enesco paid Keystone $2.1 million for services rendered in 2005
and $1.2 million for services rendered in the first quarter of 2006. The Board of Directors is currently
finalizing an extension of the Keystone engagement through June 30, 2006 at a contract amount that has
not yet been determined.

As a result of the Operating Improvement Plan, which will continue throughout 2006, we anticipate
achieving pre-tax cost savings on an annualized basis in the range of $34 million to $38 million, as more
fully described below. These cost savings include the non-recurrences of approximately $13 million in
expenses related to the termination of the Precious Moments® license agreement, bank penalty fees, and
accelerated depreciation related to the ERP system, as previously reported. The cost savings are
anticipated to be fully realized in 2007.

The Operating Improvement Plan focuses on three key initiatives:
» rationalizing the U.S. product portfolio;
« creating a more efficient and cost effective distribution and warehousing model; and
« reducing global corporate overhead, general and administrative and marketing costs.
Enesco began to implement this plan in the fourth quarter of 2008.

We evaluated our business and industry not solely to cut costs, but also to maximize revenue
potential. We have identified four merchandise categories that leverage Enesco’s strength around which we
will focus our business moving forward. This strategy involves aligning the business and managing
resources to gain share in the four merchandise categories of decorative gifts, inspirational gifts, brand
enthusiast gifts and occasion-based gifts. We believe this structure will allow us to focus resources to
deliver on our strategy of gaining market share in each category by increasing transparency, accountability
and information flow across the business units and functional teams. '

Enesco believes that it is the only company in the industry that maintains an employee-based sales
force in the U.S., Canadian and European markets. We believe that this, and our concentration on top-
performing product lines and four merchandise categories, will strengthen our share of the gift market in
our core channels of distribution. We continue to focus on our proprietary designs, with an emphasis on
giftable products.

1) Rationalization of the U.S. Product Portfolio

The first initiative was the rationalization of the U.S. product portfolio. We found that while our
product lines and SKUs have proliferated, many of these product lines are unproductive. In the U.S,,
our top performing lines, like Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore, Foundations® and Gregg Giff'™, have
inventory turns at or above the industry rate of three times per year. However, nearly 70% of our lines
averaged less than one turn per year and represent less than 7% of our annualized sales in the
U.S. To correct this, we implemented a methodical process to reduce our overall number of product
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lines and concentrate on products that elicit strong and sustainable market demand and profitability
and leverage our core and well established distribution base. We have clear criteria for the
rationalization, including minimum sales thresholds, margin hurdle rates and the importance of the
product to our long-term marketing strategy. ' »

We completed the product rationalization in the fourth quarter of 2005, reducing the number of
overall product lines in our portfolio by more than 70%, from 170 product lines to approximately S0
product lines. The remaining lines in total represent approximately 90% of our U.S. sales, excluding
Precious Moments®. Our top 10 product lines in the U.S. accounted for approximately 80% of net
sales in 2005. We plan to eliminate those product lines that do not meet this criterion throughout
2006. In so doing, we expect to reduce our gross inventory by approximately $11.0 million, such
inventory having a book value of approximately $6.5 million.

The remaining product lines are comprised of giftable products within four merchandise
categories — decorative, inspirational, brand enthusiast and occasion-based. Our top 10 product lines
in 2005 by merchandise category include Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and My Little Kitchen
Fairies™ in our decorative merchandise category, Foundations® and Gregg Gifi™ in our inspirational
category, Disney, Cherished Teddies® and Rudolph the Red-Nosed Reindeer® in our brand enthusiast
category and Circle of Love™, Growing Up Birthday Girls® and Children of the Inner Light® in our
occasion-based merchandise category.

In November 2005, we announced the launch of Disney Impressions, a new Disney brand
developed specifically for the U.S. marketplace. The Disney Impressions collection showcases Disney
characters as they celebrate special occasions and everyday moments. We also are working with
Disney to develop general and decorative gifts for both the U.S. and international markets.

In light of our new product strategy as announced in September 2005, Enesco decided that
glassware was not a strategic fit. We, therefore, actively began marketing the sale of the Dartington
operation in the U.K. in the fourth quarter of 2008,

2) Implementing a Cost-Effective Distribution and Warehousing Model

The second initiative in our Operating Improvement Plan was to transition our distribution and
warehousing to a more cost-effective and efficient model that is more consistent with industry
standards. Enesco expects pre-tax cost savings on an annualized basis from this initiative to be in the
range of $4 million to $6 million and are included in the total Operating Improvement Plan
annualized pre-tax cost savings estimate of $34 million to $38 million.

In November 2005, we signed a five-year commitment with a third-party logistics provider,
National Distribution Centers (NDC) to provide our warehousing and distribution services for our
U.S. operations. We believe that this transition to a third-party for distribution and warehousing will
allow us to improve supply chain efficiencies, improve customer services, consolidate our
U.S. distribution operations, improve financial performance and build on our core strengths of new
product development and sales.

We began moving all inventory related to continuing product lines to the NDC facility during
late December 2005 and began shipping products to customers in January 2006 from NDC, but at a
slower than anticipated rate due to learning-curve issues at the new site. To account for the costs
associated with this transition, we recorded a restructuring charge of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter
2005. As the transition carries into 2006, we expect additional transition costs of approximately
$0.5 million to be incurred in the first half of 2006.

3) Reducing Global Corporate Overhead, General and Administrative and Marketing Costs

The third initiative in our plan is to further reduce operating expenses to be consistent with the
current size of our business. We intend to reduce corporate and general and administrative costs, as
well as professional and consulting fees, by $30 million to $32 million pre-tax on an annualized basis
to be fully realized in 2007. Included in these cost savings initiatives are the non-recurrence of the
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loss on the termination of the PMI license agreement of $7.7 million, the accelerated depreciation on
the ERP system of $3.7 million and the $1.4 million in bank penalty fees that were recorded in 2005.

Enesco initiated several personnel reductions of its U.S. and U.K. operations in 2005. In the
U.S., the downsizings primarily affected the areas of marketing, operations, information technology,
finance and communications. In the U.K., the downsizing focused on the elimination of redundancies
within the organization and was completed across all areas of the business. The cost savings resulting
from the 2005 salary expense reductions are estimated to generate pre-tax annualized cost savings of
approximately $7.8 million in the U.S. and $3.1 million in the UK.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we implemented a consolidation strategy for all of our non-
essential U.S. showroom locations. This strategy focuses on increasing the profitability of the major
market showrooms in Atlanta, Dallas and Los Angeles on a year-round basis. As a result of this
strategy, we negotiated lease buyouts with the landlords of those remaining showrooms that we do not
want to occupy on a year round basis. The impact of terminating these showroom leases was a charge
to pre-tax income of approximately $0.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. This initiative is
expected to result in pre-tax annual savings of approximately $2.0 million.

The total cost savings expected to be realized in 2007 as a result of the implementation of the
Operating Improvement Plan through December 31, 2003, as they relate to the reduction in corporate
overhead, general and administrative and marketing costs are as follows:

(In miflions)

Downsizings in the U.S. ... o $ 7.8
Termination of the PMI license agreement . ............... .. ... . i, 7.7
Accelerated depreciation of ERP system ............ooo i 3.7
Downsizings in the UK. ... 3.1
Showroom consoldations . . ... ..ottt 2.0
Bank penalty fees .. ... e 1.4
Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and other administrative costs .. ................... ... .. _ 1.0

$26.7

Additional Operating Improvement Plan initiatives expected to be implemented in 2006, and result in
annual savings of $8 million to $10 million, include further reductions in consulting and other outside
services of $3 million, decreases in bad debt expense of $1 million, and savings from the transition to the
new distribution and warehousing model of $4 million to $6 million.

We believe that we have a clear simple position on growth. The market we are in is largely
fragmented with no dominant players. The greatest growth potential for Enesco is in focusing on market
share expansion in our core merchandise categories and channels in which we currently oeperate. From a
historic perspective, while the overall U.S. gift market is not growing, it is very large (estimated to be
$60 billion) with a substantial opportunity for Enesco to increase sales through market share expansion.
We believe that we will be able to do this by narrowing and focusing our product offerings on giftable
items in the four select merchandise categories. We believe that these merchandise categories elicit strong
and sustainable market demand and profitability, and leverage our core distribution base. To give you an
idea of the size of the market share opportunity, if Enesco were to acquire an additional 1% share of the
U.S. gift market, we could more than double our current sales.

Bank Agreements and Fees

In the second quarter of 2005 under our current credit facility, Enesco was required to pay a total of
$1.4 million in bank fees because we did not close a replacement credit facility prior to certain dates in the
second quarter. During 2005 and the first quarter of 2006, Enesco has been and is continuing to seek
replacement financing to pay off the outstanding loans under our existing U.S. credit facility. On

30




December 14, 2005, we signed a commitment letter for a replacement senior secured credit facility. In
addition, on December 21, 2005, we entered into a tenth amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility,
extending the facility termination date from December 31, 2005 to January 1, 2007. The tenth amendment
provides that, unless the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the existing U.S. credit facility are
paid in full prior to the following dates, the respective penalty fees will become payable:

» January 1, 2006 $ 75,000 » April 1, 2006 $275,000
» February 1, 2006 $150,000 + May 1, 2006 $750,000
+ March 1, 2006 $250,000 ¢ June 1, 2006 $750,000

The amendment also provides for a monthly fee beginning January 1, 2006 through May 1, 2006 in
the amount of 0.10% of the highest amount of loans outstanding during the preceding month. This fee will
increase to 0.20% beginning June 1, 2006 through January 1, 2007. The amendment establishes cumulative
minimum consolidated EBITDA requirements and cumulative maximum capital expenditure limitations,
which are each measured monthly during 2006.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an eleventh amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility. This
amendment reset Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective January 30,
2006, based on our reforecast and reduced the credit facility commitments from $75.0 million to
$70.0 million effective between the eleventh amendment date and January 1, 2007. In addition, unless the
outstanding loans and letters of credits under the existing U.S. credit facility are paid in full, the eleventh
amendment accelerates by one month the fees per the tenth amendment which were to be due May 1,
2006 and June 1, 2006. The total fee payable April 1, 2006 is $1,025,000 and, unless the outstanding loans
and letters of credit are paid in full prior to May 1, 2006, the fee payable May 1, 2006 is $750,000. The
monthly fee of 0.10% of the highest loan amount outstanding during the preceding month will increase to
0.20% on May 1, 2006, rather than June 1, 2006 per the tenth amendment, and will continue unti! the
facility termination date. Additional information is set forth in the section below entitled “Credit facilities”
and Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this Form 10-K. Enesco was required to
pay the January 1, 2006, February 1, 2006, and March 1, 2006 penalty fees totaling $475,000. Enesco
expects to be subject to and pay the April 1, 2006 penalty fee of $1,025,000.

Net Loss

For the year ended December 31, 2005, Enesco incurred a net loss of $54.0 million. This loss was
due, in part, to the termination of the PMI license agreement which resulted in a reduction in Precious
Moments® product line sales of $23.2 million and a decline in gross margin of $15.9 million which
included termination agreement costs of $7.7 million. In addition, increased spending on bank fees,
penalties and related legal services of $3.9 million and accelerated depreciation on the ERP system of
$3.7 million, severance and facility closure provisions of $2.8 million, inventory reserve provision of
$1.5 million related to the strategy to discontinue over 100 underperforming product lines, increased bad
debt provision of $1.9 million due to implementing tighter credit terms, and the write-off of $1.1 million of
Dartington goodwill in addition to that recently acquired unit’s $2.7 operating loss contributed to our net
loss. For a more complete discussion of the net loss, refer to the Results of Operations, 2005 Compared to
2004 Consolidated Results.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make judgments, assumptions
and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for allowances for doubtful
accounts and sales allowances, inventory valuation, impairments of tangible and intangible assets, and other
special charges and taxes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. When preparing an estimate,
Enesco determines what factors are most likely to affect the estimate. Enesco gathers information inside
and outside the organization. The information then is evaluated and the estimate is made.
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Following are the critical accounting policies that management believes could have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements if these judgments, assumptions and estimates used by
management turn out to be incorrect. Management has discussed these critical accounting policies with
Enesco’s Audit Committee.

Accounts Receivable Allowances

Doubtful Accounts — The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the
collectibility of specific customer accounts and the historical write-off percentage applied to outstanding
accounts receivable. If there is deterioration in a major customer’s creditworthiness or actual defaults are
significantly different than our historical experience due to changes in the business environment or other
factors, estimates of the recoverability of amounts due could be affected. This reserve is comprised of two
parts. The first component is for specific accounts whose collectibility, in our opinion, is in question. These
accounts are reviewed on a monthly basis and adjusted as deemed necessary. At December 31, 20035, this
reserve was $3.5 million as compared to $1.7 million at December 31, 2004. The second part is a general
reserve, calculated by applying historical bad debt rates to month-end accounts receivable balances, after
removing specific accounts identified as uncollectible. At December 31, 2005, this component of the
reserve was $1.2 million compared to December 31, 2004, when it was $1.6 million. The historical rate,
which generally does not fluctuate materially, is adjusted annually or as deemed necessary to reflect actual
experience. Historical trends do not guarantee that the rate of future write-offs will not increase. If the
general reserve percentage increased 1%, it would require an increase to the reserve of $0.4 million, as of
December 31, 2005, and a corresponding increase in bad debt expense of $0.4 million. The general reserve
percentage for bad debt at December 31, 2005 has increased 0.4% since December 31, 2004. The total
allowance for doubtful accounts balance at December 31, 2005, was $4.7 million or 9.3% of total accounts
receivable compared to December 31, 2004, when the account was $3.3 million, or 5% of accounts
receivable. This percentage increase is due primarily to a change in the assessment of collectibility of
accounts placed with attorneys or other collectors. ‘

Sales Returns and Allowances — Our estimated provision for sales returns and allowances is recorded
as a reduction of sales revenue because it primarily relates to allowances and other billing adjustments. In
cases where credits are issued for merchandise, the goods are typically not saleable and are destroyed. The
 sales returns and allowances reserve consists of two parts, the first of which is based on an analysis of
specific accounts in which the customer has taken a deduction or similarly has challenged an invoice, and
we believe the claim will be accepted. This part of the reserve is reviewed by management on a monthly
basis and is adjusted as deemed necessary. At December 31, 2005, this comprised $2.2 million of the
reserve balance as compared to December 31, 2004, when it was $1.2 million of the reserve balance. The
second part is a general reserve, calculated by applying historical percentages of sales returns and
allowances to the current and prior month’s sales. We believe two months to be a reasonable amount of
time for customers to receive and evaluate their order and request a credit if necessary. At December 31,
2003, this component of the reserve was $0.9 million, compared to December 31, 2004 when this
component of the reserve was $1.3 million. The sales allowance balance at December 31, 2005 was
$3.1 million, or 6.0% of accounts receivable. At December 31, 2004, the reserve was $2.5 million, or 3% of
accounts receivable. This percentage increase is attributable primarily to a re-assessment of the
collectibility of customer deductions.

The general reserve fluctuates with sales volume, as sales returns and allowances volumes increase or
decrease with sales levels. This percentage is adjusted yearly, or more frequently if deemed necessary, to
reflect actual experience. If the general reserve percentage increased 1%, it would require an increase to
the reserve of $0.2 million (as of December 31, 2005) and a corresponding decrease in net revenues of
$0.2 million. The general reserve percentage for returns and allowances at December 31, 2005 has not
changed since December 31, 2004. Historical trends do not guarantee that the rate of future returns and
allowances will not increase.
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Inventory Reserves

Excess or Slow Moving Inventory — As part of our process of developing, forecasting and procuring
products, it is likely that excess inventory exists for certain products. In order to liquidate this excess
inventory, the selling price frequently is reduced, often to an amount less than the product cost. Therefore,
an inventory reserve is maintained to properly state inventory at the lower of cost or market. At every
month end, inventory balances by product are compared to unit sales of that product for the most recent
12 months. The difference between the inventory on hand, by product, and the last 12 months’ sales is
considered excess inventory and subject to reserve. The portion of inventory determined to be excess is
reserved at varying percentages based on the historical sales volume and whether or not the product is still
active or has been discontinued. Discontinued product that is considered slow moving, even though it may
not currently be excess, is reserved at varying percentages based on historical sales. Once inventory has
been identified as excess or slow moving, the reserve established on that portion of inventory cannot be
decreased, although further increases in the reserve on that specific inventory may be necessary as market
conditions change. At December 31, 2005, the inventory reserve balance was approximately $12.0 million
or 24% of gross inventory compared to $9.3 million or 12% of gross inventory at December 31, 2004. This
increase primarily is due to the implementation of the product portfolio rationalization strategy as a part of
our Operating Improvement Plan to reduce the number of active product lines from 170 to approximately
50 product lines.

The recovery rate on the disposition of excess inventory depends upon a number of factors, such as
market demand for closeout items and levels of such inventory. Historical averages are developed annually
or more often if deemed necessary, and used to determine the likely recoverability of cost. If market
conditions deteriorate, it is likely that inventory will be sold at greater discounts, necessitating an increase
to the reserve. A change of 5% in this loss percentage would result in an additional inventory reserve of
$1.3 million as of December 31, 2005.

Inventory Shrinkage — Based on historical trends, a reserve is established in anticipation of inventory
shrinkage during the year leading up to the time when we take our physical inventory at year-end. This
reserve is eliminated at year-end when we record our actual inventory shrinkage as part of the year-end
physical inventory process. The quarterly reserve related to shrinkage was $0.1 million for each of the first
three quarters in 2005. As a result of our 2005 year-end physical inventory process a $357,000 adjustment
to inventory to record shrinkage was required compared to $517,000 recorded in 2004.

Impairments of Tangible and Intangible Assets

We assess the recoverability of significant tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, under the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142 — “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and SFAS No. 144 — "“Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” For property, plant and equipment, we evaluate the
recoverability of these assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of the assets may not be recoverable. For goodwill, we perform an impairment assessment annually or
more frequently if impairment indicators arise. Based on our annual impairment analysis as of
December 31, 2005; we concluded that we did have an impairment of the goodwill associated with the
2004 acquisition of Dartington. The total $1.1 million of goodwill attributable to Dartington was written off
in December 2005. Due to ongoing operating losses from the U.S. businesses, excluding Gregg Gift, which
operates at a profit, an assessment of the carrying amount of long-lived assets was again completed as of
December 31, 2005 in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Based on the positive undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated from our long-lived assets, we concluded that we did not have impairment as of
December 31, 2005. Future cash flow is based on management’s estimates. Should these estimates change,
write downs of long-lived assets may be required.
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Tax Accruals

Accruals have been established for taxes payable and potential tax assessments, including potential
interest as applicable. The accruals are included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to
when assessments may be made and taxes may be paid. We have filed and continue to file tax returns
with a number of taxing authorities worldwide. We believe such filings have been and are in compliance
with applicable laws, regulations and interpretations. Positions taken are subject to challenge by the taxing
authorities, often for an extended number of years after the filing dates. To the extent accruals differ from
assessments, when the open tax years are closed or the accruals are otherwise deemed unnecessary at a
point in time, the accruals are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2005 COMPARED to 2004 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Net Revenue and Gross Profit

Net revenues in 2005 of $244.4 million decreased $24.5 million, or 9.1%, from the 2004 level of
$269.0 million. Revenues in the U.S. declined by $30.9 million, or 19.1%. Revenues from the sales of
collectibles continued to decrease in the U.S. and accounted for $27.3 million of the decline, primarily due
to the substantially reduced level of Precious Moments® product sales. Revenues for the year were
impacted positively by $1.2 million of higher Disney product line sales to our mass-market and specialty
gift retail accounts. Our Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and Foundations® product lines were up
$4.0 million and $0.8 miilion, respectively, for the year, yet not enough to offset revenue declines in most
of our other product lines. The February 2004 acquisition of Gregg Gift added $0.4 million in additional
revenues for 2005 as compared to 2004. International revenues rose $5.7 million, or 5.2%, primarily due to
the full year impact of $6.8 million in 2005 related to Dartington which was acquired in July 2004,
$8.8 million in higher sales of distributed products from strategic partners, offset by decreases in the sales
of collectibles and generally lower gift sales. Currency rate adjustments during 2005 accounted for less
than $1.0 million of the increase in Enesco’s international sales. Net revenues excluding Precious
Moments® product sales and fees for 2005 were down 2.3% from comparable revenues for 2004.

2005 2004 2003

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore. ... ... ... .. .. . e, . 16% 13% 5%
Precious Moments® .. ... ... e 13% 21% 32%

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore revenues in 2005 of $39.6 million increased $4.0 million, or 11%,
above 2004. This increase is due to higher customer demand for home décor and large-scaled figural
products. Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore revenues represented 16% of consolidated net revenues in 2005
compared to 13% in 2004.

Precious Moments® product revenues in 2005 of $32.5 million decreased $23.2 million, or 42%, versus
2004. Precious Moments® product revenues represented 13% of consolidated net revenues in 2005
compared to 21% in 2004. This decrease primarily is due to our termination of the PMI license agreement
in 2003.

Revenues generated under our various Disney-related licenses in 2005 of $20.6 million, increased
$1.2 million, or 6%, versus 2004. Disney-related licenses revenues represented 8% of consolidated net
revenues in 2005 compared to 7% in 2004. This increase primarily is due to new mass-market programs for
banks, photo frames and waterballs.

During 2005, the number of active memberships for Enesco’s collectors clubs decreased from 2004
membership levels, continuing a downward trend indicative of the declining market interest in and demand
for these collectible products. There were more than 108,000 active collector club members at the end of
2005, a decrease of 18% from 2004, excluding the impact of the transfer of club members to PMI as part
of our license termination agreement. Enesco transferred all rights and privileges associated with the
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U.S. Precious Moments® collectors club to PMI, effective July 1, 2005. Collectors clubs contributed
approximately 1.8% and 2.1% of consolidated net revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Gross profit in 2005 of $82.8 million was down $23.8 million, or 22.3%, from 2004. The gross profit
percentage decreased from 39.6% in 2004 to 33.9% this year. The gross margin percent excluding
U.S. Precious Moments® revenues and costs decreased to 38.1% for 2005 compared to 40.9% for 2004, due
in part to an increase in inventory reserve provisions related to the strategy to discontinue under
performing product lines, increases in discontinued inventories sold at a loss and decreases resulting from a
less favorabie mix of products sold.

The following table presents a view of Enesco’s business, without U.S. sales, cost of sales and gross
profit generated from Precious Moments® products, for 2005 and 2004.

Year Ended December 31,

($ in millions) . 2005 2004 Change %

Net revenues, other than Precious Moments®. . ................. $2109  $216.0 (2.3)%
Precious Moments® product revenues ....................... 29.5 53.0 (44.9)%
Precious Moments® service fees . ............. .. ... . . .. 4.0 — —

Net revenues as reported. .. .. .. .. e $244.4  $269.0 9.1)Y%

Cost of goods sold, other than Precious Moments® .............. $130.5  $127.7 22 %
Precious Moments® costof sales ........................... 194 19.7 (1.7Y%
Loss on PMI license termination . .......................... 7.7 — —
Precious Moments® royalties. ............. ... ... ... 4.0 15.0 (713.3)%

Cost of goods sold as reported .......... ... ..o ... $161.6 $162.4 (0.5)%

Gross margin, excluding Precious Moments® ................... 38.1%  40.9%

Gross margin, Precious Moments® . .. ... ... .. .. ... ... .. ..., __T11% _ 34.4%

Gross margin as reported ............ ... _33.9% &%

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A)

SG&A expenses in 2005 of $130.0 million increased $2.4 million, or 1.9%, above the 2004 level. The
primary costs associated with the increase include higher bank fees, accelerated depreciation on the ERP
system and incremental costs due to the inclusion of Dartington’s results of operations for a full year in
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2005 following our July 2004 acquisition. The following table details the items that had significant impact
on changes in SG&A spending.

SG&A Expense
Increase
(Decrease)

(In millions) 2005 vs. 2004

Reduced spending on selling and marketing initiatives ....................... $(5.4)
Reduced salaries and benefit costs .. ...... ..o (5.2)
Lower commissions due to reduced sales volume . ........................... (1.9)
Lower travel and entertainment ..............ouiutiuuininneenneeaan . (1.9)
Higher bank fees. ... ... o 3.2
Incremental SG&A costs from the Dartington acquisition .................... 3.0
Accelerated depreciation on ERP system .......... ... ... ... o ... 2.8
Severance and plant closure costs............ ... ... ... e 24
Increase in bad debt €XpPense ... . ... ..uruitr i 1.9
Higher legal fees. ... ..o 1.7
Higher Sarbanes-Oxley compliance costs .................. ... ..t 1.4
Dartington goodwill write-off. . .. ... ... . . 1.1
OFRET, MEt .. o (0.7
NEt ICTEASE .. oottt et e e e e e e e e 2.4

Operating Income (Loss)

The operating loss in 2005 increased to $47.2 million from $17.0 million in the prior year. The main
contributors to this increased loss were lower gross profit of $23.8 million, primarily due to lower sales
volume with an unfavorable impact of approximately $8.0 million, the loss on the termination of the
license agreement with PMI of $7.7 million, increased inventory reserves of $2.3 million, primarily
attributable to the strategy of reducing the number of product lines by approximately 70%, and an increase
in bank fees of approximately $3.2 million. The U.S. 2005 operating loss of $51.9 million increased
$28.4 million from the operating loss in 2004 of $23.5 million. International operating income in 2005 of
$4.7 million reflected a $1.8 million decrease from the 2004 international operating income level of
$6.5 million primarily due to a $2.7 million operating loss from the Dartington operations in 2005
compared to a $0.5 million operating loss in 2004 and a $1.1 million write-off of goodwill.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest expense for 2005 increased $1.1 million to $2.3 million due to higher borrowings and higher
interest rates. Other expenses decreased by $0.4 million in 2005 due primarily to a reduction in unrealized
foreign currency exchange losses.

Provision for Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

For 2005, income tax expense was $4.3 million, which was comprised of a domestic tax benefit of
$1.0 million and a foreign tax expense of $5.3 million. The domestic tax benefit is comprised principally of
benefits totaling $29.4 million from: a net operating loss (NOL) ($20.1 million); the reversal of a deferred
tax liability recorded in 2004 as explained below ($7.0 million); the impact of 2004 tax return filings .
($1.2 million); and a benefit from the reversal of previously recorded tax reserves no longer required
($1.1 million), offset by a deferred tax asset valuation allowance expense of $28.4 million. The net foreign
tax expense is comprised of $2.5 million related to operations and a reserve established related to an audit
assessment of $2.8 million.
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For 2004, income tax expense was $27.4 million, comprised of domestic tax expense of $23.3 million
and foreign tax expense of $4.1 million related to operations. The domestic tax expense was comprised
principally of a benefit from a NOL of $12.9 million offset by an $18.6 million expense related to the
establishment of a valuation allowance to reduce net deferred tax assets to their expected realizable
amount and by a $17.4 million expense related to the recording of a deferred liability on unremitted
earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries because those entities were expected to become guarantors of the
parent’s debt in 2005.

Effective as of December 31, 2004, Enesco was no longer able to rely upon the indefinite reversal
criteria of the Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 23 with respect to the reinvested earnings
of certain of its foreign subsidiaries due to the anticipated guarantee in 2005 of Enesco’s domestic debt by
those subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of the $17.4 million deferred tax liability and related tax
expense noted above. The debt guarantees were put into effect during August 2005 resulting in the
recognition of deemed dividends .from those subsidiaries for tax purposes under the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code. Based upon evaluation of its expected 2005 tax return filing position, Enesco determined that the
amount of deemed dividends was less than originally estimated at the time of the establishment of the
deferred tax liability, and, accordingly, reversed $7.0 million of the liability to 2005 tax expense, as noted
above.

Enesco made no qualifying repatriations under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”)
during 2005 as there was no benefit to earnings repatriations under the Act in light of Enesco’s current
and prior year domestic NOLs.

Open Orders

Net open orders at December 31, 2005 of approximately $10.4 million decreased 62% over the
December 31, 2004 level of approximately $26.2 million. The decrease is due primarily to the effect of
unshipped orders at December 31, 2004, resulting from the ERP system implementation issues and
fulfillment difficulties. The ERP issues were resolved in the second quarter of 2005 when we returned to
our upgraded version of our legacy software system. The December 31, 2005 net open orders do not
include orders for Precious Moments® products due to the termination of our license agreement with PMI.
Open orders consist of orders received and approved by Enesco, subject to cancellation for various reasons,
including credit considerations and product availability. We believe the open orders as of December 31,
2005 are more indicative of a normal year-end than the open orders at December 31, 2004.

2004 COMPARED to 2003 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Net Revenue and Gross Profit

Net revenues in 2004 of $269.0 million increased $12.6 million, or 5%, over the 2003 level of
$256.4 million. The increase primarily was due to the 2004 acquisitions of Gregg Gift and Dartington of
$14.0 million, successes among newer product lines such as Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore of
approximately $23.7 million and Walt Disney Classics Collection® of approximately $9.2 million, and
favorable foreign currency translation rate impacts of approximately $10.8 million. Those revenue increases
were offset partially by declining revenues for Precious Moments® of approximately $27.5 million and
Cherished Teddies® of approximately $7.0 million. The remaining decline in revenues of approximately
$9.5 million resulted from lower revenues in several smaller product lines such as Growing Up Birthday
Girls®, John Deere® and Mary's Moo Moos.

U.S. net revenues in 2004 of $160.5 million decreased $4.3 million, or 3%, below the 2003 level of
$164.8 million. The decrease primarily was due to lower collectible market revenues from Precious
Moments® of $24.8 million, down 32%, and Cherished Teddies® of $4.8 million, down 41%, $6.1 million
from lower revenues in several smaller product lines such as John Deere and Mary’s Moo Moos and lower
mass-market promotional revenues of $2.3 million and closeout revenues of $2.6 million. These decreases
were offset partially by increased revenues from acquisitions and newer product lines, such as Heartwood
Creek™ by Jim Shore of approximately $21.0 million and the Walt Disney Classics Collection® license of
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approximately $6.9 million. The 2004 acquisition of Gregg Gift provided revenues of $7.2 million during
the 10 months owned by Enesco. The U.S. revenue represented 59% of total revenues in 2004 compared to
64% of total revenues in 2003. This decrease of 5% primarily was due to Precious Moments® and
Cherished Teddies® revenue declines which more than offset revenue increases from acquisitions, new
product lines in 2004 versus 2003, and increased international revenue.

International net revenues in 2004 of $108.5 million increased $16.9 million, or 18%, above the 2003
level of $91.6 million. The increase primarily was due to $6.8 million increased revenues from the
Dartington acquisition in July 2004, sales of newer product lines, such as Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore
of approximately $2.6 million, smaller product lines of approximately $3.3 million and the favorable effect
of changes in foreign currency translation rates of $9.7 million. These increases were offset by declines in
Precious Moments® of $2.7 million and Cherished Teddies® of $2.2 million. International net revenues
represented 41% of consolidated revenues in 2004 compared to 36% in 2003. This increase of 5% primarily
was due to local currency revenues, which were translated into U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates in
2004 versus 2003, and the acquisition of Dartington.

The following product lines accounted for 10% or more of consolidated revenue in 2004, 2003 and
2002:
2004 2003 2002

Precious Moments® . .. ... 21% 32% 37%
Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore............c.... . iiin i, 13% 5% 1%
Cherished Teddies®. . ... ... . .. . . . . 5% 8% 11%

Precious Moments® net revenues in 2004 of $55.7 million decreased $27.5 million, or 32%, versus
2003, This decrease primarily was due to continued lower consumer demand for collectible figurines.

Cherished Teddies® net revenues in 2004 of $12.6 million decreased $7.0 million, or 36%, versus 2003.
This decrease was primarily due to continued decline in consumer demand for collectible figurines.

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore revenues in 2004 of $35.6 million increased $23.7 million above
2003. The nearly two-fold increase primarily is due to higher customer demand for the unique design of
these Jim Shore Designs products, and the added international demand of approximately $2.6 million.

The number of collector club members in 2004 for Precious Moments® and Cherished Teddies®
product lines decreased by approximately 20% compared to the 21% decrease from 2002 to 2003, primarily
due to lower consumer interest in collectible figurines in 2004 versus 2003. Collector clubs provided
approximately 2% of consolidated revenue in 2004 compared to approximately 3% in 2003. In 2004,
Enesco acquired the Walt Disney Classics Collection® collector club, which added more than 28,000 active
members in 2004.

The licensing acquisition of Walr Disney Classics Collection® provided revenues of $9.2 million in
2004,

Net revenues of newer product lines in 2004, such as Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore, Bratz™, Walt
Disney Classics Collection® and My Little Kitchen Fairies™ accounted for approximately 19% of
consolidated revenue in 2004 as compared to approximately 6% of consolidated revenue in 2003.

Gross profit in 2004 of $106.5 million decreased $9.2 miilion, or 8%, below the 2003 level of
$115.7 million. The decrease primarily was due to ERP system implementation difficulties, inventory
valuation charges, higher freight costs and changes in the overall product mix. Additionally, incremental
gross profit from the Gregg Gift and Dartington acquisitions, the new Walt Disney Classics Collection®
and Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore product lines, and the favorable impact of foreign currency
translation rates were offset partially by a volume-related decline in gross profit caused by lower product
revenue of collectible figurines lines, Precious Moments® and Cherished Teddies®. The gross profit margin
expressed as a percentage of net revenues was 39.6% in 2004, compared to 45.1% in 2003.
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The following table reflects the changes in gross profit from 2003 to 2004:

Increase
(In millions) _(Decrease)
Inventory valuation charges .. ...... ...ttt e $ (2.0)
ERP system implementation costs. . ........ ot 2.7)
Higher freight costs . .. ... .. (2.0)
Foreign currency translation rates .. ..........o oot 3.7
Royalty costs ... (4.9)
Product mix (volume) ... ... e (12.2)
Acquisition of Gregg Gift . ... ... . . 29
Acquisition of Dartington ............ . . 2.2
License acquisition of Walt Disney Classics Collection®. ........................ 58
Total gross profit change.......... ... . $ (9.2)

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A)

SG&A in 2004 of $127.5 million increased $26.7 million, 26.5% above the 2003 level of
$100.8 million. The increase primarily is due to the normal operating expenses from the Walir Disney
Classics Collection® license acquisitions, Dartington and Gregg Gift acquisitions of approximately
$9.6 million, the impact of foreign currency translation rate changes of approximately $3.5 million, and
unplanned costs related to the ERP system implementation of approximately $5.0 million. Additional costs
were incurred in 2004 for marketing efforts for the Precious Moments® brand of approximately
$1.0 million, Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 compliance of approximately $1.0 million, former executives’
and international severance of approximately $2.3 million, strategic studies of $0 6 million and depreciation
on the ERP system of approximately $1.6 million.

In 2004, there was a gain recorded on the sale of the EGV facility of approximately $4.0 million.

Operating Income (Loss)

The operating loss of $17.0 million in 2004 compares to an operating profit in 2003 of $14.9 million.
The decrease in profit primarily was due to lower sales of Precious Moments® and Cherished Teddies®
having an unfavorable impact on earnings of approximately $25.0 million, offset by improved operating
income of approximately $14.0 million, primarily due to newer product lines, such as Heartwood Creek™
by Jim Shore and the acquisitions of the Walt Disney Classics Collection® license, and the Gregg Gift and
Dartington businesses. Additionally, the operating loss was increased by ERP-related charges of
approximately $11.0 million, higher inventory valuation charges of approximately $2.0 million, and
increased SG&A as described above, offset by the gain on the sale of the EGV building. The U.S. 2004
operating loss of $23.5 million decreased $28.1 million below the income level in 2003 of $4.6 million.
International 2004 operating income of $6.5 million reflected a $3.9 million decrease, or 37% below 2003
operating income of $10.3 million.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest expense in 2004 of $1.1 million increased $0.4 million, or 46%, above the 2003 level of
$0.8 million. The increase primarily was due to higher borrowings and higher interest rates. Interest
income in 2004 of $0.4 million decreased $0.1 million, or 25%, from the 2003 level of $0.5 million. The
decrease primarily was due to lower cash balances available for investments during 2004. Other expense in
2004 was $0.1 million compared to an expense of $0.3 million in 2003,
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Provision for Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

For 2004, income tax expense was $27.4 million, comprised of domestic tax expense of $23.3 million
and foreign tax expense of $4.1 million related to operations. The domestic tax expense was comprised
principally of a benefit from an NOL of $12.9 million and offset by an $18.6 million expense related to
the establishment of a valuation allowance to reduce net deferred tax assets to their expected realizable
amount and by a $17.4 million expense related to the recording of a deferred liability on unremitted
earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries because those entities were expected to become guarantors of the
parent’s debt in 2005. For 2003, the net tax benefit was $2.9 million, comprised of a domestic tax benefit
of $7.9 million and foreign tax expense of $5.0 million on operations. The domestic benefit included the
impact of the reversal of $6.9 million of income tax accruals no longer required due to the expiration of
various statutes of limitations.

Effective as of December 31, 2004, Enesco was no longer able to rely upon the indefinite reversal
criteria of the Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 23 with respect to the reinvested earnings
of certain of its foreign subsidiaries due to the anticipated guarantee in 2005 of the Enesco’s domestic debt
by those subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of the $17.4 million deferred tax liability and related tax
expense noted above.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations and available
financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs, capital expenditures and other liquidity
requirements associated with our existing operations. There are no assurances, however, of our ability to
secure teplacement financing of the senior revolving credit facility, which expires January 1, 2007, or that
we will successfully negotiate more favorable covenants, obtain further waivers of existing or future
covenants if violated or maintain sufficient loan advance rates on eligible collateral. Also, in the course of
pursuing growth opportunities, including, but not limited to, acquisitions and alliances, Enesco may need to
negotiate additional or amend existing credit facilities. In addition, there were no transactions,
arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, as of December 31, 2005,
that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or requirements for capital resources.

Liquid Assets

Cash and cash equivalents on December 31, 2005 were $12.9 million versus $14.6 million at
December 31, 2004. Cash and cash equivalents are a function of cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities. We historically have satisfied capital requirements with borrowings and, in 2004,
proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment. Cash balances and working capital requirements
fluctuate due to operating results, shipping cycles, accounts receivable collections, inventory management
and timing of payments, among other factors. Working capital requirements fluctuate during the year and
generally are greatest early in the fourth quarter and lowest carly in the first quarter.

Cash Flows

The net cash used by operating activities is a function of our net loss, offset by non-cash expenses,
such as depreciation and the provision for deferred income taxes, as well as changes in working capital.
Net cash used in operations totaled $4.4 million for 2005 versus $21.6 million used in 2004. Non-cash
expenses were $13.3 million lower in 2005 than in the same period in 2004, primarily due to the
$24.6 million in deferred income taxes in 2004 that was greater than the $7.7 million loss on the PMI
license termination in 2005. Non-cash expenses in 2005 also included the write-off of the $1.1 million in
goodwill associated with the Dartington acquisition.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, changes in operating assets and liabilities provided
$34.0 million of cash, which was $39.3 million favorable to the same period last year, during which
$5.3 million of cash was used. Accounts receivable decreased $27.0 million during 2005, compared to an
increase of $1.0 million for the 2004 period. The decrease in 2005 was due, in part, to lower revenues in
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2005 compared to 2004, as well as to sales terms more favorable to Enesco, improved collection efforts
and stricter credit policy management.

We incurred a $7.7 million non-cash loss on the transfer of inventory related to the PMI termination
agreement in the second quarter of 2005. In addition to the decrease in inventories due to the transfer,
Precious Moments® inventories declined another $4.7 million in 2005 due to declining purchases. Net of
the decline due to Precious Moments®, inventories decreased an additional $10.6 million during 2005,
primarily due to warehouse order processing efficiencies, more efficient procurement of seasonal
merchandise and other products and an increase in inventory reserves for discontinued product lines from
implementing our Operating Improvement Plan.

The net cash used by investing activities during 20035 of $1.5 million showed an increase of
$1.8 million compared to 2004, during which Enesco generated $19.3 million from the sale of the EGV
warehouse and used $14.4 million for the acquisitions of Gregg Gift and Dartington. Additionally, Enesco’s
property, plant and equipment expenditures decreased from $4.6 million in 2004 to $2.3 million in 2005.

The net cash provided by financing activities in 2005 totaled $4.9 million versus $24.2 million for
2004, The decrease resulted primarily from a $18.1 million decline in borrowing activities, which was made
possible by better asset management of receivables and inventories in 2005 versus 2004. The primary
financing requirements in 2005 were capital expenditures and the funding of the cash used in operations.

Stock-based compensation expense is classified as an operating activity in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. For 2004 and 2003, we reclassified $1.3 million and $1.0 million, respectively
of stock-based compensation expense from investing activities to operating activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

Operating Improvement Plan Goals

Enesco has specific liquidity and profitability goals built in its Operating Improvement Plan. Enesco
seeks to build a profitable, sustainable business model focused on high margin gift products. This operating
model will target gross margins in the range of 40% to 45% and an operating profit margin of 3% to 5% to
be achieved in 2007.

Credit Facilities

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a three-year domestic $50.0 million unsecured revolving credit
facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement
contains financial and operating covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens,
acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing Enesco’s shares and paying dividends. In addition, Enesco is
required to satisfy fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage ratio tests at the end of each quarter and a
minimum annual operating profit covenant. '

On January 28, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic credit
facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million
until March 31, 2005. The lenders also waived the resetting of, and compliance with, financial covenants
as of December 31, 2004. Also on January 28, 2005, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened
to end March 31, 2005.

On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic credit facility,
effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility through January 1, 2006. The credit facility
commitments ranged from $50 million to $70 million, based on Enesco’s seasonal borrowing needs. The
amendment also set certain financial covenants for 2005. In the event that the outstanding loans under the
domestic credit facility were not repaid in full (i) by May 16, 2005, a fee in the amount of $700,000
became payable; (ii) by June 30, 2005, another fee of $700,000 became payable; and (iii) with proceeds
provided by lenders that include Fleet National Bank (“Fleet”) or an affiliate of Fleet a fee of $1,750,000
became payable.
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Under our current credit facility, we were required to pay a total of $1.4 million in penalty fees
because we did not close a replacement credit facility during the second quarter of 2005.

On June 10, 2005, we notified Fleet as agent under our existing U.S. credit facility with Fleet and
LaSaile Bank N.A., that we were not in compliance with our minimum EBITDA covenant as of April 30,
2005, which was predominantly due to non-cash accruals related to the timing of the execution of Enesco’s
agreement with PMI, as discussed in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. On
June 28, 2005, we obtained a waiver of our minimum EBITDA covenant default for April and May 2005,
and a waiver of compliance with this covenant through July 31, 2005. We also advised Fleet of the need to
renegotiate our financial covenants for additional months during the term of our existing credit facility
primarily because of lower projected sales and lower gross margins during the same period.

On July 7, 2005, we entered into an eighth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The eighth
amendment added accounts receivable and inventory of N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited, our Canadian
subsidiary, to the borrowing base under the credit facility and reduced the advance rate on inventory from
50% to 33% effective July 31, 2005. The fee of $1.75 million payable on the termination of the
commitment under the credit facility was eliminated.

As of August 31, 2005, we entered into a ninth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The
ninth amendment reset Enesco’s minimum EBITDA and capital expenditure covenants through the facility
termination date, December 31, 2005, based on our reforecast and long-term partnership with Bank of
America, as successor to Fleet, and LaSalle Bank. The ninth amendment also added the accounts
receivable and inventories of Enesco Limited, Enesco Holdings Limited and Bilston & Battersea Enamels
Limited, and the accounts receivable of Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as eligible collateral to the
borrowing base under the current credit facility. The ninth amendment also increased the current credit
facility size to $75.0 million, rather than a variable size of $50.0 million to $70.0 million.

On December 14, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter with LaSalle Business Credit, LLC to
arrange a new $75 million senior secured credit facility. If entered into, the new credit facility with
LaSalle will have a term of five years and will replace our existing credit facility with Bank of America, as
successor to Fleet National Bank, and LaSalle Bank. As the Administrative Agent, LaSalle expects to
form a syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the new credit facility. The commitment letter
contains a number of conditions that must be satisfied in order for the facility to be closed, including:

» Enesco having a minimum borrowing availability of at least $10 million at the time of closing,
+ the lender’s completion of its final due diligence with respect to Enesco and its subsidiaries,
« the negotiation and execution of a definitive credit agreement,

+ there being no material adverse change in our business, assets, liabilities, properties, condition
(financial or otherwise), results of operations or prospects of Enesco and its subsidiaries since
December 31, 2004, there being no material disruption or material adverse change in financial,
banking or capital markets generally affecting credit facilities, and

« various appraisals, as well as other standard and customary conditions.

Under the letter, the commitment was to close on the new credit facility on or before January 31,
2006. On January 31, 2006, Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle
Business Credit, LLC, (LaSalle) extending the expiration date from January 31, 2006 to February 28,
2006. On February 28, 2006, Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle
extending the expiration date from February 28, 2006 to March 31, 2006. On March 31, 2006, Enesco
received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle extending the expiration date from
March 31, 2006 to April 30, 2006.

On December 21, 2005, Enesco entered into a tenth amendment to its existing U.S. credit facility
extending the facility termination date from December 31, 2005 to January 1, 2007. The tenth amendment
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provides that, unless the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the existing U.S. credit facility are
paid in full prior to the following dates, the respective fees will become payable:

+ January 1, 2006  $ 75,000 + April 1, 2006  $275,000
» February 1, 2006 $150,000 « May [, 2006  $750,000
+ March 1, 2006 $250,000 : » June 1, 2006  $750,000

The amendment also provides for a monthly fee beginning January 1, 2006 through May 1, 2006 in
the amount of 0.10% of the highest amount of loans that were outstanding during the preceding month.
This fee will increase to 0.20% beginning June 1, 2006 through January 1, 2007. The amendment
establishes cumulative minimum consolidated EBITDA requirements and cumulative maximum capital
expenditure limitations, which are each measured monthly during 2006. Enesco was required to pay the
January 1, February 1, and March 1, 2006 bank penalty fees totaling $475,000. Enesco expects to pay the
April 1, 2006 penalty fee of $275,000.

During the first quarter, Enesco notified Bank of America, as agent under our existing U.S. credit
facility, of its anticipated need to renegotiate its cumulative minimum EBITDA covenants for each of the
months of 2006 primarily due to slower revenue shipments in the U.S. and the UK.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an eleventh amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility. This
amendment reset Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective January 30,
2006, based on our reforecast and reduced the credit facility commitments from $75.0 million to
$70.0 million effective between the eleventh amendment date and January 1, 2007. In addition, unless the
outstanding loans and letters of credits under the existing U.S. credit facility are paid in full, the eleventh
amendment accelerates by one month the fees per the tenth amendment which were to be due May 1,
2006 and June 1, 2006. The total fee payable April L, 2006 is $1,025,000 and, unless the outstanding loans
and letters of credit are paid in full prior to May 1, 2006, the fee payable May 1, 2006 is $750,000. The
monthly fee of 0.10% of the highest loan amount outstanding during the preceding month will increase to
0.20% on May 1, 2006, rather than June 1, 2006 as per the tenth amendment, and will continue until the
facility termination date.

Enesco is seeking replacement financing to pay off the existing U.S. credit facility. There are no
assurances that we will secure replacement financing of the U.S. senior revolving credit facility, which
expires on January 1, 2007. Under a contemplated replacement facility, Enesco will be the borrower, and
Enesco and our material domestic and foreign subsidiaries likely will be guarantors. In connection with
closing on a replacement senior credit facility, we may need to obtain additional financing secured by,
among other things, certain foreign inventory and receivable collateral from Canada, Hong Kong and the
U.K., as well as certain real estate assets, in order to satisfy minimum excess availability conditions.
Moreover, we anticipate that the proposed replacement facility will contain standard terms and conditions,
and financial and other covenants including, without limitation, restrictions on incurring indebtedness and
liens, acquisitions, change of control, change of management, selling property, repurchasing our shares and
paying dividends. ‘

At December 31, 2005, Enesco had total lines of credit providing for maximum borrowings of
$78.8 million, $75.0 million was available under our current U.S. credit facility, and $3.8 million under
international facilities. Actual borrowings of $30.8 million and letters of credit and a customs bond totaling
$4.2 million were outstanding at December 31, 2005. The net available borrowing capacity under our
current U.S. credit facility based on eligible collateral as of December 31, 2005 was $13.2 million. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, Enesco had $30.8 million and $26.4 million, respectively of interest bearing
debt.

Enesco has various non-qualified supplemental retirement plans. Benefits under these plans are paid

from Enesco’s assets. During 2005 and 2004, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, were paid to fund
benefits. Enesco has established grantor trusts to hold assets for some of these non-qualified plans. The
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assets are subject to the claims of creditors and therefore, are not considered plan assets and are excluded
from retirement plan computations.

Fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar versus international currencies affect the U.S. dollar
translation value of international currency denominated balance sheet items. The changes in the balance
sheet dollar values due to international currency translation fluctuations are recorded as a component of
shareholders’ equity under accumulated other comprehensive income.

Contractual Obligations

A summary of significant contractual obligations are as follows:

(In thousands) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total

Line of credit borrowings(1) ... $30,823 § — § — $§ — § — § — $30823
Lettersof credit.............. 4,177 — — —_ — — 4,177
Purchase obligations .......... 14,737 — — _ — — 14,737
Post-retirement benefits ....... 142 124 113 111 106 544 1,142
Distribution and warehousing . . . 3,049 3,049 3,049 3,049 3,049 15,245
Operating leases. . ............ 5,843 2,241 1,369 954 581 1,564 12,552
Minimum royalty guarantees . . . 2,131 329 12 — — — 2,471

Total contractual cash
obligations. ......... e $60,902 $5,744 $4,543 $4,114 $3,737 $2,108 $81,147

(1) Future variable rate interest payments have been excluded under our short-term debt agreements.

Enesco’s credit agreement and some of its real estate leases and license agreements include provisions
that in the event of default the creditor may, in certain circumstances, accelerate the amount owed.

Sale and Leaseback

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its EGV property, warehouse and distribution facility and certain
machinery and equipment for approximately $19.8 million and agreed to a five-year leaseback of the
facility. The assets sold had a net book value of $6.6 million at the date of sale, resulting in the
recognition of a $4.0 million gain on the sale in December 2004. An additional $8.6 million gain was
deferred, to be recognized over the five-year term of the lease. In December 2005, we notified the lessor of
this facility that we would terminate the lease at December 31, 2006 in compliance with the early
termination clause provided for in the lease agreement. The deferred gain, which totaled $6.9 million at
December 1, 2005, will be recognized on a monthly basis equal to the facility rent expense through
November 2006, with the resulting balance recognized in December 2006.

Market Risk

Concentrations of risk for Enesco exist in revenue from major product lines, foreign sources of
inventory, market and geographic areas and trade receivables. The majority of product revenues are items
produced using licensed rights from third parties. The two largest licensed lines, Precious Moments® and
Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore represented $72.1 million, or 29%, of total revenues for 2005,
$91.3 million, or 34%, of total revenues for 2004, and $95.1 million, or 37%, of total revenues for 2003. A
negotiated termination of the Precious Moments® license was reached and became effective during 2005
(sece Note 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K). Extended credit terms
are offered to customers. Enesco continually monitors and manages the risks associated with all these
activities.

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and product sourcing
locations around the world. Enesco may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
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exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco
does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco regularly monitors
foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract amounts do not exceed the amounts of the
underlying exposures.

Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and intercompany foreign
currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency hedging activities is to protect Enesco
from the risk that the eventual settlement of foreign currency transactions will be affected adversely by
changes in exchange rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various foreign exchange
forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the
instruments are carried at fair value on the balance sheet as a component of other current assets or other
current liabilities. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable
hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
and reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.
Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that do not meet the applicable hedging
criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded currently in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or loss,
as applicable. Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or financial
condition during 2005.

At the present time, Enesco hedges only those currency exposures associated with certain assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and periodically will hedge anticipated foreign currency cash
flows. The hedging activity undertaken by Enesco is intended to offset the impact of currency fluctuations
on certain foreign currency transactions.

The table below details our outstanding currency instruments as of December 31, 2005, all of which
have scheduled maturity dates before October 17, 2006:

Forward Contracts Notional Amount Exchange Rate
(In thousands)
Euros $1,000 1.2350

As of December 31, 2005, Enesco had a total of $30.8 million of interest bearing debt outstanding, all
in the U.S., with a floating interest rate of 6.27%, compared to an aggregate debt balance of $26.4 million
with a floating interest rate of approximately 4.0% at December 31, 2004.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, which amended the guidance in
Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 43 to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense, freight handling costs and wasted material (spoilage). It also requires that the allocation
of fixed production overhead to the cost of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production
facilities. The standard is effective for inventory costs incurred by Enesco beginning January 1, 2006. We
do not anticipate that the implementation of FAS No. 151 will have a significant impact on the results of
our operations.

In December 2004, FASB revised FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. This Statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, and its related implementation guidance. This Statement establishes standards for the
accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It
also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are
based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those
equity instruments. This Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity
obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. This Statement does not change the
accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in
Statement 123 as originally issued and EITF Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are
Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. This
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Statement does not address the accounting for employee share ownership plans, which are subject to
AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, Employers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans. This
Statement is effective as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after June 15,
2005. Enesco is required to adopt this Statement for the quarter beginning January 1, 2006. This revised
Statement will be applicable for Enesco’s yearly service awards granted after the required effective date
and modified, repurchased or cancelled after that date. The impact on our Consolidated Statement of
Operations for 2006 for options granted prior to the adoption of FAS 123 is not anticipated to be
significant due to the acceleration of vesting on all previous options granted at a price greater than the
market price in November 2005.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations, which provides additional guidance on conditional asset retirement obligations under
FAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. This standard is effective for fiscal years
ended after December 15, 2005. The implementation of FAS No. 143 did not have a significant impact on
the results of our operations in 2005.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FAS No. 154, which addresses the accounting and reporting for
changes in accounting principles. FAS No. 154 replaces APB Opinion No. 20. APB Opinion No. 20
allowed a change in accounting principle to be accounted for generally as a cumulative effect adjustment
in the current year’s financial statements. FAS No. 154 states that the change be reported retrospectively,
and requires the following:

» The cumulative effect of the chaﬁge to the new accounting principle on periods prior to those
presented shall be reflected in the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of
the first period presented.

« An offsetting adjustment, if any, shall be made to the opening balance of retained earnings (or
other appropriate components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial position) for that
period.

» Financial statements for each individual prior period presented shall be adjusted to reflect the
period-specific effects of applying the new accounting principle.

FAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005. This Statement will be applicable for Enesco beginning in 2006.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Mavrket Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Enesco’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its domestic credit
facility. The outstanding balance under its credit facility accrues interest at a variable rate. As of
December 31, 2005, Enesco had a total of $30.8 million of interest bearing debt outstanding, all in the
U.S,, with a floating interest rate of approximately 6.27% compared to an aggregate debt balance of
$26.4 million with a floating interest rate of approximately 4% at December 31, 2004. If amounts
ouistanding under Enesco’s credit facility remained at this year-end level for an entire year and the
variable interest rate increased or decreased by 1%, the annual interest expense or savings, respectively,
would be approximately $0.3 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and product sourcing
locations around the world. Enesco may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco
does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco regularly monitors
foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract amounts do not exceed the amounts of the
underlying exposures.
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Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and intercompany foreign
currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency hedging activities is to protect Enesco
from the risk that the eventual settlement of foreign currency transactions will be adversely affected by
changes in exchange rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various foreign exchange
forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the
instruments are carried at fair value in the balance sheet as a component of other current assets or other
current liabilities. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable
hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified
into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Changes in the fair
value of foreign exchange forward contracts that do not meet the applicable hedging criteria of SFAS 133
are recorded currently in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or loss, as applicable.
Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or financial condition during
2005.

The table below details our outstanding currency instruments as of December 31, 2005, all of which
have scheduled maturity dates before October 17, 2006:

Forward Contracts Notional Amount Exchange Rate
(In thousands)
Euros $1,000 1.2350
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

(In thousands) 2005 2004
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ......... . ... ... .. .. . . $ 12918 § 14,646
Accounts receivable, Met .. .. ... 42,285 70,526
IV en TS . .t 40,659 65,371
Prepaid eXpenses . ... e 3,471 3310
Deferred InCOME 1aXES . . ...t 783 920

Total CUTTENT ASSEtS .. ... i i 100,116 154,773
Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost:

Land and improvements . .. .. ... vu vttt e 1,200 1,200
Buildings and Improvements . . ... ...t e 19,538 22,131
Machinery and equIpmMeEnt .. ........ oottt 9,636 10,273
Office furniture and equipment ........... . . it 37,826 37,454
Transportation qUIPIMENt . .. ..ot u ittt e 532 796

68,732 71,854
Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization ......................... (53,228) (49,345)
Property, plant and equipment, net .. ... L 15,504 22,509
Other Assets:

Goodwill ... 8,364 9,403

OtheT . . e 3,135 4,116

Deferred InCOMmMe 1aXeS . . ..ot e 3,072 3,082

Total other assels . . ... oo 14,571 16,601

Tota) ASSEES . . oo © $ 130,191 $ 193,883

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Notes and loans payable . ... ..o i $ 30823 § 26,354
Accounts payable . ... ... e 15,306 18,680
Federal, state and foreign income taxes .......... ... ..., 3,005 6,405
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets . .......... . oot 6,358 1,711
Accrued expenses —

Payroll and COMMIUSSIONS . . . ...\ttt e e 3,083 2,599

Royalties . ... ... e 5,782 12,267

Post-retirement benefits ............ ... .. .. .. .. .. ... . 142 165

Other . . 5,585 6,597

Total current Habilities ... ... ... 76,084 74,778
Long-term Liabilities:

Post-retirement benefits ... .. ... . 1,281 3,008
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets . .......... ... i i i — 6,830

Total long-term liabilities .. ........ ... .. . ... 1,281 9,338
Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock, par value $0.125:

Authorized 80,000 shares; Issued 25,228 shares................... oo .. 3,154 3,154
Capital in excess of par value. . ........ ... . i 41,430 44,229
Retained €arnings. ... ..ottt 248,437 302,462
Accumulated other comprehensive income. .......... ... ... o 4,438 8,152

297,459 357,997
Less — Shares held in treasury, at cost:
Common stock, 10,308 shares in 2005 and 10,671 shares in 2004 ... ........... (244,633)  (248,730)

Total shareholders’ equity . ... ... 52,826 109,267

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............ ... . o iiiiin... $ 130,191 $ 193,883

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
CNETTEVENUES ... $244,434 $268,967 $256,426
Costof sales .o e 153,935 162,423 140,714

Cost of sales — loss on license termination ...................... 7,713 — —

Gross profit .. ... 82,786 106,544 115,712

Seiling, general and administrative expenses . .................... 129,956 127,543 100,811

Gain on sale of building . . . ... PO — (3,985) —

Total selling, general and administrative expenses ................ 129,956 123,558 100,811

Operating income (10S8) .. ... i i (47,170) (17,014) 14,901

INterest XPEMSE. - o oo v vttt e e e (2,260) {1,148) (787)
CINEErESt IMCOME .« oottt e ettt e e e e 201 404 537

Other eXpense, NEL .. ...ttt ittt i (449) (75) (319)

Income (loss) before income taxes............................. (49,678) (17,833) 14,332

Income tax (expense) benefit ............. ... ... ... (4,347) (27,355) 2,950
CNetincome (108S) .. ov it $(54,025) $(45,188) § 17,282

Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:
CBASIC e e $ (367) § (316) $ 1.23
" Diluted ... .o IR $ (367) $ (316) $ 120

* The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC..
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accumulated
Capital in Other o Total -
Common Stock Treasury Stock Excess of Comprehensive  Retained  Shareholders®
(In thousands) Shares Amount  Shares Amount Par Value Income Earnings . Equity

Balance December 31, 2002 25,228 $3,154 11,319 $(256,045) $47,148 $(2,712)  $330,368  $121,913

Netincome. .............. . 17,282 17,282
Currency translation ,

adjustments. ............ 6,452 6452
Total comprehensive income ‘ o © 23,734
Exercise of stock options. . .. . (134) 1,409 (821) : ) " 588
Other common stock T : ’

issuance. ............... (121) 1,468 (464) _ ' 1,004
Balance December 31, 2003 25,228 $3,154 11,064 $(253,168) $45,863 $ 3,740 $347,650  $147,239
Netloss.................. . (45,188) - (45,188)
Currency translation o

adjustments. ............ 4,412 4412
Total comprehensive loss ... ' (40,776)
Exercise of stock options. . . . (262) 2,951 (1,399) ' 1,552
Other common stock B ‘ :

issuance................ (131) 1,487 (235) ) 1,252
Balance December 31, 2004 25,228 $3,154 10,671 $(248,730) $44,229 $ 8,152 $302,462  $109,267
Netloss.................. (54,025)  (54,025)
Currency ftranslation

adjustments............. (3,714) (3,714)
Total comprehensive loss . . . (57,739)
Exercise of stock options. . . . ' (50) 562 (240) 322
Other common stock

issuance................ (313) 3,535 (2,559) 976

Balance December 31, 2005 25,228 $3,154 10,308 $(244,633) $41,430 $ 4,438 $248,437 $ 52,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Nt 0SS oottt et $(54,025) $(45,188) $17,282
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating
activities
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment . .. 7,768 7,111 5,236
Write-down of goodwill ...... ... ... ... . ... oL 1,091 — —
Deferred inCome taxes . ... .vi ittt e 124 24,557 (801)
Gains (losses) on sales of capital assets........................ (2,080) (4,014) 5
Stock based compensation . ............ . i 976 1,252 1,004
Loss on license termination .. ..ottt v 7,713 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ........... ... 26,994 (965)  (7,108)
Inventories . ... ..ottt e 15,344 585 (9,401)
Prepaid eXpenses . ... oot (316) 1,134 (1,236)
OFhEr @88 . o\ttt e e 488 (1,15%) 956
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ..................... (9,333) (3,539)  (1,090)
Income taxes payable ......... ... 2,597 (1,077)  (7,953)
Long-term post retirement benefits. ......................... (1,727) (313) 156
Net cash used by operating activities . ............... . e, (4,386)  (21,612) (2,950)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ...................... (2,348) (4,552)  (5,918)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired.............. ... ... . .. ... — (14,409)  (3,732)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment .............. 809 19,265 37
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .................... (1,539) 304 (9,613)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: »
Net issuance of notes and loans payable ......................... 4,599 22,656 2,677
Common stock issuance and exercise of stock options . ............. 322 1,552 588
Net cash provided by financing activities. .......................... 4,921 24,208 3,265
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . ........ (724) 1,101 2,525
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................... (1,728) 4,001 (6,773)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ..................... 14,646 10,645 17,418
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .......................... $ 12918 $ 14646 $10,645
Supplemental disclosure of cash paid for: (In millions)
L8 (-2 S D $ 1.9 § 07 § 04
Income taxes .. ..ot e $ 63 § 39§ 45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Enesco Group, Inc.
and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned (“Enesco”, “we” or “our”). Enesco, which operates in
a single industry segment, designs, manufactures and markets a wide variety of licensed and proprietary
branded giftware and home and garden décor products to retailers in the U.S., Canada and Europe. All
significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. requires the use of management estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain
reclassifications were made in the 2004 and 2003 financial statements to conform to the 2005 presentation,
including reclassifying changes in stock-based compensation in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
from financing activities to operating activities. We also reclassified bank fees and credit card fees in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations from other expense to selling, general and administrative expenses.
These reclassifications had a negative effect of $1.3 million and $1.0 million on our operating income’
(loss) for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, but had no effect on the previously
reported net income (loss) for these periods. Lastly, we reclassified certain employee benefit obligations in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets from accrued expenses — other to accrued expenses — payroll and
COMMIssions.

Assets and liabilities of Enesco’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange
rate on the balance sheet date, while items in the statements of operations are translated at average
exchange rates effective during the year. Translation gains and losses are reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses are reported
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and notes and loans payable approximate fair value.
Enesco considers all highly liquid securities, including certificates of deposit with maturities of three
months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

Advertising costs are expensed in the year the publication is issued. Advertising expense was
$0.6 million in 2005, $1.6 million in 2004 and $0.7 million in 2003.

Revenue from the sales of products is recognized when title and risk of loss transfer to the customer,
which generally occurs when merchandise is released to the transportation company. A provision for
anticipated merchandise returns and allowances is recorded at the time of sale based upon historical
experience. Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are included in revenue. License,
royalty and service fees are recognized as revenue when earned.

The individual annual membership fees related to club sales are recorded as revenue as the
membership entitles the member to receive a club kit, which includes a coliectible figurine, a carrying case
and related documentation, and also entitles the member to receive a quarterly newsletter. The newsletters
are essentially marketing materials that contain information regarding products, artists and member stories,
as well as special offers and new product offerings. Membership fees are not refundable. Because the
membership fee is paid in exchange for products delivered and represents the culmination of the earnings
process, revenue is recognized at the time the club kit is shipped to the member. Membership also entitles
the participant to purchase, for a limited time, certain exclusive items offered throughout the year; revenue
from sales of these items is recognized upon shipment of each item.

Concentrations of risk for Enesco exist in revenue from major product lines, foreign sources of
inventory, market and geographic areas and trade receivables. The majority of product revenues are derived
from items produced using licensed rights from third parties, The two largest licensed lines, Precious
Moments® and Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore represented approximately $72.1 million, or 29%, of total
revenues for 2005, $91.3 million or 34% of total revenues for 2004 and $95.1 million, or 37%, of total
revenues for 2003. The U.S. license for Precious Moments® was terminated during 2005 (see Note 9).
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Extended credit terms are offered to customers. Enesco continually monitors and manages the risks
associated with all these activities.

Accounts receivable are reported net of allowances for uncollectible accounts, customer rebates, and
returns and allowances, which totaled $8.8 million at December 31, 2005, and $6.5 million at
December 31, 2004.

We assess the recoverability of significant tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, under the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and SFAS No. 144 — Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. For goodwill, we perform an impairment assessment
annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. Based on our annual impairment analysis, we
concluded that the goodwill associated with the 2004 acquisition of Dartington was impaired as of
December 31, 2005. The total $1.1 million of goodwill attributable to Dartington was written off in
December 200S. For property, plant and equipment, we evaluate the recoverability of these assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be
recoverable. Due to ongoing operating losses from the U.S. business, excluding Gregg Gift, an assessment
of the carrying amount of U.S. long-lived assets was again completed as of December 2005 in accordance
with SFAS No. 144. Based on the positive undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from our
long-lived assets, we concluded that our long-lived assets were not impaired as of December 31, 2005.

In December 2004, we determined that the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system would be
stabilized by using the core components of our former legacy software system. The plan was to update
certain modules of the legacy software to provide advanced features and capabilities required by the
business. We incurred accelerated depreciation charges related to the ERP system of $0.8 million in
December 2004. During the second quarter of 2005, we successfully migrated from the ERP system at our
Elk Grove Village, Illinois (EGV) distribution center to an upgraded version of our legacy information
system. Late in the second quarter, we stabilized the remaining portions of our PeopleSoft systems that
relate to order management and financial reporting. Since we currently are processing customer orders and
prepdring financial statements using the PeopleSoft system, and intend to continue to do so, we have
revised our estimate of the remaining useful life of the portion of the asset value that pertains to these two
modules. The remaining net book value of our PeopleSoft system is $1.1 million, as of December 31, 2005,
All casts associated with the distribution center ERP system have been fully depreciated as of the end of
the second quarter of 2005. Total accelerated depreciation for 2005 amounted to $3.7 million, all of which
was recorded in the first half of 2005.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost components include labor, overhead,
materials, freight and duty costs. We value all inventories utilizing the first-in, first-out method. We record
inventory at the date of taking title, which at certain times during the year results in significant in-transit
quantities, as inventory is sourced primarily from China and Thailand.

The major classes of inventories were as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004

Raw materials. ... ... .. $ 2242 $ 1,820
WOTK i PrOCESS « . oottt e e e e 202 250
Finished goods intransit . ............... .. ... .. i 3,241 6,097
Finished goods .......... .. i 34,974 57,204

$40,659  $65,371

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets utilizing the straight-line and
declining balance methods. The methods of depreciation for financial statement and income tax purposes
differ in some circumstances, resulting in deferred income taxes.

54




The estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets are as follows:

Range in

_Years
Land improvements . . ... ..ot 10
Buildings and improvements. .. ... ... .. e 3-25
Machinery and equipment . .......... . 5-10
Office furniture and equipment .. ... ... ... . 3-10
Transportation EQUIPIMENT . . ..ottt ittt et ettt et e s 3-8

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the
differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for the tax effects attributable to the
carryforward of net operating losses (NOLs). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized through an adjustment of the tax provision in the period that includes the enactment
date. Enesco considers future taxable income and ongoing tax strategies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance in relation to deferred tax assets. Enesco records a valuation allowance to reduce
deferred tax assets to a level where they are more likely than not to be realized based upon these
considerations.

Accruals have been established for taxes payable and potential tax assessments. The accruals are
included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to when assessments may be made and
taxes may be paid. Enesco has filed and continues to file tax returns with a number of taxing authorities
worldwide. We believe such filings have been and are in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
interpretations. Positions taken are subject to challenge by the taxing authorities, often for an extended
number of years after the filing dates. To the extent accruals differ from assessments, when the open tax
years are closed or the accruals are otherwise deemed unnecessary at a point in time, the accruals are
adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and product sourcing
locations around the world. Enesco may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco
does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco regularly monitors
foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract amounts do not exceed the amounts of the
underlying exposures.

Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and intercompany foreign
currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency hedging activities is to protect Enesco
from the risk that the eventual settlement of foreign currency transactions will be adversely affected by
changes in exchange rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various foreign exchange
forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the
instruments are carried at fair value in the balance sheet as a component of other current assets or other
current liabilities. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable
hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
and reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.
Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that do not meet the applicable hedging
criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded currently in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or loss,
as applicable. Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or financial
condition during 2005.

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is based on the average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per common share assumes, in addition to the above, the
dilutive effect of common share equivalents during the year. Common share equivalents represent dilutive
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stock options and warrants using the treasury stock method. The number of shares used in the earnings per
common share computation for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Basic:

Average common shares outstanding .. ........... ... ... 14,739 14,309 14,028
Diluted:

Stock options and Warrants ..., 8 512 416
Average shares — diluted. . ......... ... ... . i 14,747 14,821 14,444

Additional options to purchase 2.2 million, 1.3 million and 1.0 million shares were outstanding at
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of the
common share.

At December 31, 2005, we had four stock-based compensation (fixed options) plans, net including
two plans with options that have fully expired. We account for these plans under the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. No stock-based compensation plan cost is reflected in net
income (loss), as each option granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following tabie illusirates the effect on net income
(loss) and earnings (loss) per common share if Enesco had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based compensation plans:

Year Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss) asreported ............. .. . .. ....... $(54,025) $(45,188) $17,282

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effect ......... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... (2,392) (1,580) (1,631)
Pro forma net income (loss) ........ ... ... $(56,417) $(46,768) $15,651
Earnings (loss) per common share:

As reported:

Basic. ... $ (367) $§ (3.16) $ 1.23

Diluted . ..o $ (367) $ (305 $ 1.20
Pro forma:

Basic. ... ... oo N $ (383) $ (3271) § 112

Diluted ... $ (383 $ (316) $ 1.08

Note 2. Notes and Loans Payable

Notes and loans payable and weighted-average interest rates at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:

2005 2004
Interest Interest
($ In thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate
U.S. notes under committed bank lines ............. L. $30,823 6.27% $24,857 4.3%
International notes under committed bank lines . .. .. S — _— 1,497 2.7%
$30,823 $26,354
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At December 31, 2005, Enesco had total lines of credit providing for maximum borrowings of
$78.8 million, of which $75.0 million was available under our current U.S. credit facility. Actual
borrowings of $30.8 million and letters of credit and a customs bond totaling $4.2 million were outstanding
at December 31, 2005. The net available borrowing capacity under our current U.S. credit facility based
on eligible collateral as of December 31, 2005 was $13.2 million. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
Enesco had $30.8 million and $26.4 million, respectively of interest bearing debt.

Total interest paid under committed bank lines was $1.9 million in 2005, $0.7 million in 2004,
$0.4 million in 2003.

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a three-year domestic $50.0 million unsecured revolving credit
facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement
contains financial and operating covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens,
acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing Enesco’s shares and paying dividends. In addition, Enesco was
required to satisfy fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage ratio tests at the end of the second, third and
fourth quarters and a minimum annual operating profit covenant.

In March 2004, Enesco’s domestic $50.0 million credit facility was amended to add term notes
totaling $7.7 million for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Gregg Gift. At the same time, Gregg
Gift was added as a borrowing subsidiary and certain financial covenants were modified.

In August 2004, Enesco negotiated a $10.0 million temporary increase through December 31, 2004 to
its $57.7 million credit facility (to a total of $67.7 million) in order to meet anticipated secasonal
requirements for working capital. Following December 31, 2004, the credit facility reverted to
$57.7 million.

In November 2004, Enesco and its lenders agreed upon revised financial covenants for the two
months ended December 31, 2004 and thereafter. Also in November 2004, Enesco entered into an
amendment to its credit facility providing a security interest in certain assets to its lenders.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its EGV warehouse and distribution facility for approximately
$20 million. The net proceeds from the sale of $17.6 million were first used to pay the outstanding balance
($6.7 million) of the $7.7 million term loan. The balance of the net proceeds, $10.9 million, was used to
reduce the outstanding balance of the revolving portion of the credit facility with a concurrent reduction to
the revolving loan commitments. Also on December 10, 2004, Enesco’s lenders extended the time period
to January 31, 2005 for Enesco and its lenders to agree on revised financial covenants for the fiscal period
ending December 31, 2004 and thereafter.

On January 28, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic credit
facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million
until March 31, 2005. The lenders also waived the resetting of, and compliance with, financial covenants
as of December 31, 2004. Also on January 28, 2005, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened
to end March 31, 2005.

On March 28, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter with Fleet Capital Corporation, operating as
Bank of America Business Credit (BABC), for BABC to fully underwrite a $100 million global senior
revolving credit facility with a five-year term. The commitment letter with BABC expired on April 30,
2005.

On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with the lenders to its domestic credit
facility, effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility through January 1, 2006. The credit
facility commitments ranged from $50 million to $70 million, based on Enesco’s seasonal borrowing needs.
The amendment also set certain financial covenants for 2003. In the event that the outstanding loans
under the domestic credit facility were not repaid in full: (i) by May 16, 2005, a fee in the amount of
$700,000 became payable, (ii) by June 30, 2005, another fee of $700,000 became payable, and (iii) with
proceeds provided by lenders that include Fleet National Bank (Fleet) or an affiliate of Fleet National
Bank, a fee of $1,750,000 became payable. .
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Under our current credit facility, we were required to pay a total of $1.4 million in penalty fees
because we did not close a replacement credit facility during the second quarter of 2005.

On June 10, 2003, we notified Fleet, as agent under our existing U.S. credit facility with Fleet and
LaSalle Bank N.A., that we were not in compliance with our minimum EBITDA covenant as of April 30,
2005, which was due predominantly to non-cash accruals related to the timing of the execution of Enesco’s
agreement with. Precious Moments, Inc. (PMI), as discussed in Note 9. On June 28, 2005, we obtained a
waiver of our minimum EBITDA covenant default for April and May 2003, and a waiver of compliance
with this covenant through July 31, 2005. We also advised Fleet of the need to renegotiate our financial
covenants for additional months during the term of our existing credit facility pnmanly because of lower
projected sales and lower gross margins during the same period.

On July 7, 2005 we entered into an elghth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The eighth
amendment added accounts receivable and inventory of N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited, our Canadian
subsidiary, to the borrowing base under the credit facility and reduced the advance rate on inventory from
50% to 33% effective July 31, 2005. The fee of $1.75 million payable on the termination of the
'commltment under the credit facility was eliminated.

As of August 31, 2005, we entered into a ninth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The
ninth amendment reset our minimum EBITDA and capital expenditure covenants through the facility
termination date, December 31, 2005, based on our reforecast and long-term partnership with Bank of
America, as successor to Fleet and LaSalle Bank. The ninth amendment also added the accounts
receivable anid inventories of Enesco Limited, Enesco Holdings Limited and Bilston & Battersea Enamels
Limited, and the accounts receivable of Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as eligible collateral to the
borrowing base under the current credit facility. The ninth amendment also increased the current credit
facility size to $75.0 million, rather than a variable size of $50.0 million to $70.0 million.

On December 14, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter with LaSalle Business Credit, LLC
(LaSalle) to arrange a new $75 million senior secured credit facility. If entered into, the new credit
facility with LaSalle will have a term of five years and will replace the Enesco’s existing credit facility
with Bank of America, as successor to Fleet Bank and LaSalle Bank. As the administrative agent, LaSalle
expects to form a syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the new credit facility. The ‘
commitment letter contains a number of conditions that must be satisfied in order for the facility to be
closed, including: Enesco having a minimum borrowing availability of at least $10 million at the time of
closing; the lender’s completion of its final due diligence with respect to Enesco and its subsidiaries; the
negotiation and execution of a definitive credit agreement; there being no material adverse change in
Enesco’s business, assets, liabilities, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) results of operations or
prospects of Enesco and its subsidiaries since December 31, 2004; there being no material disruption or
material adverse change in financial, banking or capital markets generally affecting credit facilities; and
various appraisals, as well as other standard and customary conditions. Under the commitment letter, the
new credit facility was to close on or before January 31, 2006. On January 31, 2006, Enesco received a
modification to its. commitment letter from. LaSalle, extending the expiration date from January 31, 2006
to February 28, 2006. On February 28, 2006, Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter
from LaSalle, extending the expiration date from February 28, 2006 to March 31, 2006. On March 31,

12006 Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle, extending the expiration date
from March 31, 2006 to April 30, 2006.

On December 21, 2005, Enesco entered into a tenth amendment to its existing U.S. credit facility
extending the facility termination date from December 31, 2005 to January 1, 2007. The tenth amendment
provides that, unless the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the existing U.S. credit facility are
paid in full prior to the following dates, the respective fees will become payable: 1) by January 1, 2006,
$75,000; 2) by February 1, 2006, $150,000; 3) by March 1, 2006, $250,000; 4) by April 1, 2006, $275,000;
5) by May 1, 2006, $750,000; and 6) by June I, 2006; $750,000. The amendment also provides for a
monthly fee beginning January 1, 2006 through May 1, 2006 in the amount of 0.10% of the highest
amount of loans that were outstanding during the preceding month. This fee will increase to 0.20%
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beginning June 1, 2006 through January 1, 2007. The amendment establishes cumulative minimum
consolidated EBITDA requirements and cumulative maximum capital expenditure limitations, which are
each measured monthly during 2006. Enesco has paid the January 1, February 1, and March 1, 2006 bank
penalty fees totaling $475,000.

During the first quarter, Enesco notified Bank of America, as agent under our existing U.S. credit
facility of its anticipated need to renegotiate its cumulative minimum EBITDA covenants for. each of the
months of 2006 primarily due to slower revenue shipments in the US and UK.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an eleventh amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility. This
amendment reset Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective January 30,
2006, based on our reforecast and reduced the credit facility commitments from $75.0 million to
$70.0 million effective between the eleventh amendment date and January 1, 2007. In addition, unless the
outstanding loans and letters of credits under the existing U.S. credit facility are paid in full, the eleventh
amendment accelerated by one month the fees per the tenth amendment which were to be due May |,
2006 and June 1, 2006. The total fee payable April 1, 2006 is $1,025,000 and, unless the outstanding loans
and letters of credit are paid in full prior to May 1, 2006, the fee payable May 1, 2006 is $750,000. The
monthly fee of 0.10% of the highest loan amount outstanding during the preceding month will increase to
0.20% on May 1, 2006, rather than June 1, 2006 as per the tenth amendment, and continue until the
facility termination date.

Subject to our ability to either extend our existing credit facility and/or secure replacement financing .
by January 1, 2007, we believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations
and available financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs, capital expenditures and other
liquidity requirements associated with our existing operations. There are no assurances, however, of our
ability to secure replacement financing of the senior revolving credit facility, which expires January 1,

2007, or that we will successfully negotiate more favorable covenants, obtain waivers of existing or future
covenants if violated, or maintain sufficient loan advance rates on eligible collateral.

Note 3. Employee Benefit Plans

Long-term liabilities for post-retirement benefits at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

(In thousands) i 2005 2004

Post-retitement benefits .. ... ottt $ 901 §1,153
Supplemental 401(k) ..... ... ... 281 1,643
Deferred compensation/Severance . ..............ccoit i, 99 212
Balance sheet total. .. ... U, $1,281  $3,008

Enesco has established grantor trusts to fund its non-qualified supplemental retirement plans. The
trusts are irrevocable and the assets contributed are subject to the claims of creditors. The market value of
the assets in the trusts totaled $0.3 million at December 31, 2005, and $1.6 million at December 31, 2004.
The year over year decline in these assets is primarily due to employee withdrawals upon their termination.
These assets are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Enesco had sponsored a defined benefit post-retirement healthcare and life insurance plan that had
liabilities of $1.0 million and $1.2 million as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
The liability is determined using estimated medical premium growth rates, net of estimated employee
contributions. Certain employees and non-employee directors became eligible for the benefits under this
plan when they reached allowable retirement age while working or serving on the Board of Directors at
Enesco. Those benefits are provided principally through premiums paid to insurance companies. The total
costs of the benefits were accrued during the employment or service of the employee or non-employee
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director. All of the benefits under these plans are vested and are either fixed dollar amounts per year or a
percentage of insurance premiums paid per year.

(In thousands) 2005 2004
Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ............... ... . ...l $ 1,238 $ 1,836
SeIVICE COST. . v — —
Interest COSt ...t 56 80
Actuarial Galll. ...ttt e (127) (534)
Benefits paid. . ... (140) (144)
Benefit obligation at end of year ............ ... i $ 1,027 $ 1,238
Funded Status: '
{Accrued) benefit cost ..., $(1,027) $(1,238) °
Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense includes the following components:
(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
S EIVICE COSE. .\ ottt ettt e e e $ — § — §—
Interest cost ... .o 56 80 81
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss ....... ... ... i (127)  (534) 145
Net period benefit cost (income) ........... .. .. ................ $ (71) $(454) $226

The cost of healthcare benefits is assumed to increase at an annual rate of 10% for periods after
December 31, 2005. Participants with fixed dollar benefits are included at actual cost. Increasing the
assumed healthcare expense annual trend rate by one percentage point would increase the accumulated
post-retirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2005 by $33,000 and the interest cost component of
the net post-retirement benefit obligation for the year then ended by $11,000. A discount rate of 4.5% was
used in determining the accumulated post-retirement benefit.

Additionally, certain foreign subsidiaries have established funded profit sharing and defined
contribution retirement plans. ‘

The consolidated profit sharing and retirement plan expense totaled $1.1 million in 2005, $1.9 million
in 2004, and $2.2 million in 2003.

Note 4. Shareholders’ Equity

Pursuant to action by Enesco’s Board of Directors (the Board) on July 22, 1998, effective with the
expiration on September 19, 1998 of the stock purchase rights then existing under Enesco’s Stockholder
Rights Plan, one new right for each outstanding share of Enesco’s common stock was issued (a New
Right) under a Renewed Rights Agreement. Each New Right initially represents the right to purchase one
share of common stock for $125.00. The New Rights will only become exercisable, or separately
transferable, promptly after Enesco announces that a person has acquired or tendered for 15% or more, or
promptly after a tender offer commences that could result in ownership of 15% or more, of the common
stock then outstanding.

If the New Rights become exercisable after any person acquired or tenders for 15% or more of the
common stock then outstanding (except through an offer for all common stock that has been approved by
the Board), each New Right not owned by that person or related parties will enable its holder to purchase,
at the New Right’s exercise price, common stock (or other securities or assets, or a combination thereof)
having double the value of the exercise price. In the event of certain merger or asset sale transactions with
another party, similar terms would apply to the purchase of that party’s common stock.
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The New Rights, which have no voting power, expire on July 22, 2008, and are subject to extension.
Upon approval by the Board, the New Rights may be redeemed for $.01 each under certain conditions.

In 1996, the shareholders approved a stock option plan previously adopted by the Board, which
provides for both incentive and non-qualified stock options. Options for up to 1.5 million shares of
common stock may be granted under the 1996 Plan. The 1996 Plan, as amended by the Board in 1998,
provides that non-qualified options for 1,500 shares of common stock be granted annually to each non-
employee Director then serving. In 2003, the shareholders approved an amendment, previously adopted by
the Board, to the 1996 Plan that increased the number of shares available for option grants under the 1996
Plan from 1.5 million to 3.0 million and provided for vesting of the options over four years, at the rate of
25% of the options per year, without the restrictions on the exercise of vested options that was set forth in
the 1996 Plan.

In 2003, the Board adopted the Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan and renamed it the
Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Shareholders approved the Amended and
Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan in 2004. The Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive
Plan amends and restates the 1996 Stock Option Plan in its entirety. The Amended and Restated 1996
Long-Term Incentive Plan provides for the grant of restricted shares, stock awards, performance awards
and stock appreciation rights, in addition to both incentive and non-qualified option awards as previously
provided under the provisions of the plan. The Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan
also: (1) modifies the vesting provisions of the option awards to provide the Compensation Committee
with more flexibility; (2) imposes restrictions on the number of awards granted; (3) ¢liminates the non-
employee director options grant provisions (now contained in the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-
Employee Director Stock Plan); (4) modifies the acceleration and termination provisions relating to
options; and (5) provides the Compensation Committee with discretion to make tax gross-up payments,
among other matters.

Enesco also has the 1991 Stock Option Plan (the 1991 Plan), which provides for both incentive and
non-qualified stock options, under which options for up to 2 million shares of common stock could have
been granted. No further options may be granted under the 1991 Plan. The 1991 Plan provides for the
granting to select key employees and non-employee directors, of options to acquire shares of common
stock at a price not less than their fair market value at the time of grant.

Other option terms are determined at the time of grant, but normally under the 1991 Plan, options
are exercisable only after a one-year waiting period with vesting in four equal annual installments, and
expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the 1996 Plan, options granted prior to April 2003 become
exercisable only after a six-month waiting period and upon Enesco’s achievement of certain stock value
performance criteria at any time during the first eight years after the date of the grant. Under the 1996
Plan, as amended by shareholder approval in 2003, new options vest equally over four years, with 25% of
the shares subject to the vesting on each of the first four anniversary dates of the date of grant of the
option, with the options being thereafter exercisable by the optionee regardless of the fair market value of
Enesco’s common stock. On the eighth anniversary of the grant, all cutstanding options granted under the
1996 Plan will become exercisable, Options granted under the 1996 Plan will expire 10 years from the date
of grant. ' '

In 1998, the Board approved a special 1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan, which provided for a one-
time grant of 14,000 non-qualified stock options to Enesco’s then Chairman of the Board. The options
become exercisable six months from date of grant and expire 10 years from the date of grant. In 1997, the
Board approved a President and Chief Executive Officer Stock Option Plan which provided for special
grants of non-qualified stock options to Enesco’s then Chief Executive Officer. The 1997 grant of 100,000
options vested fully in increments of 12,500 shares each month from November 1997 through June 1998,
and the options become exercisable six months from the date of grant and expire 10 years from the date of
grant.

At December 31, 2005, we had four stock-based compensation (fixed options) plans, not including
plans with options that have fully expired. We account for those plans under the recognition and
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measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. No stock-based compensation plan cost is reflected in net
income (loss), as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income
{(loss) and earnings (loss) per common share if Enesco had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based compensation plans:

(In millions, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss)
ASTEPOTIEA . .\ vttt ettt e e e $(54.0) $(45.2) $17.3
Pro fOrmMa. . $(56.4) $(46.8) $15.7
Earnings (loss) per common share diluted
AS TEPOTTE . ..ottt $(3.67) $(3.05) $1.20
ProfOrma . ..ot e $(3.83) $(3.16) $1.08

The options granted in 2005, 2004, and 2003 were under the 1996 Plan. The fair value of each option
grant in 2005, 2004, and 2003 was estimated at the time of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Annual dividend yield. ... ....... ... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility. . ......... ..o i 585% 57.7%  57.4%
Risk-free interest rate. ........ ..ottt 4.0% 4.2% 3.5%
Expected life (years) .. ...t 6.3 6.3 6.3
Weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the
YEAT, PET SHATE . . o .ottt ettt e e $218 §504 §$471

Stock option status and activity under Enesco’s six stock-based compensation plans including the 1993
options that expired during 2005 are summarized as follows:

Weighted
Shares Average
(000s) Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31,2002, .. ...ttty 2,736 $16.32
Granted .. o e 527 8.14
ExXercised ... ... e (134) 5.17
Forfeited . .. .. ..o (394) 25.90
Outstanding at December 31, 2003. .. .. ... ... i 2,735 $13.96
Granted . ... .. e e e e e 516 8.54
Exercised ... ... e (262) 593
Forfeited . . ... e e (679) 21.34
Outstanding at December 31,2004, . ... ... ... . i, 2,310 $11.49
Granted ... i e 584 371
EXETCISEd . ..ot e (50) 6.46
Forfeited . . ... . (625) 10.82
Outstanding at December 31, 2005.. ... ... ... . i 2,219 $ 9.53
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands) Shares Shares Shares
Options exercisable at year-end ............. ... ... ... ... oL 2,104 1,202 1,438
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A summary of information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Number Weighted Weighted Weighted

Outstanding Average Average Exercisable Average
at 12/31/05 Remaining Exercise at 12/31/05 Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices (000s) Contractual Life Price (000s) Price
$1.70t0 $7.00. . ........... ... ‘ 952 7.45 $ 464 838 $ 5.05
$7.01 to $10.00............... 792 7.11 $ 771 792 $ 771
$10.01 to $18.00.............. 222 4.16 $15.07 222 $15.07
$18.01 to $32.07.............. 253 1.60 $28.21 253 $28.81
2,219 6.33 $ 9.53 2,104 $ 9.96

An analysis of treasury stock transactions for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 is
as follows:

Common Stock

(In thousands) Shares Cost
Balance at December 31, 2002. ... ... ... 11,319 $256,045
Exercise of stock options. ........... . ... i (144) (1,514)
Stock options exchanges . .......... ... . . 10 105
Investment savings plans — 401 (k) issvances ........................ (104) (1,279)
Non-employee director stock plan issuances.......................... {17) {189)
Balance at December 31,2003 . ... ... ... 11,064 253,168
Exercise of stock options. ... ... ... . i (262) (2,951)
Employee service awards. . ................. 3 - (32)
Executive employment agreement issuances.......................... (25) (282)
Investment savings plans — 401 (k) issuances ........................ (89) (1,012)
Non-employee director stock plan issnances.......................... (14) (161)
Balance at December 31, 2004. ... ... ... .. .. . 10,671  $248,730
Exercise of stock options . . ... ... ... . (50) (562)
Employee service awards. ... ... ... (1) (14)
Executive employment agreement iSSUances. .................ooovv..s (46) (519)
Investment savings plans — 401 (k) issuances ........................ (226) (2,553)
Non-employee director stock plan issuances.......................... (40) (449)
Balance at December 31, 2005. ... .. .. .. . . 10,308  $244,633

In 1987, Enesco introduced an Investment Savings Plan for non-union employees in accordance with
Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. In 2003, Enesco amended the Enesco Group, Inc.
Retirement Profit Sharing Plan for Union Employees to allow union employees to make contributions to
this plan in accordance with Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. One of the features of these
retirement savings plans provides a common stock match for a portion of employee contributions to eligible
employees and allows Enesco a federal income tax deduction equal to the market value of the issued
stock. Compensation expense for common stock issued was $0.6 million for 2005, $0.7 million for 2004
and $0.8 million for 2003. On October 14, 20035, Enesco eliminated the company stock match effective
December 1, 2005. Matching contributions after the effective date are made in cash to participants’
retirement accounts.

In 1998, the Board adopted the 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. The Non-Employee
Director Stock Plan allows for an annual retainer of common stock worth $15,000 per annum valued as of
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the day following the annual meeting for each non-employee director who is not the Chairman of the
Board. For service as Chairman of the Board, the Non-Employee Director Stock Plan allows for an annual
retainer of common stock worth $37,500 per annum valued as of the day following the annual meeting.
Compensation expense for common stock issued to non-employee directors was $0.2 million for 2005,

$0.1 million for 2004 and $0.1 million for 2003.

In 2003, the Board adopted the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan.
Shareholders approved the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plafl in 2004. The
Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan amends and restates the 1999 Non-
Employee Director Stock Plan in its entirety. The Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director
Stock Plan increases the number of shares available for grant from 100,000 to 300,000 shares of Enesco
common stock. The amendment also provides for the annual automatic grant of 2,000 non-qualified stock
options to non-employee directors. Additional changes were made to accommodate the inclusion of option
grants, with terms such as acceleration of vesting, adjustments in capitalization and change in control and
transferability.

On December 6, 2005, the Board accelerated the vesting of 608,658 options that would have
otherwise vested over the next four years. Options held by non-employee directors also were included in
the acceleration and the Compensation Committee imposed a holding period that will require that all
participants not sell shares acquired through the exercise of an accelerated option (other than shares
needed to cover the exercise price and satisfy withholding taxes) prior to the earlier of the date on which
exercise would have been permitted under the options’ original vesting terms or, if earlier, the management
participants’ last day of employment or, upon the Board participant’s retirement or resignation from the
Board. All options that were accelerated as of December 6, 2005 had exercise prices in excess of the
market price of Enesco’s common stock on that date. The total compensation cost that would have been
recognized in the financial statements in future periods, had we not accelerated the vesting of these options
is approximately $1.9 million.

On June 28, 2000, Enesco entered into a licensing agreement with Time Warner Entertainment
Company, LP. Pursuant to this agreement, Enesco issued Time Warner a warrant to
purchase 200,000 shares of Enesco’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.375 per share (the
“warrant”). Time Warner sold the warrant in August 2003 to Highbridge International. This warrant
expired June 27, 2005. The warrant’s fair value of $529,000, which was included in capital in excess of par
value, was determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model, assuming an expected life of five years, a
dividend yield of 0%, a risk-free interest rate of 6.789% and a volatility factor of 64%. The fair value of the
warrant was amortized as a component of royalty expense in cost of sales over the term of the licensing
agreement.

Note 5. Brand Revenues and Geographic Operating Segments

Enesco operates in the giftware, and home and garden décor industry with five major brand
categories. The following table summarizes net sales by major brand for 2005 and 2004:

(In thousands) 2005 2004
Proprietary designs . . ... ..ot $ 85,984 $ 87946
Licensed brands . ...t e 68,404 70,910
Third-party distribution . .. ... i 26,912 20,285
Precious Moments®(1) ... ..o 32,431 56,504
Service fees(2) .. o i e e 4,004 —
(13 17-J 28,337 35,759
InterCOmPany . ...t (1,638) (2,437)
Total consolidated ... ... ... ... . . . $244.434  $268,967




(1) Includes both Precious Moments® product sales recorded under the PMI termination agreement (See
Note 9 below) subsequent to June 30, 2005, and continuing sales by non-U.S. operations which were
$3.0 million and $2.6 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(2) Includes sales commissions and distribution service fees subsequent to June 30, 2005 earned from
PMI under the transition agreement which services were substantially concluded by December 31,
2005. : ‘

Enesco operates in two major geographic classifications, the U.S. and International (comprised of
Canada and Europe). Net revenues and operating profit (loss) are grouped by the location of each
customer. The following table summarizes operations by geographic classification for 2003, 2004 and 2003:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Net Revenues
U S $130,201 $160,470 $164,842
International .. ...... ... ... 114,233 108,497 91,584
Total consolidated . .............................. $244.434  $268,967  $256,426
Operating Profit (Loss)
UsS. ............. e e e $(51,901) $(23,464) $ 4,594
International ...... ... ... ... .. . .. 4,731 6,450 10,307
Total consolidated . . .......... ... ... ........... $(47,170) $(17,014) $ 14,901
Long-lived Assets
U.S.
Property, plant & equipment, net .................... $ 9,783 $ 14,767 $ 22,480
Other assets .. .. ..ottt e 11,499 12,450 25,260
Total US. .. e 21,282 27,217 47,740
International N
Property, plant & equipment, net .............. e . 5,721 7,742 5,861
Other assets .. ..o e 3,072 4,151 2,952
Total International ............ .. .. ... .. ... .. ... 8,793 11,893 8,813
Total consolidated .. ......... ... .. ... ... ... .... $ 30,075 $ 39,110 $ 56,553
Capital Expenditures
UL S, e $ 1654 § 3,605 § 4,714
International ........... ... ittt 694 947 1,204
Total consolidated . . .......... ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 2348 $ 4,552 $ 5918
Depreciation and Amortization
U S $ 6,448 $§ 4950 § 3410
International ......... ... .. . . ... 1,320 2,161 1,826
Total consolidated . ................. ... ou... $ 7,768 $ 7,111 $ 5236

Total net revenues recorded in the U.K. for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $76.9 million, $71.5 million
and $55.6 million, respectively, Total long-lived assets in the U.K. at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
were $7.7 million, $10.5 million and $6.6 million, respectively.

Total net revenues recorded in Canada for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $29.8 million, $30.1 million and
$30.8 million, respectively. Total long-lived assets in Canada at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were
$0.8 million, $0.9 million and $0.8 million, respectively.
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Transfers between geographic areas are made at the market value of the merchandise transferred. No
single customer accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net revenues. Export revenues from sales to
foreign unaffiliated customers represent less than 10% of consolidated net revenues.

Note 6. Income Taxes

Prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. The domestic and
foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes are as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
DOmMESHC ...\ttt $(59,540) $(31,140) $(5,482)
Foreign ..o 9,862 13,307 19,814

$(49,678) $(17,833) $14,332

Income taxes (benefit) consist of the following:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Currently payable:
Federal ... ... $(840) $ —  $(8,004)
Stateand local..... ... ... ... ... ... (120) 111 (820)
Foreign . . o 5,160 3,366 5,008
Totalcurrent ....... ... i 4,200 = 3,477 (3,816)
Deferred:
Federal ....................... e g — 17,637 608
State and local. . ... .. —_ 5,505 220
FOrCign . e 147 736 38
Total deferred ... .. .. 0 147 23,878 866
Total income tax expense (benefit) ...................... $4,347  $27,355  §(2,950)

A reconciliation of the tax expense computed at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to the total income
tax expense (benefit) is as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Expense (benefit) at federal statutory rate .................. $(17,387) $(6,242) §$ 5,018
State taxes, net of federal income tax effect ................. (2,135)  (3,578) (387)
Income of foreign subsidiaries subject to U.S, taxation . ....... 2,720 1,358 -
Increase in valuation allowance charged to income tax expense 28,434 18,640 —
Accrual of deferred taxes on unremitted earnings of certain '

foreign subsidiaries ............ ... ... ... .o, (7,013) 17,406 —
Recognition (reduction) of foreign tax rates ................. (897) (99) (600)
Impact of prior year’s return filings ........................ (1,215) — —
Other .. 210 (130) (129)

2,717 27,355 3,902

Increase (reduction) in income tax accruals ................. 1,630 — (6,852)

Income tax expense (benefit) ........................... $ 4,347 $27,355  $(2,950)

The 2005 increase (reduction) in income tax accruals includes an expense of $2.8 million related to
the establishment of a reserve for an audit assessment, and a $1.1 million benefit from the reversal of
previously recorded tax reserves no longer required.

The 2004 tax expense includes a non-cash provision of $18.6 million to establish a valuation allowance
with respect to deferred tax assets, as explained below. Effective as of December 31, 2004, Enesco was no

66




longer able to rely upon the indefinite reversal criteria of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion

No. 23 with respect to the reinvested earnings of certain of its foreign subsidiaries due to the anticipated
guarantee in 2005 of Enesco’s domestic debt by those subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of a

$17.4 million deferred tax liability and related tax expense. The debt guarantees were put into effect during
August 2005 resulting in the recognition of deemed dividends from those subsidiaries for tax purposes
under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Enesco elected to treat foreign taxes previously paid as deductions
for U.S. federal tax purposes rather than as credits that would be unlikely to be used to offset future tax
liabilities and, accordingly, reversed $7.0 million of the liability to 2005 tax expense, as noted above.

The 2003 benefit of $6.8 million related to the reduction of income tax accruals, which were no
longer required due to the expiration of various statutes of limitations.

Income taxes paid for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $6.3 million,
$3.9 million, and $4.5 million respectively.

Enesco made no qualifying repatriations under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act™)
during 2005 as there was no benefit to earnings repatriations under the Act in light of Enesco’s current
and prior year domestic net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards.

Significant components of Enesco’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2005 and
2004 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carryforwards . ........... ... ... .. $ 34,687 $ 29,263
Inventory valuation allowances................. ... ...cocvu... .. 2,870 2,077
Accounts receivables valuation allowances ......................... 2,407 1,556
Employee and retiree benefits ............... .. ... . .. L 569 1,242
Asset bases differences . ........... . 2,322 1,256
ACCTUEH BXPEISES . . . .ottt e 1,416 302
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets .............................. 2,543 3417
Other assets .. ...t e e 4,115 934
SUbtOtal . . $ 50,929 § 40,047
Valuation allowance . .......... ... .. oot e (47,074)  (18,640)
Total deferred tax assets ... ... ot 3,855 21,408
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries .............. e — 17,406
Net deferred tax @SS€LS . ..ot ottt e e e e § 3855 $§ 4,002
Consisting of:
CUrrent assets . . ...ttt P $ 783 & 920
Other a8sels . ... ot 3,072 3,082
Total o $ 3855 $§ 4,002

As of December 31, 2005, Enesco had estimated carryforwards for U.S. tax purposes as follows:
i) NOLs of $86.7 million, which expire between 2020 and 2025, and ii) charitable contribution
carryforwards of $2.4 million, which expire between 2006 and 2010.
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In 2004, due to the uncertainty of the realization of the deferred tax assets, consisting principally of
NOLs, Enesco provided a valuation allowance of $18.6 million. In 2005, no benefit was recorded for
Enesco’s domestic NOLs as the result of a $28.4 million valuation allowance provision. The changes in the
valuation allowances for 2005 and 2004 were $28.4 million and $18.6 million, respectively. The ultimate |
realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during
i) the years in which temporary differences reverse and ii) the years prior to the expiration of the NOLs.
Management considers appropriate tax planning strategies in making an assessment of the likelihood of
realizing the deferred tax assets. Based on the consideration of these factors, management believes that it
is more likely than not that Enesco will realize the above net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Enesco incurred rental expense under operating leases of $5.2 million in 2005, $5.1 million in 2004
and $4.3 million in 2003. ’

The minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2005,
are as follows: s :
{In thousands)

2006 ..\ $ 5843
2007 o 2,241
2008 . e e e 1,369
2000 . e e e e e 954
2000 - 581
Lateryears. ..., B I 1,564
Total minimum future Tentals . ... ..ottt $12,552

Enesco has entered into various licensing agreements requiring royalty payments ranging from 2% to
20% of specified product revenues. Royalty expenses, which are charged to cost of sales under these
licensing agreements, totaled $16.9 million in 2003, $26.0 million in 2004 and $18.9 million in 2003.
Future minimum guaranteed royalty payments are $2.1 million in 2006 and $0.3 million in 2007.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its Elk Grove Village property, a warehouse and distribution
facility, and certain machinery and equipment, for approximately $19.8 million and agreed to a five-year
leaseback of the facility. The assets sold had a net book value of $6.6 million at the date of sale, resulting
in the recognition of a $4.0 million gain on the sale in December 2004. An additional $8.6 million of gain
was deferred, to be recognized over the five-year term of the lease. In December 2005, Enesco notified the
lessor of this facility that it would terminate the lease on December 31, 2006 as provided for under the .
early termination clause of the agreement. The deferred gain, which totaled $6.9 million at December 1,
20035, will be recognized ratabiy over the 13-month period ending December 31, 2006.

There are various legal proceedings pending against Enesco, which have arisen during the normal
course of business. Management believes the ultimate outcome of those legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse impact on the financial position or results of operations of Enesco.

Note 8. ~ Acquisitions, Divestitures and Goodwill

Bilston & Battersea Enamels plc (B&B), a manufacturer and distributor of giftware, home accessories
and related products, including high quality, hand-decorated enamels and sculptural boxes sold under
certain Halcyon Days® brands, was acquired by Enesco in April 2003. Enesco paid approximately
$4.4 million in cash ($3.7 million net of acquired cash), which resulted in $2.9 million of goodwill related-
to the purchase.
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In February 2004, Enesco acquired Gregg Gift, a supplier and distributor of giftware in the U.S., for
$7.3 million. In connection with the acquisition, Enesco recorded approximately $5.3 million of goodwill.

On July 21, 2004, the Enesco acquired certain assets of Dartington Crystal Limited (Dartington)
through its United Kingdom subsidiary, Enesco Limited, for $7.0 million in cash. The purchase price was
funded by internally generated cash from Enesco Limited. Dartington designs and manufactures a full
range of uncut crystal products, such as glassware, bowls, vases, candleholders and giftware. For the year
ended December 31, 2005, Dartington contributed approximately $13.6 million to consolidated net
revenues. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we performed our first annual impairment analysis on the
Dartington goodwill, and we concluded that impairment existed at December 31, 2005, A complete write-
off of the Dartington goodwill of $1.1 million was recorded at December 31, 200S.

As a result of our new product strategy announced in September 2005, it was decided that glassware
was no longer a strategic fit for Enesco. We therefore actively began marketing the sale of the Dartington
operation in the U.K. during the fourth quarter of 2005. Enesco currently is reviewing offers and will
consider only those that exceed the current borrowing availability associated with the Dartington assets.

The results of operations of these acquisitions are included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operatioris since the dates of their acquisition. The goodwill balance in 2005 was only impacted by the
write-off of the Dartington goodwill of $1.1 million and changes to foreign currency exchange rates.

Note 9. Precious Moments Licensing Agreement Termination

On May 17, 2005, we terminated our license agreement with Precious Moments, Inc. (PMI) to sell
Precious Moments® products. On July 1, 2005, we began operating under an agreement with PMI where
Enesco provided PMI transitional services related to its licensed inventory through December 31, 2005, In
conjunction with the PMI termination agreement, in June 2005 we incurred a loss of $7.7 million equal to
the cost of inventory transferred to PMI. Management does not expect to provide any transition services in
2006, as PMI has exercised its option to perform the services in-house beginning January 1, 2006.

During the transition period Enesco maintained inventories of PMI products on a consignment basis
and processed sales orders on PMI’s behalf. Enesco recorded the gross sale and cost of sale of PMI
products and, additionally, recorded a charge to cost of sales for the sale amounts to be remitted to PMI,
net of the amounts due from PMI for inventory purchases. Enesco also carned sales commissions and
service fees from PMI for product fulfillment, selling and marketing costs. At December 31, 2005, the net
amount owed PMI was $2.8 million.

Note 10. Reétructuring

In April 2005, the Lilliput Lane™ manufacturing facility in Workington, U.K. was closed and its
operations were consolidated into the Penrith, England manufacturing plant. The closure resulted in a
personnel reduction of 55 employees with a one-time cost of $0.9 million. The Workington plant was sold
in September 2005 for $0.8 million, an amount approximating its net book value less ordinary disposal
costs. .

On September 29, 2005, Enesco Limited announced its plan for an additional reduction in workforce
and recorded a severance charge of $0.6 million, which is included in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As part of our Operating Improvement Plan, Enesco contracted with National Distribution Centers
(NDC), a third-party logistics firm, to manage our primary U.S. warehousing and distribution operations.
NDC operates a leased facility in the Indianapolis metropolitan area, of which Enesco occupies
approximately 150,000 square feet. In late December 2005 we began moving inventory from our EGV
facility to NDC and in January 2006, NDC began shipping products to our customers. To account for the
costs associated with the transition, we recorded a restructuring charge of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter
of 2005. The EGV facility is scheduled to close in 2006. Employment levels at the EGV facility were
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reduced by 87 positions in January 2006 and an additional 87 positions are expected to be terminated in
2006 as business needs dictate.

The Operating Improvement Plan also includes the termination of leases at seven Enesco
U.S. showrooms. We have established a restructuring reserve of $0.6 million, which includes employee
severances, showroom lease termination costs and other expenses associated with the showroom closures.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Enesco Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Enesco Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2005. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial
statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule as it relates to the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 31, 2006
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ENESCO GROUP, INC. |

Quarterly Financial Information
For the Years 2005 and 2004 (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth information with respect to the consolidated quarterly results of
operations for 2005 and 2004. The amounts are unaudited, but, in the opinion of the management of
Enesco, include all adjustments necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the periods.
indicated.

Net revenues of $56.0 million in the fourth quarter 2005 decreased $13.7 million compared to $69.7
in the fourth quarter of 2004. Approximately $11.6 million of the decrease was attributable to a decline in
Precious Moments® revenues due to the termination of the U.S. license agreement during the second
quarter of 2005. The decline in gross margin of $5.8 million was largely the result of the revenue decrease.
Additionally, the gross margin percentage decreased to 29.6% from 32.0% in the fourth quarter of 2004.
The percentage decline was caused by increases in the slow-moving and excess inventory reserves, which
resulted from the additional discontinued inventories arising from the reduction in the number of product
lines pursuant to implementing strategies under our Operating Improvement Plan. Selling, general and
administrative expenses declined $4.8 million largely due to headcount reductions and other cost saving
initiatives implemented throughout the quarter. Operating income in the fourth quarter of 2005 was also
adversely effected by the Dartington goodwill write-off of $1.1 million, and severance and restructuring
provisions of $1.0 million; there were no similar changes to operating in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Operating profit (loss) in the fourth quarter of 2004 benefited from a $4.0 million gain on sale of a
building of $0.8 million compared to recognizing a deferred gain on sale of building of $0.8 million in the
fourth quarter of 2005. Also in the fourth quarter of 2004, Enesco recorded a non-cash income tax expense
of $18.6 million to establish a valuation allowance with respect to deferred tax assets and an additionai
non-cash income tax expense of $17.4 million to record a deferred tax liability with respect to unremitted
earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Additionally, Enesco recorded a $2.2 million increase to cost of sales for
excess and obsolete inventory.

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005

Net revenues. . ....ove e i, $ 60,084 § 49,159 $§79,221 $ 55970
Costofsales ...........coiiinnin., 37,481 30,180 46,824 39,450
Loss on license termination ................... — 7,713 — —
Grossprofit...........oiiiiiii 22,603 11,266 32,397 16,520
Selling, general and administrative expenses(2) .. 35,282 32,511 31,413 30,750
Operating profit (loss) ....................... $(12,679) $(21,245) § 984  $(14,230)
Netloss. ..o e $(15,216) $(22,036) $(2,115) $(14,658)
(Loss) per common share:(1)

Basic ......... .. $ (1.04) $ (1.50) $ (0.14) $ (0.99)

Diluted ........... i $ (1.04) $ (1.50) $§ (0.14) $ (0.99)
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For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec, 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
NELTEVENUES . o o v vovtot ettt et e e $52,323  $61,695 $85,291 § 69,658
Costofsales ........... ... .. 30,014 34,466 50,578 47,365
Grossprofit ...... ... ... i 22,309 27,229 34,713 22,293
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. .. ... 29,856 29,100 33,056 35,531
Sale of building (gain)......................... — — — (3,985)
* Operating profit (loss) ................ .. ...... $(7,547) $(1,871)y $ 1,657 % (9,253)
Net income (10SS) ... .oeeeeeeeeenenee., $(4,402) $(1,152) $ 1,039  $(40,673)
Earnings (loss) per common share: (1) - :

BasiC. . ..ot $ (0.31) $ (0.08) $ 007 $ (2.80)
Diluted........... .. ... ... .. ..... L $ (0.31) $ (0.08) § 0.07 $ (2.80)

(1)
(2)

The sum of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for 2005 and 2004 quarters does not equal the
full year amount due to rounding and the impact of changes in average shares outstanding.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include $428.thousand, $428 thousand, $428 thousand
and $815 thousand of amortization of deferred gain on sale of building for the quarters ended
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2005, respectively.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Schedule II. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Balance at Charged to  Charged to Balance at
Beginning of  Costs and Other | End of
Period Expenses Accounts(2) Deductions(1) Period

For the year ended December 31, 2003; |
Reserves for uncollectible accounts .......... $ 2,567,892 § 2,156,292 $ —  $1,977,243 § 2,746,941
Reserves for returns and allowances.......... $ 1,182,917 § — $3420902  $2,953,491 $ 1,650,328
Reserves for customer rebates(3) ............ $ 189,300 $ 17,200 $ — 3 — § 206,500
Reserve for restructuring ................... $ 494034 $ — — $ 172,234 $ 321,800
Reserve for discontinued operations .......... $ 212457 % — 3 — § 12315 $ 89,301
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.... $ — 3 — 3 — — 3 —
For the year ended December 31, 2004:
Reserves for uncollectible accounts .......... $ 2746941 $ 2,329074 § —  $1,743,779  $ 3,332,236
Reserves for returns and allowances.......... $ 1,650,328 § —  $2,604931  $1,754,739 $ 2,500,520
Reserves for customer rebates............... $ 206,500 $ — § 485353 $ 59,430 $§ 632,423
Reserve for restructuring ................... $ 321,800 $ - S —  $(321,800) $ —
Reserve for discontinued operations .......... $ 89301 $ — — § (7,150 § 82,151
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.... § — $18,640,000 $ —  § —  $18,640,000
For the year ended December 31, 2005:
Reserves for uncollectible accounts .......... $ 3,332,236 § 4,182412 § —  $2,797882 $ 4,716,766
Reserves for returns and allowances .. ........ $ 2,500,520 § — $2,327939  $1,764,809 § 3,063,650
Reserves for customer rebates............... $ 632423 § — § 649,355 § 313,278 § 968,500
Reserve for restructuring ................... $ — $§ 647,650 § —  $ — § 647,650
Reserve for discontinued operations .......... $ 82151 $ — 3 — § 26478 § 55,673

$ —  § —  $47,073,650

Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.... $18,640,000 $28,433,650

(1) Deductions reported for reserves for uncollectible accounts represent the actual write-off of customer
accounts in part or full, deductions for reserves for returns and allowances represent actual customer
allowances, and deductions for reserves for downsizing corporate headquarters, restructuring, and
discontinued operations represent actual payments made relating to these activities.

(2) Charged to other accounts reported for reserves for returns and allowances and for reserves for
customer rebates represent additions to the reserves charged to revenue.

(3) Data is not provided separately for additions and deductions columns of reserves for customer rebates

as the amounts are immaterial.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC,

Five-Year Financial Highlights

For the Years 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001

The financial data set forth below should be read in connection with the financial statements,
accompanying notes and management’s discussion and analysis on the preceding pages.

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Netrevenues ..o i e $244,434  $268,967  $256,426  $262,330  $275,294
Costofsales. ... i e 153,935 162,423 140,714 151,264 167,358
Loss on license termination ........... ... .. o iiitiiin... 7,713 — — — —
Gross profit . ... .. $ 82786 $106,544  $115,712 $111,066 $107,936
Selling, general and administrative expenses .............:.... 129,956 127,543 100,811 98,369 116,456
Gainonsaleof building ............ ... ... ... L — (3,985) — — —
Amortization of goodwill ... ... ... — — — — 1,950
Operating profit (1088) ... .....ourunnn e, (47,170)  (17,014) 14,901 12,697  (10,470)
Interest eXpense. . . ... vt (2,260) (1,148) (787) (747) (1,523)
Interest income ........... P 201 404 537 286 371
Other expense, Net ... ..ottt (449) (75) (319) (460) (420)
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of a

change in accounting principle. .. .......... .. ... .. ... . (49,678)  (17,833) 14,332 11,776 (12,042)
Income tax (expense) benefit ................ ... .. ... ..., (4,347)  (27,355) 2,950 8,897 13,153
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle ... "(54,025)  (45,188) 17,282 20,673 L
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of ‘

ICOME TAXES . .ottt ittt et e e — — — (29,031) —
Netincome (1088) .. ..o vii i $(54,025) $(45,188) $ 17,282 §$ (8,358) $ 1,111
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:

Basic:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ......... ... .. $ (367) $§ (316) § 123 § 149 $ 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of
INCOMIE TAXES .. oottt ettt et e e eneis $ — 3 — 3 — § (209 § —
Net income (losS) .. ...t e $ (367) $ (3l1l6) $ 123 § (0.60) $ 008
Diluted: '
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ...... U P $ (367) $ (316) $ 120 $ 147 § 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of* ‘
INCOME tAXES .« ..ot vtre ettt e PR $ —~ 3 — 3 — % (209 3 —

Net income (10S8) .. ..ot $ (367) $ (316) $ 120 $ (060) $ 0.08
Average shares of common stock:

Basic ... e 14,739 14,309 14,028 13,854 13,708

Diluted . ... ... e 14,747 14,821 14,444 14,110 13,836
Shares of common stock outstanding at yearend .............. 14,920 14,557 14,164 13,909 13,769
Market value per common share at yearend.................. $ 184 $ 808 $ 1032 § 7.08 §$ 630
Cash dividends declared .. ................coiiiiinin.. $ — 3 — 8 — 3 — 3 —
Dividends declared per common share .. ..................... $ —  $ — 3 — 8 — 8 —
Capital expenditires ... ..........covvuiieiieieainn.. $ 2,348 § 4,552 $ 5918 $ 4,284 § 2729
Depreciation and amortization. . .............. ... .o, $ 7,768 § 7,111 $§ 5236 $ 5014 $ 5071
Working capital .. ... ... .o $ 24032 $ 79,995 $ 94351 % 76,099 $ 54,389
Total @SSeIS .. ...\ttt $130,191  $193,883  $202,468 $179,785  $219,551
Total long-term liabilities . .............. .. .. ... ... ... ... $ 1,281 $ 9838 $§ 3551 § 3,795 § 8938
Shareholder’s equity .. ... ... ..ot $ 52,826 $109,267 $147,239  $121913  $126,377
Book value per common share. ........... ... ... ... . ... .. $ 3354 § 751 $ 1040 § 876 $§ 918
Return on average shareholders’ equity ...................... (67)% 35% 13% (M % 1%

Footnotes are provided on the Selected Financial Data schedule of this report.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There were no changes or disagreements with accountants on accounting or financial disclosure during
the last two fiscal years.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e)) as of December 31, 2005. Our disclosure
controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company
in the reports filed by Enesco under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Enesco’s management,
including its Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer concluded that the Enesco’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
December 31, 2005.

(b) There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2005, that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

On December 6, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the accelerated vesting of options to acquire
608,658 shares of common stock held by employees and non-employee directors that would have otherwise
vested over the next four years. In connection with the acceleration, all holders of accelerated options are
restricted from selling shares acquired through the exercise of an accelerated option (other than shares
needed to cover the exercise price and satisfy income tax withholding obligations) prior to the earlier of
the date on which the exercise would have been permitted under the original vesting terms of the options
or, if earlier, the participant’s last day of employment. All options that were accelerated as of December 6,
2005 had exercise prices in excess of the market price of our common stock on that date. The primary
purpose of the acceleration of vesting of these options was to eliminate the future compensation expense
that we would have otherwise been required to recognize in our consoiidated statement of operations with
respect to these options once the revised FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, became effective for reporting periods beginning in January 2006. As a result of the
acceleration, we expect to avoid recognition of approximately $1.9 million of compensation expense over
the course of the original vesting period of these options.

PART IT

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information required by this item regarding the directors of Enesco is set forth under the captions
“Proposal 1: Election of Directors” and “Information as to Board of Directors and Nominees™ and for the
executive officers of Enesco, under the caption “Executive Officers”, included in Enesco’s Proxy
Statement which is incorporated herein by reference.

Information required by this item regarding reporting compliance is included under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference. Enesco will file its Proxy Statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the 2005 fiscal year end covered by this Report.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this item is set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Human
Resource and Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation,” “Performance Graph,”
“Compensation of Directors” and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in
Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.° Security Ownership Of Certain Beneﬁcial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is set forth under the caption
“Executive Compensation” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Information required by this item regarding security ownership of management is set forth under the
caption “Our Largest Shareholders” and “Shares Held by Our Directors and Executive Officers” in
Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements and Schedules. The financial statements and schedules
required by this Item are listed in the Index to Financial Statements and Schedules of Enesco Group, Inc.
in this Form 10-K.

(a)(3) Exhibits. The exhibits required by this Item are listed in the Exhibit Index of this
Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on the 31st day of March 2006.

ENESCO GROUP, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Cynthia Passmore

Cynthia Passmore
_ President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below on the 31st day of March, 2006 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities indicated. '

Signature Title

/s/ Cynthia Passmore Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Cynthia Passmore ‘ ‘

/s/ Anthony G. Testolin Chief Accounting Officer and Principal Financial Officer

Anthony G. Testolin

/s/ Anne-Lee Verville ’ Chairman of the Board, Director
Anne-Lee Verville

/s/ Richard W. Blackburn : * Director
Richard W. Blackburn

/s/ _Donna Brooks Lucas Director
Donna Brooks Lucas

/s/ Leonard A. Campanaro Director
Leonard A. Campanaro

/s/ George R. Ditomassi Director
George R. Ditomassi

/s/ Judith R. Haberkorn Director
Judith R. Haberkorn

/s/ Thane A. Pressman . ~ Director
Thane A. Pressman
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Item 601

2(a)*

3(a)*

3(b)*

4(a)*

10(a)*

10(b)*

10(c)*

10(d)*
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10(H)*
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10(h)*

10(i)*

10()*

10(k)*

10(1)*

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of November 24, 1997 by and between
Stanhome Inc. and Laboratoires De Biologie Vegetale Yves Rocher. (Exhibit 2.1 to
Form 8-K filed on December 31, 1997 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Articles of Incorporation as amended. (Exhibit 3(a) to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004
in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

By-Laws. (Exhibit 3(b) to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004 in Commission File
no. 0-1349.)

Renewed Rights Agreement dated as of July 22, 1998 between Enesco Group, Inc. and
Mellon Investor Services L.L.C. (Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed on July 23, 1998 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.)

1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated through December 4, 1996. (Exhibit 10
(b) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1996 in Commission File
No. 0-1349.)

Special Interim Chief Executive Officer Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-K
filed for the period ended December 31, 1993 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 filed on
May 21, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10(f) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended
December 31, 1998 in Commission File No, 0-1349.)

Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. (Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q filed for the period ended
March 31, 1995 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. (Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8
filed on May 21, 2004 in period ended March 31, 1995 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Form of Change in Control Agreement. (Exhibit 19(c) to Form 10-K filed for the period
ended December 31, 1992 in Commission File No. 0-1349.) A substantially identical
agreement exists with Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin.

Form of Change in Control Agreement with certain executive officers and non-executive
officers (Exhibit 19(c) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1991 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.) Substantially identical agreements exist with M. Frances
Durden, Josette V. Goldberg, Paula E. Manley, Jeffrey S. Smith and Charles E. Sanders.

Enesco Group, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and restated, effective
January 1, 2005. (Exhibit 10(i) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 2004
in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Seventh Amendment and Termination Agreement dated May 17, 2005 between Precious
Moments, Incorporated and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 18,
2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Seventh Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
dated May 16, 2005 by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle
Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2005 in Commission File

No. 0-1349).

Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of July 7, 2005, by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and
LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2005 in Commission File No.
001-09267).
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Exhibit

. Letter Amendment to Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving

Credit Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank N.A.
{Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on July 28, 2005 in Commission File No.

Complaint filed against Department 56, Inc., Sunshine Productions, Inc., Kevin Knowles and
Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the United States District Court, Northern District of Illinois,
Eastern Division dated as of July 29, 2005. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2005
in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Amended complaint, dated August 15, 2005, filed against Department 56, Inc., Sunshine
Productions, Inc., Kevin Knowles and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the United States District
Court, Northern Dlstrlct of Illinois, Eastern Division. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8 K filed on
August 16, 2005 in Commission File No. 001-09267). . :

Memorandum in Support of Motion for Preliminary Injunction as to Department 56, dated
August 15, 2005, filed against Department 56, Inc., Sunshine Productions, Inc., Kevin
Knowles and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the United States District Court, Northern District
of Illinois, Eastern Division. (Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8-K filed on August 16, 2005 in
Commission File No. 001-09267).

License Agreemcnt between Jim Shore Des1gns Inc. and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10 to
Form 8-K filed on October 5, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement dated June 16, 2003 by
and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1
to Form 8-K filed on June 19, 2003 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement by

. and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A: (Exhibit 10(r)

to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A.
(Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on August 11, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement by
and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1
to Form 10-Q filed on November 8, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Fourth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A.
(Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on November 24, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between Enesco Group,
Inc. and Fleet National Bank, as Agent (Exhibit 10.2 to Form &-K filed on November 24,
2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement by
and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1
to Form 8-K filed January 31, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

ROA Incentive Program 2004. (Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2004).

Cynthia Passmore- McLaughhn Employment Agreement (Exhibit 10 to Form 8 K ﬁlcd on
September 16, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Enesco Group, Inc. 2005 Bonus Plan. (Exhibit 10(aa) to Form 10-K filed for the period
ended December 31, 2004 in Commission File No. 1349). '

Enesco Group, Inc. Senior Leadership Bonus Program 2005. (Exhibit 10(bb) to Form 10-K
filed for the period ended December 31, 2004 in Commission File No. 1349).
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Agreement to Purchase Industrial Building between Enesco Group, Inc. and CenterPoint
Properties Trust dated December 10, 2004. (Exhibit 99 to Form 8-K filed on December 13,
2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349),

Letter Amendment to Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank N.A.
(Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Sixth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement among
Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K
ﬁled on March 29, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Ninth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Re'volving Credit Agreement
dated as of August 31, 2005, by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and

" LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2005 in Commission

Flle No. 001-09267).

Letter Amendment to Ninth. Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving
Credit Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Bank of America, N.A. (formerly known as
“Fleet National Bank’™) and LaSalle Bank N. A dated as of September 29, 2005.

{Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2005 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Agreement dated as of November 18, 2005 between National Distribution Centers, L.P. and
Enesco Group, Inc., (Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8- K filed on November 23, 2005 in Commission
File No. 001 09267)

Tenth amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement,
dated as of December 21, 2005, by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and
LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2005 in Commmission
File No. 001-09267).

First Amendment to the Executive Employment Agreement between Enesco Group, Inc.,
and Cynthia Passmore, dated January 16, 2006 (Exhibit 99.1 to Form §-K filed on
January 17, 2006 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Form of Change in Control Agreement. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2006
in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Settlement Agreement dated January 30, 2006 which includes as Exhibit A the Strategic
Alliance Agreements, dated January 30, 2006 and effective November 23, 2005, between
Enesco Group, Inc. and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on
January 30, 2006 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Enesco Group, Inc. Standards of Business Conduct and Ethics 2006: Adopted February 10,

© 2006. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2006 in Commission File No. 001-

09267).

 99.1 Modification of Strategic Alliance Agreement (0206-1) with Jim Shore Designs, Inc.,

dated March 22, 2006. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2006 in Commission
File No. 001-09267).

Modification of Strategic Alliance Agreement (0206-2) with Jim Shore Designs, Inc., dated
March 22, 2006.

Modification of Strategic Alliance Agreement (0206-4) with Jim Shore Designs, Inc., dated
March 22, 2006. {Exhibit 99.3 to Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2006 in Commission File
No. 001-09267).

1999 Non-Employee Director Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of Non-
Qualified Stock Options
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1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of Non-
Qualified Stock Options

1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of
Restricted Stock for Achievement Award Winners

1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certlﬁcatc of Grant of
Restricted Stock for New Employees

Subsidiaries of Enesco Group, Inc.
Consent of Independent Registered Pubhc Accountmg Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer. pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002. , ‘

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Statement of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated By Reference




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Enesco Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements No. 33-42974, No. 333-
68289, No. 333-75345, No. 333-91312, No. 333-91318, No. 333-105062, No. 333-105063, No. 333-
108798, No. 333-108799, No. 333-115730, and No. 333-115731 of Enesco Group, Inc. of our report dated
March 31, 2006, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2005, and the related financial statement schedule, as it relates to the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, which report appears in the December 31, 2005 annual report on
Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 31, 2006




Exhibit 31.1

Certification under Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I,-Cynthia Passmore, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my khoWledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other ccrtifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢e) and 15d-15(e) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
contrel over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Cynthia Passmore

Cynthia Passmore
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 31, 2006




Exhibit 31.2

Certification under Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) or-15d-14(a)
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Anthony G. Testolin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; ’

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; '

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for the
registrant and have: o

_a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  Anthony G. Testolin

Anthony G. Testolin
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

March 31, 2006




Exhibit 32

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. (the “Company”) for
the annual period ended December 31, 2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Cynthia Passmore, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and Anthony G. Testolin, the Chief Accounting Officer and principal financial officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section [3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

March 31, 2006

/s/ Cynthia Passmore

Cynthia Passmore
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Anthony G. Testolin

Anthony G. Testolin
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Forward-Looking Statements

This report and other written reports and oral statements made from time to time by Enesco Group,
Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Enesco”, “we” or “our”) and its management may contain cautionary or
“forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

These statements can be identified by the use of such words as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe” and other words of similar meaning, but these words are not the
exclusive means of identifying such statements. In particular, these include statements relating to
intentions, beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, future performance, results of
operations, and the outcome of contingencies, such as legal proceedings and financial condition. Forward-
looking statements give current expectations or forecasts of future events. They do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts.

Any or all of the forward-looking statements made in this report and in any other public statements
may turn out to be incorrect. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties
because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. We
caution you that actual future results of operations may vary materially from forward-looking statements.
Accordingly, you should not rely on forward-looking statements as a prediction of actual future results.
Any forward-looking statement made in this report speaks only as of the date of such statement. We
operate in a continually changing business environment and undertake no obligation to update any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be
required under applicable securities laws. However, you should consult any further disclosures we make on
related subjects in Forms 10-Q, 8-K, 10-K or other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

It is not possible to predict or identify all factors that potentially could cause actual results to differ
materially and adversely from expected and historical results. Such factors include, but are not limited to:

Operating Improvement Plan

= Ability to implement Enesco’s comprehensive plan for operating improvement and to achieve its
goals for cost savings and market share increases.

< Ability to comply with the covenants in the existing U.S. credit facility and to enter into and
comply with the covenants in new credit facilities to finance operational requirements at
competitive costs and interest rates.

Business Environment

¢ Day-to-day effects of current economic conditions and market fluctuations. This includes
contributing factors, such as inflation, interest and foreign currency rate changes, which may create
a positive or negative impact on operations.

+ Consumer interest in products is seasonal and may vary based on current market demand
fluctuations and time of year.

« Effects of terrorist activity, armed conflict and epidemics, possibly causing a business disruption in
global economic activity, and changes in logistics and security arrangements. This is particularly
significant with respect to our heavy reliance on external manufacturing facilities located in China.

» Competitive activities, particularly those of our main competitors, which can significantly influence
giftware prices and preduct demand.

+ The level of success of our new product introductions and those of our competitors will impact our
competitive position.




+ Ability to maintain strategic alliance agreements, particularly with Jim Shore Designs, Inc., in the
event Enesco experiences a change in control, including, but not limited to, a change in the
President/CEO of Enesco.

Sales Environment

* Ability to secure, maintain and renew licenses and contracts, particularly Jim Shore Designs, Inc.,
Disney and Priscilla Hillman (Cherished Teddies®), which are our top performers and make up
approximately 30% of associated product line revenues.

» Changes in the geographical mix of revenue for the U.S. and international, which will impact gross
margin.

+ Ability to grow revenue in mass and niche market channels.
» Mass retailers’ attempts at direct sourcing and determining the right product designs.

» Sales and profitability, which can be affected by changes over time in consumer preferences from
one type of product to another. This may create a shift in demand from products with higher
margins to those with lower margins or to products we do not sell.

» Success in implementing new credit standards and a new credit scoring system, and continuing to
improve days sales outstanding.

Production, Procurement and Distribution

= Ability to implement and execute supply chain distribution improvements and cost savings with a
third-party logistics company using a new computer system.

» Timing of customer orders, shipments to the U.S. from suppliers in China and other developing
countries, and the ability to forecast and meet customer demands for products in a timely and cost-
effective manner.

+ Ability to understand metrics to track and effectively manage manufacturing and supply chain lead
times, which cause fluctuations in inventory levels and order fulfillment timeliness.

+ Changes in customs regulations, tariffs, freight and political climate, which can adversely affect
results of operations.

» Availability to source products due to changes in conditions that impact suppliers including
environmental conditions, laws and regulations, litigation involving suppliers, transportation
disruptions, force majeure events and/or business decisions made by suppliers, which could have an
adverse impact on operating results,

Legal and Other
» Risk of trademark and license infringements, and our ability to effectively enforce our rights.
+ Ability to comply with the continued listing standards of the NYSE.

» The actual events, circumstances, outcomes and amounts differing from judgments, assumptions
and estimates used in determining the value of certain assets (including the amounts of related
allowances), liabilities, claims and tax assessments of undetermined merit and amount asserted
against us for various legal matters and other items reflected in our Consolidated Financial
Statements.




PART 1

Item 1. Business.

General

Enesco Group, Inc. (*“Enesco.” “we” or “our”) was organized in 1937 and is incorporated in Illinois.
Our principal executive offices are located at 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Hlinois 60143.

We operate in a single industry segment, which designs, manufactures and markets a variety of
licensed and proprietary branded giftware and home and garden décor products to retailers in the U.S.,
Canada and Europe.

Enesco conducts business through its subsidiaries and affiliated corporations. Qur subsidiaries are
wholly owned (including their jurisdiction of incorporation) and, as of December 31, 2005, include: Enesco
Limited (England), Enesco France S.A. (France), Enesco International Ltd. (Delaware), Enesco
International (H.K.) Limited (Hong Kong), N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited (Canada), Enesco Holdings
Limited (England), Stanley Home Produtos De Limpeza Ltda. (Brazil), and Gregg Manufacturing, Inc.
(California). All subsidiaries currently are active, except for Stanley Home Produtos De Limpeza Ltda.

Business Developments

In January 2006, Enesco entered into a new strategic alliance agreement with Jim Shore Designs, Inc.
Under this agreement, Jim Shore Designs reaffirms and strengthens its commitment to Enesco, which,
among other things, continues the relationship between Enesco and Jim Shore Designs three years from
the effective date, November 23, 2005, through November 22, 2008, and through November 22, 2011
unless either party chooses not to renew. The strategic alliance agreement focuses on key gift and seasonal
categories that have been very successful for Enesco and Jim Shore Designs.

Near the end of the fourth quarter of 2005, Enesco began transitioning distribution and warehousing
operations from our Elk Grove Village, Illinois (EGV) facility to a third-party logistics company which it
belicves will be a more cost-efficient approach in our supply chain. In November 2005, we signed a new
five-year commitment with National Distribution Centers (NDC), an affiliate of NFI Industries, to
provide warchousing and distribution services for our primary U.S. operations. NDC is operating a leased
facility in the Indianapolis metropolitan area. of which Enesco occupies approximately 150.000 square feet.
To account for the costs associated with this transition, we recorded a restructuring charge for severance
costs of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter 2005. As the transition continues into 2006, we expect additional
transition costs of approximately $0.5 million to be incurred in the first half of 2006. The EGV facility is
scheduled to close in 2006. Employment levels at this facility were reduced by 87 positions in January
2006 and an additional 87 positions will be terminated in 2006 as business needs dictate.

In September 2005, Enesco announced a comprehensive plan to improve our operating performance
and establish a platform for gaining an increased share of the wholesale gift market in the U.S., Canada
and Europe (the “Operating Improvement Plan™). This operating model will target gross margins in the
range of 40% to 45% and an operating profit margin of 3% to 5% to be achieved in 2007. The Operating
Improvement Plan centers around three key initiatives: rationalizing the product portfolio; reducing
corporate overhead, general and administrative and marketing costs; and creating a more efficient and cost-
effective distribution and warehousing model. As a result of the Operating Improvement Plan, which began
in the fourth quarter of 2005 and will continue throughout 2006, we anticipate achieving pre-tax cost
savings on an annualized basis in the range of $34 million to $38 million, anticipated to be fully realized in
2007. These cost savings include approximately $13 million in expenses that have been incurred for the
termination of the PMI license agreement, bank penalty fees and accelerated depreciation related to the
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system.

Enesco received notification from the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in September 2005 that it
was not in compliance with the continued listing standards of the exchange. The NYSE considers Enesco
“below criteria” because our market capitalization was less than $75 million over a consecutive 30-trading-
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day period and shareholders’ equity was less than $75 million. On October 14, 2005, Enesco submitted a
plan to the NYSE, demonstrating how it intends to comply with the NYSE’s continued listing standards
within 18 months of receipt of their notice. On December 3, 2005, the NYSE accepted Enesco's plan.
Enesco common stock continues to be listed on the NYSE, subject to quarterly reviews by the NYSE
Listings and Compliance Committee to ensure progress against our plan.

During the second quarter of 2005, we terminated our license agreement, effective July 1, 2005 with
Precious Moments, Inc. (PM1) to sell Precious Moments® licensed products. On July 1, 2005, we began
operating under an agreement to provide PMI with transitional services related to its licensed inventory
through December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2005, however, PMI exercised its option to bring these
services in-house. The termination of the PMI license agreement had a negative impact on sales and
operating profit in 2005, but is expected to have a positive impact on earnings and cash flows in 2006 and
2007, due to the elimination of the $15.0 million annual minimum royalty payment. The net savings in
2005 on royalty costs is $11.0 million due to the reduction of the $15.0 million annual minimum royalty to
$4.0 million. The total net inventory transferred to PMI under this agreement was $7.7 million, which did
not include inventory owned by our wholly owned subsidiary, N.C. Cameron & Sons. Under a separate
agreement, N.C. Cameron & Sons agreed to continue to distribute Precious Moments® product in Canada.
N.C. Cameron & Sons’ revenues from the sale of Precious Moments® products totaled $3.0 million and
$2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In April 2005, the Lillipur Lane™ manufacturing facility in Workington, U.K. was closed, and its
operations were consolidated into the Penrith, England manufacturing plant. The closure resulted in a
headcount reduction of 55 employees, with a one-time cost of $0.9 million and expected annualized
savings of $1.5 million. The Workington plant was sold in September 2005 for $0.8 million, an amount
approximating its net book value less ordinary disposal costs.

In July 2004, Enesco Limited acquired certain assets of Dartington Crystal Limited (Dartington) for
$7.0 million. Total goodwill recorded on this acquisition was $1.2 million. Based in the U.K., Dartington is
a designer and manufacturer of a fufl range of uncut crystal products, such as glassware, bowls, vases,
candleholders and giftware. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we performed our first annual impairment
analysis on the Dartington goodwill, and conciuded that impairment existed at December 31, 2005. A
complete write-off of the Dartington goodwill balance as of November 30, 2005 of $1.1 million was
recorded in the fourth quarter ending December 31, 2005. In the fourth quarter of 2005, following a review
of our product strategy, a decision was made that glassware is not a strategic fit for Enesco. We therefore
began io actively market the sale of the Dartington operation at that time.

In February 2004, we acquired Gregg Gift Manufacturing, Inc. (Gregg Gift) for $7.3 million. The
total goodwill recorded for this acquisition was $5.3 million. Based in the U.S., Gregg Gift is a supplier
and distributor of inspirational giftware, including book covers, organizers, tote bags, and garden and home
décor accessories. During the fourth quarter of 2005. we began to integrate Gregg Gift’s marketing and
brand management into Enesco’s inspirational merchandise category.

Bilston & Battersea Enamels, plc (B&B). a manufacturer and distributor of giftware, home
accessories and related products, including high quality, hand-decorated enamels and sculptural boxes sold
under certain Halcyon Days® brands, was acquired by Enesco in April 2003. Enesco paid approximately
$4.4 million in cash ($3.7 million net of acquired cash), which resulted in $2.9 million of recorded
goodwill related to the purchase. In 2004 and in early 2005, certain administrative functions of B&B were
integrated into Enesco Limited, resulting in annualized savings of approximately $0.7 million in 2003.

Additional information on the above general business development matters is set forth in the sections
entitied “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” of this Form 10-K.




Description of Business

Enesco is a world leader in the design, manufacturing and marketing of licensed and proprietary
branded giftware, and home and garden décor products to a variety of specialty gift, home décor, mass-
market and direct mail retailers. We primarily serve markets in the U.S., Canada and Europe.

Enesco’s product lines include some of the world’s most recognizable brands, including Brarz™,
Border Fine Arts™, Cherished Teddies®, Halcyon Days®, Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore, Lillipus
Lane™, Nickelodeon®, Pooh & Friends®, Walt Disney Classics Collections® and Disney®, among others.

Products include diverse lines of accent furniture, wall décor, garden accessories, frames, desk
accessories, figurines, cottages, musicals, music boxes, ornaments, waterballs, candles, tableware, general
home accessories and resin figures.

Products

Enesco’s giftware, and home and garden décor products fall under three main categories:

» Proprietary Designs

Enesco offers a line of proprietary branded products that are designed by Enesco’s in-house creative
group and certain contracted third-party artists. Our proprietary designs product lines in 2005

included:

 Blooming Wild™ e Dartington Crystal® o Growing Up Birthday Giris®
o Border Fine Arts™ o Foundations® « Lilliput Lane™ )
« Circle of Love™ » Gregg Gifi™

« Licensed Brands

Enesco obtains brand name licenses to develop product formats that primarily are sold to mass-market
and specialty gift retailers in the U.S. Our licensed product lines in 2005 included:

* Braiz™ » Halcyon Days® « Pooh & Friends®

» Cherished Teddies® » Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore » Precious Moments®

« Children of the Inner Light® « My Little Kitchen Fairies™ * Rudolph the Red-Nosed Reindeer®
« John Deere® * Marvel® » Walt Disney Classics Collection®

+ Disney® * NASCAR®

« Mary Engelbreit™ s Nickelodeon®

« Third-Party Distribution

Enesco has third-party distribution agreements that allow us to sell other manufacturers’ product lines
in our core channels of distribution. These strategic alliances expand the breadth of our product
offerings, while minimizing product development costs. In 2005, we had third-party distribution
agreements with the following:

» About Face Designs « Demdaco « Lenox

* Artline « Franz Porcelain * Publications International

Our product lines consist of approximately 23,000 stock-keeping units (SKUs) worldwide, including
approximately 4,000 sold in the U.S. Each year, Enesco undertakes a comprehensive review of all products

being sold and developed. Using an analysis based on profitability and management judgment, Enesco
discontinues certain SKUSs from its product lines where the potential for consumer demand is low.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, as part of our Operating Improvement Plan, we initiated a
rationalization of our U.S. product portfolio and found that as our product lines have proliferated, certain
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unproductive product lines remained. By the end of 2005, we reduced the number of overall product lines
in the U.S. by more than 70%, from 170 to approximately 50, retaining only those lines that met our
minimum sales threshold and margin criteria. As a result, we plan to close out the discontinued products
throughout 2006 and reduce our inventory levels by approximately $11 million in 2006.

Our continuing product lines are giftable items within four merchandise categories; decorative gift,
inspirational, brand enthusiast and occasion-based. We believe that these merchandise categories elicit
strong and sustainable market demand and profitability, and leverage our core distribution base. The top
10 product lines in 2005 by merchandise category include: Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and My Linle
Kitchen Fairies™ in the decorative gift merchandise category: Foundations® and Gregg Gifi™ in the
inspirational category; Disney, Cherished Teddies® and Rudolph the Red-Nosed Reindeer® in the brand
enthusiast category; and Circle of Love™, Growing Up Birthday Girls® and Children of the Inner Light® in
the occasion-based merchandise category. These continuing product lines, in total, represent approximately
80% of our U.S. net sales in 2005, excluding Precious Moments® product sales.

Significant Products

Our most popular product line is Heartwood Creek™ by Jint Shore. This line accounted for
approximately $39.6 million, or 16% of our consolidated net revenues in 2005, compared to $35.6 million,
or 13% in 2004. This is the fourth consecutive year of increased revenues from this product line. Precious
Moments® product revenues accounted for approximately $32.5 million, or $3% of 2005 consolidated net
revenues compared to $55.7 million, or 21% in 2004. Of the $23.2 million decrease in Precious Moments®
product revenues in 20035, $6.3 million occurred in the six months ended June 30, 2005, as compared to
revenues for the first six months of 2004. The remaining decrease of $16.9 million, which occurred over
the last six months in 20083, resulted from our termination of the PMI license agreement effective June 30,
2005. (See Note 11 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements’” of this Form 10-K.)

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and Precious Moments® product lines accounted for 10% or more of
our consolidated net revenue in 2003, 2004 and 2003, as shown below:

2005 2004 2003

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore. . .. ... ... . 16% 13% 5%
Precious Moments® .. ... . . . 13% 2% 32%

No other product lines or brands accounted for more than 10% of consolidated net revenue in the last
three years.

Principal Markets

Enesco has a presence and competes in three major geographical markets that include the U.S.,
Canada and Europe (primarily the U.K., France and Germany). The U.S. market accounted for
approximately 53% of our consolidated net revenues in 2005 while Europe accounted for 32%, Canada for
11% and various other countries for 2%. Management expects this geographic mix to remain at these
approximate proportions in 2006.

Product Sourcing

Enesco’s product lines are manufactured by independent vendors in the Far East and in the
Philippines, Indonesia, Thailand and Europe. Enesco International (H.K.) Limited in Hong Kong provides
the overall management of the sourcing and production from our manufacturers in the Far East. Enesco
Limited's U.K. manufacturing plants supply in part the Lilliput Lane™, Border Fine Arts™, Halcyon
Days® and Dartington product lines. During 2003, we closed our Lilliput Lane™ Workington facility in the
U.K. and consolidated its operations into our Penrith plant. The Workington plant was then sold in
September 2005.




The majority of Enesco products are manufactured through third-party vendors in Asia and have
suggested retail prices ranging between $5 and $500. During 2005, Enesco’s purchases from its three
largest contract manufacturers accounted for approximately 15%, 11% and 9%, respectively, of its total
purchases. During 2003, approximately 70% of Enesco’s total product purchases came from manufacturing
sources located in the People’s Republic of China, which enjoys most-favored nation trade status with the
U.S. Other U.S. products primarily are purchased from Taiwan, Thailand, Germany and Japan, none of
which provide more than 10% of our purchase requirements.

Our ability to import products and thereby satisfy customer orders is affected by the availability of,
and demand for, quality production capacity abroad. Enesco competes with other importers of specialty
giftware products for the limited number of foreign manufacturing sources that can produce detailed, high-
quality products at affordable prices. Foreign manufacturing and procurement of imports is subject to the
following inherent risks: Iabor, economic and political instability; cost and capacity fluctuations and delays
in transportation, dockage and materials handling; restrictive actions by governments; nationalizations; the
laws and policies of the U.S. affecting importation of goods (including duties, quotas and taxes); foreign
currency fluctuations, and tax laws. Moreover, we cannot predict what relevant political, legal or regulatory
changes may occur, or the type or amount of any financial impact on Enesco such changes may have in
the fature.

Enesco is dependent upon its ability to continue to conduct business with vendors located in China,
which is subject to political uncertainties, the financial impact of which we are unable to estimate. To the
extent China may have its exports or transaction of business with U.S. persons subject to political
retaliation, the cost of imports from China could increase significantly and/or the ability to import goods
may be impaired materially. In such an event, there could be a material adverse effect on Enesco until
alternative arrangements for the manufacture of our products are obtained on economic, production and
operational terms at least as favorable as those currently in effect.

Our Vendor Certification Program requires all manufacturing sources, whether affiliates or contract
manufacturers, to agree to, and comply with, quality compliance and labor standards established and
enforced by Enesco and certain of its licensors.

Enesco is certified by the Office of U.S. Customs and Border Protection as a member of the Customs
Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (CTPAT). The Department of Homeland Security instituted
CTPAT as a means to identify low risk importers and allow the free flow of goods even under heightened
security conditions. Enesco’s certification is strategically important since it may reduce the risk of
significant delays in the importation of our products. Also, our certification will permit us to become, or
continue to be, a vendor for certain U.S. customers who require CTPAT certification as a condition to
conducting business.

Marketing and Sales

Enesco markets its product lines primarily through retail promotions, tradeshows, and private shows
held in major U.S. and foreign cities, as well as through catalogs, collector clubs, trade advertising and the
Enesco website. In 2005, our primary marketing focus was brand building for Enesco’s proprietary product
lines, such as Foundations® and Gregg Gift™, and for Enesco’s licensed brands, such as Heartwood
Creek™ by Jim Shore and Disney related licenses. Each of these product lines experienced revenue growth
in 2005 compared to 2004 as shown in the chart below: ~

($ in millions) 2005 2004 % Increase
Foundations® .. ... . .. . . . . . . $ 56 §$ 48 17%
Gregg Gift™™ .o 7.6 7.2 6%
Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore .. ..................cc...... 39.6 35.6 11%
Disney related licenses ...... .. .. oo i 20.6 194 6%




Our product lines are displayed in our leased showrooms located in the U.S., Canada, England,
France and Hong Kong. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we implemented a consolidation strategy for all
of our non-essential U.S. showroom locations. This strategy focuses on growing the major market
showrooms in Atlanta, Dallas and Los Angeles on a year-round basis. As a result of this consolidation, we
negotiated lease buyouts with the landlords of the remaining showrooms that we do not want to occupy on
a year round basis. The impact of terminating these showroom leases resulted in a restructuring charge of
approximately $0.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2005. The showroom consolidation strategy is expected
to result in annual savings of approximately $2.0 miliion.

Our collectible brand enthusiast product lines are primarily marketed through collector club programs
where, for a non-refundable annual fee, consumers may subscribe for exclusive product offerings and
newsletters as a member of one of our collector clubs. New items and limited edition pieces are introduced
annually to consumers. Every year, a number of existing pieces are retired from these collectible lines to
allow for new introductions and to keep each line balanced based on consumer demand. As of
December 31, 2005, Enesco had approximately 108,000 active members in its clubs, an 18% decrease from
2004 membership levels, excluding the impact of the July 1, 2005 transfer of Precious Momenis® collector
club memberships to PMI as part of our license termination agreement. We believe that the overall
reduction in collector club memberships is due to the declining market interest in, and demand for,
collectible products.

During the first quarter of 2005, Enesco restructured its U.S. marketing and sales organization areas
to enhance the effectiveness of these critical functions and to organize its sales personnel based on whether
their customers utilize centralized buying (headquarters-based buying) versus buying on an individual
retail outlet basis. As a result, we consolidated our former multiple channel marketing structure into one
simplified and focused marketing organization. We organized our sales function under two umbrellas: field
sales and headquarters sales. Our field sales group focuses on independent store buying and is comprised of
approximately 100 field account executives based throughout the U.S and approximately 15 inside sales
account executives who work with their field counterparts. Our headquarters sales group utilizes a team of
national account executives and customer service specialists to manage the larger, national and mass-
market accounts.

Our operations in the U.K., Canada and France each have their own employee sales organizations.
Enesco also sells its products through distributors in approximately 25 countries around the world.

Methods of Distribution

In order to serve customers throughout the U.S., product is shipped from our overseas vendors to
Enesco’s warehouse and distribution facility, which is located in Elk Grove Village. In November 2005, we
announced the transition of our primary U.S. distribution and warehousing operations to National
Distribution Centers (NDC), a third-party logistics company. NDC is operating a leased facility in the
Indianapolis metropolitan area, of which our products occupy approximately 150,000 square feet. As part
of Enesco’s Operating lmprovement Plan, we believe that outsourcing our distribution and warehousing
operations to a third-party logistics provider will enable us to improve supply chain efficiencies, improve
customer service, consolidate our U.S. distribution operations, improve financial performance and build on
our core strengths of new product development and sales.

We began moving all inventory related to our continuing product lines to the NDC facility during late
December 2005 in conjunction with the timing of our normal annual physical inventory count. NDC began
shipping product to our customers from its facility in January 2006. Our discontinued product lines will
continue to be distributed to customers from the EGV distribution facility through 2006.

Enesco also uses third-party warehouse and distribution facilities in Fort Mills, South Carolina, to
handle the distribution of certain products to mass merchants, China, to handle large seasonal orders, and
Fenton, Missouri, to handle warehouse and distribution of the Walr Disney Classics Collection® in the
U.S. Shipments from Enesco to its customers are handled by United Parcel Service and other commercial
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carriers. As a result, we are not dependent on a single carrier and we have several alternatives if one
carrier is unable to handle our shipments.

Our subsidiaries in Canada and the U.K. have distribution facilities to service their operations. Enesco
Limited’s main distribution facility is located in Carlisle, England. Enesco Limited also utilizes small
distribution facilities in Bilston, England for the Halcyon Days® product line and in Torrington, England
for the Dartington line.

Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

Enesco continuously enters into and renews license agreements relating to trademarks, copyrights,
designs and products, which enable us to market new items compatible with our existing product lines, to
refresh our product offerings for changing consumer preferences, and to reduce the risk of dependency on
one line. Enesco’s licenses are either non-exclusive or exclusive for specific products in specified channels
and territories. Royalties are paid on licensed items and, in some cases, advance royalties or minimum
guarantees are required by agreements. ’

Protection of all of Enesco’s intellectual property, whether owned or licensed, is important to our
business. Enesco maintains an aggressive and visible program to identify and challenge companies and
individuals worldwide who infringe upon its registered trademarks and copyrighted designs.

Enesco owns approximately 300 trademark registrations. The registrations for Enesco’s trademarks are
maintained and renewed provided that the trademarks are still in use for the goods covered by such
registration. Enesco historically has renewed its registered trademarks and expects to continue to renew
them as business needs require.

Seasonality

Consumer interest in our home and garden décor and everyday gift products is seasonal and may vary
based on current market demand fluctuations and time of the year. Enesco also produces specially
designed product for holiday seasons and gift-giving occasions, including Christmas, Valentine’s Day.
Easter, Mother’s Day, Father’s Day, Halloween and Thanksgiving. Quarterly revenues are influenced by
the shipment of seasonal merchandise. Historically, revenues peak in the third quarter of each year as
merchandise is typically shipped during that time in preparation for the Christmas shopping season.

Working Capital

Enesco attempts to minimize its inventory levels by shortening the period of time from when a
product is conceptualized to when it is delivered to our customers. Generally, a product is designed,
sculpted, manufactured and marketed to our current or perspective retailers before Enesco begins shipping
the product to customers. Since the majority of our products are manufactured through third-party vendors
in China and Thailand, with an inherent delayed fulfiliment time, it is necessary for us to maintain
minimum daily inventory levels to satisfy the needs of our customers.

In 2005, we adjusted our ordering and shipping policies for our seasonal and Christmas products.
Rather than shipping seasonal products in April. May and June, we now make products to order, and
spread the shipment to our retail customers and payments to our vendors from June through October. Also
in 2005, we began shipping products directly to our customers from a third-party logistics provider in
China in order to reduce our distribution costs and inventory levels.

In 2005, we implemented a change in our customer everyday payment terms, from 90 days down to
45 days. These initiatives have helped to reduce our days sales outstanding in accounts receivable, from
92 days at December 31, 2004 1o 69 days at December 31, 2005. Depending on sales volume and
distribution requirements, Enesco offers its retail customers various extended payment terms and special
programs. These programs provide retailers the opportunity to sell products prior to paying Enesco. We
believe our general terms of sale are competitive in the giftware industry.
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Customers

Enesco has over 44,000 customers worldwide. OQur core customer base includes independent gift
retailers, national gift chains, mass merchants, military post exchanges, club warehouses, home television
shopping networks, florists, hospital gift shops, home décor chains and independents, garden stores, jewelry
and department stores, and catalog retailers. Some of our major customers during 2005 included: Avon
Products. Inc., Carlton Cards Retail, Inc., Hallmark Specialty Retail Group, John Lewis Plc., Kirlin’s,
Kohl's Department Stores, Robinson May, QVC Network, Target, Signet Group, Walgreens Company and
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. No single account represented more than 3% of 2005 consolidated net revenues.

We compete with other designers, manufacturers and distributors of giftware, and home and garden
décor to generally target consumers with discretionary income, the amount of which is sensitive to
economic shifts.

Open Orders

At December 31, 2005, Enesco had net open orders of approximately $10.4 million. a 62% decrease
over the December 31, 2004 level of approximately $26.2 million. The December 31, 2004 amount was
unusually large due to distribution disruptions in 2004 as a result of the difficulties we encountered with
our Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. The December 31, 2005 net open orders do not include
orders for Precious Moments® products due to the termination of our license agreement with PML. It is
standard practice in the giftware industry, however, that orders are subject to amendment or cancellation
prior to shipment for various reasons, including credit considerations and product availability. Due to the
many external factors that can impact the status of unshipped orders at any particular time, the
comparison of backlog in any given year with those at the same date in a prior year is not necessarily
indicative of prospective sales results in future years.

Competition

Competition in the giftware and home and garden décor industry is highly fragmented among a
number of companies and product categories. The principal factors affecting success in the marketplace
include originality of product design, quality, price, sales coverage, marketing ability, logistics and sourcing.
The ability to obtain and renew license agreements for products also is significant.

Enesco competes with domestic and international companies in the industry, such as Halimark Cards,
Inc., Lenox Group, Inc., Roman, Inc., Lladro Commercial S.A., The Boyds Collection, Ltd. and Russ
Berrie and Company, Inc., among others. No one competitor is dominant in the industry.

We believe that Enesco’s competitive strengths include our core and well-established distribution base,
our extensive knowledge of the marketplace and its demands, our domestic and international employee-
based sales force, our ability to secure licenses with popular and established brands, our ability to bring
innovative and trend-driven products to the market quickly, our focus on giftable product categories, and
the market demand for our proprietary designs, as well as the strength of our supplier relationships. Many
of our competitors, however, may have greater financial, marketing, distribution and other resources than
Enesco.

Design and Development

Enesco’s in-house creative group provides continuous product design and development of certain of
our products. This group’s responsibilities include all creative aspects from concept to prototype, design
and enhancement of products. Design and development costs expensed are approximately 1% of sales.

Eunvironmental

Enesco is subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations governing the use, discharge
and disposal of hazardous material. Compliance with current laws and regulations has not had and is not
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expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition. It is possible, however, that
environmental issues may arise in the future that Enesco currently cannot predict.

Employees and Related Matters

As of December 31, 2005, Enesco employed 1,182 employees worldwide, 454 of whom work in our
U.S. facilities and 728 in our international facilities.

In the first three quarters of 2005, we implemented several corporate downsizings, which resulted in
the termination of 178 employees in our U.S facilities and 83 in our international facilities. In the fourth
quarter of 2005, as part of our Operating Improvement Plan initiative to reduce corporate overhead,
general and administrative and marketing costs, we eliminated an additional 19 positions in the U.S, and
18 internationally. As announced in the fourth guarter of 2005, the EGY warehouse and distribution
facility will close in 2006 as a result of our transition of domestic warehousing and distribution functions to
a third-party logistics provider. Employment levels at the EGV facility were reduced by 87 positions in
January 2006 and an additional 87 positions will be terminated in 2006 as business needs dictate. Enesco
continues to monitor employee-related expenses to identify opportunities based on business operating plans.

Enesco’s EGV warehouse personnel are represented by Local Union No. 781 of the International
Brotherhood of Teamsters under a contract that expires on June 30, 2007, and includes 144 union member
employees. Employees at our Dartington factory are represented by the General Municipal and
Boilermakers Union in the U.K. under a contract that expires on December 31, 2006. During 2003,
Enesco did not incur any work stoppages. We believe that our labor relations are good.

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

Information required by this item is set forth in Note 5 of the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” of this Form 10-K.

Available Information

Enesco makes available, without charge, copies of its Proxy Statement, Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, any amendments to those reports and
any other of its reports filed with or furnished to the SEC on or through the Investor Relations section of
our website, www.enesco.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed. You may request a
paper copy of materials Enesco files with the SEC by writing to Investor Relations, 225 Windsor Drive,
ltasca, Illinois 60143 or calling Enesco at (630) 875-5300.

In addition, the following policies and corporate governance documents are available at the lnvestor
Relations section of our website: Enesco Corporate Governance Guidelines, Standards of Business Conduct
and Ethics, applicable to all directors and employees, Audit Committee Charter, Human Resource and
Compensation Committee Charter, and Nominating and Governance Committee Charter. Paper copies of
these documents also are available, free of charge, by cailing (630) 875-5300 or by sending a request in
writing to Investor Relations, 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois 60143,

You may read and copy materials Enesco files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street. NE, Washington. DC 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Our filings with the SEC also are available to
you on the SEC’s Internet web site at www.sec.gav.

Information on our website is not incorporated into this Form 10-K or Enesco’s other securities filings
and is not a part of them.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The ownership of our common stock involves a number of risks and uncertainties. Potential investors
should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below and the other information in this
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Form 10-K before deciding whether to invest in our securities. Qur business, financial condition or results
of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. The risks described below are
not the only ones facing us. Additional risks that are currently unknown to us or that we currently consider
to be immaterial may also impair our business or adversely affect our financial condition or results of
operations.

We have had a history of losses and may not be profitable in the future.

We have had a history of losses. We had a net loss of $54.0 million in 2005 and a net loss of
$45.2 million in 2004. We are in the process of restructuring our operations, including the recently
completed upgrading of our information systems, exiting the Precious Moments® business, reducing SG&A
costs, and improving our cash flow management. However, we cannot assure that these efforts will result
in our return to profitability. Even if we are able to generate a profit in the future, we may not be able to
increase our profits from quarter to quarter. 1f we are unable to achieve and maintain profitability, the
price of our common stock may decline.

Our failure to successfully refinance or amend our current credit facility could cause us to incur
significant additional bank fees and would impair our ability to conduct our normal business operations.

On December 21, 2005, we entered into the tenth amendment to our credit facility. This amendment
provides for penalty fees if we are unable to pay the outstanding loans and letters of credit under our credit
facility prior to certain dates in 2006. In addition, the credit facility requires us to maintain specified
financial ratios, and our failure to maintain these ratios would constitute an event of default under the
credit facility.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into the eleventh amendment to our existing credit facility. This
amendment reset each of Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective
January 30, 2006 based on our reforecast. This amendment also reduces the credit facility commitments
from $75 million to $70 million and accelerates by one month, the tenth amendment fees. While we have
been able to renegotiate these ratios and obtain waivers of specific covenant violations in the past, we
cannot assure that we would be able to continue to do so in the future.

We have entered into a commitment letter with LaSalle Business Credit, LLC, an affiliate of one of
the lenders under our existing credit facility, to enter into a new $75 million credit facility. This
commitment letter initially expired on January 31, 2006 but has been extended monthly through April 30,
2006. However, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in doing so on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all. Our failure to refinance our existing credit facility or enter into a new credit
facility could severely restrict our ability to carry out our normal business operations, and as a result we
may be forced to sell assets, reorganize under an appropriate bankruptcy provision, or liquidate certain
strategically selected assets.

Our failure to generate sufficient cash to meet our liquidity needs may affect our ability to service our
indebtedness and grow our business.

Qur ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, amounts borrowed under our
senior credit facility, and to fund any capital expenditures we may make in the future, if any, will depend
on our ability to generate cash in the future. This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic,
financial, competitive and other factors that are beyond our control.

Subject to our ability to either extend our existing credit facility and/or secure replacement financing
by January 1, 2007, we believe our cash flow from operations, together with available cash and available
borrowings under our credit facility, will be adequate to meet future liquidity needs. However, we cannot
assure you that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future that our
currently anticipated long-term growth in revenues and cash flow will be realized on schedule or in an
amount sufficient to enable us to service indebtedness, or that future borrowings will be available to us
under the senior credit facility. We may need to refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness, including
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our credit facility, on or before maturity. There can be no assurance that we will be able to do so on
commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Our existing credit facility contains, and any new credit facility will most likely contain, various
covenants which limit our management’s discretion in the operation of our business and the failure to
comply with such covenants could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Our credit facility contains various provisions that limit our management’s discretion by restricting our
ability to, among other things:

« incur additiona! indebtedness;

» pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, our common stock;
* make investments;

* incur liens;

« transfer or sell assets; and

+ consolidate, merge, or transfer all or substantially all of our assets.

We anticipate that we will be required by lenders to agree to a change in control default covenant in
our replacement credit facility if our CEO and President were to resign. Any failure to comply with the
restrictions of our credit facility or any other subsequent financing agreements may result in an event of
default. An event of default may allow the creditors, if the agreements so provide, to accelerate the related
debt as well as any other debt to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies.

Our indebtedness imposes constraints and requirements on our business and financial performance and
our compliance and performance in relationship to these could materially adversely affect our financial
condition and operations,

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. Our significant indebtedness could:

» require us to dedicate a significant portion of our cash flows from operations to payments on our
indebtedness, including penatties, which would reduce the availability of this cash to fund working
capital, expansion of our business, and other general corporate purposes;

+ limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the markets in which
we operate;

+ place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

+ limit our ability to obtain additional funds.

We have received a delisting notice from the New York Stock Exchange, and if we are unable to comply
with the conditions of our plan to meet the continued listing standards, we will be delisted, which would
result in decreased liquidity and increased volatility for our common stock.

We received notification from the New York Stock Exchange on September 1, 2005 that we are not
in compliance with the NYSE’s continued listing standards. As a result, we submitted a plan to the
NYSE demonstrating how we intend to comply with these standards over the next 18 months and are
subject to quarterly monitoring for compliance with these standards. If we are unable to meet the criteria
and are delisted, we may be unable to have our common stock listed on Nasdaq because of minimum
stock price and other listing requirements and, as a result, we would likely have our common stock quoted
on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, or the OTC BB, which would also require us to delist our
common stock from the Pacific Stock Exchange. Securities that trade on the OTC BB generally have less
liquidity and greater volatility than securities that trade on the NYSE and Nasdag. In addition, because
issuers whose securities trade on the OTC BB are not subject to the corporate governance and other
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standards imposed by the NYSE and Nasdag, our reputation may suffer, which could result in a decrease
in the trading price of our shares.

The market price of our common stock has historically fluctuated and is likely to fluctuate in the future.

The price of our common stock has fluctuated widely. For example, in 2003, the lowest price for our
common stock was $1.12 and the highest price for our common stock was $8.70. The market price of our
common stock can fluctuate significantly for many reasons, including, but not limited to:

« our ability to successfully obtain replacement financing;

+ the success of our efforts to reorganize our operations;

» our financial performance;

* our ability to maintain our listing on the NYSE;

» our ability to successfully introduce new products and the popularity of our existing products;
» acquisitions, strategic alliances or joint ventures involving us or our competitors:

» decisions by investors to de-emphasize investiment categories, groups or strategies that include our
company or industry; and

+ market conditions in the industry, the financial markets, and the economy as a whole.

It is likely that our operating results in one or more future quarters may be below the expectations of
security analysts and investors. In that event. the trading price of our common stock would likely decline.
In addition to fluctuations in the market price of our common stock, the stock market has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations. These market fluctuations can be unrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock, or the
perception that such sales could occur, could adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common
stock. Additionally, future stock price volatility for our common stock could provoke the initiation of
securities litigation, which may divert substantial management resources and have an adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.

If we undergo a change in control, including the resignation or termination of our CEQ and President,
we may be unable to maintain our strategic alliance with Jim Shore Designs, [nc.

Our strategic alliance agreement with Jim Shore Designs, Inc. focuses on key gift and seasonal
categories that have been very successful for us. This agreement continues through November 22, 2008,
and will be extended an additional three years, unless either party decides not to renew. However, if we
undergo a “change in control,” which is defined in the agreement as including a change in the CEO and
President positions, both of which are held by Cynthia Passmore, Jim Shore Designs, Inc. would be able
to terminate the agreement. If the agreement were terminated, we would lose one of our most successful
and growing product lines, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

We are highly dependent upon the ability of our senior management and Keystone Consulting Group to
effectively run our operations.

We have been experiencing changes in our senior management team, For instance, we appointed a
Chief Financial Officer in January 2005 who resigned in July 2005. We then appointed a Chief
Accounting Officer to handle these functions. In addition, we have eliminated the position of Chief
Operating Officer as part of our downsizing efforts. In connection with the development and
implementation of our Operating Improvement Plan, we have engaged Keystone Consulting Group
(Keystone), a restructuring advisor. Our engagement letter with Keystone is cancelable by either party
upon written notice to the other. We are highly dependent on Keystone to assist us in implementing the
Operating Improvement Plan.
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Our ability to implement our business strategy is dependent upon our senior management’s ability to
run our business effectively. We currently have an employment agreement with our CEO and President,
but not with our other executive officers. We currently have a consulting agreement with Keystone, which
expires March 31, 2006, which we are in the process of extending at least through June 30, 2006. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to retain any of our executives or that we will be successful in
extending Keystone’s engagement following its expiration on March 31, 2006 on terms favorable to us, or
that Keystone will have the resources necessary to assist us in the continued implementation of our
Operating Improvement Plan. Our business, results of operations and financial condition could be
materially adversely affected by the loss of any of these persons or Keystone and the inability to attract
and retain appropriately qualified replacements. In addition, as noted above, if our CEO and President
resigns or is terminated, our licensing agreement with Jim Shore Designs, Inc. would be at risk of being
terminated.

If we cannot develop products that will appeal to customers and enter into favorable licensing
agreements, we may not be able to compete effectively.

We believe that our future success will depend, in part, upon our ability to continue to develop new
products that will appeal to consumers. Historically, we have received a substantial portion of our revenues
through a small number of very successful licensing agreements. Our success is dependent upon our ability
to retain these critical licenses on favorable terms and to enter into new licensing agreements that will
result in the introduction of successful product lines. We face significant competition for licenses, which
may cause us to pay higher royalty rates and to guarantee minimum annual payments. As our most
successful licenses expire, the competition for renewing these licenses could intensify significantly. We
cannot assure you that we will be successful in the introduction, manufacturing and marketing of any new
products or product innovations, or develop and introduce, in a timely manner, innovations to our existing
products that satisfy customer needs or achieve market acceptance. Our failure to develop new products
and introduce them successfully and in a timely manner, and at favorable margins, would harm our ability
to successfully grow our business and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, competitors may manufacture and market
products similar to ours, which could adversely affect our market share and results of operations.

Our success with our proprietary products depends, in part, on our ability to defend our intellectual
property rights. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, competitors may
manufacture and market products similar to ours. In addition to our proprietary designs, we obtain brand
name licenses to develop product formats. Occasionally, we become involved in litigation with our
licensors, such as our recently settled litigation involving Jim Shore Designs, Inc. Enforcing our rights
under our licensing agreements in this manner is expensive to us, distracting to management and may
strain relationships with our licensors. In addition, our ability to successfully market these products would
be adversely affected if competitors were able to develop, use or sell products that are similar to our
products.

We have, in the past, experienced problems managing our supply chain and business processes, and our
future success is dependent upon our ability to improve these functions.

In 2004, we unsuccessfully attempted to implement a new Enterprise Resource Planning system
intended to integrate our supply chain and business processes. As a result, we were unable to ship
products. we incurred expenses related to excess inventory, and we experienced record-keeping problems
involving freight billing, customer invoicing and inventory management accuracy. To remedy the situation,
we were forced to incur costs related to additional personnel and consultants in 2004, which increased our
labor and IT costs significantly. Our future success is dependent upon our ability to successfully manage
these functions. If we are unable to do so, we would incur increased operating costs and would encounter
delays in shipping our products, which would result in a potential loss of revenues and customers and

17




would therefore have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We are dependent upon the ability of NDC, a third-party logistics company, to manage our
U.S. distribution and warehouse operations.

As part of our Operating [mprovement Plan, we have hired NDC, a third-party logistics company, to
provide storage, handling, inventory management, shipping, receiving, repackaging, order processing and
related clerical support for our business. These functions are critical to the success of our business, and we
are entirely dependent upon NDC to perform these functions efficiently. In addition, we may incur
significant costs under the agreement with NDC. Any problems that we experience in our arrangement
with NDC could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations,

Competition in our markets may hinder our ability to execute our business strategy, achieve profitability,
or maintain relationships with existing customers.

The markets for giftware and home and garden décor products are highly competitive. In these
industries, we compete against numerous other domestic and foreign companies. Competition in the
markets in which we operate is based primarily on originality of product design, quality, price, sales
coverage, marketing ability, logistics and sourcing.

Many of our competitors have substantially greater revenue and resources than we do. Our
competitors may take actions to match our new product introductions and other initiatives. Because many
of our competitors source their products from third parties, our ability to obtain a cost advantage through
sourcing is reduced. Certain of our competitors may be willing to reduce prices and accept lower profit
margins to compete with us. Further, retailers often demand that suppliers reduce their prices on existing
products. Competition could cause price reductions, reduced profits or losses, or loss of market share, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

To compete effectively in the future in our markets, among other things, we must:
+ maintain strict quality standards;

+ develop new products that appeal to customers; and

s deliver products on a reliable basis at competitive prices.

Our inability to do any of these things well could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

If the trend teward retail store consolidation in the independent gift channel in the U.S. continues, our
revenues may decline unless we can grow share in our core gift channel or grow revenues in alternate
channels.

In recent years, retail shopping patterns in the U.S. for our products have changed to include stronger
sales in the mass, chain drug and grocery channels and over the Lnternet, while there has been
consolidation of retail specialty stores in the card and gift channel. Our business strategy involves aligning
our resources and leveraging our core distribution base, to gain share in four merchandise categories:
decorative gifts, inspirational gifts, brand enthusiast gifts and occasion-based gifts. If we are unable to grow
market share in these merchandise categories or expand in alternative channels at levels that offset the
decline in sales due to the consolidation of retail stores in the specialty gift channel in the U.S,, our
revenues will continue to decline.
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Because we do not have long-term commitments from many of our customers, we must estimate customer
demand, and errors in our estimates could have negative effects on our inventory levels and revenues.

We have more than 40,000 customers worldwide, and no single customer accounted for more than 3%
of our consolidated sales in 2005. Non-seasonal purchase commitments may be made in advance of our
receipt of customer orders and are often non-cancelable. It is standard practice in our industry that
customer orders are subject to amendment or cancellation prior to shipment for various reasons. OQur
purchase commitments are made in advance of our receipt of customer orders and are often non-
cancelable. As a result, we are required to estimate the inventory levels and enter into purchase
commitments necessary to fulfill our orders and maximize sales. On occasion, we have been unable to
adequately respond to customer cancellations or unexpected increases in customer orders. Accordingly, we
may be faced with excess inventory or the inability to adequately respond to unexpected increases in
customer purchase orders, in which case we may incur higher expenses related to excess inventory or,
alternatively, we may lose the revenue associated with the additional purchase orders and our customer
relationships may suffer.

We are dependent upon third-party suppliers whose failure to perform adequately could disrupt our
business operations,

We currently source a significant portion of our products from third parties. Our ability to select and
retain reliable vendors who provide timely deliveries of quality products will impact our success in meeting
customer demand for timely delivery of quality products. We typically do not enter into long-term contacts
with our primary vendors and suppliers. Instead, most of our products are supplied on a “purchase order”
basis. As a result, we may be subject to unexpected changes in pricing or supply of products. Any inability
of our suppliers to timely deliver quality products or any unanticipated change in supply, quality or pricing
of products could be disruptive and costly to us.

Our reliance on manufacturing facilities and suppliers in China could make us vulnerable to supply
interruptions related to the political, legal and cultural environment in China.

We do not own any of our manufacturing facilities, except on a limited basis in the United Kingdom.
A significant portion of our products are manufactured by third-party suppliers in Asia, primarily the
People’s Republic of China. During 2005, approximately 70% of our total product purchases were from
manufacturing sources in China. Our ability to continue to select reliable vendors who provide timely
deliveries of quality products will impact our success in meeting customer demand for timely delivery of
quality products. Furthermore, the ability of these suppliers to timely deliver finished goods and/or raw
materials may be affected by events beyond their control, such as inability of shippers to timely deliver
merchandise due to work stoppages or slowdowns, or significant weather and health conditions (such as
SARS or the avian flu) affecting manufacturers and/or shippers.

There is no assurance that we could quickly or effectively replace any of our suppliers if the need
arises. Our dependence on these suppliers could also adversely affect our ability to react quickly and
effectively to changes in the market for our products. In addition, international manufacturing is subject to
significant risks, including, among other things:

 labor unrest;

+ political and economic instability;

» cost and capacity fluctuations;

» delays in transportation, dockage and materials handling;

» restrictive actions by governments, including nationalization of assets;
» United States laws and policies affecting the importation of goods;

+ international political, military and terrorist developments; and
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+ international tax and trade laws.

Labor in China has historically been readily available at relatively low cost as compared to labor costs
in North America and Europe. China has experienced rapid social, political and economic change in
recent years. A substantial increase in labor costs in China could affect the price that our suppliers charge,
which would lower our gross margins and therefore have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

Changes in the cest or availability of raw materials could adversely affect our results of operations.

Pricing and availability of raw materials used in our products can be volatile due to numerous factors
beyond our control, including labor costs, production levels, competition, consumer demand, commodity
costs (such as oil based resins and pigments), and general economic conditions. This volatility can
significantly affect the availability and cost of raw materials to us, and may, therefore, have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

If the price of raw materials used in manufacturing our products increases, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to pass any portion of such increases on to our customers. Conversely, when raw
material prices decline, customer demands for lower prices could result in lower sale prices and, to the
extent we have existing inventory, lower margins. As a result, fluctuations in raw material prices could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be able to sell our non-strategic business assets at favorable prices.

As part of our Operating Improvement Plan, we are attempting to reduce our overall number of
product lines and concentrate on products that we believe will have strong and sustainable market demand.
As a result, we are currently in the process of attempting to sell some of our assets that we believe are not
consistent with our strategy. There is no assurance that we will be able to sell these assets on favorable
terms, or at all. If we are unable to do so, we may be forced to wind down these operations, which would
impose additional costs and management distraction on us.

Our business is seasonal, which may cause our operating results to vary from quarter to quarter.

Sales of certain of our products are seasonal. For instance, we produce specially designed products for
holiday season and gift-giving occasions. Qur revenues will typically peak in the third calendar quarter of
each year. As a result, comparisons of our results from quarter to quarter may not be meaningful and
cannot necessarily be relied on as indicators of future performance. 1n addition, we may also experience
quarterly fluctuations in our sales and income depending on various factors, including, among other things,
changes in the ordering patterns of our customers during a particular quarter, and the mix of products sold.

Currency fluctuations may significantly increase our expenses and affect our results of operations.

While we transact business predominantly in U.S. dollars and most of our revenues are collected in
U.S. dollars, a portion of our costs, such as for our products, payroll, rent, and indirect operational costs,
are denominated in other currencies. Changes in the relation of these and other currencies to the
U.S. dollar will affect our sales and profitability and could result in unfavorable foreign currency
translations or exchange losses. For instance, if the government of China allowed the Chinese yuan to rise
substantially versus the U.S. dollar, the cost of our products produced in China would rise. The impact of
future exchange rate fluctuations on our results of operations cannot be accurately predicted. There can be
no assurance that the U.S. dollar foreign exchange rates will be stable in the future or that fluctuations in
financial markets will not have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
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ltem 2. Properties

The following chart summarizes the material owned and leased real estate of Enesco worldwide:

Location Description Owned/Leased  Sq. Ft. Lease Term
Elk Grove Village, Illinois ... Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 485,500 Dec. 2006
USA Main Showroom

Jtasca, Wlinois. . ............ Corporate Headquarters Owned 101,580 N/A
USA

Irvine, California ........... Warehouse, Offices Leased 24,165 Dec. 2006
USA

Mississauga, Ontario ........ Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 101,000 Dec. 2007
Canada Showroom, Offices

Carlisle, Cumbria. .. ... . .... Warehouse, Distribution. Leased 48,500 Dec. 2013
England Showroom

Carlisle, Cumbra........... Warehouse Leased 35,000 Dec. 2013
England

Carlisle, Cumbria........... Offices Leased 11,500  Oct. 2006
England

Skirsgill, Penrith ........... Manufacturing Leased 20,000 Dec. 2008
England

Langholm, Dunfrieshire .. ... Manufacturing, Offices Owned 25,000 N/A
England

Torrington, Devon .......... Manufacturing. Retail Space  Owned 90,000* N/A
England

Mount Pleasant, Bilston .. ... Manufacturing, Offices Leased 16,260 April 2009
England

Villeneuve Loubet .......... Warehouse, Distribution, Leased 55,972 Dec. 2006
France Showroom, Offices

Canton Road .............. Offices Leased 4,950 Oct. 2006
Hong Kong

* Total property is 6.2 acres

Management is exploring alternatives for its headquarters office in Itasca, lllinois, including the
possible sale of the building and/or a sale and leaseback, in pursuit of a lower facility cost and an infusjon
of cash. We believe that the facilities of Enesco are adequate, suitable and of sufficient capacity to support
Enesco’s current operations.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In July 2005, Enesco filed suit against Department 36, Inc., Sunshine Productions, Inc.. Kevin
Knowles and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the U.S. District Court, Northern District of lllinois, Eastern
Division. The complaint, as against Jim Shore Designs, alleged breach of contract related to Enesco’s
license agreement with Jim Shore Designs, which license agreement was filed with the SEC on a
Form 8-K. dated October 5, 2004. Enesco specifically alleged that Jim Shore Designs breached provisions
relating to Enesco’s exclusivity under the license agreement. With regard to Department 56, the complaint
alleged a violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act. As against Sunshine Productions, Enesco alleged
that Sunshine Productions interfered with Enesco’s contract with Jim Shore Designs. Finally, in the
complaint, Enesco alleged that Sunshine Productions and Kevin Knowles engaged in a civil conspiracy and
induced an employee to breach her duty of loyalty to Enesco. Enesco sought monetary and equitable relief
in connection with the suit. Defendants filed counterclaims against Enesco.
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On August 15, 2005, Enesco filed a motion for preliminary injunction against Department 56, Inc.
based on our amended complaint in the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Illinois, Eastern Division.
Enesco sought preliminary injunctive relief relating to Enesco’s claim that Department 56 had unfairly
competed through allegedly false and misleading statements and conduct. The amended complaint alleged
that the actions of Department 56 violated federal unfair competition laws, as well as the Illinois Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practices Act and the Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act.
The motion for preliminary injunction sought an order preliminarily prohibiting Department 56 from
engaging in conduct that constitutes unfair competition.

In January 2006, Enesco announced that it had resolved its complaint and counterclaim with Jim
Shore Designs, Inc. As part of the settiement, we terminated our license agreement with Jim Shore
Designs effective November 23, 2005, and entered into a new strategic alliance agreement. Under this
agreement, Jim Shore Designs reaffirms and strengthens its commitment to Enesco, which, among other
things, continues the relationship between Enesco and Jim Shore Designs three vears from the effective
date, November 23, 2003, through November 22, 2008, and through November 22, 2011 unless either -
party chooses not to renew. The Strategic Alliance Agreement focuses on key gift and seasonal categories
that have been very successful for Enesco and Jim Shore Designs.

On February 28, 2006, Enesco announced that it had resolved its complaint and counterclaim with
Department 56, Inc. relating to Jim Shore Designs, Inc. As part of the settlement agreement, Enesco and
Department 56 agreed to a full waiver of any claims against each other and released each other from any
losses, claims, damages and expenses relating to this lawsuit. The settlement agreements between Enesco
and Department 56 and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. do not resolve Enesco’s ongoing litigation with Kevin
Knowles and/or Sunshine Productions.

In the ordinary course of Enesco’s business, there are various legal proceedings pending against
Enesco and its subsidiaries. In addition, while we cannot predict the eventual outcome of these
proceedings, we believe that none of these proceedings will have a material adverse impact upon our
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Eguity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Enesco’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and Pacific Exchange (symbol:
ENC). On September 1, 2005, Enesco received notification from the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) that we were not in compliance with the continued listing standards of the exchange. Enesco is
considered “below criteria” by the NYSE because our total market capitalization was less than $75 million
over a consecutive 30-trading-day period and our shareholder’s equity was less than $75 million. On
October 14, 2005, we submitted a plan to the NYSE, demonstrating how we intend to comply with the
continued listing standards within 18 months of our receipt of the notice. On December 5, 2005, the
NYSE accepted our plan for continued listing on the NYSE. Enesco’s common stock continues to be
listed on the NYSE, subject to quarterly reviews by the NYSE listings and compliance committee to
ensure progress against our plan.
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The following table sets forth, for the indicated periods, the high and low sales price for Enesco's
common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

2005 2004
Market Price Market Price
Quarter High Low High Low
First . $8.70 $6.20 §11.98 $9.40
SECONA . ottt e 6.75 1.85 14.94 8.50
Third .o 3.19 1.11 8.94 6.36
Fourth ... 2.38 1.12 8.15 6.05

Enesco did not declare dividends in 2005 or 2004. Enesco’s revolving credit agreement contains
financial and operating covenants, including restrictions on repurchasing Enesco shares and paying
dividends. Enesco does not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future.

As of March 15, 2006, there were approximately 2,150 record holders of Enesco’s common stock and
approximately 4,600 beneficial owners.

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2005 with respect to equity
compensation plans under which shares of Enesco common stock may be issued.

Number of Number of
Securities or Weighted-Average Securities
Securities to be Issued  Exercise Price of Remaining Available
Upon Exercise of Outstanding for Future Issuance
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Under Equity
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Compensation Plans
Equity compensation plans approved
by shareholders:
1999 Non-Employee Director
Stock Plan.................. 178,755 $ 6.37 121,245
Amended and Restated 1996
Long-Term Incentive Plan .. .. 1,803,331 6.02 1,101,089
1991 Stock Option Plan......... 295,536 11.60 _

Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders:
1998 Chairman Stock Option
Plan ......... . ... ..., 14,000 $25.81 —
Shares issued as partial
compensation to chair of

executive search committee. . . . 17,292 — —
Options to purchase common

stock(1).......... ... .. ... 151,397 6.02 —

Total........ ... o ool 2,460,311 $ 0.53 1,222,334

(1) Options granted at time of employment to D. DaleMolle, P. Perez and J. Smith as part of their
employment agreements.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the selected
consolidated statements of operations data for 2005, 2004 and 2003 have been derived from the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K. The selected consolidated balance sheet
data as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the selected consolidated statements of operations data
for 2002 and 2001 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this
Form 10-K. The selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the sections
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” included in this Form 10-K.

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA
Net revenues{1)(6) ...................... $244,434 268,967  $256,426  $262,330  $275,294
Operating profit (loss) (2)(3)(4)(7) ........ (47,170)  (17,014) 14,901 12,697  (10,470)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle(S) ........ (54,025)  (45,188) 17,282 20,673 1111
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, net of income taxes(4) ......... — — — (29,031) —
Netincome (loss) ....................... (54,025)  (45,188) 17,282 (8,358) 1,111
Basic earnings (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle ......... $ (367) $ (316) $ 123 $ 145 $. 0.08
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, net of income taxes .......... $ — 5 —  § — $ (209) § —
Net income (loss) ..................... $ (367) § (316) $ 123 % (0.60) $ 0.8
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle, net of ,
INCOmMe taxes ..........coouvvnueeo. .. $ (367) $§ (316) § 120 $ 147. $ 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle netof tax ................... $ — 3 — 3 — § (209) ¢§ —
Net income (loss) ..................... $ (367) $ (316) $§ 120 $ (060) $ 0.08
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Cash and cash equivalents . ..............., $ 12918 $ 14646 $ 10645 §$ 17418 $§ 7932
Property, plant and equipment, net.......... $ 15,504 $ 22,509 § 28341 § 26,229 § 26,582
Totalassets ................c. it $130,191 $193,883  $202,468 $179,785  $219,551
Current notes and loans payable . ... ........ $ 30,823 $ 26354 3 28358 % — § 6,745
Total long-term liabilities .. ................ $ 1,280 § 9838 § 3551 $ 3795 $ 8938
Shareholders’ equity . .......... ... ... .... $ 52,826 $109.267 $147,239  $121913  $126.,377

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(1) Revenue figures include shipping and handling cost billed to customers and are reduced by co-op

advertising allowances.

(2) Cost of sales includes non-cash charges of $1.5 million and $8.7 million in 2005 and 2001,
respectively, related to the write-down of inventory values as part of product rationalization programs

initiated by Enesco.

(3} In conjunction with the PMI termination agreement, Enesco incurred a loss of $7.7 million equal to

the cost of inventory transferred to PML.
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4)

(5)

(6)

Amortization of goodwill ended January 1, 2002 with the adoption of FAS 142 resulted in Enesco
writing off $29.0 million of goodwill in 2002 recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle. .

The 2004 provision for income taxes includes an $18.6 million expense to establish a valuation
allowance with respect to deferred tax assets. The 2004 tax provision also includes a $17.4 million
expense 10 create a deferred tax liability for unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries deemed to
have been distributed due to the guarantee by those subsidiaries of the Company’s debt. The tax
expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 included benefits of $6.8 million, $12.9 million and $9.4 million,
respectively, related primarily to prior year accruals that were no longer necessary as a result of
completed tax audits and closed tax years.

Enesco reclassified revenue and expenses associated with collector club sales from SG&A to revenues
and cost of sales. As a result, revenues increased $6.6 million, $7.4 million, $8.5 million and

$8.2 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Cost of sales increased by $3.5 million,

$3.9 million, $4.6 million, and $6.5 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. SG&A
increased by $3.1 million, $3.5 million, $3.9 million, and $1.7 million in 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively,

Enesco reclassified bank fees and credit card fees from other expense to SG&A. As a result, SG&A
increased and other expense decreased by $1.3 million, $1.0 million, $1.1 million and $0.9 million in
2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Enesco Group, Inc.

The following discussion provides more depth into the financial condition and results of operations of
Enesco and its subsidiaries. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes and risk factors included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K include the accounts of Enesco and all of
its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. All subsidiaries are wholly owned. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires the use of our management’s
estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. We operate in a single industry segment, which
designs. manufactures (primarily through third parties located in Asia) and markets a wide variety of
licensed and proprietary branded giftware and home and garden décor items to retailers primarily
throughout the U.S.. Canada and Europe.

Overview

We began 2005 faced with the results of many changes from previous years; most of the results
presented challenges, while a few positioned Enesco for a more positive future. As we look back, many
significant events occurred specifically in 2004 which negatively impacted our business. Three general
factors particularly affected Enesco:

In January 2004, we moved to a new ERP system designed to integrate our supply chain and business
processes, such as order entry, order management, inventory, shipping and biiling software programs. This
transition unfortunately was plagued with many problems. The transition, particularly in our
U.S. warehouse and distribution center, caused the failure of several critical operational functions. Enesco
experienced a severe slow-down in product shipments, incurred expenses related to excess inventory and
experienced recordkeeping problems, such as freight billing, customer invoice and inventory management
accuracy. To remedy the situation, we were forced to incur additional costs for labor and consultants in
2004, which increased our overall labor and IT costs significantly. Following a thorough evaluation, we
announced in December 2004 that we would stabilize the ERP system by using the core components of
our legacy information system. The plan was to update certain modules of the legacy software to provide
advanced features and capabilities required by our business. We incurred accelerated depreciation charges
related to the ERP system of $0.8 million in December 2004.

The second major issue was our level of operating expenses, which were deemed 1o be too high for
our revenue base. Simply stated. we were spending as though we were a much larger company. A year of
interim leadership at Enesco resulted in a lack of focus on curbing expenditures and increased spending for
outside services and consultants. Unplanned costs related to the ERP system implementation also triggered
increased spending for outside technology services and consultants. Operating expenses also were impacted
by the acquisitions of the Walr Disney Classics Collection® license and the Dartington Crystal and Gregg
Gift businesses earlier in the year.

The third factor that negatively impacted business in 2004 was the declining Precious Moments®
business. Customer trends changed and the demand for collectible figurines as a category declined
significantly from 2003 to 2004. The Precious Moments® business represented 32% of consolidated net
revenues in 2003, but decreased to 21% in 2004. Our license agreement for Precious Moments® included a
$15 million minimum royalty guarantee annually, which reduced our operating margin as product sales
declined. Therefore, our gross margins on Precious Moments® products declined rapidly. reflecting the
continued decline in sales while we were obligated to pay a fixed $15 million royalty.
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2005 RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We began to address these business challenges in 2005, which was a year of transition to what we
believe will be a more sustainable and profitable business model.

Successful Implementation of our ERP System

In the second quarter of 2005, we successfully migrated from the ERP system at our Elk Grove
Village distribution center to an upgraded version of our legacy information system. Additionally we
stabilized the order management and financial modules of the PeopleSoft system. This combined enhanced
system enabled us to return to normal order fulfillment levels and ended the delays and the loss of revenue
we previously experienced. Since we began re-use of the order management and financial modules, and
intend to continue to do so, we revised our estimate of the remaining useful life of the portion of the asset
value that relates to these two modules. The remaining net book value of our PeopleSoft system was
$1.1 million as of December 31, 2005. All costs associated with the distribution center ERP system were
depreciated fully as of the end of the second quarter of 2005. Total accelerated depreciation in 2005
amounted to $3.7 million, all of which was recorded in the first half of 2005.

Exiting the Precious Moments® Business

During the second quarter of 2005 we exited the Precious Momenis® business, terminating our license
agreement with Precious Moments, Inc. (PMI1). As a result of the termination of our license agreement,
on July 1, 2005 we transferred the U.S. Precious Moments® product inventory and certain other assets, as
well as certain liabilities, related to the Precious Moments® business to PM1. Additionally, we agreed to
provide certain transitional services to PMI on an as-needed basis through December 31, 2006. As of
December 31, 2005, PMI exercised its option to bring these services in-house. The termination of our
license agreement with PMI had a positive impact on our cash position this year and will improve gross
margins in the future. In 2005, our annual gross margin percentage would have been 4.2 percentage points
higher if we did not sell the Precious Moments® product line in the U.S. during any portion of 2005.

Improved Cash Management

To improve cash management, we accelerated liquidation of excess and slow-moving inventory. As a
result of the rationalization of our product portfolio which we discuss below, we improved our working
capital position by lowering inventories from $65.4 million to $40.7 million at December 31, 2005
compared to December 31, 2004. We adjusted the ordering and shipping of our seasonal and Christmas
products. Rather than shipping seasonal products in April, May and June, we now make products to order
and spread the shipments to our retail customers and payment to our vendors from June through October.
We will continue to experience a higher level of cash collection in December due to our seasonal retail
payment terms. We also began to more strictly enforce our payment terms, putting customers that were
over 30 days past due on accounts receivable hold and stopping shipments to those customers.

In addition, we implemented a change in our customer everyday payment terms, from 90 days down
to 45 days. These initiatives have helped to reduce our days sales outstanding in accounts receivable, from
92 days at December 31, 2004 to 69 days at December 31, 2005 and continue to do so in 2006.

We also stabilized our cash used in operations. For the year ended December 31, 2005, net cash used
in operations fell to $4.4 million versus a use of $21.6 million in 2004. This improvement in cash
management was due primarily to reduction in inventory and receivables. Changes in operating assets and
liabilities provided $34.0 million in 2005, which compares favorably to 2004, during which $5.3 million of
cash was used. We were able to reduce our pre-tax salary expense on an annualized basis in 2005 by
$7.8 million in the U.S. and $3.1 million internationally. Reduction of expenses remained a priority for us
throughout 2005.
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The Operating Improvement Plan

In the third quarter of 2005, we announced the new comprehensive Operating Improvement Plan
which is designed to build on the positive changes we made in the first half of the year. Our goal is to
implement an operating model commensurate with other leading companies in the giftware and related
markets. This operating model targets gross margins in the range of 40% to 45% and a pre-tax operating
profit margin of 3% to 5%. However, Enesco’s ability to achieve these targets is dependent on a variety of
factors, many of which are beyond Enesco’s control. including those discussed in the “Risk Factors”
section.

In June 2005, the Board of Directors approved hiring Keystone Consulting Group (Keystone). a
Chicago-based management and turnaround consulting firm to assist Enesco in identifying opportunities
for cost reduction and organizational and operational improvements. In August 2005, we extended the
agreement through March 31, 2006 to enter into a phase two engagement with Keystone for continued
implementation of our Operating Improvement Plan. Enesco has the option to extend this project in two
more phases through September 30, 2006. Enesco paid Keystone $2.1 million for services rendered in 2005
and $1.2 million for services rendered in the first quarter of 2006. The Board of Directors is currently
finalizing an extension of the Keystone engagement through June 30, 2006 at a contract amount that has
not yet been determined.

As a result of the Operating Improvement Plan, which will continue throughout 2006, we anticipate
achieving pre-tax cost savings on an annualized basis in the range of $34 million to $38 million, as more
fully described below. These cost savings include the non-recurrences of approximately $13 million in
expenses related to the termination of the Precious Moments® license agreement, bank penalty fees, and
accelerated depreciation related to the ERP system, as previously reported. The cost savings are
anticipated to be fully realized in 2007.

The Operating Improvement Plan focuses on three key initiatives:
» rationalizing the U.S. product portfolio; V
» creating a more efficient and cost effective distribution and warehousing model; and
¢ reducing global corporate overhead, general and administrative and marketing costs.
Enesco began to implement this plan in the fourth quarter of 2005.

We evaluated our business and industry not solely to cut costs, but also to maximize revenue
potential. We have identified four merchandise categories that leverage Enesco’s strength around which we
will focus our business moving forward. This strategy involves aligning the business and managing
resources to gain share in the four merchandise categories of decorative gifts, inspirational gifts, brand
enthusiast gifts and occasion-based gifts. We believe this structure will allow us to focus resources to
deliver on our strategy of gaining market share in each category by increasing transparency, accountability
and information flow across the business units and functional teams.

Enesco believes that it is the only company in the industry that maintains an employee-based sales
force in the U.S., Canadian and European markets. We believe that this, and our concentration on top-
performing product lines and four merchandise categories, will strengthen our share of the gift market in
our core channels of distribution. We continue to focus on our proprietary designs, with an emphasis on
giftable products.

1) Rationalization of the U.S. Product Portfolio

The first initiative was the rationalization of the U.S. product portfolio. We found that while our
product lines and SKUs have proliferated, many of these product lines are unproductive. In the U.S.,
our top performing lines, like Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore, Foundations® and Gregg Gifi™, have
inventory turns at or above the industry rate of three times per year. However, nearly 70% of our lines
averaged less than one turn per year and represent less than 7% of our annualized sales in the
U.S. To correct this, we implemented a methodical process to reduce our overall number of product
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lines and concentrate on products that elicit strong and sustainable market demand and profitability
and leverage our core and well established distribution base. We have clear criteria for the
rationalization, including minimum sales thresholds, margin hurdle rates and the importance of the
product to our long-term marketing strategy.

We completed the product rationalization in the fourth quarter of 2005, reducing the number of
overall product lines in our portfolio by more than 70%, from 170 product lines to approximately 50
product lines. The remaining lines in total represent approximately 90% of our U.S. sales, excluding
Precious Moments®.  Our top 10 product lines in the U.S. accounted for approximately 80% of net
sales in 2005. We plan to eliminate those product lines that do not meet this criterion throughout
2006. In so doing, we expect to reduce our gross inventory by approximately $11.0 million, such
inventory having a book value of approximately $6.5 million.

The remaining product lines are comprised of giftable products within four merchandise
categories — decorative, inspirational, brand enthusiast and occasion-based. Our top 10 product lines
in 2005 by merchandise category include Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and My Little Kitchen
Fairies™ in our decorative merchandise category, Foundations® and Gregg Giff™ in our inspirational
category, Disney. Cherished Teddies® and Rudolph the Red-Nosed Reindeer® in our brand enthusiast
category and Circle of Love™, Growing Up Birthday Girls® and Children of the Inner Light® in our
occasion-based merchandise category.

In November 2005, we announced the launch of Disney Impressions, a new Disney brand
developed specifically for the U.S. marketplace. The Disney Impressions collection showcases Disney
characters as they celebrate special occasions and everyday moments. We also are working with
Disney to develop general and decorative gifts for both the U.S. and international markets.

In light of our new product strategy as announced in September 2005, Enesco decided that
glassware was not a strategic fit. We, therefore, actively began marketing the sale of the Dartington
operation in the U.K. in the fourth quarter of 2005.

2) Implementing a Cost-Effective Distribution and Warehousing Model

The second initiative in our Operating Improvement Plan was to transition our distribution and
warehousing to a more cost-effective and efficient model that is more consistent with industry
standards. Enesco expects pre-tax cost savings on an annualized basis from this initiative to be in the
range of $4 million to $6 million and are included in the total Operating Improvement Plan
annualized pre-tax cost savings estimate of $34 million to $38 million.

In November 2005, we signed a five-year commitment with a third-party logistics provider,
National Distribution Centers {NDC) to provide our warehousing and distribution services for our
U.S. operations. We believe that this transition to a third-party for distribution and warehousing will
allow us to improve supply chain efficiencies, improve customer services, consolidate our
U.S. distribution operations, improve financial performance and build on our core strengths of new
product development and sales,

We began moving all inventory related to continuing product lines to the NDC facility during
late December 2005 and began shipping products to customers in January 2006 from NDC, but at a
slower than anticipated rate due to learning-curve issues at the new site. To account for the costs
associated with this transition, we recorded a restructuring charge of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter
2005. As the transition carries into 2006, we expect additional transition costs of approximately
$0.5 million to be incurred in the first half of 2006.

3) Reducing Global Corporate Overhead, General and Administrative and Marketing Costs

The third initiative in our plan is to further reduce operating expenses to be consistent with the
current size of our business. We intend to reduce corporate and general and administrative costs, as
well as professional and consulting fees, by $30 million to $32 million pre-tax on an annualized basis
to be fully realized in 2007. Included in these cost savings initiatives are the non-recurrence of the
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loss on the termination of the PMI license agreement of $7.7 million, the accelerated depreciation on
the ERP system of $3.7 million and the $1.4 million in bank penalty fees that were recorded in 2005.

Enesco initiated several personnel reductions of its U.S. and U.K. operations in 2005. In the
U.S., the downsizings primarily affected the areas of marketing, operations, information technology,
{inance and communications. In the U.K., the downsizing focused on the elimination of redundancies
within the organization and was completed across all areas of the business. The cost savings resulting
from the 2005 salary expense reductions are estimated to generate pre-tax annualized cost savings of
approximately $7.8 million in the U.S. and $3.1 million in the U.K.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, we implemented a consolidation strategy for all of our non-
essential U.S. showroom locations. This strategy focuses on increasing the profitability of the major
market showrooms in Atlanta, Dallas and Los Angeles on a year-round basis. As a result of this
strategy, we negotiated lease buyouts with the landlords of those remaining showrooms that we do not
want to occupy on a year round basis. The impact of terminating these showroom leases was a charge
to pre-tax income of approximately $0.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2003. This initiative is
expected to result in pre-tax annual savings of approximately $2.0 million.

The total cost savings expected to be realized in 2007 as a result of the implementation of the
Operating Improvement Plan through December 31, 2005, as they relate to the reduction in corporate
overhead, general and administrative and marketing costs are as follows:

(In millions)

Downsizings in the U.S. ... .. . $78
Termination of the PMI license agreement . ............. ... iiiiiiiinn ... 7.7
Accelerated depreciation of ERP system ...... ... . 37
Downsizings in the UK. .. .. e 3.1
Showroom consolidations .. ... ... ..t 20
Bank penalty fees .. ..o 1.4
Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and other administrative costs........................... _1.0

3267

Additional Operating lmprovement Plan initiatives expected to be implemented in 2006, and result in
annual savings of $8 million to $10 million, include further reductions in consulting and other outside
services of $3 million, decreases in bad debt expense of $1 million, and savings from the transition to the
new distribution and warehousing model of $4 million to $6 million.

We believe that we have a clear simple position on growth. The market we are in is largely
fragmented with no dominant players. The greatest growth potential for Enesco is in focusing on market
share expansion in our core merchandise categories and channels in which we currently operate. From a
historic perspective, while the overall U.S. gift market is not growing, it is very large (estimated to be
$60 billion) with a substantial opportunity for Enesco to increase sales through market share expansion.
We believe that we will be able to do this by narrowing and focusing our product offerings on giftable
items in the four select merchandise categories. We believe that these merchandise categories elicit strong
and sustainable market demand and profitability, and leverage our core distribution base. To give you an
idea of the size of the market share opportunity, if Enesco were to acquire an additional 1% share of the
U.S. gift market, we could more than double our current sales.

Bank Agreements and Fees

In the second quarter of 2005 under our current credit facility, Enesco was required to pay a total of
$1.4 million in bank fees because we did not close a replacement credit facility prior to certain dates in the
second quarter. During 2005 and the first quarter of 2006, Enesco has been and is continuing to seek
replacement financing to pay off the outstanding loans under our existing U.S. credit facility. On
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December 14, 2005, we signed a commitment letter for a replacement senior secured credit facility. In
addition, on December 21, 2005, we entered into a tenth amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility,
extending the facility termination date from December 31, 2005 to January 1, 2007. The tenth amendment
provides that, unless the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the existing U.S. credit facility are
paid in full prior to the following dates, the respective penalty fees will become payable:

» January 1. 2006 $ 75,000 « April 1, 2006 $275.000
* February 1, 2006 $150,000 + May 1, 2006 £750,000
» March 1, 2006 $250,000 » June 1, 2006 $750,000

The amendment also provides for a monthly fee beginning January 1, 2006 through May 1, 2006 in
the amount of 0.10% of the highest amount of loans cutstanding during the preceding month. This fee will
increase to 0.20% beginning June 1, 2006 through January 1, 2007. The amendment establishes cumulative
minimum consolidated EBITDA requirements and cumulative maximum capital expenditure limitations,
which are each measured monthly during 2006.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an eleventh amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility. This
amendment reset Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective January 30,
2006, based on our reforecast and reduced the credit facility commitments from $75.0 million to
$70.0 million effective between the eleventh amendment date and January 1, 2007. In addition, unless the
outstanding loans and letters of credits under the existing U.S. credit facility are paid in full, the eleventh
amendment accelerates by one month the fees per the tenth amendment which were to be due May 1,
2006 and June 1, 2006. The total fee payable April 1, 2006 is $1,025,000 and, unless the outstanding loans
and letters of credit are paid in full prior to May 1, 2006, the fee payable May |, 2006 is $750,000. The
monthly fee of 0.10% of the highest loan amount outstanding during the preceding month will increase to
0.20% on May 1, 2006, rather than June 1, 2006 per the tenth amendment, and will continue until the
lacility termination date. Additional information is set forth in the section below entitled “Credit facilities”
and Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of this.Form 10-K. Enesco was required to
pay the January 1, 2006, February 1, 2006, and March 1. 2006 penalty fees totaling $475,000. Enesco
expects to be subject to and pay the April 1, 2006 penalty fee of $1,025,000.

Net Loss

For the year ended December 31, 2005, Enesco incurred a net loss of $54.0 million. This loss was
due, in part, to the termination of the PMI license agreement which resulted in a reduction in Precious
Moments® product line sales of $23.2 million and a decline in gross margin of $15.9 million which
included termination agreement costs of $7.7 million. In addition, increased spending on bank fees,
penalties and related legal services of $3.9 million and accelerated depreciation on the ERP system of
$3.7 million, severance and facility closure provisions of $2.8 million, inventory reserve provision of
$1.5 million related to the strategy to discontinue over 100 underperforming product lines, increased bad
debt provision of $1.9 million due to implementing tighter credit terms, and the write-off of $1.1 million of
Dartington goodwill in addition to that recently acquired unit’s $2.7 operating loss contributed to our net
loss. For a more complete discussion of the net loss, refer to the Results of Operations, 2005 Compared to
2004 Consolidated Results.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make judgments, assumptions
and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for allowances for doubtful
accounts and sales allowances, inventory valuation, impairments of tangible and intangible assets, and other
special charges and taxes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. When preparing an estimate,
Enesco determines what factors are most likely to affect the estimate. Enesco gathers information inside
and outside the organization. The information then is evaluated and the estimate is made.
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Following are the critical accounting policies that management believes could have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements if these judgments, assumptions and estimates used by
management turn out to be incorrect. Management has discussed these critical accounting policies with
Enesco’s Audit Committee.

Accounts Receivable Allowances

Doubtful Accounts — The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our assessment of the
collectibility of specific customer accounts and the historical write-off percentage applied to outstanding
accounts receivable. If there is deterioration in a major customer’s creditworthiness or actual defaults are
significantly different than our historical experience due to changes in the business environment or other
factors, estimates of the recoverability of amounts due could be affected. This reserve is comprised of two
parts. The first component is for specific accounts whose collectibility, in our opinion, is in question. These
accounts are reviewed on a monthly basis and adjusted as deemed necessary. At December 31, 2005, this
reserve was $3.5 million as compared to $1.7 million at December 31, 2004. The second part is a general
reserve, calculated by applying historical bad debt rates to month-end accounts receivable balances, after
removing specific accounts identified as uncollectible. At December 31, 2003, this component of the
reserve was $1.2 million compared to December 31, 2004, when it was $1.6 million. The historical rate,
which generally does not fluctuate materially, is adjusted annually or as deemed necessary to reflect actual
experience. Historical trends do not guarantee that the rate of future write-offs will not increase. If the
general reserve percentage increased 1%, it would require an increase to the reserve of $0.4 million, as of
December 31, 2005, and a corresponding increase in bad debt expense of $0.4 million. The general reserve
percentage for bad debt at December 31, 2005 has increased 0.4% since December 31, 2004. The total
allowance for doubtful accounts balance at December 31, 2005, was $4.7 million or 9.3% of total accounts
receivable compared to December 31, 2004, when the account was $3.3 million, or 5% of accounts
receivable. This percentage increase is due primarily to a change in the assessment of collectibility of
accounts placed with attorneys or other collectors.

Sales Returns and Allowances — Our estimated provision for sales returns and allowances is recorded
as a reduction of sales revenue because it primarily relates to allowances and other billing adjustments. 1n
cases where credits are issued for merchandise, the goods are typically not saleable and are destroyed. The
sales returns and allowances reserve consists of two parts, the first of which is based on an analysis of
specific accounts in which the customer has taken a deduction or similarly has challenged an invoice, and
we believe the claim will be accepted. This part of the reserve is reviewed by management on a monthly
basis and is adjusted as deemed necessary. At December 31, 2003, this comprised $2.2 million of the
reserve balance as compared to December 31, 2004, when it was $1.2 million of the reserve balance. The
second part is a general reserve, calculated by applying historical percentages of sales returns and
allowances to the current and prior month’s sales. We believe two months to be a reasonable amount of
time for customers to receive and evaluate their order and request a credit if necessary. At December 31,
2005, this component of the reserve was $0.9 million, compared to December 31, 2004 when this
component of the reserve was $1.3 million. The sales allowance balance at December 31, 2005 was
$3.1 million, or 6.0% of accounts receivable. At December 31, 2004, the reserve was $2.5 million, or 3% of
accounts receivable. This percentage increase is attributable primarily to a re-assessment of the
collectibility of customer deductions.

The general reserve fluctuates with sales volume, as sales returns and allowances volumes increase or
decrease with sales levels. This percentage is adjusted yearly, or more frequently if deemed necessary, to
reflect actual experience. If the general reserve percentage increased 1%, it would require an increase to
the reserve of $0.2 million (as of December 31, 2005) and a corresponding decrease in net revenues of
$0.2 million. The general reserve percentage for returns and allowances at December 31, 2005 has not
changed since December 31, 2004. Historical trends do not guarantee that the rate of future returns and
allowances will not increase.
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Inventory Reserves

Excess or Slow Moving Inventory — As part of our process of developing, forecasting and procuring
products, it is likely that excess inventory exists for certain products. In order to liquidate this excess
inventory, the selling price frequently is reduced, often to an amount less than the product cost. Therefore,
an inventory reserve is maintained to properly state inventory at the Jower of cost or market. At every
month end, inventory balances by product are compared to unit sales of that product for the most recent
12 months. The difference between the inventory on hand, by product. and the last 12 months’ sales is
considered excess inventory and subject to reserve. The portion of inventory determined to be excess is
reserved at varying percentages based on the historical sales volume and whether or not the product is still
active or has been discontinued. Discontinued product that is considered slow moving, even though it may
not currently be excess, is reserved at varying percentages based on historical sales. Once inventory has
been identified as excess or slow moving, the reserve established on that portion of inventory cannot be
decreased, although further increases in the reserve on that specific inventory may be necessary as market
conditions change. At December 31, 2005, the inventory reserve balance was approximately $12.0 million
or 24% of gross inventory compared to $9.3 million or 12% of gross inventory at December 31, 2004. This
increase primarily is due to the implementation of the product portfolio rationalization sirategy as a part of
our Operating Improvement Plan to reduce the number of active product lines from 170 to approximately
50 product lines.

The recovery rate on the disposition of excess inventory depends upon a number of factors, such as
market demand for closeout items and levels of such inventory. Historical averages are developed annually
or more often if deemed necessary, and used to determine the likely recoverability of cost. 1f market
conditions deteriorate, it is likely that inventory will be sold at greater discounts, necessitating an increase
to the reserve. A change of 5% in this loss percentage would result in an additional inventory reserve of
$1.3 million as of December 31, 2005.

Inventory Shrinkage — Based on historical trends, a reserve is established in anticipation of inventory
shrinkage during the vear leading up to the time when we take our physical inventory at year-end. This
reserve is eliminated at year-end when we record our actual inventory shrinkage as part of the year-end
physical inventory process. The quarterfy reserve related to shrinkage was $0.1 million for each of the first
three quarters in 2005. As a result of our 2005 year-end physical inventory process a $357.000 adjustment
to inventory to record shrinkage was required compared to $517,000 recorded in 2004.

Impairments of Tangible and Intangible Assets

We assess the recoverability of significant tangibie and intangible assets, including goodwill. under the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142 — “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers” and SFAS No. 144 — “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” For property, plant and equipment, we evaluate the
recoverability of these assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of the assets may not be recoverable. For goodwill, we perform an impairment assessment annually or
more frequently if impairment indicators arise. Based on our annual impairment analysis as of
December 31, 2005, we concluded that we did have an impairment of the goodwill associated with the
2004 acquisition of Dartington. The total $1.1 million of goodwill attributable to Dartington was written off
in December 2005. Due to ongoing operating Josses from the U.S. businesses, excluding Gregg Gift, which
operates at a profit, an assessment of the carrying amount of long-lived assets was again completed as of
December 31, 2005 in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Based on the positive undiscounted cash flows
expected to be generated from our long-lived assets, we concluded that we did not have impairment as of
December 31, 2005. Future cash flow is based on management’s estimates. Should these estimates change,
write downs of long-lived assets may be required.
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Tax Accruals

Accruals have been established for taxes payable and potential tax assessments, including potential
interest as applicable. The accruals are included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to
when assessments may be made and taxes may be paid. We have filed and continue to file tax returns
with a number of taxing authorities worldwide. We believe such filings have been and are in compliance
with applicable laws, regulations and interpretations. Positions taken are subject to challenge by the taxing
authorities, often for an extended number of years after the filing dates. To the extent accruals differ from
assessments, when the open tax years are closed or the accruals are otherwise deemed unnecessary at a
point in time, the accruals are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2005 COMPARED to 2004 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Net Revenue and Gross Profit

Net revenues in 2005 of $244.4 million decreased $24.5 million, or 9.1%, from the 2004 level of
$269.0 million. Revenues in the U.S. declined by $30.9 million, or 19.1%. Revenues from the sales of
collectibles continued to decrease in the U.S. and accounted for $27.3 million of the decline, primarily due
to the substantially reduced level of Precious Monienis® product sales. Revenues for the year were
impacted positively by $1.2 million of higher Disney product line sales to our mass-market and specialty
gift retail accounts. Qur Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore and Foundations® product lines were up
$4.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively, for the year, yet not enough to offset revenue declines in most
of our other product lines. The February 2004 acquisition of Gregg Gift added $0.4 million in additional
revenues for 2005 as compared to 2004. International revenues rose $5.7 million, or 5.2%, primarily due to
the full year impact of $6.8 million in 2005 related to Dartington which was acquired in July 2004,
$8.8 million in higher sales of distributed products from strategic partners, offset by decreases in the sales
of collectibles and generally lower gift sales. Currency rate adjustments during 2005 accounted for less
than $1.0 million of the increase in Enesco’s international sales. Net revenues excluding Precious
Moments® product sales and fees for 2005 were down 2.3% from comparable revenues for 2004.

2005 2004 2003

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore. . ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... .ii. 16% 13% 5%
Precious Moments® . . . e 13% 21% 32%

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore revenues in 2005 of $39.6 million increased $4.0 million, or 11%,
above 2004. This increase is due to higher customer demand for home décor and large-scaled figural
products. Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore revenues represented 16% of consolidated net revenues in 2005
compared to 13% in 2004.

Precious Moments® product revenues in 2005 of $32.5 million decreased $23.2 million, or 42%, versus
2004. Precious Moments® product revenues represented 13% of consolidated net revenues in 2005
compared to 21% in 2004. This decrease primarily is due to our termination of the PMI license agreement
in 2005.

Revenues generated under our various Disney-related licenses in 2005 of $20.6 million, increased
$1.2 million, or 6%, versus 2004. Disney-related licenses revenues represented 8% of consolidated net
revenues in 2005 compared to 7% in 2004. This increase primarily is due to new mass-market programs for

banks, photo frames and waterballs.

During 2003, the number of active memberships for Enesco’s collectors clubs decreased from 2004
membership levels, continuing a downward trend indicative of the declining market interest in and demand
for these collectible products. There were more than 108,000 active collector club members at the end of
2005, a decrease of 18% from 2004, excluding the impact of the transfer of club members to PMI as part
of our license termination agreement. Enesco transferred all rights and privileges associated with the
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U.S. Precious Moments® collectors club to PMI, effective July 1, 2005. Collectors clubs contributed
approximately 1.8% and 2.1% of consolidated net revenues in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Gross profit in 2005 of $82.8 million was down $23.8 million, or 22.3%, from 2004, The gross profit
percentage decreased from 39.6% in 2004 to 33.9% this year. The gross margin percent excluding
U.S. Precious Moments® revenues and costs decreased to 38.1% for 2005 compared to 40.9% for 2004, due
in part to an increase in inventory reserve provisions related to the strategy to discontinue under
performing product lines, increases in discontinued inventories sold at a loss and decreases resulting from a
less favorable mix of products sold.

The following table presents a view of Enesco’s business, without U.S. sales, cost of sales and gross
profit generated from Precious Moments® products, for 2005 and 2004,

Year Ended December 31,

(% in millions) 2005 2004 Change %

Net revenues, other than Precious Moments®. ... ............... $2109 $216.0 (2.3Y%
Precious Momenis® product revenues ...............oovnnn... 29.5 533.0 (44.4)Y%
Precious Moments® service fees . .......... ... ...coiviinnn.. 4.0 — —

Net revenues as reported. . .................. e $2444  $2690 9.1)%

Cost of goods sold, other than Precious Moments® ... .......... $1305  $1277 22 %
Precious Moments® costof sales ..., 19.4 19.7 (L.Y%
Loss on PMI license termination ....................c0uvvnn. 7.7 — —
Precious Momenis® royalties. ............... ... ... ... .... 4.0 15.0 (73.3)%

Cost of goods sold as reported . ... ... ... 0. i, $161.6 $162.4 {0.5)%

Gross margin, excluding Precious Moments® .. ... .. ........... 38.1% 409%

Gross margin, Precious Moments® ............................ 7.1%  34.4%

Gross margin as reported ........... ..t 33.9%  39.6%

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A)

SG&A expenses in 2005 of $130.0 million increased $2.4 million, or 1.9%, above the 2004 level. The
primary costs associated with the increase include higher bank fees, accelerated depreciation on the ERP
system and incremental costs due to the inclusion of Dartington’s results of operations for a full year in
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2005 following our July 2004 acquisition. The following table details the items that had significant impact
on changes in SG&A spending.

SG&A Expense
Increase
(Decrease)
(In millions) 2005 vs. 2004
Reduced spending on selling and marketing initiatives ................... ... $(5.4)
Reduced salaries and benefit costs .. ............ . _ (3.2)
Lower commissions due to reduced sales volume .. .......................... ' (1.9)
Lower travel and entertalnment ... ... . ottt (1.9)
Higher bank fees. ... ... . 3.2
Incremental SG&A costs from the Dartington acquisition .................... 30
Accelerated depreciation on ERP system ........ ... ... ... i 28
Severance and plant closure COStS . .. ... ..ot 24
Increase in bad debt expense ....... ... ... e 1.9
Higher fegal fees. .. ... . o e 1.7
Higher Sarbanes-Oxley compliance costs ........c.ove .. 1.4
Dartington goodwill write-off. ... .. ... . . 1.1
Other, Nt _(0.7)
NEt IRCICASE . .ottt ittt e e et e e e e 2.4

Operating Income (Loss)

The operating loss in 2005 increased to $47.2 million from $17.0 million in the prior year. The main
contributors to this increased loss were lower gross profit of $23.8 million, primarily due to lower sales
volume with an unfavorable impact of approximately $8.0 million, the loss on the termination of the
license agreement with PMI of $7.7 million, increased inventory reserves of $2.3 million, primarily
attributable to the strategy of reducing the number of product lines by approximately 70%, and ar increase
in bank fees of approximately $3.2 million. The U.S. 2005 operating loss of $51.9 million increased
$28.4 million from the operating loss in 2004 of $23.5 million. International operating income in 2005 of
$4.7 miilion reflected a $1.8 million decrease from the 2004 international operating income level of
$6.5 million primarily due to a $2.7 million operating loss from the Dartington operations in 2005
compared to a $0.5 million operating loss in 2004 and a $1.1 million write-off of goodwill.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest expense for 2005 increased $1.1 million to $2.3 million due to higher borrowings and higher
interest rates. Other expenses decreased by $0.4 million in 2005 due primarily to a reduction in unrealized
foreign currency exchange losses.

Provision for Income Tax Expense (Benefit)

For 2005, income tax expense was $4.3 million, which was comprised of a domestic tax benefit of
$1.0 million and a foreign tax expense of $5.3 million. The domestic tax benefit is comprised principally of
benefits totaling $29.4 million from: a net operating loss (NOL) ($20.} million); the reversal of a deferred
tax liability recorded in 2004 as explained below ($7.0 million); the impact of 2004 tax return filings
($1.2 million); and a benefit from the reversal of previously recorded tax reserves no longer required
($1.1 million), offset by a deferred tax asset valuation allowance expense of $28.4 million. The net foreign
tax expense is comprised of $2.5 million related to operations and a reserve established related to an audit
assessment of $2.8 million.
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For 2004, income tax expense was $27.4 million, comprised of domestic tax expense of $23.3 million
~ and foreign tax expense of $4.1 million related to operations. The domestic tax expense was comprised
principally of a benefit from a NOL of $12.9 million offset by an $18.6 million expense related to the
establishment of a valuation allowance to reduce net deferred tax assets to their expected realizable
amount and by a $17.4 million expense related to the recording of a deferred liability on unremitted
earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries because those entities were expected to become guarantors of the
parent’s debt in 2005.

Effective as of December 31, 2004, Enesco was no longer able to rely upon the indefinite reversal
criteria of the Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 23 with respect to the reinvested earnings
of certain of its foreign subsidiaries due to the anticipated guarantee in 2005 of Enesco’s domestic debt by
those subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of the $17.4 million deferred tax liability and related tax
expense noted above. The debt guarantees were put into effect during August 2005 resulting in the
recognition of deemed dividends from those subsidiaries for tax purposes under the U.S. Internal Revenuve
Code. Based upon evaluation of its expected 2005 tax return filing position, Enesco determined that the
amount of deemed dividends was less than originally estimated at the time of the establishment of the
deferred tax lability, and, accordingly, reversed $7.0 million of the liability to 2005 tax expense. as noted
above.

Enesco made no qualifying repatriations under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act™)
during 2005 as there was no benefit to earnings repatriations under the Act in light of Enesco’s current
and prior year domestic NOLs.

Open Orders

Net open orders at December 31, 2005 of approximately $10.4 million decreased 62% over the
December 31, 2004 level of approximately $26.2 million, The decrease is due primarily to the effect of
unshipped orders at December 31, 2004, resulting from the ERP system implementation issues and
fulfillment difficulties. The ERP issues were resolved in the second quarter of 2005 when we returned to
our upgraded version of our legacy software system. The December 31, 2005 net open orders do not
include orders for Precious Moments® products due to the termination of our license agreement with PMI.
Open orders consist of orders received and approved by Enesco. subject to canceilation for various reasons,
including credit considerations and product availability. We believe the open orders as of December 31.
2005 are more indicative of a normal year-end than the open orders at December 31, 2004.

2004 COMPARED to 2003 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Net Revenue and Gross Profit

Net revenues in 2004 of $269.0 million increased $12.6 million, or 5%, over the 2003 level of
$256.4 million. The increase primarily was due to the 2004 acquisitions of Gregg Gift and Dartington of
$14.0 million, successes among newer product lines such as Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore of
approximately $23.7 million and Walt Disney Classics Collection® of approximately $9.2 million, and
favorable foreign currency translation rate impacts of approximately $10.8 million. Those revenue increases
were offset partially by declining revenues for Precious Moments® of approximately $27.5 million and
Cherished Teddies® of approximately $7.0 million. The remaining decline in revenues of approximately
$9.5 million resulted from Jower revenues in several smaller product lines such as Growing Up Birthday
Girls®, John Deere® and Mary’s Moo Moos.

U.S. net revenues in 2004 of $160.5 million decreased $4.3 million, or 3%, below the 2003 level of
$164.8 million. The decrease primarily was due to lower collectible market revenues from Precious
Monients® of $24.8 million, down 32%, and Cherished Teddies® of $4.8 million, down 41%, $6.1 million
from lower revenues in several smaller product lines such as John Deere and Mary's Moo Moos and lower
mass-market promotional revenues of $2.3 million and closeout revenues of $2.6 million. These decreases
were offset partially by increased revenues from acquisitions and newer product lines, such as Heartwood
Creek™ by Jim Shore of approximately $21.0 million and the Walt Disney Classics Collection® license of
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approximately $6.9 million. The 2004 acquisition of Gregg Gift provided revenues of $7.2 million during
the 10 months owned by Enesco. The U.S. revenue represented 59% of total revenues in 2004 compared to
64% of total revenues in 2003. This decrease of 5% primarily was due to Precious Moments® and
Cherished Teddies® revenue declines which more than offset revenue increases from acquisitions, new
product lines in 2004 versus 2003, and increased international revenue.

International net revenues in 2004 of $108.5 million increased $16.9 million, or 18%, above the 2003
level of $91.6 million. The increase primarily was due to $6.8 million increased revenues from the
Dartington acquisition in July 2004, sales of newer product lines, such as Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore
of approximately $2.6 million. smaller product lines of approximately $3.3 million and the favorable effect
of changes in foreign currency translation rates of $9.7 million. These increases were offset by declines in
Precious Momenis® of $2.7 million and Cherished Teddies® of $2.2 million. International net revenues
represented 41% of consolidated revenues in 2004 compared to 36% in 2003. This increase of 5% primarily
was due to focal currency revenues, which were translated into U.S. dollars at higher exchange rates in
2004 versus 2003, and the acquisition of Dartington.

The following product lines accounted for 10% or more of consolidated revenue in 2004, 2003 and
2002:

2004 2003 2062

Precious Moments® . .. . 21%  32% 31%
Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore. .. ......... ... 0o ... 3% 5% 1%
Cherished Teddies®. ... ... . . . . . . . . . 5% 8% 11%

Precious Moments® net revenues in 2004 of $55.7 million decreased $27.5 million, or 32%, versus
2003. This decrease primarily was due to continued lower consumer demand for collectible figurines.

Cherished Teddies® net revenues in 2004 of $12.6 million decreased $7.0 million, or 36%, versus 2003.
This decrease was primarily due to continued decline in consumer demand for collectible figurines.

Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore revenues in 2004 of $35.6 million increased $23.7 million above
2003. The nearly two-fold increase primarily is due to higher customer demand for the unique design of
these Jim Shore Designs products, and the added international demand of approximately $2.6 million.

The number of collector club members in 2004 for Precious Moments® and Cherished Teddies®
product lines decreased by approximately 20% compared to the 21% decrease from 2002 to 2003, primarily
due to lower consumer interest in collectible figurines in 2004 versus 2003. Collector clubs provided
approximately 2% of consolidated revenue in 2004 compared to approximately 3% in 2003. In 2004,
Enesco acquired the Walt Disney Classics Collection® collector club, which added more than 28,000 active
members in 2004.

The licensing acquisition of Walr Disney Classics Collection® provided revenues of $9.2 million in
2004.

Net revenues of newer product lines in 2004, such as Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore, Bratz’™, Walt
Disney Classics Collection® and My Little Kitchen Fairies™ accounted for approximately 19% of
consolidated revenue in 2004 as compared to approximately 6% of consolidated revenue in 2003.

Gross profit in 2004 of $106.5 million decrcased $9.2 million, or 8%, below the 2003 level of
$115.7 million. The decrease primarily was due to ERP system implementation difficulties, inventory
valuation charges, higher freight costs and changes in the overall product mix. Additionally, incremental
gross profit from the Gregg Gift and Dartington acquisitions, the new Walr Disney Classics Collection®
and Hearrwood Creek™ by Jim Shore product lines, and the favorable impact of foreign currency
translation rates were offset partially by a volume-related decline in gross profit caused by lower product
revenue of collectible figurines lines, Precious Moments® and Cherished Teddies®. The gross profit margin
expressed as a percentage of net revenues was 39.6% in 2004, compared to 45.1% in 2003.
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The following table reflects the changes in gross profit from 2003 to 2004:
Increase

(In millions) {Decrease)
Inventory valuation charges . ... ... ... ... ... $ (2.0)
ERP system implementation COStS. ... .. ..ottt e (2.7)
Higher freight Costs . .. ... . (2.0)
Foreign currency translation rates . ............... B 37
Royalty costs ... oo i s (4.9)
Product mix (VOIIMIE) ..o it e (12.2)
Acquisition of Gregg Gift ... ... . 2.9
Acquisition of Dartington . ... e 22
License acquisition of Walt Disney Classics Collection®. ........................ 58
Total gross profit change. . ... .. ... . . i $ (9.2)

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A)

SG&A in 2004 of $127.5 million increased $26.7 million, 26.5% above the 2003 level of
$100.8 million. The increase primarily is due to the normal operating expenses from the Wait Disney
Classics Collection® license acquisitions, Dartington and Gregg Gift acquisitions of approximately
$9.6 million, the impact of foreign currency translation rate changes of approximately $3.5 million, and
unplanned costs related to the ERP system implementation of approximately $5.0 million. Additional costs
were incurred in 2004 for marketing efforts for the Precious Moments® brand of approximately
$1.0 million, Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 compliance of approximately $1.0 million. former executives’
and international severance of approximately $2.3 million, strategic studies of $0.6 million and depreciation
on the ERP system of approximately $1.6 million.

In 2004, there was a gain recorded on the sale of the EGV facility of approximately $4.0 million.

Operating Income (Loss)

The operating loss of $17.0 million in 2004 compares to an operating profit in 2003 of $14.9 million.
The decrease in profit primarily was due to lower sales of Precious Moments® and Cherished Teddies®
having an unfavorable impact on earnings of approximately $25.0 million, offset by improved operating
income of approximately $14.0 million, primarily due to newer product lines, such as Hearrwood Creek™
by Jim Shore and the acquisitions of the Walr Disney Classics Collection® license, and the Gregg Gift and
Dartington businesses. Additionally, the operating loss was increased by ERP-related charges of
approximately $11.0 million, higher inventory valuation charges of approximately $2.0 million, and
increased SG&A as described above, offset by the gain on the sale of the EGV building. The U.S. 2004
operating loss of $23.5 million decreased $28.1 million below the income level in 2003 of $4.6 million.
International 2004 operating income of $6.3 million reflected a $3.9 million decrease, or 37% below 2003
operating income of $10.3 million.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest expense in 2004 of $1.1 million increased $0.4 million, or 46%, above the 2003 level of
$0.8 million. The increase primarily was due to higher borrowings and higher interest rates. Interest
income in 2004 of $0.4 million decreased $0.1 million, or 25%, from the 2003 level of $0.5 million. The
decrease primarily was due to Jower cash balances available for investments during 2004. Other expense in
2004 was $0.1 million compared to an expense of $0.3 million in 2003.
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Provision for Income Tax Expense {Benefit)

For 2004, income tax expense was $27.4 million, comprised of domestic tax expense of $23.3 million
and foreign tax expense of $4.1 million related to operations. The domestic tax expense was comprised
principally of a benefit from an NOL of $12.9 million and offset by an $18.6 million expense related to
the establishment of a valuation allowance to reduce net deferred tax assets to their expected realizable
amount and by a $17.4 million expense related to the recording of a deferred liability on unremitted
carnings of certain foreign subsidiaries because those entities were expected to become guarantors of the
parent’s debt in 2005. For 2003, the net tax benefit was $2.9 million, comprised of a domestic tax benefit
of $7.9 million and foreign tax expense of $5.0 million on operations. The domestic benefit included the
impact of the reversal of $6.9 million of income tax accruals no longer required due to the expiration of
various statutes of limitations.

Effective as of December 31, 2004, Enesco was no longer able to rely upon the indefinite reversal
criteria of the Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 23 with respect to the reinvested earnings
of certain of its foreign subsidiaries due to the anticipated guarantee in 2005 of the Enesco’s domestic debt
by those subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of the $17.4 million deferred tax liability and related tax
expense noted above.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations and available
financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs, capital expenditures and other liquidity
requirements associated with our existing operations. There are no assurances, however, of our ability to
secure replacement financing of the senior revolving credit facility, which expires January 1, 2007, or that
we will successfully negotiate more favorable covenants, obtain further waivers of existing or future
covenants if violated or maintain sufficient loan advance rates on eligible collateral. Also, in the course of
pursuing growth opportunities, including, but not limited to, acquisitions and alliances, Enesco may need to
negotiate additional or amend existing credit facilities. In addition, there were no transactions.
arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, as of December 31, 2005,
that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or requirements for capital resources.

Liquid Assets

Cash and cash equivalents on December 31, 2005 were $12.9 million versus $14.6 million at
December 31, 2004, Cash and cash equivalents are a function of cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities. We historically have satisfied capital requirements with borrowings and, in 2004,
proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment. Cash balances and working capital requirements
fluctuate due to operating results, shipping cycles, accounts receivable collections, inventory management
and timing of payments, among other factors. Working capital requirements fluctuate during the year and
generally are greatest early in the fourth quarter and lowest early in the first quarter.

Cash Flows

The net cash used by operating activities is a function of our net loss, offset by non-cash expenses,
such as depreciation and the provision for deferred income taxes, as well as changes in working capital.
Net cash used in operations totaled $4.4 million for 2005 versus $21.6 million used in 2004. Non-cash
expenses were $13.3 million lower in 2005 than in the same period in 2004, primarily due to the
$24.6 million in deferred income taxes in 2004 that was greater than the $7.7 million loss on the PMI
license termination in 2005. Non-cash expenses in 2005 also included the write-off of the $1.1 million in
goodwill associated with the Dartington acquisition.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, changes in operating assets and liabilities provided
$34.0 million of cash, which was $39.3 million favorable to the same period last year, during which
$5.3 million of cash was used. Accounts receivable decreased $27.0 million during 2005, compared to an
-increase of $1.0 million for the 2004 period. The decrease in 2005 was due, in part, to lower revenues in

40




2005 compared to 2004, as well as to sales terms more favorable to Enesco, improved collection efforts
and stricter credit policy management.

We incurred a $7.7 million non-cash loss on the transfer of inventory related to the PMI termination
agreement in the second quarter of 2005. In addition to the decrease in inventories due to the transfer,
FPrecious Moments® inventories declined another $4.7 million in 2005 due to declining purchases. Net of
the decline due to Precious Moments®, inventories decreased an additional $10.6 million during 2005,
primarily due to warehouse order processing efficiencies, more efficient procurement of seasonal
merchandise and other products and an increase in inventory reserves for discontinued product lines from
implementing our Operating lmprovement Plan.

The net cash used by investing activities during 2005 of $1.5 million showed an increase of
$1.8 million compared to 2004, during which Enesco generated $19.3 million from the sale of the EGV
warchouse and used $14.4 million for the acquisitions of Gregg Gift and Dartington. Additionally, Enesco’s
property, plant and equipment expenditures decreased from $4.6 million in 2004 to $2.3 million in 2005.

The net cash provided by financing activities in 2005 totaled $4.9 million versus $24.2 million for
2004. The decrease resulted primarily from a $18.1 million decline in borrowing activities, which was made
possible by better asset management of receivables and inventories in 2005 versus 2004. The primary
financing requirements in 2005 were capital expenditures and the funding of the cash used in operations.

Stock-based compensation expense is classified as an operating activity in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. For 2004 and 2003, we reclassified $1.3 million and $1.0 million, respectively
of stock-based compensation expense from investing activities to operating activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

Operating lmprovement Plan Goals

Enesco has specific liquidity and profitability goals built in its Operating Improvement Plan. Enesco
seeks to build a profitable, sustainable business model focused on high margin gift products. This operating
model will target gross margins in the range of 40% to 45% and an operating profit margin of 3% to 5% to
be achieved in 2007.

Credit Facilities

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a three-year domestic $50.0 million unsecured revolving credit
facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement
contains financial and operating covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens,
acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing Enesco’s shares and paying dividends. In addition, Enesco is
required to satisfly fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage ratio tests at the end of each quarter and a
minimum annual operating profit covenant.

On January 28, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic credit
facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million
until March 31, 2005. The lenders also waived the resetting of, and compliance with, financial covenants
as of December 31, 2004. Also on January 28, 2005, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened
to end March 31, 2005.

On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic credit facility,
effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility through January 1, 2006. The credit facility
commitments ranged from $30 million to $70 million, based on Enesco’s seasonal borrowing needs. The
amendment also set certain financial covenants for 2005. In the event that the outstanding loans under the
domestic credit facility were not repaid in full (i) by May 16, 2003, a fee in the amount of $700,000
became payable; (ii) by June 30, 2005, another fee of $700,000 became payable; and (iii) with proceeds
provided by lenders that include Fleet National Bank (“Fleet”) or an affiliate of Fleet a fee of $1,750,000
became payable.
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Under our current credit facility, we were required to pay a total of $1.4 million in penalty fees
because we did not close a replacement credit facility during the second quarter of 2005.

On June 10, 2005, we notified Fleet as agent under our existing U.S. credit facility with Fleet and
LaSalle Bank N.A ., that we were not in compliance with our minimum EBITDA covenant as of April 30,
2005, which was predominantly due to non-cash accruals related 1o the timing of the execution of Enesco’s
agreement with PMI, as discussed in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. On
June 28, 2005, we obtained a waiver of our minimum EBITDA covenant default for April and May 2005,
and a waiver of compliance with this covenant through July 31, 2005. We also advised Fleet of the need to
renegotiate our financial covenants for additional months during the term of our existing credit facility
primarily because of lower projected sales and lower gross margins during the same period.

On July 7. 2005, we entered into an eighth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The eighth
amendment added accounts receivable and inventory of N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited, our Canadian
subsidiary, to the borrowing base under the credit facility and reduced the advance rate on inventory from
50% to 33% effective July 31, 2005, The fee of $1.75 million payable on the termination of the
commitment under the credit facility was eliminated.

As of August 31, 2005, we entered into a ninth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The
ninth amendment reset Enesco’s minimum EBITDA and capital expenditure covenants through the facility
termination date, December 31, 2005, based on our reforecast and long-term partnership with Bank of
America, as successor to Fleet, and LaSalle Bank. The ninth amendment also added the accounts
receivable and inventories of Enesco Limited, Enesco Holdings Limited and Bilston & Battersea Enamels
Limited, and the accounts receivable of Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as eligible collateral to the
borrowing base under the current credit facility. The ninth amendment also increased the current credit
facility size to $75.0 million, rather than a variable size of $50.0 million to $70.0 million.

On December 14, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter with LaSalle Business Credit, LLC to
arrange a new $75 million senior secured credit facility. If entered into, the new credit facility with
LaSalle will have a term of five years and will replace our existing credit facility with Bank of America, as
successor to Fleet National Bank, and LaSalle Bank. As the Administrative Agent, LaSalle expects to
form a syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the new credit facility. The commitment letter
contains a number of conditions that must be satisfied in order for the facility to be closed, including:

» Enesco having a minimum borrowing availability of at least $10 miliion at the time of closing,
+ the lender’s completion of its final due diligence with respect to Enesco and its subsidiaries,
» the negotiation and execution of a definitive credit agreement,

» there being no material adverse change in our business, assets, liabilities, properties, condition
{financial or otherwise), results of operations or prospects of Enesco and its subsidiaries since
December 31, 2004, there being no material disruption or material adverse change in financial,
banking or capital markets generally affecting credit facilities, and

» various appraisals, as well as other standard and customary conditions.

Under the letter, the commitment was to close on the new credit facility on or before January 31, ,
2006. On January 31, 2006, Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle
Business Credit, LLC, (LaSalle) extending the expiration date from January 31, 2006 to February 28,
2006. On February 28, 2006, Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle
extending the expiration date from February 28, 2006 to March 31, 2006. On March 31, 2006, Enesco
received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle extending the expiration date from
March 31, 2006 to April 30, 2006.

On December 21, 2005, Enesco entered into a tenth amendment to its existing U.S. credit facility
extending the facility termination date from December 31, 2005 to January 1, 2007. The tenth amendment
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provides that, uniess the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the existing U.S. credit facility are
paid in full prior to the following dates, the respective fees will become payable:

» January 1, 2006  § 75,000 « April 1, 2006 $275,000
« February [, 2006 $150,000 + May I, 2006 $750,000
« March 1, 2006 $250,000 e June 1, 2006 $750,000

The amendment also provides for a monthly fee beginning January 1, 2006 through May 1, 2006 in
the amount of 0.10% of the highest amount of loans that were outstanding during the preceding month.
This fee will increase to 0.20% beginning June 1, 2006 through January 1, 2007. The amendment
establishes curnulative minimum consolidated EBITDA requirements and cumulative maximum capital
expenditure limitations, which are each measured monthly during 2006. Enesco was required to pay the
January 1, February 1, and March 1, 2006 bank penalty fees totaling $475,000. Enesco expects to pay the
April 1, 2006 penalty fee of $275,000.

During the first quarter, Enesco notified Bank of America, as agent under our existing U.S. credit
facility, of its anticipated need to renegotiate its cumulative minimum EBITDA covenants for each of the
months of 2006 primarily due to slower revenue shipments in the U.S. and the U.K.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an eleventh amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility. This
amendment reset Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective January 30,
2006, based on our reforecast and reduced the credit facility commitments from $75.0 million to
$70.0 million effective between the eleventh amendment date and January 1, 2007. In addition, unless the
outstanding loans and letters of credits under the existing U.S. credit facility are paid in full, the eleventh
amendment accelerates by one month the fees per the tenth amendment which were to be due May 1,
2006 and June 1, 2006. The total fee payable April 1, 2006 is $1,025,000 and, unless the outstanding loans
and letters of credit are paid in full prior to May 1, 2006, the fee payable May 1, 2006 is $750,000. The
monthly fee of 0.10% of the highest loan amount outstanding during the preceding month will increase to
0.20% on May 1, 2006, rather than June 1, 2006 as per the tenth amendment, and will continue until the
facility termination date.

Enesco is seeking replacement financing to pay off the existing U.S. credit facility. There are no
assurances that we will secure replacement financing of the U.S. senior revolving credit facility. which
expires on January 1, 2007. Under a contemplated replacement facility, Enesco will be the borrower, and
Enesco and our material domestic and foreign subsidiaries likely will be guarantors. In connection with
closing on a replacement senior credit facility. we may need to obtain additional financing secured by,
among other things, certain foreign inventory and receivable collateral from Canada, Hong Kong and the
U.K., as well as certain real estate assets, in order to satisfy minimum excess availability conditions.
Moreover, we anticipate that the proposed replacement facility will contain standard terms and conditions,
and financial and other covenants including, without limitation, restrictions on incurring indebtedness and
liens, acquisitions, change of control, change of management, selling property, repurchasing our shares and
paying dividends.

At December 31, 2005, Enesco had total lines of credit providing for maximum borrowings of
$78.8 million, $75.0 million was available under our current U.S. credit facility, and $3.8 million under
international facilities. Actual borrowings of $30.8 million and letters of credit and a customs bond totaling
$4.2 million were outstanding at December 31, 2005. The net available borrowing capacity under our
current U.S. credit facility based on eligible collateral as of December 31, 2005 was $13.2 million. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, Enesco had $30.8 million and $26.4 million, respectively of interest bearing
debt.

Enesco has various non-qualified supplemental retirement plans. Benefits under these plans are paid
from Enesco’s assets. During 2005 and 2004, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, were paid to fund
benefits. Enesco has established grantor trusts to hold assets for some of these non-qualified plans. The
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assets are subject to the claims of creditors and therefore, are not considered plan assets and are excluded
from retirement plan computations.

Fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar versus international currencies affect the U.S. dollar
translation value of international currency denominated balance sheet items. The changes in the balance
sheet dollar values due to international currency translation fluctuations are recorded as a component of
shareholders’ equity under accumulated other comprehensive income.

Contractual Obligations

A summary of significant contractual obligations are as follows:

(In thousands) 2006 2007 2008 2609 2010 Thereafter Total

Line of credit borrowings(1) ... $30,823 ¢ — § — $ — § — § — $30.823
Lettersof credit .............. 4,177 —_ — — — — 4,177
Purchase obligations .......... 14,737 — — — — — 14,737
Post-retirement benefits .. ... .. 142 124 113 111 106 544 1,142
Distribution and warehousing . . . 3,049 3,049 3,049 3,049 3,049 15,245
Operating leases.............. 5,843 2,241 1,369 954 581 1,564 12,552
Minimum royalty guarantees . .. 2,131 329 12 — — — 2,471

Total contractual cash
obligations................. $60,902 $5,744 $4,543 $4,114 $3,737 $2,108 $81,i147

(1) Future variable rate interest payments have been excluded under our short-term debt agreements.

Enesco’s credit agreement and some of its real estate leases and license agreements include provisions
that in the event of default the creditor may, in certain circumstances, accelerate the amount owed.

Sale and Leaseback

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its EGV property, warehouse and distribution facility and certain
machinery and equipment for approximately $19.8 million and agreed to a five-year leaseback of the
facility. The assets sold had a net book value of $6.6 million at the date of sale, resulting in the
recognition of a $4.0 million gain on the sale in December 2004. An additional $8.6 million gain was
deferred, to be recognized over the five-year term of the lease. In December 2005, we notified the lessor of
this facility that we would terminate the lease at December 31, 2006 in compliance with the early
termination clause provided for in the lease agreement. The deferred gain, which totaled $6.9 million at
December 1, 2005, will be recognized on a monthly basis equal to the facility rent expense through
November 2006, with the resulting balance recognized in December 2006.

Market Risk

Concentrations of risk for Enesco exist in revenue from major product lines, foreign sources of
inventory, market and geographic areas and trade receivables. The majority of product revenues are items
produced using licensed rights from third parties. The two largest licensed lines, Precious Moments® and
Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore represented $72.1 million, or 29%, of total revenues for 2003,
$91.3 million, or 34%, of total revenues for 2004, and $95.1 million, or 37%, of total revenues for 2003. A
negotiated termination of the Precious Moments® license was reached and became effective during 2005
(see Note 9 of the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K). Extended credit terms
are offered to customers. Enesco continually monitors and manages the risks associated with all these
activities.

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and product sourcing
locations around the world, Enesco may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
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exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco
does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco regularly monitors
foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract amounts do not exceed the amounts of the
underlying exposures. '

Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and intercompany foreign
currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency hedging activities is to protect Enesco
from the risk that the eventual settlement of foreign currency transactions will be affected adversely by
changes in exchange rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various foreign exchange
forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the
instruments are carried at fair value on the balance sheet as a component of other current assets or other
current liabilities. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable
hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
and reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.
Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that do not meet the applicable hedging
criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded currently in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or loss,
as applicable. Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or financial
condition during 2005.

At the present time, Enesco hedges only those currency exposures associated with certain assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and periodically will hedge anticipated foreign currency cash
flows. The hedging activity undertaken by Enesco is intended to offset the impact of currency fluctuations
on certain foreign currency transactions.

The table below details our outstanding currency instruments as of December 31, 2005, all of which
have scheduled maturity dates before October 17, 2006:

Forward Contracts Notional Amount Exchange Rate
(In thousands)
Euros $1.000 1.2350

As of December 31, 2005, Enesco had a total of $30.8 million of interest bearing debt outstanding, all
in the U.S., with a floating interest rate of 6.27%, compared to an aggregate debt balance of $26.4 million
with a floating interest rate of approximately 4.0% at December 31, 2004.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, which amended the guidance in
Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 43 to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense, freight handling costs and wasted material (spoilage). It also requires that the allocation
of fixed production overhead to the cost of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production
facilities. The standard is effective for inventory costs incurred by Enesco beginning January 1, 2006. We
do not anticipate that the implementation of FAS No. 151 will have a significant impact on the results of
our operations.

In December 2004, FASB revised FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. This Statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued 10
Employees, and its related implementation guidance. This Statement establishes standards for the
accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It
also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are
based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those
equity instruments. This Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity
obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. This Statement does not change the
accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in
Statement 123 as originally issued and EITF lssue No. 96-18. Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are
Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. This
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Statement does not address the accounting for employee share ownership plans, which are subject to
AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, Emplovers’ Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans. This
Statement is effective as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins after June 15,
2005. Eresco is required to adopt this Statement for the quarter beginning January 1, 2006. This revised
Statement will be applicable for Enesco’s yearly service awards granted after the required effective date
and modified, repurchased or cancelled after that date. The impact on our Consolidated Statement of
Operations for 2006 for options granted prior to the adoption of FAS 123 is not anticipated to be
significant due to the acceleration of vesting on all previous options granted at a price greater than the
market price in November 2005.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations, which provides additional guidance on conditional asset retirement obligations under
FAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. This standard is effective for fiscal years
ended after December 15, 2005. The implementation of FAS No. 143 did not have a significant impact on
the results of our operations in 20035.

In May 2005, the FASB issued FAS No. 154, which addresses the accounting and reporting for
changes in accounting principles. FAS No. 154 replaces APB Opinion No. 20. APB Opinion No. 20
allowed a change in accounting principle to be accounted for generally as a cumulative effect adjustment
in the current year's financial statements. FAS No. 154 states that the change be reported retrospectively,
and requires the following:

» The cumulative effect of the change to the new accounting principle on periods prior to those
presented shall be reflected in the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of
the first period presented.

« An offsetting adjustment, if any, shall be made to the opening balance of retained earnings {or
other appropriate components of equity or net assets in the statement of financial position) for that
period.

» Financial statements for each individual prior period presented shall be adjusted to reflect the
period-specific effects of applying the new accounting principle.

FAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005. This Statement will be applicable for Enesco beginning in 2006.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Enesco’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its domestic credit
facility. The outstanding balance under its credit facility accrues interest at a variable rate. As of
December 31, 2005, Enesco had a total of $30.8 million of interest bearing debt outstanding, all in the
U.S., with a floating interest rate of approximately 6.27% compared to an aggregate debt balance of
$26.4 million with a floating interest rate of approximately 4% at December 31, 2004. If amounts
outstanding under Enesco’s credit facility remained at this year-end level for an entire year and the
variable interest rate increased or decreased by 1%, the annual interest expense or savings, respectively,
would be approximately $0.3 million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and product sourcing
locations around the world. Enesco may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco
does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco regularly monitors
foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract amounts do not exceed the amounts of the
underlying exposures.
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Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and intercompany foreign
currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency hedging activities is to protect Enesco
from the risk that the eventual settlement of foreign currency transactions will be adversely affected by
changes in exchange rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various foreign exchange
forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the
instruments are carried at fair value in the balance sheet as a component of other current assets or other
current liabilities. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable
hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and reclassified
into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. Changes in the fair
value of foreign exchange forward contracts that do not meet the applicable hedging criteria of SFAS 133
are recorded currently in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or loss, as applicable.

Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or financial condition during
2005.

The table below details our outstanding currency instruments as of December 31, 2005, all of which
have scheduled maturity dates before October 17, 2006:

Forward Contracts Notional Amount Exchange Rate
(In thousands)
Euros $1.000 1.2350
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004

(In thousands) 2005 2004
ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash eqUIvalEmts ... . ottt i i i it i $ 12918 § 14,646
Accounts receivable, Net . ... .. ... e 42285 70,526
INVen T e . . 40,659 63,371
Prepaid eXpenses . ... e 3,471 3,310
Deferred income taxes . . .. ... i it e e 783 920

Total current assets ........c.vr v ininnnn.. ettt 100,116 154,773
Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost: ‘

Land and ImMprovements .. ..ottt e e e 1,200 1,200

Buildings and improvements .. ... .. ... . . 19,538 22,131

Machinery and equipment . ... ... . e 9,636 10,273

Office furniture and eqUIPMERt ... ... ... i e 37.826 37454

Transportation eqUIPMENT . . .. ...ttt e e e 532 796

68,732 71,854

Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization ......................... (53,228) (49,345)
Property, plant and equipment, net ........ ... .. i 15,504 22,509

Other Assets:

Goodwill L. . 8,364 9,403

Other . e e 3,135 4,116

Deferred IMCOME taXeS . . ..t ittt e e e e 3,072 3,082

Total Other @8Sets . ... ottt it e e e 14,571 16,601

Total ASSEtS . .o i e $ 130,191 § 193,883

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Notes and loans payable ... ... .. o i i e $ 30,823 § 26,354
Accounts payable . ... 15,306 18,680
Federal, state and foreign InCOME 1AXES ... ...ttt iririr e, 9,005 6,405
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets ........ ... ... oo i i, 6,358 1,711
Accrued expenses —

Payroll and commussions ... ... oottt i e e 3,083 2,599

RoOyalties . . o o i 5,782 12,267

Post-retirement benefits ... .. e e 142 165

Other . 5,585 6,597

Total current liabilities . ... ........ .. .. . . . 76,084 74,778
Long-term Liabilities:

Post-retirement benefits .. ... .. ... . . . . e 1,281 3,008
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets ........ ... ... ... i, — 6,330

Total long-term liabilities . ... ... .. ... i i e 1,281 9,838
Shareholders” Equity:

Common stock, par value $0.125:

Authorized 80,000 shares; Issued 25,228 shares........................... 3,154 3,154
Capital inexcess of parvalue, . ... ... . . 41,430 44,229
Retained earmings. ... ...ttt e e 248 437 302,462
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ......... ... . o e 4,438 8,152

297,459 357,997
Less — Shares held in treasury, at cost:

Common stock, 10,308 shares in 2005 and 10,671 shares in 2004.............. (244,633)  (248,730)
Total shareholders” equity .. .. ... ... o e 52,326 109,267
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ..... ... .. . ... $ 130,191 § 193.883

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
I O 1 1 13 T PN $244.434 $268.967 $256,426
Costofsales ......... .o i 153,935 162,423 140,714
Cost of sales — loss on license termination ...................... 7.713 — —
Gross profit .................... e e s 32,786 106,544 115,712
Selling, general and administrative expenses ..................... 129,956 127,543 100,811
Gainonsaleof building . ........ ... ... ... ... — {3,985) —
Total selling, general and administrative expenses . ............... 129,956 123,558 100,811
Operating income (loss) ........... e (47,170) (17,014) 14,901
Interest expense. ... ... e e (2.260) (1,148) (787)
Interest income . ....... ... ... . ... i P 201 404 537
Other expense, Nel .. ... ... . . .t (449) (735) (319)
Income (loss) before income taxes............cooieieioii... (49,678) (17,833) 14,332
Income tax (expense) benefit ....... ... ... ... ... ... . . ... (4,347) (27,355) 2,950
Net income (105S) oo vttt e e $(54,025) $(45,188) $ 17,282
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:

BasiC. . e e $ (367) $ (3.16) $ 123
Diluted ... e $ (367) § (3.16) § 1.20

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

(In thousands)
Balance December 31, 2002

Netincome...............
Currency translation
adjustments.............
Total comprehensive income
Exercise of stock options. ...
Other common stock
issuance................
Balance December 31, 2003

Netloss..................
Currency translation
adjustments.............
Total comprehensive loss . ..
Exercise of stock options. . . .
Other common stock
1S5UANCE . ... ... ...,
Balance December 31, 2004

Netloss..................
Currency translation
adjustments. .......... ..
Total comprehensive loss . ..
Exercise of stock options. . ..
Other common stock
issuance................

Balance December 31, 2005

Accumulated

. Capital i Othe Total
Common Stock Treasury Stock Eigless :f, Comprchernsive Retained Sharch:lders‘

Shares Amount  Shares Amount Par Value Income Earnings Equity
25.228 83,154 11.319 $(256,045) $47,148 $(2.712)  §330,368 8121913
17,282 17.282

6,452 6.452

23,734

(134) 1,409 (821) 588

(121) 1,468 (464) 1,004

25.228 $3,154 11,064 $(253,168) $45863 $ 3.740 $347,650  $147,239
(45,188) (45,188)

4,412 4412
(40,776)

(262) 2,951 (1,399) 1,552

(131) 1,487 (235) 1,252

25,228 $3,154 10,671 $(248,730) $44,229 $ 8,152 $302,462  $109,267
' (54,025)  (54.025)
(3,714) (3,714)
(57,739)

(50) 562 (240) 322

(313) 3,535 (2,559) 976

25,228 $3,154 10,308 $(244,633) $41,430 $ 4438 $248,437 § 52.826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

51




ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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{In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Nt 1088 . o $(54,025) $(45,188) $17,282
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating
activities
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment . .. 7,768 7,111 5,236
Write-down of goodwill ........... ... S 1,091 _ —
Deferred income 1axes ... ... ittt 124 24,557 (801)
Gains (losses) on sales of capital assets........................ (2,080) (4,014) -5
Stock based compensation . ... ... 976 1,252 1,004
Loss on license termination .............. .. .. . ., 7.713 — —
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . ... ... 26,994 (965)  (7,108)
INVENTOMIES o ottt e e e 15,344 585 (9,401)
Prepaid expenses . . ... . (316) 1,134 (1,236)
Other A88ETS L .ottt e e e 488 (1,155) 956
Accounts payable and accrued expenses .......... e (9.333) (3,539)  (1,090)
Income taxes payable ... ... ... .. . . 2,597 (1,077)  (7.953)
Long-term post retirement benefits. . ........................ (1,727) (313) 156
Net cash used by operating activities . ........... ... ... ... ... ... (4,386)  (21,612)  (2,950)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ...................... (2,348) (4,552)  (5,918)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired. . ... ... ... ... . L o iioL. — (14,409)  (3.732)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment .............. 809 19,265 37
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities .................... (1,539) 304 (9,613)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net issuance of notes and loans payable ...................... ... 4,599 22,656 2,677
Common stock issuance and exercise of stock options.............. 322 1,552 588
Net cash provided by financing activities.................. ... .. .... 4,921 24,208 3,265
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ......... (724) 1.101 2,525
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................... (1,728) 400] (6.773)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ..................... 14,646 10,645 17418
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .......................... $ 12918 § 14,646 $10,645
Supplemental disclosure of cash paid for: (In millions)
Interest .. ... B $ 19 § 07 § 04
Income taxes .. ..ot e .. 3 63 $ 39§ 45




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Enesco Group, Inc.
and its subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned (“Enesco™, “we” or “our™). Enesco, which operates in
a single industry segment, designs, manufactures and markets a wide variety of licensed and proprietary
branded giftware and home and garden décor products to retailers in the U.S., Canada and Europe. All
significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
U.S. requires the use of management estimates. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Certain
reclassifications were made in the 2004 and 2003 financial statements to conform to the 2005 presentation,
including reclassifying changes in stock-based compensation in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
from financing activities to operating activities. We also reclassified bank fees and credit card fees in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations from other expense to seiling, general and administrative expenses.
These reclassifications had a negative effect of $1.3 million and $1.0 million on our operating income
(loss) for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, but had no effect on the previously
reported net income (loss) for these periods. Lastly, we reclassified certain employee benefit obligations in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets from accrued expenses — other to accrued expenses — payroll and
commissions.

Assets and liabilities of Enesco’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange
rate on the balance sheet date, while items in the statements of operations are translated at average
exchange rates effective during the year. Translation gains and losses are reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses are reported
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and notes and loans payable approximate fair value.
Enesco considers all highly liquid securities, including certificates of deposit with maturities of three
months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

Advertising costs are expensed in the year the publication is issued. Advertising expense was
$0.6 million in 2005, $1.6 millicn in 2004 and $0.7 million in 2003,

Revenue from the sales of products is recognized when title and risk of loss transfer to the customer,
which generally occurs when merchandise is released to the transportation company. A provision for
anticipated merchandise returns and allowances is recorded at the time of sale based upon historical
experience. Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling are included in revenue. License,
royalty and service fees are recognized as revenue when earned.

The individual annnal membership fees related to club sales are recorded as revenue as the
membership entitles the member to receive a club kit, which includes a collectible figurine, a carryving case
and related documentation, and also entitles the member to receive a quarterly newsletter. The newsletters
are essentially marketing materials that contain information regarding products, artists and member stories,
as well as special offers and new product offerings. Membership fees are not refundable. Because the
membership fee is paid in exchange for products delivered and represents the culmination of the earnings
process, revenue is recognized at the time the club kit is shipped to the member. Membership also entitles
the participant to purchase, for a limited time, certain exclusive items offered throughout the year; revenue
from sales of these items is recognized upon shipment of each item.

Concentrations of risk for Enesco exist in revenue from major product lines, foreign sources of
inventory. market and geographic areas and trade receivables. The majority of product revenues are denved
from items produced using licensed rights from third parties. The two largest licensed lines, Precious
Moments® and Heartwood Creek™ by Jim Shore represented approximately $72.1 million, or 29%, of total
revenues for 2005, $91.3 million or 34% of total revenues for 2004 and $95.1 million, or 37%, of total
- revenues for 2003. The U.S. license for Precious Moments® was terminated during 2005 (see Note 9).
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Extended credit terms are offered to customers. Enesco contmually monitors and manages the risks
associated with all these activities.

Accounts receivable are reported net of allowances for uncollectible accounts, customer rebates, and
returns and allowances, which totaled $8.8 million at December 31, 2005, and $6.5 million at
December 31, 2004,

We assess the recoverability of significant tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, under the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{SFAS) No. 142 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets and SFAS No. 144 — Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. For goodwill, we perform an impairment assessment
annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. Based on our annual impairment analysis, we
concluded that the goodwill associated with the 2004 acquisition of Dartington was impaired as of
December 31, 2005. The total $1.1 million of goodwill attributable to Dartington was written off in
December 2005. For property, plant and equipment, we evaluate the recoverability of these assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be
recoverable. Due to ongoing operating losses from the U.S. business, excluding Gregg Gift, an assessment
of the carrying amount of U.S. long-lived assets was again completed as of December 2005 in accordance
with SFAS No. 144, Based on the positive undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from our
long-lived assets, we concluded that our long-lived assets were not impaired as of December 31, 2003.

In December 2004, we determined that the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system would be
stabilized by using the core components of our former legacy software system. The plan was to update
certain modules of the legacy software to provide advanced features and capabilities required by the
business. We incurred accelerated depreciation charges related to the ERP system of $0.8 million in
December 2004. During the second quarter of 2005, we successfully migrated from the ERP system at our
Elk Grove Village, lilinois (EGV) distribution center to an upgraded version of our legacy information
system. Late in the second quarter, we stabilized the remaining portions of our PeopleSoft systems that
relate to order management and financial reporting. Since we currently are processing customer orders and
preparing financial statements using the PeopleSoft system, and intend to continue to do so, we have
revised our estimate of the remaining useful life of the portion of the asset value that pertains to these two
modules. The remaining net book value of our PeopleSoft system is $1.1 million, as of December 31, 200S.
All costs associated with the distribution center ERP system have been fully depreciated as of the end of
the second quarter of 2005. Total accelerated depreciation for 2005 amounted to $3.7 million, all of which
was recorded in the first half of 2005.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost components include labor, overhead,
materials, freight and duty costs. We value all inventories utilizing the first-in, first-out method. We record
inventory at the date of taking title, which at certain times during the year results in significant in-transit
quantities, as inventory is sourced primarily from China and Thailand.

The major classes of inventories were as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004

Raw materials. . ... § 2242 § 1820
WOrK D PROCESS « v\ ot ettt e e 202 250
Finished goods in transit . ....... .. .. o i e 3,241 6,097
Finished goods . ... .. . .. i 34,974 57,204

$40,659  $65,371

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets utilizing the straight-line and
declining balance methods. The methods of depreciation for financial statement and income tax purposes
differ in some circumstances, resulting in deferred income taxes.
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The estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets are as follows:

Range in

_Years
Land improvements . .. ..o i e 10
Buildings and improvements. .. ... ... ... .. 3-25
Machinery and equipment ... ... ... S-10
Office furniture and equipment ........ ... ... ... . . 3-10
Transportation eqQUIPMENt . ... . ...ttt 3-8

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the
differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets are also recognized for the tax effects attributable to the
carryforward of net operating losses (NOLs). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized through an adjustment of the tax provision in the period that inciudes the enactment
date. Enesco considers future taxable income and ongoing tax strategies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance in relation to deferred tax assets. Enesco records a valuation allowance to reduce
deferred tax assets to a level where they are more likely than not to be realized based upon these
considerations.

Accruals have been established for taxes payable and potential tax assessments. The accruals are
included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to when assessments may be made and
taxes may be paid. Enesco has filed and continues to file tax returns with a number of taxing authorities
worldwide. We believe such filings have been and are in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
interpretations. Positions taken are subject to challenge by the taxing authorities, often for an extended
number of years after the filing dates. To the extent accruals differ from assessments, when the open tax
years are closed or the accruals are otherwise deemed unnecessary at a point in time, the accruals are
adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and product sourcing
locations around the world. Enesco may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco
does not use derivative [inancial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco regularly monitors
foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract amounts do not exceed the amounts of the
underlying exposures.

Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and intercompany foreign
currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency hedging activities is to protect Enesco
from the risk that the eventual settlement of foreign currency transactions will be adversely affected by
changes in exchange rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various foreign exchange
forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, the
instruments are carried at fair value in the balance sheet as a component of other current assets or other
current liabilities. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable
hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
and reclassified into eamings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.
Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts that do not meet the applicable hedging
criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded currently in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or loss,
as applicable. Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or financial
condition during 2005.

Basic earnings (loss) per common share is based on the average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per common share assumes, in addition to the above, the
dilutive effect of common share equivalents during the year. Common share equivalents represent dilutive
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stock options and warrants using the treasury stock method. The number of shares used in the earnings per
common share computation for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

(In thousands) . 2005 2004 2003
Basic:

Average common shares outstanding ......................... 14,739 14,309 14,028
Diluted:

Stock options and warrants ............... .. 0., 8 512 416
Average shares —diluted.. .......... ... ... ... i 14,747 14821 14444

Additional options to purchase 2.2 million, 1.3 million and 1.0 million shares were outstanding at
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of the
common share.

At December 31, 2005, we had four stock-based compensation (fixed options) plans, not including
two plans with options that have fully expired. We account for these plans under the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
{ssued to Employees, and related interpretations. No stock-based compensation plan cost is reflected in net
income (loss), as each option granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income
(loss) and earnings (loss) per common share if Enesco had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based compensation plans:

Year Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss) asreported ................. ... n. $(54,025) §$(45,188) $17,282
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effect ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... (2,392) (1,580)  (1,631)
Pro forma net income (loss) ........... ... ... .. ... ... ... $(56,417) $(46,768) $15,651
Earnings (loss) per common share:
As reported:

Basic. .. $§ (367) $§ (3.16) $§ 1.23

Diluted ... .. ... $ (367) § (305 $ 1.20
Pro forma:

Basic. ... $ (383) $ (327) & 112

Diluted .. ... o $ (383) $§ (3.16) § 1.08

Note 2. Notes and Loans Payable

Notes and loans payable and weighted-average interest rates at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows:

2005 2004
Interest Interest
($ In thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate
U.S. notes under committed bank lines ............... $30,823 627% $24,857 4.3%
International notes under committed bank lines ........ — = 1,497 2.7%
$30,823 $26,354

56




At December 31, 2005, Enesco had total lines of credit providing for maximum borrowings of
$78.8 million, of which $75.0 million was available under our current U.S. credit facility. Actual
horrowings of $30.8 million and letters of credit and a customs bond totaling $4.2 million were outstanding
at December 31, 2005. The net available borrowing capacity under our current U.S. credit facility based
on eligible collateral as of December 31, 2005 was $13.2 million. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
Enesco had $30.8 million and $26.4 million, respectively of interest bearing debt.

Total interest paid under committed bank lines was $1.9 million in 2005, $0.7 miilion in 2004,
$0.4 million in 2003,

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a three-year domestic $50.0 million unsecured revolving credit
facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement
contains financial and operating covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens,
acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing Enesco’s shares and paying dividends. In addition, Enesco was
required to satisfy fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage ratio tests at the end of the second, third and
fourth quarters and a minimum annual operating profit covenant.

In March 2004, Enesco’s domestic $50.0 million credit facility was amended to add term notes
totaling $7.7 million for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Gregg Gift. At the same time, Gregg
Gift was added as a borrowing subsidiary and certain financial covenants were modified.

In August 2004, Enesco negotiated a $10.0 million temporary increase through December 31, 2004 to
its $57.7 million credit facility (to a total of $67.7 million) in order to meet anticipated seasonal
requirements for working capital. Following December 31, 2004, the credit facility reverted to
$57.7 million.

In November 2004, Enesco and its lenders agreed upon revised financial covenants for the two
months ended December 31, 2004 and thereafter. Also in November 2004, Enesco entered into an
amendment to its credit facility providing a security interest in certain assets to its lenders.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its EGV warchouse and distribution facility for approximately
320 million. The net proceeds from the sale of $17.6 million were first used to pay the outstanding balance
($6.7 million) of the $7.7 million term loan. The balance of the net proceeds, $10.9 million, was used to
reduce the outstanding balance of the revolving portion of the credit facility with a concurrent reduction to
the revolving loan commitments. Also on December 10, 2004, Enesco’s lenders extended the time period
to January 31, 2005 for Enesco and its lenders to agree on revised financial covenants for the fiscal period
ending December 31, 2004 and thereafter.

On January 28, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic credit
facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million
until March 31, 2005. The lenders also waived the resetting of. and compliance with, financial covenants
as of December 31, 2004. Also on January 28, 2005, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened
to end March 31, 2005.

On March 28. 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter with Fleet Capital Corporation, operating as
Bank of America Business Credit (BABC), for BABC to fully underwrite a $100 million global senior
revolving credit facility with a five-year term. The commitment letter with BABC expired on Apnl 30,
2005.

On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with the lenders to its domestic credit
facility, effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility through January 1, 2006. The credit
facility commitments ranged from $50 million to $70 million, based on Enesco’s seasonal borrowing needs.
The amendment also set certain financial covenants for 2005. In the event that the outstanding loans
under the domestic credit facility were not repaid in full: (i) by May 16, 2003, a fee in the amount of
$700,000 became payable, (ii) by June 30. 2005, another fee of $700,000 became payable, and (iii) with
proceeds provided by lenders that include Fleet National Bank {Fleet) or an affiliate of Fleet National
Bank, a fee of $1,750,000 became payable.
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Under our current credit facility, we were required to pay a total of $1.4 million in penalty fees
because we did not close a replacement credit facility during the second quarter of 2005.

On June 10, 2005, we notified Fleet, as agent under our existing U.S. credit facility with Fleet and
LaSalle Bank N.A., that we were not in compliance with our minimum EBITDA covenant as of April 30,
2005, which was due predominantly to non-cash accruals related to the timing of the execution of Enesco’s
agreement with Precious Moments, Inc. (PM1), as discussed in Note 9. On June 28, 2005, we obtained a
waiver of our minimum EBITDA covenant default for April and May 2005, and a waiver of compliance
with this covenant through July 31, 2005. We also advised Fleet of the need to renegotiate our financial
covenants for additional months during the term of our existing credit facility primarily because of lower
projected sales and lower gross margins during the same period.

On July 7. 2005, we entered into an eighth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The eighth
amendment added accounts receivable and inventory of N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited, our Canadian
subsidiary, to the borrowing base under the credit facility and reduced the advance rate on inventory from
50% to 33% effective July 31, 2005. The fee of $1.75 million payable on the termination of the
commitment under the credit facility was eliminated.

As of August 31, 2005, we entered into a ninth amendment to our current U.S. credit facility. The
ninth amendment reset our minimum EBITDA and capital expenditure covenants through the facility
termination date, December 31, 2005, based on our reforecast and long-term partnership with Bank of
America, as successor to Fleet and LaSalle Bank. The ninth amendment also added the accounts
receivable and inventories of Enesco Limited, Enesco Holdings Limited and Bilston & Battersea Enamels
Limited, and the accounts receivable of Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as eligible collateral to the
borrowing base under the current credit facility. The ninth amendment also increased the current credit
facility size to $75.0 million, rather than a variable size of $50.0 miilion to $70.0 million.

On December 14, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter with LaSalle Business Credit, LLC
(LaSalle) to arrange a new $75 million senior secured credit facility. If entered into, the new credit
facility with LaSalle will have a term of five years and will replace the Enesco’s existing credit facility
with Bank of America, as successor to Fleet Bank and LaSalle Bank. As the administrative agent, LaSalle
expects to form a syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the new credit facility. The
commitment letter contains a number of conditions that must be satisfied in order for the facility to be
closed, including: Enesco having a minimum borrowing availability of at least $10 million at the time of
closing: the lender’s completion of its final due diligence with respect to Enesco and its subsidiaries; the
negotiation and execution of a definitive credit agreement; there being no material adverse change in
Enesco’s business. assets, liabilities, properties, condition (financial or otherwise) results of operations or
prospects of Enesco and its subsidiaries since December 31, 2004; there being no material disruption or
material adverse change in financial, banking or capital markets generally affecting credit facilities; and
various appraisals. as well as other standard and customary conditions. Under the commitment letter, the
new credit facility was to close on or before January 31, 2006. On January 31, 2006, Enesco received a
modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle, extending the expiration date from January 31, 2006
to February 28, 2006. On February 28, 2006. Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter
from LaSalle, extending the expiration date from February 28, 2006 to March 31, 2006. On March 31,
2006 Enesco received a modification to its commitment letter from LaSalle, extending the expiration date
from March 31, 2006 to April 30, 2006.

On December 21, 2005, Enesco entered into a tenth amendment to its existing U.S. credit facility
extending the facility termination date from December 31, 2005 to January 1, 2007. The tenth amendment
provides that, unless the outstanding loans and letters of credit under the existing U.S. credit facility are
paid in full prior to the following dates, the respective fees will become payable: 1) by January 1, 2006,
$75,000; 2) by February 1, 2006, $150,000; 3) by March 1, 2006, $250,000; 4) by April 1, 2006, $275,000;
S) by May 1, 2006, $750.000; and 6) by June 1, 2006; $750,000. The amendment also provides for a
monthly fee beginning January 1, 2006 through May 1, 2006 in the amount of 0.10% of the highest
amount of loans that were outstanding during the preceding month. This fee will increase to 0.20%
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beginning June 1, 2006 through January 1, 2007. The amendment establishes cumulative minimum
consolidated EBITDA requirements and cumulative maximum capital expenditure limitations, which are
cach measured monthly during 2006. Enesco has paid the January 1, February 1, and March 1, 2006 bank
penalty fees totaling $475,000.

During the first quarter, Enesco notified Bank of America, as agent under our existing U.S. credit
facility of its anticipated need to renegotiate its cumulative minimum EBITDA covenants for each of the
months of 2006 primarily due to slower revenue shipments in the US and UK.

On March 31, 2006, we entered into an eleventh amendment to our existing U.S. credit facility. This
amendment reset Enesco’s 2006 cumulative minimum monthly EBITDA covenants effective January 30,
2006, based on our reforecast and reduced the credit facility commitments from $75.0 million to
$70.0 million effective between the eleventh amendment date and January 1, 2007. In addition, unless the
outstanding loans and letters of credits under the existing U.S. credit facility are paid in full, the eleventh
amendment accelerated by one month the fees per the tenth amendment which were to be due May 1,
2006 and June 1, 2006. The total fee payable April 1, 2006 is $1,025,000 and, unless the outstanding loans
and letters of credit are paid in full prior to May 1, 2006, the fee payable May I, 2006 is $750,000. The
monthly fee of 0.10% of the highest loan amount outstanding during the preceding month will increase to
0.20% on May 1. 2006, rather than June 1, 2006 as per the tenth amendment, and continue unti] the
facility termination date.

Subject to our ability to either extend our existing credit facility and/or secure replacement financing
by January 1, 2007, we believe that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations
and available financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs, capital expenditures and other
liquidity requirements associated with our existing operations. There are no assurances, however, of our
ability to secure replacement financing of the senior revolving credit facility, which expires January 1,
2007, or that we will successfully negotiate more favorable covenants, obtain waivers of existing or future
covenants if violated, or maintain sufficient loan advance rates on eligible collateral.

Note 3. Employee Benefit Plans

Long-term liabilities for post-retirement benefits at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 _2%
Post-retirement benefits ... ... ... ... . ... ... $ 901 $1,153
Supplemental 401(k) ... e 281 1,643
Deferred compensation/severance ................. ..o, 9% 212
Balance sheet total. .. .. .. i i e $1,281  $3,008

Enesco has established grantor trusts to fund its non-qualified supplemental retirement plans. The
trusts are irrevocable and the assets contributed are subject to the claims of creditors. The market value of
the assets in the trusts totaled $0.3 million at December 31, 2005, and $1.6 million at December 31, 2004.
The year over year decline in these assets is primarily due to employee withdrawals upon their termination.
These assets are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Enesco had sponsored a defined benefit post-retirement healthcare and life insurance plan that had
liabilities of $1.0 million and $1.2 million as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
The liability is determined using estimated medical premium growth rates, net of estimated employee
contributions. Certain employees and non-employee directors became eligible for the benefits under this
plan when they reached allowable retirement age while working or serving on the Board of Directors at
Enesco. Those benefits are provided principally through premiums paid to insurance companies. The total
costs of the benefits were accrued during the employment or service of the employee or non-employee
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director. All of the benefits under these plans are vested and are either fixed doltar amounts per vear or a
percentage of insurance premiums paid per year.

(In thousands) 2005 2004

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year . ....... ... ... ... . ... $ 1,238 § 1,836
SEIVICE COSt. ... . — —

IRTErESt COSt .\ttt ittt e e 56 &0
Actuarial ain . .. ... e (127) (534)
Benefits paid . ... .. e (140) - (144)
Benefit obligation at end of year ................. ... . . .. $ 1,027 8§ 1,238

Funded Status:
(Accrued) benefit COSt ... vt $(1,027) $(1,238)

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense includes the following components:

{In thousands) 2005 2004 2603
S TVICE COSt. . ottt et e $ — 8§ — §—
INterest COSt ... 56 80 81
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss .......... .. ... .. ... L. (127)  (534) 145
Net period benefit cost (INCOME) ... oottt iee e, $ (71) $(454) 3226

The cost of healthcare benefits is assumed to increase at an annual rate of 10% for periods after
December 31, 2005. Participants with fixed dollar benefits are included at actual cost. Increasing the
assumed healthcare expense annual trend rate by one percentage point would increase the accumulated
post-retirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2005 by $33,000 and the interest cost component of
the net post-retirement benefit obligation for the year then ended by $11,000. A discount rate of 4.5% was
used in determining the accumulated post-retirement benefit.

Additionally, certain foreign subsidiaries have established funded profit sharing and defined
contribution retirement plans.

The consolidated profit sharing and retirement plan expense totaled $1.1 million in 2005, $1.9 million
in 2004, and $2.2 million in 2003.

Note 4. Shareholders’ Equity

Pursuant to action by Enesco’s Board of Directors (the Board) on July 22, 1998, effective with the
expiration on September 19, 1998 of the stock purchase rights then existing under Enesco’s Stockholder
Rights Plan, one new right for each outstanding share of Enesco’s common stock was issued {(a New
Right) under a Renewed Rights Agreement. Each New Right initially represents the right to purchase one
share of common stock for $125.00. The New Rights will only become exercisable, or separately
transferable, promptly after Enesco announces that a person has acquired or tendered for 15% or more, or
promptly after a tender offer commences that could result in ownership of 13% or more, of the common
stock then outstanding.

If the New Rights become exercisable after any person acquired or tenders for 15% or more of the
common stock then outstanding (except through an offer for all common stock that has been approved by
the Board), each New Right not owned by that person or related parties will enable its holder to purchase,
at the New Right’s exercise price, common stock (or other securities or assets, or a combination thereof)
having double the value of the exercise price. In the event of certain merger or asset sale transactions with
another party, similar terms would apply to the purchase of that party’s common stock.
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The New Rights, which have no voting power, expire on July 22, 2008, and are subject to extension.
Upon approval by the Board, the New Rights may be redeemed for $.01 each under certain conditions.

In 1996, the shareholders approved a stock option plan previously adopted by the Board, which
provides for both incentive and non-qualified stock options. Options for up to 1.5 million shares of
common stock may be granted under the 1996 Plan. The 1996 Plan. as amended by the Board in 1998,
provides that non-qualified options for 1,500 shares of common stock be granted annually to each non-
employee Director then serving. In 2003, the shareholders approved an amendment, previously adopted by
the Board, to the 1996 Plan that increased the number of shares available for option grants under the 1996
Plan from 1.5 million to 3.0 million and provided for vesting of the options over four years, at the rate of
25% of the options per year, without the restrictions on the exercise of vested options that was set forth in
the 1996 Plan.

In 2003, the Board adopted the Amended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan and renamed it the
Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Shareholders approved the Amended and
Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan in 2004. The Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term [ncentive
Plan amends and restates the 1996 Stock Option Pian in its entirety. The Amended and Restated 1996
Long-Term Incentive Plan provides for the grant of restricted shares, stock awards, performance awards
and stock appreciation rights, in addition to both incentive and non-qualified option awards as previously
provided under the provisions of the plan. The Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan
also: (1) modifies the vesting provisions of the option awards to provide the Compensation Committee
with more flexibility; (2) imposes restrictions on the number of awards granted; (3) climinates the non-
employee director options grant provisions (now contained in the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-
Employee Director Stock Plan); (4) modifies the acceleration and termination provisions relating to
options; and (3) provides the Compensation Committee with discretion to make tax gross-up payments,
among other matters.

Enesco also has the 1991 Stock Option Plan (the 1991 Plan), which provides for both incentive and
non-qualified stock options, under which options for up to 2 million shares of common stock could have
been granted. No further options may be granted under the 1991 Plan. The 1991 Plan provides for the
granting to select key employees and non-employee directors, of options to acquire shares of common
stock at a price not less than their fair market value at the time of grant.

Other option terms are determined at the time of grant, but normally under the 1991 Plan, options
are exercisable only after a one-year waiting period with vesting in four equal annual instaliments, and
expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the 1996 Plan, options granted prior to April 2003 become
exercisable only after a six-month waiting period and upon Enesco’s achievement of certain stock value
performance criteria at any time during the first eight years after the date of the grant. Under the 1996
Plan, as amended by sharecholder approval in 2003, new options vest equally over four years, with 25% of
the shares subject to the vesting on each of the first four anniversary dates of the date of grant of the
option, with the options being thereafter exercisable by the optionee regardless of the fair market value of
Enesco’s common stock. On the eighth anniversary of the grant, all outstanding options granted under the
1996 Plan will become exercisable. Options granted under the 1996 Plan will expire 10 vears from the date
of grant.

In 1998, the Board approved a special 1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan. which provided for a one-
time grant of 14,000 non-qualified stock options to Enesco’s then Chairman of the Board. The options
become exercisable six months from date of grant and expire 10 years from the date of grant. In 1997, the
Board approved a President and Chief Executive Officer Stock Option Plan which provided for special
grants of non-qualified stock options to Enesco’s then Chief Executive Officer. The 1997 grant of 100,000
options vested fully in increments of 12,500 shares each month from November 1997 through June 1998,
and the options become exercisable six months from the date of grant and expire 10 years from the date of
grant.

At December 31, 2005, we had four stock-based compensation (fixed options) plans, not including
plans with options that have fully expired. We account for those plans under the recognition and
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measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Emplovees, and related interpretations. No stock-based compensation plan cost is reflected in net
income (loss). as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income
{loss) and earnings (loss) per common share if Enesco had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based compensation plans:

(In millions, except per share amounts) 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss)
As reported ... $(54.0) $(45.2) $17.3
Pro oMM . . . $(56.4) $(46.8) $15.7
Earnings (loss) per common share diluted
AS reported L. $(3.67) $(3.05) $1.20
Proforma. .. ... . . . . e $(3.83) $(3.16) $1.08.

The options granted in 2005, 2004, and 2003 were under the 1996 Plan. The fair value of each option
grant in 2005, 2004, and 2003 was estimated at the time of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
mode! with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Annual dividend yield........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility. .. ... 5853% 51.7%  57.4%
Risk-free interest rate .. ...... ... ... .ot 4.0% 4.2% 3.5%
Expected life (years) ... ... ... . . e 6.3 6.3 6.3
Weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the
YEAr, PEr ShAre . .. . $ 218 $504 3 4.71

Stock option status and activity under Enesco’s six stock-based compensation plans including the 1993
options that expired during 2005 are summarized as follows:

Weighted
Shares Average
(000s) Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31,2002, ...... ... .. . coiiiiiii... 2,736 $16.32
Granted ... .. 527 8.14
EXercised . ... i e e (134) 5.17
Forfeited . ... .. .. (394) 25.90
Qutstanding at December 31, 2003 .. .. . i 2,735 $13.96
Granted ... . 516 8.54
Exercised . ... ... . (262) 5.93
Forfeited. . ... ... . e (679) 21.34
Outstanding at Decerber 31,2004, . ... ... .. ... .. ... .l .o 2,310 $11.49
Granted ... .. .. e e 584 3.71
Exercised ................. e e e (50) 6.46
Forfeited........ ... ... ... ... ... ... e (625) 10.82
Outstanding at December 31,2005, .. ... ..o iii i, 2,219 $ 9.53
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands) Shares Shares Shares
Options exercisable at year-end ......... ... ... ... . L. 2,104 1202 1438




A summary of information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Number Weighted Weighted Weighted
Outstanding Average Average Exercisable Average
at 12/31/05 Remaining Exercise at 12/31705 Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices {000s) Contractual Life Price (000s) Price
$1.70t0 $7.00................ 952 745 $ 4.64 838 $ 5.05
§701 10 $10.00........... ... 792 7.11 $ 7.7 792 $ 7.7]
$1001 t0 $18.00.............. 222 4.16 $15.07 222 $15.07
$1801 t083207.............. 253 1.60 $28.21 253 $28.81
2,219 6.33 $ 9.53 2,104 $ 9.96

An analysis of treasury stock transactions for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 is
as follows: '

Common Stock

(In thousands) Shares Cost
Balance at December 31, 2002. ... ... ... ... 11,319 $256,045
Exercise of stock options. . .......... ... . . i i (144) (1,514)
Stock 0ptions eXChANZES . . vt e ettt e 10 105
Investment savings plans — 401(k) issuances ........................ (104) (1,279)
Non-employee director stock plan issuances.......................... (17) (189)
Balance at December 31, 2003 . .. .. ... . 11,064 253,168
Exercise of Stock Options. .. ... . .. (262) {2,951)
Employee service awards. .. ... ... i e (3) (32)
Executive employment agreement iSSUaNCes. . ..........ovvunouen.. .. (25) (282)
Investment savings plans — 401 (k) issuances ........................ (89) {(1,012)
Non-employee director stock plan issuances. . .................oovnn.. (14) (161)
Balance at December 31,2004 ... ... ... . .. 10,671 $248,730
Exercise of stock options. . ... oo (50) (562)
Employee service awards. .. ........ .. () (14)
Executive employment agreement iSSUANCES . . . ..o vvenneenenneeonn.. (46) (519)
Investment savings plans — 401(k) issuances ............. ... oo .... (226) (2,553)
Non-employee director stock plan issuances.................... ... .. (40) (449)
Balance at December 31, 2005, ... .. 10,308  $244.633

In 1987, Enesco introduced an Investment Savings Plan for non-union employees in accordance with
Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. In 2003, Enesco amended the Enesco Group, Inc.
Retirement Profit Sharing Plan for Union Employees to allow union employees to make contributions to
this plan in accordance with Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. One of the features of these
retirement savings plans provides a common stock match for a portion of employee contributions to eligible
employees and allows Enesco a federal income tax deduction equal to the market value of the issued
stock. Compensation expense for common stock issued was $0.6 million for 2005, $0.7 million for 2004
and $0.8 million for 2003. On October 14, 2005, Enesco eliminated the company stock match effective
December 1. 2005. Matching contributions after the effective date are made in cash to participants’
retirement accounts.

In 1998, the Board adopted the 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. The Non-Employee
Director Stock Plan allows for an annual retainer of common stock worth $15,000 per annum valued as of
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the day following the annual meeting for each non-employee director who is not the Chairman of the
Board. For service as Chairman of the Board, the Non-Employee Director Stock Plan allows for an annual
retainer of common stock worth $37,500 per annum valued as of the day following the annual meeting,
Compensation expense for common stock issued to non-employee directors was $0.2 million for 2005,

$0.1 million for 2004 and $0.1 million for 2003.

In 2003, the Board adopted the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan.
Shareholders approved the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan in 2004. The
Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan amends and restates the 1999 Non-
Employee Director Stock Plan in its entirety. The Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director
Stock Plan increases the number of shares available for grant from 100,000 to 300,000 shares of Enesco
common stock. The amendment also provides for the annual automatic grant of 2,000 non-qualified stock
options to non-employee directors. Additional changes were made to accommodate the inclusion of option
grants, with terms such as acceleration of vesting, adjustments in capitalization and change in control and
transferability.

On December 6, 2005, the Board accelerated the vesting of 608,658 options that would have
otherwise vested over the next four years. Options held by non-employee directors also were included in
the acceleration and the Compensation Committee imposed a holding period that will require that all
participants not sell shares acquired through the exercise of an accelerated option (other than shares
needed to cover the exercise price and satisfy withholding taxes) prior to the earlier of the date on which
exercise would have been permitted under the options’ original vesting terms or, if earlier, the management
participants’ last day of employment or, upon the Board participant’s retirement or resignation from the
Board. All options that were accelerated as of December 6, 2005 had exercise prices in excess of the
market price of Enesco’s common stock on that date. The total compensation cost that would have been
recognized in the financial statements in future periods, had we not accelerated the vesting of these options
is approximately $1.9 million.

On June 28, 2000, Enesco entered into a licensing agreement with Time Warner Entertainment
Company, LP. Pursuant to this agreement, Enesco issued Time Warner a warrant to
purchase 200,000 shares of Enesco’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.375 per share (the
“warrant”). Time Warner sold the warrant in August 2003 to Highbridge International. This warrant
expired June 27, 2005. The warrant’s fair value of $529.000, which was included in capital in excess of par
value, was determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model, assuming an expected life of five years, a
dividend yield of 0%, a risk-free interest rate of 6.789% and a volatility factor of 64%. The fair value of the
warrant was amortized as a component of royalty expense in cost of sales over the term of the licensing
agreement.

Note 5. Brand Revenues and Geographic Operating Segments

Enesco operates in the giftware, and home and garden décor industry with five major brand
categories. The following table summarizes net sales by major brand for 2005 and 2004:

{In thousands) 2005 2004
Proprietary designs . . ... ... i i e $ 85984 $ 87946
Licensed brands .. ... ... i e 68,404 70,910
Third-party distribution .. .. ... . e 26,912 20,285
Precious Moments®(1) ... .. 32,431 56,504
Service fees(2) . oo 4,004 —
O her . o 28,337 35,759
Intercompany . ..., . i e U, (1,638) (2437)
Total consolidated ....... ... ... . ... . .. $244,434  $268,967




(1) Includes both Precious Moments® product sales recorded under the PMI termination agreement (See
Note 9 below) subsequent to June 30, 2005, and continuing sales by non-U.S. operations which were
$3.0 million and $2.6 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

{2) Includes sales commissions and distribution service fees subsequent to June 30, 2005 earned from
PMI under the transition agreement which services were substantially concluded by December 31,
200s.

Enesco operates in two major geographic classifications, the U.S. and International (comprised of
Canada and Europe). Net revenues and operating profit (loss) are grouped by the location of each
customer. The following table summarizes operations by geographic classification for 2005, 2004 and 2003:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Net Revenues
U S, $130,201  $160,470 $164,842
International .......... .. ... . . . . . 114,233 108,497 91,584
Total consolidated .. ......... .. ..., $244,434  $268,967 $256,426
Operating Profit (Loss)
U $(51,901) $(23.464) $ 4,59
International ... ... ... . .. . . . ... 4731 6,450 10,307
Total consolidated ... ........... ... .. ..., $(47,170) $(17,014) § 14,901
Long-lived Assets
u.S.
Property, plant & equipment, net .................... $ 9783 $ 14767 § 22,480
L@ 8 T g 1T £SO 11,499 12,450 25,260
Total US. ........ e 21,282 27,217 47,740
International
Property, plant & equipment, net ............ ... ..... 5,721 7,742 5,861
Otherassets ..............co ... T, 3,072 4,151 2,952
Total Intemnational ........ ... ... .. ... .. ..., 8,793 11,893 8.813
Total consofidated . .......... .. ..., $ 30,075 § 39,110 $ 56.553
Capital Expenditures
L $ 1654 § 3605 § 4714
Intermational ... .. ... 694 947 1,204
Total consolidated . .. ........ .. . i $ 2348 § 4552 § 50918
Depreciation and Amortization
U S, $ 6,448 §$ 4950 § 340
International ... ... .. .. . ... .. 1,320 2,161 1,826
Total consolidated . ........ ... ... .. ... .. .. ..... $ 7,768 § 7111 § 57236

Total net revenues recorded in the U.K. for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $76.9 million, $71.5 million
and $55.6 million, respectively. Total long-lived assets in the U.K. at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
were $7.7 million, $10.5 million and $6.6 million, respectively.

Total net revenues recorded in Canada for 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $29.8 million, $30.1 million and
$30.8 million, respectively. Total long-lived assets in Canada at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were
$0.8 million, $0.9 million and $0.8 million, respectively.

65




Transfers between geographic areas are made at the market value of the merchandise transferred. No
single customer accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net revenues. Export revenues from sales to
foreign unaffiliated customers represent less than 10% of consolidated net revenues.

Note 6. Income Taxes

Prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. The domestic and
foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes are as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 - __2003
DoOmestic ... $(59.,540) $(31,140) $(5.482)
Foreign ... e e 9,862 13,307 19,814

$(49,678) $(17,833) $§14,332

Income taxes (benefit) consist of the following:

(In thousands) 2005 2064 2003
Currently payable:
Federal ... ... . . . . . . . . . . $(840) $§ — $(8.004)
State and local. . ... ... .. . .. e (120) 111 (820)
Foreign........... s 5,160 3,366 5,008
Total current .. ... ... e e 4,200 3,477 (3,816)
Deferred:
Federal ... ... . ... —_ 17,637 608
State and local. . ... ... i e e — 5,505 220
Foreign .. .o e 147 736 38
Total deferred . ... ... . . 147 23,878 866
Total income tax expense (benefit) ...................... $4,347  $27,355  $(2,950)

A reconciliation of the tax expense computed at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to the total income
tax expense (benefit) is as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004 2003
Expense (benefit) at federal statutory rate .. ................ $(17.387) $(6.242) $ 5018
State taxes, net of federal income tax effect ................. (2,135)  (3.,578) (387)
Income of foreign subsidiaries subject to U,S. taxation ........ 2,720 1,358 —
Increase in valuation allowance charged to income tax expense 28,434 18,640 -
Accrual of deferred taxes on unremitted earnings of certain

foreign subsidiaries ........ ... .. .. 0. e (7,013} 17,406 —
Recognition (reduction) of foreign tax rates . ................ (897) (99) (600)
Impact of prior year’s return filings ........................ (1,215) — —
Other ..o 210 (130) {129)

2,717 27,355 3,902

Increase (reduction) in income tax accruals ................. 1,630 —_— (6,852)

Income tax expense (benefit) ............... ... ... .. ..., $ 4,347 $27,355  $(2,950)

The 2005 increase (reduction) in income tax accruals includes an expense of $2.8 million related to
the establishment of a reserve for an audit assessment, and a $1.1 million benefit from the reversal of
previously recorded tax reserves no longer required.

The 2004 tax expense includes a non-cash provision of $18.6 million to establish a valuation allowance
with respect to deferred tax assets, as explained below. Effective as of December 31, 2004, Enesco was no
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longer able to rely upon the indefinite reversal criteria of Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion

No. 23 with respect to the reinvested earnings of certain of its foreign subsidiaries due to the anticipated
guarantee in 2005 of Enesco’s domestic debt by those subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of a

$17.4 million deferred tax liability and related tax expense. The debt guarantees were put into effect during
August 2005 resulting in the recognition of deemed dividends from those subsidiaries for tax purposes
under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Enesco elected to treat foreign taxes previously paid as deductions
for U.S. federal tax purposes rather than as credits that would be unlikely to be used to offset future tax
liabilities and, accordingly, reversed $7.0 million of the liability to 2005 tax expense, as noted above.

The 2003 benefit of $6.8 million related to the reduction of income tax accruals, which were no
longer required due to the expiration of various statutes of limitations.

Income taxes paid for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $6.3 million,
$3.9 million, and $4.5 million respectively.

Enesco made no qualifying repatriations under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”)
during 2005 as there was no benefit to earnings repatriations under the Act in light of Enesco’s current
and prior year domestic net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards.

Significant components of Enesco’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2005 and
2004 are as follows:

(In thousands) 2005 2004
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carryforwards ............................. ... $34687 $ 29,263
Inventory valuation allowances .. ................... ... ... .. ... .. 2,870 2,077
Accounts receivables valuation allowances ........ ... ... .. ... ... .. 2,407 1,556
Employee and retiree benefits ......... ... .. .. ... ... 569 1,242
Asset bases differences . ... 2,322 1,256
ACCTUEd EXPENSES . .« .\ v it 1,416 302
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets ... .. ..ottt 2,543 3,417
Other a8Sets ... it 4,115 934
Subtotal. ... e $ 50929 $ 40,047
Valuation allowance . ... ... . . it i i i (47.074)  (18,640)
Total deferred 1a% aSS1S ... vt e vttt e 3,855 21,408
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries .. .. ... e — 17,406
Net deferred tax assets . ... ...t e $ 38355 § 4,002
Consisting of:
CUMTENt B8SETS . . .ottt ettt e $ 783 $ 920
OtREr ASSETS . ..ottt i e 3,072 3,082
Total .« e $ 3855 § 4,002

As of December 31, 2005, Enesco had estimated carryforwards for U.S. tax purposes as follows:
i) NOLs of $86.7 million, which expire between 2020 and 2025, and i) charitable contribution
carryforwards of $2.4 million, which expire between 2006 and 2010.
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In 2004, due to the uncertainty of the realization of the deferred tax assets, consisting principally of
NOLs, Enesco provided a valuation allowance of $18.6 million. In 2005, no benefit was recorded for
Enesco’s domestic NOLs as the result of a $28.4 million valuation allowance provision. The changes in the
valuation allowances for 2005 and 2004 were $28.4 million and $18.6 million, respectively. The ultimate
realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during
i) the years in which temporary differences reverse and ii) the years prior to the expiration of the NOLs.
Management considers appropriate tax planning strategies in making an assessment of the likelihood of
realizing the deferred tax assets. Based on the consideration of these factors, management believes that it
is more likely than not that Enesco will realize the above net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively.

Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

Enesco incurred rental expense under operating leases of $5.2 million in 2005, $5.1 million in 2004
and $4.3 million in 2003.

The minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2005,
are as follows:

(In thousands)

2006 . $ 5,843
00T e e 2,241
2008 . e 1,369
2000 e e 954
2000 o e 581
Later Years . . .. e 1.564
Total minimum future rentals . ... ... ... . . i $12,552

Enesco has entered into various licensing agreements requiring royalty payments ranging from 2% to
20% of specified product revenues. Royalty expenses, which are charged to cost of sales under these
licensing agreements, totaled $16.9 million in 2005, $26.0 million in 2004 and $18.9 million in 2003.
Future minimum guaranteed royalty payments are $2.1 million in 2006 and $0.3 million in 2007.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its Elk Grove Village property, a warehouse and distribution
facility, and certain machinery and equipment, for approximately $19.8 million and agreed to a five-year
leaseback of the facility. The assets sold had a net book value of $6.6 million at the date of sale, resulting
in the recognition of a $4.0 million gain on the sale in December 2004. An additicnal $8.6 million of gain
was deferred, to be recognized over the five-year term of the lease. In December 2005, Enesco notified the
lessor of this facility that it would terminate the lease on December 31, 2006 as provided for under the
early termination clause of the agreement. The deferred gain, which totaled $6.9 million at December 1,
2005, will be recognized ratably over the 13-month period ending December 31, 2006.

There are varicus legal proceedings pending against Enesco, which have arisen during the normal
course of business. Management believes the ultimate outcome of those legal proceedings will not have a
material adverse impact on the financial position or results of operations of Enesco.

Note 8. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Goodwill

Bilston & Battersea Enamels plc (B&B), a manufacturer and distributor of giftware, home accessories
and related products, including high quality, hand-decorated enamels and sculptural boxes sold under
certain Halcyon Days® brands, was acquired by Enesco in April 2003. Enesco paid approximately
$4.4 million in cash ($3.7 million net of acquired cash), which resulted in $2.9 miltion of goodwill related
to the purchase.
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In February 2004, Enesco acquired Gregg Gift, a supplier and distributor of giftware in the U.S., for
$7.3 million. In connection with the acquisition, Enesco recorded approximately $5.3 million of goodwill.

On July 21, 2004, the Enesco acquired certain assets of Dartington Crystal Limited (Dartington)
through its United Kingdom subsidiary, Enesco Limited, for $7.0 miilion in cash. The purchase price was
funded by internally generated cash from Enesco Limited. Dartington designs and manufactures a full
range of uncut crystal products, such as glassware, bowls, vases, candleholders and giftware. For the year
ended December 31, 2003, Dartington contributed approximately $13.6 million to consolidated net
revenues. In the fourth quarter of 20035, we performed our first annual impairment analysis on the
Dartington goodwill, and we concluded that impairment existed at December 31, 2005. A complete write-
off of the Dartington goodwill of $1.1 million was recorded at December 31, 2005.

As a result of our new product strategy announced in September 2005, it was decided that glassware
was no longer a strategic fit for Enesco. We therefore actively began marketing the sale of the Dartington
operation in the U.K. during the fourth quarter of 2005. Enesco currently is reviewing offers and will
consider only those that exceed the current borrowing availability associated with the Dartington assets.

The results of operations of these acquisitions are included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations since the dates of their acquisition. The goodwill balance in 2005 was only impacted by the
write-off of the Dartington goodwill of $1.1 million and changes to foreign currency exchange rates.

Note 9. Precious Moments Licensing Agreement Termination

On May 17, 2005, we terminated our license agreement with Precious Moments, Inc. (PMI) to sell
Precious Moments® products. On July 1, 2003, we began operating under an agreement with PMI where
Enesco provided PMI transitional services related to its licensed inventory through December 31, 2005. In
conjunction with the PMI termination agreement, in June 2005 we incurred a loss of $7.7 million equal to
the cost of inventory transferred to PMI. Management does not expect to provide any transition services in
2006, as PMI has exercised its option to perform the services in-house beginning January 1, 2006.

During the transition period Enesco maintained inventories of PMI products on a consignment basis
and processed sales orders on PM1I’s behalf. Enesco recorded the gross sale and cost of sale of PMI
products and, additionally. recorded a charge to cost of sales for the sale amounts to be remitted to PMI,
net of the amounts due from PMI for inventory purchases. Enesco also eamed sales commissions and
service fees from PMI for product fulfillment, selling and marketing costs. At December 31, 2005, the net
amount owed PMI was $2.8 million.

Note 10. Restructuring

In April 2005, the Lilliput Lane™ manufacturing facility in Workington, U.K. was closed and its
operations were consolidated into the Penrith, England manufacturing plant. The closure resulted in a
personnel reduction of 55 employees with a one-time cost of $0.9 million. The Workington plant was sold
in September 2005 for $0.8 million, an amount approximating its net book value less ordinary disposal
COsts.

On September 29, 20035, Enesco Limited announced its plan for an additional reduction in workforce
and recorded a severance charge of $0.6 million, which is included in sellmg. general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As part of our Operating Improvement Plan, Enesco contracted with National Distribution Centers
{NDC), a third-party logistics firm, to manage our primary U.S. warehousing and distribution operations.
NDC operates a leased facility in the Indianapolis metropolitan area, of which Enesco occupies
approximately 150,000 square feet. In late December 2005 we began moving inventory from our EGY
facility to NDC and in January 2006, NDC began shipping products to our customers. To account for the
costs associated with the transition, we recorded a restructuring charge of $0.2 million in the fourth quarter
of 2005. The EGYV facility is scheduled to close in 2006. Employment levels at the EGV facility were
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reduced by 87 positions in January 2006 and an additional 87 positions are expected to be terminated in
2006 as business needs dictate.

The Operating Improvement Plan also includes the termination of leases at seven Enesco
U.S. showrooms. We have established a restructuring reserve of $0.6 million, which includes employee
severances, showroom lease termination costs and other expenses associated with the showroom closures.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Sharcholders and Board of Directors of Enesco Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Enesco Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2005. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial
statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedule as it relates to the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a2 test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s! KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 31, 2006
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Quarterly Financial Information
For the Years 2005 and 2004 {Unaudited)

The following tables set forth information with respect to the consolidated quarterly results of
operations for 2005 and 2004. The amounts are unaudited, but, in the opinion of the management of
Enesco, include all adjustments necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the periods
indicated.

Net revenues of $56.0 million in the fourth quarter 2005 decreased $13.7 million compared to $69.7
in the fourth quarter of 2004. Approximately $11.6 million of the decrease was attributable to a decline in
Precious Moments® revenues due to the termination of the U.S. license agreement during the second
quarter of 2005. The decline in gross margin of $5.8 million was largely the result of the revenue decrease.
Additionally, the gross margin percentage decreased to 29.6% from 32.0% in the fourth quarter of 2004.
The percentage decline was caused by increases in the slow-moving and excess inventory reserves, which
resulted from the additional discontinued inventories arising from the reduction in the number of product
lines pursuant to implementing strategies under our Operating Improvement Plan. Selling, general and
administrative expenses declined $4.8 million largely due to headcount reductions and other cost saving
initiatives implemented throughout the quarter. Operating income in the fourth quarter of 2005 was also
adversely effected by the Dartington goodwill write-off of $1.1 million, and severance and restructuring
provisions of $1.0 million; there were no similar changes to operating in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Operating profit (loss) in the fourth quarter of 2004 benefited from a $4.0 million gain on sale of a
building of $0.8 million compared to recognizing a deferred gain on sale of building of $0.8 million in the
fourth quarter of 2005. Also in the fourth quarter of 2004, Enesco recorded a non-cash income tax expense
of $18.6 million to establish a valuation allowance with respect to deferred tax assets and an additional
non-cash income tax expense of $17.4 million to record a deferred tax liability with respect to unremitted
earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Additionally, Enesco recorded a $2.2 million increase to cost of sales for
excess and obsolete inventory.

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005

Netrevenues. .. ... i, $ 60,084 $ 49,159 $79.221 $ 55,970
Costofsales .. ...ovuiiiiiii i, 37,481 30,180 46,824 394350
Loss on license termination ................... — 7,713 — —
Grossprofit. ... ... 22,603 11,266 32,397 16,520
Selling, general and administrative expenses(2) .. 35,282 32,511 31,413 30,750
Operating profit (loss) ............ e $(12,679) $(21,245) $ 984  §$(14,230)
Netloss . oo $(15,216) $(22,036) $(2,115) $(14,638)
(Loss) per common share:(1)

Basic ... ... .. $ (1.04) $ (1.50) § (0.14) $ (0.99)

Diluted ...... ... .. ... .. .. . $ (1.04) § (1.50) $ (0.14) § (0.99)




(1

(2)

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 39, Sept. 39, Dec. 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
Netrevenues .............. ... .oiiivinun... $52,323  $61,695 $85,291 $ 69,658
Costofsales ......... .. oo . 30,014 34,466 50,578 47,365
Grossprofit ........ ... 22,309 27,229 34,713 22,293
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. . .. .. 29,856 29,100 33,056 35,531
Sale of building (gain)......................... — — — {3,985)
Operating profit (Joss) ......................... $(7,547) $(1.871) § 1.657 & (9.253)
Net income (loss) ........ .. ... it $(4,402) $(1,152) $ 1,039  ${40,673)
Earnings (loss) per common share:(1)
Basic........ $ (0.31) 8§ (0.08) $ 007 $ (280)
Diluted ...... ... . o $ (031) $ (0.08) $ 007 $ (2.80)

The sum of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for 2005 and 2004 quarters does not equal the
full year amount due to rounding and the impact of changes in average shares outstanding.

Selling, general and administrative expenses include $428 thousand, $428 thousand. $428 thousand

and $815 thousand of amortization of deferred gain on sale of building for the quarters ended
March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31, 2003, respectively.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.

Schedule Il. Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

For the year ended December 31, 2003;

Reserves for uncollectible accounts .......
Reserves for returns and allowances. ... ...
Reserves for customer rebates(3).........
Reserve for restructuring . ...............
Reserve for discontinued operations . .... ..
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets.. ..

For the year ended December 31, 2004:

Reserves for uncollectible accounts .. .....
Reserves for returns and allowances . .. ... .
Reserves for customer rebates............
Reserve for restructuring .. ..............
Reserve for discontinued operations ..... ..
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. . ..

For the year ended December 31, 2005:

Reserves for uncollectible accounts .......
Reserves for returns and alfowances. .. .. ..
Reserves for customer rebates. ...........
Reserve for restructuring .. ..............
Reserve for discontinued operations . . .. . ..
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. ...

Balance at Charged to  Charged to Balance at
Beginning of  Costs and End of
Period Expenses Accounts(2) Deductions(1) Period
. 52567892 § 2,156,292 § — 31,977,243 $ 2,746,941
oo $ 1182917 § — $3.420902 $2,953491 § 1.650,328
... % 189300 § 17200 § — 8 — § 206,500
... § 494034 % — 3 ~ $ 172234 § 321,800
. 8 212457 8 — 3 — $ 12315 $ 89301
$ -~ 3 - $ - 3 - 3 -
o $2746941 § 2329074 § —~  $1,743779  $ 3,332,236
... $1650328 § — $2,604931  $1,754,739  § 2.500,520
... § 206500 $ — $ 485353 5 55430 § 632,423
.05 321,800 $ — § —  $(321,800) % —
.. §$ 89301 § — 3 — § (7150 $ 82,151
$ — $18,640,000 $ — 3 —  $18,640,000
.. $3332236 % 4182412 § —  $2,797.882 $ 4,716,766
... $2500,520 § — $2327939  $1,764,809 § 3.063,650
.. § 632423 § — § 649355 § 313278 § 968,500
.. § — § 647650 § - § — § 647650
... § 82151 § — 3 — 5 26478 $ 55673
$18,640,000 $28,433,650 § - 3 —  $47,073,650

(1) Deductions reported for reserves for uncollectible accounts represent the actual write-off of customer
accounts in part or full, deductions for reserves for returns and allowances represent actual customer
allowances, and deductions for reserves for downsizing corporate headquarters, restructuring, and
discontinued operations represent actual payments made relating to these activities.

(2) Charged to other accounts reported for reserves for returns and allowances and for reserves for

customer rebates represent additions to the reserves charged to revenue.

(3) Data is not provided separately for additions and deductions columns of reserves for customer rebates

as the amounts are immaterial.
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ENESCO GROUP, INC.
Five-Year Financial Highlights
For the Years 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001

The financial data set forth below should be read in connection with the financial statements,
accompanying notes and management’s discussion and analysis on the preceding pages.

(In thousands, except per sharc amounts)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
NElrEVEIUES ...t e $244 434 $268,967  $256,426  $262,330  $275,294
Costof sales. ... ... .. 153,935 162.423 140,714 151,264 167,358
Loss on license termination ....... ... eunernnnnn... 7,713 — — — —
Grossprofit ... § 82,786 $106,544  $115,712 111,066 $107.936
Selling, general and administrative expenses .................. 129,956 127,543 100,811 98,369 116,456
Gainonsale of building . .............. .. — (3,985) — - —
Amortization of goodwill . ... ... ... ... . _— — — — 1,950
Operating profit (loss) ......... .o i i (47,170)  (17,014) 14,901 12,697 (10,470)
Interest EXpenSe . . ..ot e (2.260) (1,148) (787) (747) (1,523)
Interest income ... ...t i e 201 404 537 286 N
Other exXpense, ML ...\t iiun it e e (449) (75) (319) (460) (420)
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle.......... JR (49,678) (17,833) 14,332 11,776 (12,042)
Income tax (expense) benefit ... ... .. .. .. L (4,347)  (27.355) 2,950 8,897 13.153
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle .. ... (54,025) (45,188) 17,282 20,673 Lt
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of
INCOME TAXES .« ottt ettt et et it e e — — — (29,031) —
Netincome (1088) . ..o e $(54.025) $(45,188) §$ 17.282 § (8.358) § 1.1l
Earnings {Loss) per Common Share:
Busic:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ... ... ... $ (367) $§ (3.146) & 123 $§ 149 § 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of
INCOME LAXES &\ ottt et e e e e e e e e $ — 3 — % — % (209 % -
Netincome (108S) ... ovvt it it aiienns $ (367) $§ (316) $§ 123 $ (060) $ 0.08
Diluted:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle ....... ... . e $ (367) % (316) $ 120 $ 147 35 008
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of
INCOME tAXES .. oottt e $ — 3 — 3 — § (209 § —
Net income (10SS) . .. ..ot i $ (367) $§ (316) 5 1.20 $ (060) $ 008
Average shares of common stock:
Basic .. 14,739 14,309 14,028 13,854 13,708
Diluted . ... e 14,747 14,821 14,444 14,110 13,836
Shares of common stock outstanding at yearend.............. 14,920 14,557 14,164 13.509 13.769
Market value per common share at yearend.................. $ 18 3 808 % 1032 3 708 % 630
Cash dividends declared . . ........ ... . ... ...l $ — 3 — 3 — — 8 —
Dividends declared per common share ....................... — — 8 — —  $ -
Capital expenditures .. ........ .. oo § 2348 % 4552 § 3918 § 4284 § 2,729
Depreciation and amortization . .. ... oo $ 7,768 & 7011 § 5236 § 5014 §$§ 507
Working capital .. ... oo o e $ 24032 $ 79995 $ 94351 $ 76,099 $ 54,389
Total aSS8LS .0\ttt i i $130,191  $193883 $202,468 $179,785  $219,551
Total long-term liabilities . ......... ... i $ 1281 $ 9838 $ 3551 % 3,795 § 8,938
Shareholder’s equity ............ o $ 52,826 $109,267 $147,239  $121913  $126,377
Book value per common share.............. ... ... ... $§ 354 $ 751 % 1040 $§ 876 § 918
Return on average shareholders’ equity ...................... (67)% (35)% 13% (7)% 1%

Footnotes are provided on the Selected Financial Data schedule of this report.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There were no changes or disagreements with accountants on accounting or financial disclosure during
the last two fiscal years.

Item 9A, Conrrols and Procedures

(a) Our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e)) as of December 31, 2005. Our disclosure
controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company
in the reports filed by Enesco under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Enesco’s management,
including its Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer concluded that the Enesco’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
December 31, 2005.

{b) There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2005, that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

On December 6. 2003, the Board of Directors approved the accelerated vesting of options to acquire
608,658 shares of common stock held by employees and non-employee directors that would have otherwise
vested over the next four years. In connection with the acceleration, all holders of accelerated options are
restricted from selling shares acquired through the exercise of an accelerated option (other than shares
needed to cover the exercise price and satisfy income tax withholding obligations) prior to the earlier of
the date on which the exercise would have been permitted under the original vesting terms of the options
or, if earlier, the participant’s last day of employment. All options that were accelerated as of December 6,
2005 had exercise prices in excess of the market price of our common stock on that date. The primary
purpose of the acceleration of vesting of these options was to eliminate the future compensation expense
that we would have otherwise been required to recognize in our consolidated statement of operations with
respect to these options once the revised FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation, became effective for reporting periods beginning in January 2006. As a result of the
acceleration, we expect to avoid recognition of approximately $1.9 million of compensation expense over
the course of the original vesting period of these options.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information required by this item regarding the directors of Enesco is set forth under the captions
“Proposal 1: Election of Directors” and “Information as to Board of Directors and Nominees” and for the
executive officers of Enesco, under the caption “Executive Officers”, included in Enesco’s Proxy
Statement which is incorporated herein by reference.

Information required by this item regarding reporting compliance is included under the caption
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference. Enesco will file its Proxy Statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the 2005 fiscal year end covered by this Report.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

LIS

Information required by this item is set forth under the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Human
Resource and Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation,™ “Performance Graph,”
“Compensation of Directors™ and “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ in
Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.  Secarity Ownership Of Cerrain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is set forth under the caption
“Executive Compensation” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Information required by this item regarding security ownership of management is set forth under the
caption “Our Largest Shareholders” and “Shares Held by Our Directors and Executive Officers” in
Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” in Enesco’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) and (2) Financial Starements and Schedules. The financial statements and schedules
required by this Item are listed in the Index to Financial Statements and Schedules of Enesco Group, Inc.
in this Form 10-K.

(a)(3) Exhibits. The exhibits required by this Item are listed in the Exhibit Index of this
Form 10-K,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized, on the 31st day of March 2006.

ENESCO GROUP, INC.
{Registrant)

By: /s/ Cynthia Passmore

Cynthia Passmore
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below on the 31st day of March. 2006 by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/  Cynthia Passmore Director, President and Chief Executive Officer

Cynthia Passmore

/s/ __Anthony G. Testolin Chief Accounting Officer and Principal Financial Officer
Anthony G. Testolin '

/s/ Anne-Lee Verville Chairman of the Board, Director

Annc-_:— Lee Verville

/s/ Richard W. Blackburn Director
Richard W. Blackbum

/s/  Donna Brooks Lucas Director
Donna Brooks Lucas

/s/ Leonard A. Campanaro Director
Leonard A. Campanaro

/s/  George R. Ditomassi Director
George R. Ditomassi

/s/ Judith R. Haberkom Director
Judith R. Haberkorn

/s/ Thane A. Pressman Director
Thane A. Pressman
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3(a)*

3(b)*

4(a)*

10(a)*

10(b)*

10(c)*

10(d)*

10(e)*

10(f)*

10(g)*

10(h)*

10(i)*

10G)*

10¢k)*

10(1)*

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of November 24, 1997 by and between
Stanhome Inc. and Laboratoires De Biologie Vegetale Yves Rocher. (Exhibit 2.1 to
Form 8-K filed on December 31, 1997 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Articles of Incorporation as amended. (Exhibit 3{a) to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004
in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

By-Laws. (Exhibit 3(b) to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004 in Commission File
no. 0-1349.)

Renewed Rights Agreement dated as of July 22, 1998 between Enesco Group. Inc. and
Mellon Investor Services L.L.C. (Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed on July 23, 1998 in
Commi\ssion File No. 0-1349.)

1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated through December 4, 1996. ( Exhibit 10
{b) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1996 in Commission File
No. 0-1349.)

Special Interim Chief Executive Officer Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-K
filed for the period ended December 31, 1993 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan. (Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 filed on
May 21, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan. {Exhibit 10(f) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended
December 31, 1998 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. (Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q filed for the period ended
March 31, 1995 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. (Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8
filed on May 21, 2004 in period ended March 31, 1995 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Form of Change in Control Agreement. (Exhibit 19(¢) to Form 10-K filed for the period
ended December 31, 1992 in Commission File No. 0-1349.) A substantially identical
agreement exists with Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin.

Form of Change in Control Agreement with certain executive officers and non-executive
officers (Exhibit 19(c) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1991 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.) Substantially identical agreements exist with M. Frances
Durden, Josette V. Goldberg, Paula E. Manley, Jeffrey S. Smith and Charles E. Sanders.

Enesco Group, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and restated, effective
January 1, 2005. (Exhibit 10(i) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 2004
in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Seventh Amendment and Termination Agreement dated May 17, 2005 between Precious
Moments, Incorporated and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 18,
2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Seventh Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
dated May 16, 2005 by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle
Bank. N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2005 in Commission File

No. 0-1349).

Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of July 7, 2005, by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and
LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2005 in Commission File No.
001-09267).
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10(0)*
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10(q)*
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10(s)*
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10(u)*

10(v)*

10(w)*

10(x)*

10(y)*
10(z)*

10(aa)*

10(bb)*

Letter Amendment to Eighth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving
Credit Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank N.A.
(Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on July 28, 20035 in Commission File No.

Complaint filed against Department 56, Inc., Sunshine Productions, Inc., Kevin Knowles and
Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the United States District Court, Northern District of Illinois,
Eastern Division dated as of July 29, 2005. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2005
in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Amended complaint, dated August 15, 2005, filed against Department 36, Inc., Sunshine
Productions, Inc.. Kevin Knowles and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the United States District
Court, Northern District of 1llinois, Eastern Division. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on
August 16, 2005 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Memorandum in Support of Motion for Preliminary Injunction as to Department 56, dated
August 15, 2005, filed against Department 56, Inc., Sunshine Productions, Inc., Kevin
Knowles and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. in the United States District Court, Northern District
of 1llinois, Eastern Division. (Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8-K filed on August 16, 2005 in
Commission File No. 001-09267).

License Agreement between Jim Shore Designs, Inc. and Enesco Group, Inc. {Exhibit 10 to
Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement dated June 16, 2003 by
and among Enesco Group, Inc.. Fieet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1
to Form 8-K filed on June 19, 2003 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement by
and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10(r)
to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Second Amendment 1o Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A.
(Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on August 11, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement by
and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1
to Form 10-Q filed on November 8, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Fourth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
by and among Enesco Group, Inc.. Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A.
(Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed on November 24, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security Agreement between Enesco Group,
Inc. and Fleet National Bank, as Agent (Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed on November 24,
2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement by
and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1
to Form 8-K filed January 31, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

ROA Incentive Program 2004. (Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2004).

Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin Employment Agreement (Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K filed on
September 16, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Enesco Group, Inc. 2005 Bonus Plan. (Exhibit 10(aa) to Form 10-K filed for the period
ended December 31, 2004 in Commission File No. 1349).

Enesco Group, Inc. Senior Leadership Bonus Program 2005. (Exhibit 10(bb) to Form 10-K
filed for the period ended December 31, 2004 in Commission File No. 1349).
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10{nn)*
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Agreement to Purchase Industrial Building between Enesco Group, Inc. and CenterPoint
Properties Trust dated December 10, 2004. ( Exhibit 99 to Form 8-K filed on December 13,
2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Letter Amendment to Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalie Bank N.A.
(Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Sixth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement among
Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K
filed on March 29, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Ninth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of August 31, 2005, by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and

LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on September 1, 2005 in Commission
File No. 001-09267).

Letter Amendment to Ninth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Revolving
Credit Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Bank of America, N.A. (formerly known as
“Fleet National Bank”™) and LaSalle Bank N.A., dated as of September 29, 2005.

(Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2005 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Agreement dated as of November 18, 2005 between National Distribution Centers, L.P. and
Enesco Group, Inc., {Exhibit 99.2 to Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2005 in Commission
File No. 001-09267).

Tenth amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior Revolving Credit Agreement,
dated as of December 21, 2003, by and among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National Bank and
LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2005 in Commission
File No. 001-09267). '

First Amendment to the Executive Employment Agreement between Enesco Group, Inc.,
and Cynthia Passmore, dated January 16, 2006 (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on
January 17, 2006 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Form of Change in Control Agreement. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2006
in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Settlement Agreement dated January 30, 2006 which includes as Exhibit A the Strategic
Alliance Agreements, dated January 30, 2006 and effective November 23, 2005, between
Enesco Group, Inc. and Jim Shore Designs, Inc. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on
January 30, 2006 in Commission File No. 001-09267).

Enesco Group, Inc. Standards of Business Conduct and Ethics 2006: Adopted February 10,
2006. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2006 in Commission File No. 001-
09267).

99.1 Modification of Strategic Alliance Agreement (0206-1) with Jim Shore Designs, Inc.,
dated March 22, 2006. (Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2006 in Commission
File No. 001-09267).

Modification of Strategic Alliance Agreement (0206-2) with Jim Shore Designs, Inc., dated
March 22, 2006.

Modification of Strategic Alliance Agreement (0206-4) with Jim Shore Designs, Inc., dated
March 22, 2006. (Exhibit 99.3 to Form 8-K filed on March 23, 2006 in Commission File
No. 001-09267).

1999 Non-Employee Director Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of Non-
Qualified Stock Options
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10(qq)
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10{ss)

21
23
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3.2

321

1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of Non-
Qualified Stock Options _

1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of
Restricted Stock for Achievement Award Winners

1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan as Amended May 19, 2004 Certificate of Grant of
Restricted Stock for New Employees

Subsidiaries of Enesco Group, Inc.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Statement of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated By Reference




Exhibit 10(pp)

ENESCO GROUP, INC.
Itasca, Illinois

1999 NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR PLAN
(As amended May 19, 2004)

CERTIFICATE OF GRANT OF NON-QUALIFIED
STOCK OPTIONS

Date of Grant: «Date»
Total Number of Shares: «# of shares»
Price per Share: $«stock price»

To: «First Namey» «Last Name»
Dear «First Name»:

This letter is a certificate formally granting you Non-qualified Stock Options with respect to the number of shares
indicated above. The stock option exercise price will be $ «stock price». Twenty-five percent (25%) of the total number of
shares subject to these options will become exercisable on the first (1) anniversary date of the grant and every year thereafter
for the next three (3) years, subject to Section 10. The stock options granted are not to be treated as incentive stock options
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

You may exercise your right to purchase all or any of the shares underlying this grant on or after the date on which those
shares become exercisable but, in any event, not later than «expiration date».

In order to exercise, you must forward a completed Stock Option Exercise Order form together with payment in full to the
Treasurer, Enesco Group, Inc., 225 Windsor Drive, ltasca, Illinois 60143, with a copy to the General Counsel, for the shares
which you elect to purchase. You can elect to make your purchase in cash, Enesco Group, Inc. (the “Company”) stock, or a
combination of cash and the Company stock.

Please be advised that the Company will accept shares acquired under a stock option program of the Company in payment
for new option shares only if the shares tendered by the optionee have been held by such optionee for a period of at least six
(6) months and are free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.

No purchase can be made of fewer than ten (10) shares at any one time. Any exercise of the options will be effective on
the date when payment is received in the office of the Treasurer, except that no payment will be accepted that is received
after «expiration date». You will receive, at your discretion, a stock certificate representing shares for which you have made
payment.




Under existing law, the difference between the price paid for any shares purchased under these options and their market
value on the date or dates the options are exercised will be subject to any applicable taxes, including the withholding of
federal income, social security and medicare taxes. In addition, there may be applicable state or local taxes and withholding
requirements. The payment of all such taxes is, of course, your personal responsibility. However, the Company also is
responsible for meeting the withholding requirements and in order to do so, will retain the required number of shares
purchased under the options unless you elect to deposit with your exercise form an amount equal to any required withholding.
Please refer to the provisions of Section 8(c) of the 1999 Plan.

All options granted to non-employee directors under the 1999 Plan are subject to the termination provisions of Section 10
of the 1999 Plan. Please review these provisions carefully in connection with your termination as a director.

This option is exercisable during your lifetime only by you and is not transferable by you, except in the event of your
death and then only as described in the Plan. Any attempted transfer or other disposition of the option by you will be void and
will constitute valid grounds for its cancellation by the Company.

A copy of the 1999 Plan, as amended, is enclosed together with a Prospectus dated May 19, 2004. Please read these
carefully. This stock option grant is made subject to the provisions of the 1999 Plan, as it may be amended from time to time.

These options will be of no force or effect and no rights will exist after «expiration datey.

ENESCO GROUP, INC.

«Name Secretary»
Secretary

Enclosures




Exhibit 10(qq)

ENESCO GROUP, INC.
Itasca, Illinois

1996 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
(As amended May 19, 2004)

CERTIFICATE OF GRANT OF NON-QUALIFIED
STOCK OPTIONS

Date of Grant: «Date»
Total Number of Shares: «# of shares»
Price per Share: $ «stock price»

To: «First Name» «Last Name»

Dear «First Name»:

This letter is a certificate formally granting you Non-qualified Stock Options with respect to the number of shares
indicated above. The stock option exercise price will be § «stock price». Twenty-five percent (25%}) of the total number of
shares subject to these options will become exercisable on the first (1) anniversary date of the grant and every year thereafter
for the next three (3) years, subject to Section 10. The stock options granted are not to be treated as incentive stock options
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

You may exercise your right to purchase all or any of the shares underlying this grant on or after the date on which those
shares become exercisable but, in any event, not later than «expiration date».

In order to exercise, you must forward a completed Stock Option Exercise Order form together with payment in full to the
Treasurer, Enesco Group, Inc., 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois 60143, with a copy to the General Counsel, for the shares
which you elect to purchase. You can elect to make your purchase in cash, Enesco Group, Inc. (the “Company”) stock, or a
combination of cash and the Company stock.

Please be advised that the Company will accept shares acquired under a stock option program of the Company in payment
for new option shares only if the shares tendered by the optionee have been held by such optionee for a period of at least six
(6) months and are free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.

No purchase can be made of fewer than ten (10) shares at any one time. Any exercise of the options will be effective on
the date when payment is received in the office of the Treasurer, except that no payment will be accepted that is received
after «expiration date». You will receive, at your discretion, a stock certificate representing shares for which you have made
payment.




Under existing law, the difference between the price paid for any shares purchased under these options and their market
value on the date or dates the options are exercised will be subject to any applicable taxes, including the withholding of
federal income, social security and medicare taxes. In addition, there may be applicable state or local taxes and withholding
requirements. The payment of all such taxes is, of course, your personal responsibility. However, the Company also is
responsible for meeting the withholding requirements and in order to do so, will retain the required number of shares
purchased under the options unless you elect to deposit with your exercise form an amount equal to any required withholding.
Please refer to the provisions of Section 8(c) of the 1996 Plan.

All options granted to employees under the 1996 Plan are subject to the termination provisions of Section 10 of the 1996
Plan. Please review these provisions carefully in connection with your termination of employment.

- This option is exercisable during your lifetime only by you and is not transferable by you, except in the event of your
death and then only as described in the Plan. Any attempted transfer or other disposition of the option by you will be void and
will constitute valid grounds for its cancellation by the Company.

A copy of the 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended, is enclosed together with a Prospectus dated May 19, 2004.
Please read these carefully. This stock option grant is made subject to the provisions of the 1996 Plan, as it may be amended
from time to time.

These options will be of no force or effect and no rights will exist after «expiration date».

ENESCO GROUP, INC.

«Name Secretary»
Secretary

Enclosures




Exhibit 10(rr)

ENESCO GROUP, INC.
Itasca, Illinois

1996 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
{As amended May 19, 2004)

CERTIFICATE OF GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK

Date of Grant: «Date»
Total Number of Shares: «# of shares»

To: «First Name» «Last Name»
Dear «First Namey:

This letter is a certificate formally granting you Restricted Stock with respect to the number of shares indicated above in
recognition of your «year» Achievement Award. Twenty-five percent (25%) of the total number of shares will become vested
on each of the first four (4) anniversary dates of the grant, subject to Section 9 of the Plan.

In addition to the Restricted Stock award, you will also be given a tax “gross-up” payment to cover certain tax
consequences to you as a result of the award. The tax gross-up payment will be paid each year in «month» concurrently with
the vesting of shares under this Award, so the first payment will be in «monthy» «year». This tax payment may not cover all of
your tax expenses depending on your individual circumstances at the time the stock vests. The Company shall have the right
to require you to pay the Company the amount of any taxes which the Company is or will be required to withhold, as and
when required by law, with respect to the receipt or vesting of the Restricted Stock before the certificate for such Restricted
Stock is delivered to you. Furthermore, the Company may elect to deduct such taxes from any amounts then payable in cash
or shares or from any amounts payable anytime thereafter to you. Please consult with your own tax advisor or accountant
as to the specific tax consequences to you as a result of the award.

If you leave your employment with Enesco Group, Inc. for any reason prior to all of the Restricted Stock vesting, then you
will forfeit any shares that have not vested. You will be able to vote all «# of shares» shares as a stockholder and receive any
distributions with respect to the shares (i.e. dividends, if declared); however, the Law Department will hold the actual stock
certificate until such time as all «# of shares» shares have vested (or whatever portion if your employment at Enesco ends
prior to that time).

All shares granted to employees under the 1996 Plan are subject to the termination provisions of Section 9 of the 1996
Plan. Please review these provisions carefully in connection with your termination of employment.

Until the shares have vested, they are not transferable by you, except in the event of your death and then only as described
in the Plan. Any attempted transfer or other disposition of the shares by you will be void and will constitute valid grounds for
its cancellation by the Company.




A copy of the 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended, is enclosed together with a Prospectus dated May 19, 2004.
Please read these carefully. This Restricted Stock award is made subject to the provisions of the Plan, as it may be amended
from time to time.

Thank you and congratulations!

ENESCO GROUP, INC.

«Name Secretary»
Secretary

Enclosures




Exhibit 10(ss)

ENESCO GROUP, INC.
Itasca, Illinois

1996 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
(As amended May 19, 2004)

CERTIFICATE OF GRANT OF RESTRICTED STOCK

Date of Grant: «Date»
Total Number of Shares: «# of shares»

To: «First Name» «Last Name»
Dear «First Name»:

This letter is a certificate formally granting you Restricted Stock with respect to the number of shares indicated above
upon your appointment as «title» of Enesco Group, Inc. Thirty-three and 1/3 percent (33 1/3%) of the total number of shares
will become vested on each of the first three (3) anniversary dates of the grant, subject to Section 9 of the Plan.

The Company shall have the right to require you to pay the Company the amount of any taxes which the Company is or
will be required to withhold, as and when required by law, with respect to the receipt or vesting of the Restricted Stock before
the certificate for such Restricted Stock is delivered to you. Furthermore, the Company may elect to deduct such taxes from
any amounts then payable in cash or shares or from any amounts payable anytime thereafter to you. Please consult with
your own tax advisor or accountant as to the specific tax consequences to you as a resuit of the award.

If you leave your employment with Enesco Group, Inc. for any reason prior to all of the Restricted Stock vesting, then you
will forfeit any shares that have not vested. You will be able to vote all «# of shares» shares as a stockholder and receive any
distributions with respect to the shares (i.e. dividends, if declared); however, the Law Department will hold the actual stock
certificate until such time as all «# of shares» shares have vested (or whatever portion if your employment at Enesco ends
prior to that time).

All shares granted to employees under the 1996 Plan are subject to the termination provisions of Section 9 of the 1996
Plan. Please review these provisions carefully in connection with your termination of employment.

Until the shares have vested, they are not transferable by you, except in the event of your death and then only as described
in the Plan. Any attempted transfer or other disposition of the shares by you will be void and will constitute valid grounds for
its cancellation by the Company.




A copy of the 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended, is enclosed together with a Prospectus dated May 19, 2004.
Please read these carefully. This Restricted Stock award is made subject to the provisions of the Plan, as it may be amended
from time to time.

ENESCO GROUP, INC.

«Name Secretary»
Secretary

Enclosures




Exhibit 21

Significant Subsidiaries of Enesco Group, Inc.

The following are significant subsidiaries of Enesco Group, Inc. as of December 31, 2005 and the
states or jurisdictions in which they are organized. The names of particular subsidiaries have been omitted
because, considered in the aggregate as a single subsidiary, they would not constitute, as of the end of the
year covered by this report, a “significant subsidiary” as that term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of
Regulation S-X under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

Jurisdiction of

Name ' QOrganization
Enesco Limited England

Enesco France S.A. France

Enesco International Ltd. Delaware
Enesco International (H.K) Limited Hong Kong
N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited Ontario, Canada
Enesco Holdings Limited England

Gregg Manufacturing, Inc. California

All of the above-listed subsidiaries are included in Enesco’s consolidated financial statements for 2004
and 2005.




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Enesco Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements No. 33-42974, No. 333-
68289, No. 333-75345, No. 333-91312, No. 333-91318, No. 333-105062, No. 333-105063, No. 333-
108798, No. 333-108799, No. 333-115730, and No. 333-115731 of Enesco Group, Inc. of our report dated
March 31, 2006, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2008, and the related financial statement schedule, as it relates to the years cnded.
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, which report appears in the December 31, 2003 annual report on
Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, 1llinois
March 31, 2006




Exhibit 31.1

Certification under Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

1, Cynthia Passmore, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared:

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,

the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information: and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Cynthia Passmore

Cynthia Passmore
President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

March 31, 2006




Exhibit 31.2

Certification under Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Anthony G. Testolin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report:

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over findncial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/  Anthony G. Testolin

Anthony G. Testolin
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

March 31, 2006




Exhibit 32

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. (the “Company”) for
the annual period ended December 31, 2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report”), 1, Cynthia Passmore, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and Anthony G. Testolin, the Chief Accounting Officer and principal financial officer of the

Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and resuits of operations of the Company.

March 31, 2006

/s/ Cynthia Passmore

Cynthia Passmore
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Anthony G. Testolin

Anthony G. Testolin
Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




« Distribution and Warehousing: Our goal was to create a more efficient and cost-effective distribution and
warehousing model. Our strategy is to bring our distribution and warehousing costs more in line with industry
standards, while improving quality and service levels.

MAKING IT HAPPEN
By year-end 2005, Enesco made significant strides in executing the new operating plan:

« Product Rationalization: We reduced the number of our overall product lines from 170 to approximately 50.
The lines we eliminated are more than half of the total U.S. SKU count, but represent less than 10% of revenues. The
remaining product lines fit into four merchandise categories — decorative gifts, inspirational gifts, brand enthusiast
gifts'and occasion-based gifts - that we believe elicit strong and sustainable market demand and profitability.

Corporate Overhead: We achieved our objective of reducing expenses that will generate pre-tax annualized cost
in excess of $23 million. This includes savings associated with Precious Moments and ERP-related costs, outside
services and salary reductions. We continue to expect achieving total pre-tax cost savings on an annualized basis in
the range of $30-$32 million, which will be fully realized in 2007.

Distribution and Warehouse Conversion: In November 2005, we signed a five-year commitment with a third-party
logistics provider as a more efficient cost approach to our supply chain. We transitioned our distribution and ware-
housing to the third-party provider at the end of 2005. The continuing product lines were moved to the new facility,
while the discontinued items remain at our current warehouse in Illinois for closeout sale. We began shipping the
continuing products from the new location in early 2006. We expect to close our current distribution center by

the end of 2006. Cost savings from this transition are expected to be in the range of $4-$6 million pre-tax on an
annualized basis.

THE YEAR AHEAD

The Company has come a long way in one year, and we are pleased with progress on our initiatives in 2005. Looking ahead
to 2006, we continue to face some operational and performance challenges, making it critical that we execute our operating
improvement plan while increasing the focus of our leadership on sustainable growth strategies.

While the highest priority has been to reduce our U.S. cost structure, we also are establishing a platform from which
we can maximize revenue potential. Competition in the gift market is highly fragmented. While we have a presence within
many areas of the gift market, our share is small; however this offers ample opportunity to grow share in our core channels
in our three major markets around the world.

Our vision is to be a product-based company, focusing on those merchandise categories in which we can develop and
maintain a leadership position, and leverage our core distribution base. Enesco will have a focused, leaner, more productive
profile. We will be known for the innovative and beautifully-designed gifts we offer retailers. Consumers will know Enesco
for its high-quality decorative, inspirational and licensed products, whether for a self purchase or a gifting occasion.

In closing, the Company believes our operating improvement plan will strengthen our performance and provide a
platform for growth that is based on a more efficient operating structure and a focused product portfolio. We believe this
strategic plan will drive increased profitability and shareholder return.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I thank our fellow shareholders for your continued support of Enesco as we
proceed with our operating improvement plan and build a platform for sustainable growth. I also thank our retail partners
and employees throughout the world for their hard work, determination and commitment. It is through their passion for
our products that Enesco will become a leader in the gift industry.

Sincerely,

ZEA2.

Cynthia Passmore
President and CEO
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
INTERNATIONAL HEADQUARTERS STOCK EXCHANGE TRADEMARKS

Enesco Group, Inc.
225 Windsor Drive
Itasca, Illinois 60143
1.630.875.5300
1.630.875.5350 (fax)
WWW.enesco.com

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders
will be held at 9:30 a.m. (CST) on
Wednesday, May 17, 2006, at Enesco
Group, Inc. International Headquarters,
located at 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca,
linois.

TRANSFER AGENT AND
REGISTRAR

Mellon Investor Services LLC
Newport Office Center VII
480 Washington Blvd.

Jersey City, New Jersey 07310
1.800.288.9541
www.melloninvestor.com

Telecommunications devices for the
hearing impaired (TDD) are available
at 1.800.231.5469.

Enesco Group, Inc. stock is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and the
Pacific Exchange under the symbol ENC.
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KPMG LLP
Chicago, Illinois

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

For questions concerning your account
as a shareholder, such as name or address
changes or inquiries regarding statements
or tax information, contact the above
listed Transfer Agent.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Enesco Group, Inc’s shareholders of
record receive an Annual Report and
proxy material. If you have any ques-
tions or require additional information,
write to International Headquarters,
Attention Investor Relations; call
1.630.875.5300 or visit the Investor
Relations section at www.enesco.com.
All reports filed with the SEC also are
available on the Investor Relations
section at www.enesco.com.

Italicized words identifying products in
this report are trademarks or service
marks of Enesco Group, Inc., its sub-
sidiaries, affiliates or licensors.
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France
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Enesco International (H.K.) Limited
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N.C. Cameron & Sons Limited
Canada
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California
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